Enox County Commission

Gina Oster, 39 District, Madam Chair T 400 West Mam Sirest
Eim Frazier, At-Large Seat 11, Fice-Chair At Suite 603, City-County Bldg.
' e 4 Encwalle, TH 37902

Damon Fawls, 1* Dasinct
Courtney Dhorett, 2™ District sl PR o) f

Shane Jackson, 4* District 2 g tel (863) 213-2534
Angala Russell, $* District : | fxx (865) 215-2038
Temy I'I.'i.l], £t Dhistrict mmm:smnm’;_.:]kmxcmmr}'.org
Rhonda F. Lae, Esg., T Dustrict

Adam Thompson, 8% Dhsinct

W. Andy Fox, Esq., 9 District

Larsen Jay, At-Larze Seat 10

5 -, i—

THE KNOX COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS SHALL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION
FOR THE ZONING AGENDA ON MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2025 AT 5:00 P.M. IN THE MAIN
ASSEMBLY ROOM OF THE CITY-COUNTY BUILDING, 400 WEST MAIN STREET. ALL
AGENDA ITEMS ARE SUBJECT TO VOTE.

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL (5:00 P.M.):
(Any person testifying on any Zoning matter shall be sworn in by the Law Director or his
designee before giving testimony)

A. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
Commissioner Larsen Jay

B. Amendments to the Agenda

C. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting
D. Public Forum - Agenda Items Only

E. Zoning Requests

1. 3-J-25-RZ Request of William Zayets for rezoning from I (Industrial) and A
(Agricultural) to RA (Low Density Residential). Property located at 7000 Ball
Road / Parcel ID 091JA006. Planning Commission Recommendation:
Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is consistent
with the Knox County Comprehensive Plan and surrounding
development, subject to 2 conditions, by a vote of 14-0 Consent.
(Commission District 6)



2. 3-H-25-RZ Request of Ball Homes LLC for rezoning from A (Agricultural) to PR (Planned
;’::;r to Residential) up to 3.5 dwelling units per acre. Property located at 0 Hickory
Creek Road; 0, 2300, 2304 West Gallaher Ferry Road / Parcel ID 129 03512,
03513, 03514, 03515, 03516. Planning Commission Recommendation:
Approve the PR (Planned Residential) zone with up to 3.5 dwelling units
per acre because it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive

Plan and surrounding development, by a vote of 14-0. (DEFER TO MAY AT
REQUEST OF APPLICANT)

(Commission District 6)

3. 3-B-25-RZ Request of Bryan Andrew Byrd for rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low
Density Residential). Property located at 4912 E Emory Road / Parcel ID 029
061. Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA (Low
Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County
Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development, by a vote of 14-0
Consent.
(Commission District 7)

4. 3-D-25-RZ Request of Daniel Humphreys for rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low
Density Residential). Property located at 1137 Granville Conner Road / Parcel
ID 056FE007. Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA
(Low Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox
County Comprehensive Plan and would bring zoning into compliance, by
a vote of 13-0.
(Commission District 7)

5. 3-F-25-RZ Request of Elizabeth D. Raines for rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low
Density Residential). Property located at 7639 Gibbs Road / Parcel ID 021
08510. Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA (Low
Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County
Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development, by a vote of 14-0
Consent.
(Commission District 8)

6. 3-A-25-RZ Request of Sierra Kirby for rezoning from I (Industrial) to RA (Low Density
Residential). Property located at 1562 Saylors Ford Road / Parcel ID 042
19532. Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA (Low
Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County
Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development, by a vote of 14-0.
(Commission District 8)

F. Zoning Appeals

G. Amendments to the Knox County Zoning Ordinance



7. 0-25-3-101

2nd Reading

Roll Call

H. Public Forum -

I. Other Business

J. Adjournment

Consideration of an Ordinance of the Commission of Knox County, Tennessee,
amending the Knox County Code, Appendix A — Zoning, Articles 2.20, 4.91,
5.11,5.12,5.13, 5.22, 5.31, 5.32, 5.33, 5.34, 5.36, 5.37, 5.38, 5.40, 5.41, 5.42,
5.50, and 5.51 to align zoning regulations with Department of Human Services
(DHS) licensure rules for child care agencies and to streamline the provision of
child care services. (Ord. No. O-90-9-130, adopted 9-10-90, as

amended) Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the proposed
childcare zoning ordinance amendments because these changes are
consistent with Knox County Comprehensive Plan Implementation
Policies and State Department of Human Services (DHS) licensure
regulations for childcare facilities, by a vote of 15-0. (SECOND READING)
(Public Hearing scheduled for Monday, April 21, 2025 at 3:30 pm)

(Planning Commission and Commissioner Jay)

Open Topics



RLA-17178 3-J-25-RZ
ZONINGS

Meeting Date: 04/21/2025

Requested By: Dallas DeArmond, METROPOLITAN PLANNING
COMMISSION

Department: METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Requires Expenditure of Funds: NO Funded in Current Budget: NO

Appropriation Required: NO

CAPTION

Request of William Zayets for rezoning from I (Industrial) and A (Agricultural) to RA
(Low Density Residential). Property located at 7000 Ball Road / Parcel ID 091JA006.
Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA (Low Density
Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan and surrounding development, subject to 2 conditions, by a vote of 14-0
Consent.

(Commission District 6)

Attachments
William Zayets 3-J-25-RZ




KNOXVILLE-KNOX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
REPORT OF RECOMMENDATION

3/19/2025 11:05 AM

APPLICANT:
APPLICANT'S REQUEST:

FROM:
TO:

COMM. RECOMMENDATION:

COMMISSION VOTE COUNT:

LOCATION:
ACREAGE:
DISTRICT:

COMMISSION HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

APPLICANT'S ADDRESS:

LEGISLATIVE BODY:

Consistent with Land Use Plan?
Consistent with Growth Plan?

TTCDA Approval?

FILE NUMBER: 3-J-25-RZ

WILLIAM ZAYETS
REZONING

| (Industrial), A (Agricultural)
RA (Low Density Residential)

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is
consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive Plan and
surrounding development, subject to 2 conditions.

14-0 Consent

7000 BALL RD / Parcel ID 91 J A 006
1.08 acres

Commission District 6

3/13/2025
News-Sentinel

2/11/2025

4/21/2025
News-Sentinel
3/19/2025
William Zayets

1556 Robinson Rd
Knoxville, TN 37923

Knox County Commission

Yes
Yes

N/A

Suite 403 - City/County Building - 400 Main Street - Knoxville, Tennessee - 37902 - (865-215-2500)



<

REZONING REPORT

-
Planning
* FILE#:  3-J-25-RZ AGENDA ITEM #: 36
AGENDA DATE: 3/13/2025
* APPLICANT: WILLIAM ZAYETS
OWNER(S): William Zayets
TAX ID NUMBER: 91 J A 006 View map on KGIS

JURISDICTION:
STREET ADDRESS:

* LOCATION:

* APPX. SIZE OF TRACT:

GROWTH POLICY PLAN:
ACCESSIBILITY:

UTILITIES:

FIRE DISTRICT:
WATERSHED:

County Commission District 6
7000 BALL RD
South side of Ball Rd, north side of Schaad Rd

1.08 acres

Planned Growth Area

Access is via Ball Road, a major collector street with a pavement width of 20-
ft within a right-of-way ranging from 50 ft to 65 ft.

Water Source:  West Knox Utility District
Sewer Source:  West Knox Utility District
Karns Fire Department

Beaver Creek

k PRESENT ZONING:
k ZONING REQUESTED:
* EXISTING LAND USE:

EXTENSION OF ZONE:
HISTORY OF ZONING:

SURROUNDING LAND
USE AND ZONING:

NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT:

| (Industrial), A (Agricultural)
RA (Low Density Residential)

Single Family Residential

Yes, this is an extension.

None noted.

North:  Single family residential, rural residential - A (Agricultural)
South:  Agriculture/forestry/vacant land - | (Industrial)

East:  Agriculture/forestry/vacant land - A (Agricultural)

West:  Single family residential - RA (Low Density Residential)

The surrounding area is residential in nature, consisting mainly of single-
family dwellings on a range of lot sizes.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

* Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County
Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development, subject to 2 conditions.

1. Access must be from Ball Road.
2. Maintaining a no-disturbance boundary to the rear of the stream (see the shaded area shown in Exhibit C).

COMMENTS:

PURSUANT TO THE KNOX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE 6.30.01, THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS MUST BE MET FOR ALL REZONINGS (must meet all of these):

AGENDA ITEM #: 36

FILE # 3-J-25-RZ

3/7/2025 03:03 PM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 36-1



https://www.kgis.org/maps/planningcases.html?run=SearchCases&casenumber=3-J-25-RZ

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE NECESSARY BECAUSE OF SUBSTANTIALLY CHANGED OR
CHANGING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA AND ZONES AFFECTED, OR IN THE COUNTY GENERALLY.

1. Development trends in the surrounding area have primarily been residential and civic in nature. Since the
early 1980s, there has been a gradual transition from | (Industrial) and A (Agricultural) zoning to residential
zoning such as RA (Low Density Residential) and PR (Planned Residential) with up to 3 to 5 du/ac.

2. The development of a service-oriented commercial node is planned at the intersection of Schaad Road and
Bakertown Road, 0.35 miles east of the subject property.

3. The Schaad Road Improvement Project is in progress 0.21 miles west of the subject property. A section of
the new Schaad Road extension abuts the subject property on the south side.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF THE
APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE.

1. The RA zone is intended to provide for areas with low population densities. The RA zone is compatible with
the surrounding residential zoning, which largely consists of properties zoned RA and PR with upto 3to 5
du/ac.

2. Rezonings should be based on the entire range of uses allowed within a zone to ensure that any
development brought forth in the future would be compatible with the surrounding land uses. The RA zone
allows primarily residential and civic uses, which align with the character of the surrounding area.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT ANY OTHER PART OF THE COUNTY
NOR SHALL ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT ADVERSE EFFECTS RESULT FROM SUCH AN AMENDMENT.
1. A blue line stream runs through the south side of the subject property (Exhibit B). A 50-ft stream buffer
would likely be required, and any proposed development must comply with the Knox County Stormwater
Ordinance.

2. The blue line stream separates the flatter front portion of the property that fronts Ball Road from the steeper
rear portion, which has slopes above the 40% range. As part of the Schaad Road Improvement Project, a
manufactured ridge was created to support the Schaad Road extension. Due to the steep hill created for the
Schaad Road extension, condition #1 recommends requiring driveway access only from Ball Road, and
condition #2 recommends no-disturbance beyond the stream, as shown in Exhbit C.

3. There is a closed contour indicating the potential presence of a sinkhole just to the north of the significant
slope. A 50-ft buffer around the closed contour would be required unless a geotechnical survey was done
showing the area is not a sinkhole.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH AND NOT IN CONFLICT WITH THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF KNOX COUNTY, INCLUDING ANY OF ITS ELEMENTS, MAJOR ROAD PLAN,
LAND USE PLAN, COMMUNITY FACILITIES PLAN, AND OTHERS:

1. The subject property is designated as two different Place Types in the Knox County Comprehensive Plan.
The front portion of the property is within the SR (Suburban Residential) place type, whereas the rear half is
within the SMR (Suburban Mixed Residential) place type. The RA zone is directly related to the SR and SMR
place types.

2. The SR and SMR place types recommend similar housing mixes, featuring single-family subdivisions with
lots smaller than one acre and attached residential developments such as duplexes. The main difference
between the two place types is that SMR allows a greater housing mix than SR, including attached housing or
small-scale multifamily housing. The RA zone allows single-family detached dwellings by right and duplexes as
a use on review. Both of these uses align with the recommended housing mix of the SR and SMR place types.
3. The recommended rezoning complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Implementation Policy 2, to ensure
that new development is sensitive to existing community character. The lot sizes and allowable uses in the RA
zone are consistent with those in the surrounding area. The rezoning also complies with Implementation Policy
9, to coordinate infrastructure improvements with development. As previously mentioned, the Schaad Road
Improvement Project is underway nearby and aims to improve connectivity and roadway safety in the area.

4. The subject property is within the Planned Growth Area of the Growth Policy Plan, which encourages a
reasonably compact development pattern. The allowable lot sizes and housing types in the RA zone support
the intent of the Planned Growth Area.

ESTIMATED TRAFFIC IMPACT: Not required.

ESTIMATED STUDENT YIELD: Not applicable.

Schools affected by this proposal: Karns Elementary, Karns Middle, and Karns High.

AGENDA ITEM #. 36 FILE # 3-J-25-RZ 3/7/2025 03:03 PM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 36-2




» Potential new school population is estimated using locally-derived data on public school student yield
generated by new housing.

+ Students are assigned to schools based on current attendance zones as determined by Knox County
Schools. Students may request transfers to different zones, and zone boundaries are subject to change.
 Estimates presume full build-out of the proposed development. Build-out is subject to market forces, and
timing varies widely from proposal to proposal.

+ Student yields from new development do not reflect a net addition of children in schools. Additions occur
incrementally over the build-out period. New students may replace current population that ages through the
system or moves from the attendance zone.

If approved, this item will be forwarded to Knox County Commission for action on 4/21/2025. If denied,
Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission's action is final, unless the action to deny is appealed to Knox
County Commission. The date of the appeal hearing will depend on when the appeal application is filed.
Appellants have 30 days to appeal a Planning Commission decision in the County.

AGENDA ITEM #. 36 FILE # 3-J-25-RZ 3/7/2025 03:03 PM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 36-3




REZONING

3-)-25-RZ

From: | (Industrial), A (Agricultural)

: To: RA (Low Density Residential)

Original Print Date: 2/7/2025
Knoxville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902

Petitioner: William Zayets

Map No: 91
Jurisdiction: County
0—110

Feet




Exhibit A. Contextual Images

Location Map

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 1 3-J-25-RZ
0 310

: Case boundary *
ee




Zoning Map B

Comprehensive Plan Map

CMU
- 8
‘0

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 2 3-J-25-RZ

o
N
o
o

: Case boundary *
ee




Existing Land Use Map

AgForVac

AgForVac

AgForVac

AgForVac

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 3 3-)-25-RZ

0 550
: Case boundary [—
Feet




: Case Boundary

Original Print Date: 2/7/2025

Knoxville - Knox County Planning

Commission * Cit)

Hillside & Ridgetop
Protection Area

25.1% - 40%

>40%

3-J-25-RZ | petitioner: William Zayets

Map No: 91
Jurisdiction: County
0

* Knoxville, TN 37902




-] Hillside & Ridgetop
1 Protection Area

Slope

0% - 15%

15.1% - 25%

25.1% - 40%

Exhibit C: No-Disturbance Boundary Map

3-J-25-RZ

: Case Boundary m No disturbance area

Original Print Date: 3/6/2025
Knoxville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902

Petitioner: William Zayets

Map No: 91
Jurisdiction: County
0 100

I

Feet




Draft Minutes
Planning Commission Meeting

“‘ Planning March 13, 2025

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY 1:30 PM. | Main Assembly Room
City County Building

The Planning Commission met in regular session on March 13, 2025, at 1:30 p.m. in the Small
Assembly Room of the City County Building.

Item No. File No.

1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE

Commissioner Present | Absent Arrive late/left
early

John Huber, Vice-Chair
Louis Browning

Rich Levenson

Tamara Boyer

NENENENEN

Nancy Barger Left at 3:25 p.m.
Katie Overton V4
Marité Pérez

Matt Anderson

Logan Higgins

Miles Biggs

Kara Daley
Nick Gill

Amy Midis
Karyn Adams
Tim Hill, Chair

NSNS N ENEN LN

CONSENT ITEMS READ

1. MOTION (BOYER) AND SECOND (LEVENSON) WERE MADE
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT ITEMS AS READ, WITH THE
EXCEPTION OF ITEM #35.

3/20/2025 10:41 AM Page 1



Draft Minutes Planning Commission Meeting — March 13, 2025
Item No. File No.

36. WILLIAM ZAYETS 3-J-25-RZ
7000 Ball Road / Parcel ID 091JA006, Commission District 6.

Rezoning from | (Industrial), A (Agricultural) to RA (Low Density
Residential).

1. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because
it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive

Plan and surrounding development, subject to 2
conditions.

APPROVED ON CONSENT EARLIER IN THE MEETING

3/20/2025 10:41 AM Page 2



nvenience.
1 Sign the applicati dlgltally or print,

L ‘.

Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

William Zayets

ATppiicant Name

Date Filed

* Knoxville-Knox Codnty Planning offices

sign, and OR email it to applications@knoxplanning.org

Development Request

DEVELOPMENT SUBDIVISION ZONING
0O Development Plan O Concept Plan O Plan Amendment
O Planned Development [J Final Plat OSP OPA
[J Use on Review / Special Use M Rezoning
O Hillside Protection COA
Owner
N Affiliation

Meeting Date (ifépplicablé)ﬁ

File Number(s)

]

CORRESPONDENCE All correspondence related to this application should be directed to the approved contact listed below.

M Applicant M Property Owner

William Zayets
Name 7

1556 Robinson Rd

Address
865-951-8658

[0 Option Holder [ Project Surveyor [ Engineer [ Architect/Landscape Architect
N/A
" Company 7 o
KNOXVILLE TN 37923
o oaty o State ZIP
_

Phone

CURRENT PROPERTY INFO

Email

865-951-8658

WILLIAM ZAYETS 1556 ROBINSON RD KNOXVILLE, TN 3923
Property Owner Name (if different) ~ Property Owner Address

7000 BALL RD KNOXVILLE, TN 37931 091JA006
Property Address Parcel ID

West Knox Utitlity District

Sewer Provider

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

ted to their upcoming cas

West Knox Utility District

Property Owner Phc;ne

Water Provider

Septic (Y/N)

Sign and return the Public Notice & Community Engagement form with this application.

ety of n'ly‘ In g

jjer opportun

). We require applicants to acknowledge the/r role in thrs process.

View Form

JULY 2024



DEVELOPMENT REQUEST

[J Development Plan [] Use on Review / Special Use  [] Hillside Protection COA
] Residential [J Non-Residential
Home Occupation (specify)

Related City Permit Number(s)

Other (specify)

SUBDIVISION REQUEST

Related Rezoning File Number

Proposed Subdivision Name

-~ [ Combine Parcels [ Divide Parcel

Unit / Phase Number Total Number of Lots Created

[ Other (specify)

[ Attachments / Additional Requirements

ZONING REQUEST

M Zoning Change RA

Proposed Zoning

[ Plan Amendment Change e

Pending Plat File Number

1
|

Proposed Plan Designation(s)

-Proposed Density (units/acre) Previous Rezoning Requests
(] Other (specify)

STAFF USE ONLY

Total

PLAT TYPE Fee

[ Staff Review [ Planning Commission

ATTACHMENTS >

[ Property Owners / Option Holders  [] Variance Request Fee

[0 Amendment Request (Comprehensive Plan)

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS e
ee

[] Use on Review / Special Use (Concept Plan)
[ Traffic Impact Study
[J COA Checklist (Hillside Protection)

AUTHORIZATION

S P

By signing below, I declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct: 1) He/she/it is the owner of the property AND

2) The application and all associated materials are being submitted with his/her/its consent. If there are additional owners or options

holders, each additional individual must sign the Property Owners/Option Holders Form.

% Q—V—\-\/ William Zayets Owner 1!23/_2_5 )
Applicant Signature Print Name / Affiliation Date
865-859-0929
Phone Number Email : a
7 D WILLIAM ZAYETS
Property Owner sﬁature ‘ Please Print ' Date Paid




nvenience
1 Sign the application digitally

4 Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

Sign Posting
and Removal

 this signed form with your completed application || SRR

Public Notice
and Community
Engagement

The Administrative Rules and Procedures of the Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission require a sign
to be posted on the property for each application subject to consideration by the Planning Commission.

Planning staff will post the required sign. If a replacement sign(s) is needed, the applicant is responsible
for picking up the new sign(s) from Planning and will be charged $10 for each replacement.

Location and Visibility

The sign must be posted on the nearest
adjacent/frontage street and in a location
clearly visible to vehicles traveling in either
direction. If the property has more than one
street frontage, the sign should be placed
along the street that carries more traffic.
Planning staff may recommend a preferred
location for the sign to be posted at the
time of application.

Community
Engagement

Timing

The sign(s) must be posted not less than 12 days
prior to the scheduled Planning Commission
public hearing and must remain in place until the
day after the meeting. In the case of a
postponement, the sign can either remain in
place or be removed and reposted not less than
12 days prior to the next Planning Commission
meeting. The applicant is responsible for
removing the sign after the application has been
acted upon by the Planning Commission.

Planning strives to provide community members with information about upcoming cases in a variety of
ways. In addition to posting public notice signs, our agency encourages applicants to provide information
and offer opportunities for dialogue related to their upcoming case(s).

Acknowledgement

Have you engaged the

By signing below, you acknowledge that public notice signs must be
posted and visible on the property consistent with the guidelines above

and between the dates listed below.

02/28/2025 03/14/2025

Date to be Posted

Date to be Reﬁ:\;ed i

William Zayets

Appficant SignaittiJrieC' -

Applicant Namef Date

surrounding property owners
to discuss your request?

[(JYes [No

[4 No, but | plan to prior to the
Planning Commission meeting

Y 13aR

3-J-25-RZ

FILE NUMBER



THANK YOU for your submission!

Your notice has been submitted for publication. Below is a confirmation of your order. You will also receive an email confirmation.

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:
LOKR0260476
Order Status:
Submitted
Classification:
Public Notices
Package:
General Package
Total payment:
141.48

Payment Type:
Account Billed
User ID:
LO013876
External User ID:
676064

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Knoxville-Knox County Planning

400 W Main ST # 403 DALLAS DEARMOND
Knoxville, TN 37902-2427

865-215-3810
dallas.dearmond@knoxplanning.org
Knoxville-Knox County Planning

Contract ID: GOVT

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date
March 17, 2025 10:56:30 AM EDT
Amount:
141.48
ADDITIONAL OPTIONS
1 Affidavit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

March 19, 2025
Knoxville News Sentinel

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

PUBLIC NOTICE

The following items will be considered by the Knox County
Board of Commissioners on April 21, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room, City County Bldg., 400 Main St.,
Knoxville, TN. For information related to these items visit
knoxplanning.org/agenda or visit the Planning Office in suite
403 of the City County Bldg. Knox County does not discrimi-
nate on the basis of disability in its provision of services,
programs, dctivities or benefits. If you need assistance or
accommodation for a disability, please contact the ADA
office at (865) 215-2952.

PLAN AMENDMENTS/REZONINGS
3-A-25-RZ - SIERRA KIRBY- 1562 SAYLORS FORD RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-B-25-RZ - BRYAN ANDREW BYRD- 4912 E EMORY RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-D-25-RZ - DANIEL HUMPHREYS- 1137 GRANVILLE
CONNER RD. Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission
Action: Approve RA (Low Density Residential)
3-F-25-RZ - ELIZABETH D. RAINES- 7639 GIBBS RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-H-25-RZ - BALL HOMES, LLC-0, HICKORY CREEK RD; 0,
2300, 2304 WEST GALLAHER FERRY RD. Proposed rezon-
ing. Planning Commission Action: Approve PR (Planned
Residential) up to 3.5 du/ac
3-J-25-RZ — WILLIAM ZAYETS — 7000 Ball Road. Proposed
rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve RA (Low
Density Residential)
March 19 2025
LOKR0260476

<< Click here to print a printer friendly version >>

Privacy Policy | Terms of Service

Contact Us

i-Publish® AdPortal: v2.6
©2025 iPublish Media Solutions, LLC


https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-and-conditions/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/okr/static/contact.html
javascript:window.print()
http://www.ipublishmedia.com/

This case is scheduled to be
heard by County Commission on
April 21, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room of the
City County Building, 400 Main
St.,Knoxville, TN. YOU or YOUR
representative must be
present. The item will be
postponed or withdrawn if you
are not represented.



RLA-17177 3-H-25-RZ
ZONINGS

Meeting Date: 04/21/2025

Requested By: Dallas DeArmond, METROPOLITAN PLANNING
COMMISSION

Department: METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Requires Expenditure of Funds: NO Funded in Current Budget: NO

Appropriation Required: NO

CAPTION

Request of Ball Homes LLC for rezoning from A (Agricultural) to PR (Planned
Residential) up to 3.5 dwelling units per acre. Property located at 0 Hickory Creek
Road; 0, 2300, 2304 West Gallaher Ferry Road / Parcel ID 129 03512, 03513, 03514,
03515, 03516. Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the PR (Planned
Residential) zone with up to 3.5 dwelling units per acre because it is consistent
with the Knox County Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development, by a
vote of 14-0. (DEFER TO MAY AT REQUEST OF APPLICANT)

(Commission District 6)

Attachments
Ball Homes LLC 3-H-25-RZ
Letter to Defer to May




KNOXVILLE-KNOX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
REPORT OF RECOMMENDATION

3/19/2025 11:02 AM

APPLICANT:
APPLICANT'S REQUEST:

FROM:
TO:
AT A DENSITY OF:

COMM. RECOMMENDATION:

COMMISSION VOTE COUNT:
LOCATION:

ACREAGE:

DISTRICT:

COMMISSION HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

APPLICANT'S ADDRESS:

LEGISLATIVE BODY:

Consistent with Land Use Plan?

Consistent with Growth Plan?

TTCDA Approval?

FILE NUMBER: 3-H-25-RZ

BALL HOMES, LLC
REZONING

A (Agricultural)
PR (Planned Residential)

up to 3.5 du/ac

Approve the PR (Planned Residential) zone with up to 3.5
du/ac because it is consistent with the Knox County
Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development.

14-0

0 HICKORY CREEK RD; 0, 2300, 2304 WEST GALLAHER FERRY RD
/ Parcel ID 129 03512, 03513, 03514, 03515, 03516

16.566 acres

Commission District 6

3/13/2025
News-Sentinel

2/11/2025

4/21/2025
News-Sentinel
3/19/2025

Ball Homes LLC

3609 Walden Dr
Lexington, KY 40517

Knox County Commission

Yes, the SR (Suburban Residential) place type is directly related to
the RA (Low Density Residential) zoning.

Yes

N/A

Suite 403 - City/County Building - 400 Main Street - Knoxville, Tennessee - 37902 - (865-215-2500)



%
‘.‘ REZONING REPORT

-
Planning
m FILE#: 3-H-25-RZ AGENDA ITEM #: 35
AGENDA DATE: 3/13/2025
* APPLICANT: BALL HOMES, LLC
OWNER(S): Brandon & Jocelyn Gibson

TAX ID NUMBER: 129 03512, 03513, 03514, 03515, 03516

View map on KGIS

JURISDICTION: County Commission District 6
STREET ADDRESS: 0 HICKORY CREEK RD (0 HICKORY CREEK RD; 0, 2300, 2304 WEST
GALLAHER FERRY RD)
* LOCATION: North side of Hickory Creek Rd, east of W Gallaher Ferry Way
* APPX. SIZE OF TRACT: 16.566 acres
GROWTH POLICY PLAN: Planned Growth Area
ACCESSIBILITY: Access is via West Gallaher Ferry Road, a local street with a pavement
width of 20 ft within a 50 ft right-of-way.
UTILITIES: Water Source:  West Knox Utility District
Sewer Source:  West Knox Utility District
FIRE DISTRICT: Karns Fire Department
WATERSHED: Conner Creek
# PRESENT ZONING: A (Agricultural)
* ZONING REQUESTED: PR (Planned Residential)
# EXISTING LAND USE: Agriculture/Forestry/Vacant Land, Rural Residential
# DENSITY PROPOSED: up to 3.5 du/ac
EXTENSION OF ZONE: Yes, this is an extension.
HISTORY OF ZONING: None noted.
SURROUNDING LAND North:  Rural residential - A (Agricultural)
USE AND ZONING: South: Single family residential - PR (Planned Residential) up to 2.8 du/ac
East:  Rural residential - A (Agricultural)
West:  Agriculture/forest/ivacant land - PR (Planned Residential) up to 3.5
du/ac
NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT: This area is characterized by single family residential dwellings on a mix of
large rural and smaller suburban lots. Undeveloped land is also prevelant in
this area.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 Approve the PR (Planned Residential) zone with up to 3.5 du/ac because it is consistent with the Knox

County Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development.

COMMENTS:

PURSUANT TO THE KNOX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE 6.30.01, THE FOLLOWING

AGENDA ITEM #: 35

FILE # 3-H-25-RZ

3/4/2025 09:57 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET

PAGE #: 35-1


https://www.kgis.org/maps/planningcases.html?run=SearchCases&casenumber=3-H-25-RZ

CONDITIONS MUST BE MET FOR ALL REZONINGS (must meet all of these):

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE NECESSARY BECAUSE OF SUBSTANTIALLY CHANGED OR
CHANGING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA AND ZONES AFFECTED, OR IN THE COUNTY GENERALLY.

1. Though the surrounding area is still predominantly rural, there has been a steady increase in residential
development since the early 1990s. Since 2005, zoning in this area has gradually transitioned from A
(Agricultural) to PR (Planned Residential) with up to 1 to 3.5 du/ac.

2.In 2022, the Knox County Department of Engineering and Public Works installed a roundabout 0.34 miles
east of the subject property at the intersection of Hardin Valley Road, Hickory Creek Road, and East Gallaher
Ferry Road to improve roadway safety and efficiency.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF THE
APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE.

1. The PR zone is intended to provide optional methods of land development which encourage more
imaginative solutions to environmental design problems. The subject property is in the HP (Hillside Protection)
area. Most of the subject property is in the up to 15% and 15-25% slope range, though there are areas with
slopes in the 25-40% and above 40% ranges (Exhibit B). The PR zone is appropriate to consider here because
it allows clustered development that helps to preserve slopes and natural areas.

2. The PR zone is also intended to be compatible with surrounding or adjacent zones. The recommended
density of 3.5 du/ac is consistent with the surrounding residential zoning, which includes properties zoned RA
(Low Density Residential) and PR with up to 1 to 3.5 du/ac.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT ANY OTHER PART OF THE COUNTY
NOR SHALL ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT ADVERSE EFFECTS RESULT FROM SUCH AN AMENDMENT.
1. The PR zone ensures that site plans undergo a public review process and obtain Planning Commission
approval before construction begins. The plan will be reviewed to determine whether the proposed
development is compatible with the surrounding community.

2. Access to the subject property is near a sharp curve along West Gallaher Ferry Road. In 2022, a Concept
Plan (4-SE-22-C) was approved west of the subject property with conditions for approval that included
widening and realigning the road and improving the intersection at Hickory Creek Road. Off-site road
improvements have not yet started but are required to be completed before construction can begin.

PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH AND NOT IN CONFLICT WITH THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF KNOX COUNTY, INCLUDING ANY OF ITS ELEMENTS, MAJOR ROAD PLAN,
LAND USE PLAN, COMMUNITY FACILITIES PLAN, AND OTHERS:

1. The subject property has the SR (Suburban Residential) place type in the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan. The PR zone is considered partially related to the SR place type. Per Appendix H, additional criteria must
be met for partially related zones. The PR zone with up to 3.5 du/ac meets the first criterion, as the allowable
uses and lot sizes align with the preferred land use mix of the SR place type.

2. The rezoning complies with Implementation Policy 2, to ensure that development is sensitive to existing
community character. The requested density of 3.5 du/ac is consistent with the surrounding PR zoning, which
includes densities ranging from 1 to up to 3.5 du/ac.

3. The subject property is within the Planned Growth Area of the Growth Policy Plan, which encourages a
reasonably compact development pattern. The allowable lot sizes and housing types in the PR zone support
the intent of the Planned Growth Area.

ESTIMATED TRAFFIC IMPACT: 602 (average daily vehicle trips)

Average Daily Vehicle Trips are computed using national average trip rates reported in the latest edition of
"Trip Generation," published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers. Average Daily Vehicle Trips
represent the total number of trips that a particular land use can be expected to generate during a 24-hour day
(Monday through Friday), with a "trip" counted each time a vehicle enters or exits a proposed development.

ESTIMATED STUDENT YIELD: 24 (public school children, grades K-12)

Schools affected by this proposal: Hardin Valley Elementary, Hardin Valley Middle, and Hardin Valley
Academy.

AGENDA ITEM #. 35 FILE # 3-H-25-RZ 3/4/2025 09:57 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 35-2




» Potential new school population is estimated using locally-derived data on public school student yield
generated by new housing.

+ Students are assigned to schools based on current attendance zones as determined by Knox County
Schools. Students may request transfers to different zones, and zone boundaries are subject to change.
 Estimates presume full build-out of the proposed development. Build-out is subject to market forces, and
timing varies widely from proposal to proposal.

+ Student yields from new development do not reflect a net addition of children in schools. Additions occur
incrementally over the build-out period. New students may replace current population that ages through the
system or moves from the attendance zone.

If approved, this item will be forwarded to Knox County Commission for action on 4/21/2025. If denied,
Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission's action is final, unless the action to deny is appealed to Knox
County Commission. The date of the appeal hearing will depend on when the appeal application is filed.
Appellants have 30 days to appeal a Planning Commission decision in the County.

AGENDA ITEM #. 35 FILE # 3-H-25-RZ 3/4/2025 09:57 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 35-3




28

</ 35.08
>=WEST._GALLAHER FERRY

35.02

PR 35
<3.5DU/AC

35 75

PR
<2.8DU/AC

37.02

10 o

. <2/8DU/AC %
i MEA3RZ

52 N
QR SKY LN — g3 | 4
3.02 51 ﬂ m 54 47 n z
(o] 0
\ 0 a 56 “ “ 13 )
3.06 57 114
58
a » A
2.01
3.01 o 59 112.02
109
3-H-25-RZ Petitioner: Ball Homes, LLC

REZONING

From: A (Agricultural)

: To: PR (Planned Residential) up to 3.5 du/ac
0 410
Original Print Date: 1/31/2025 —
Knoxville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902 Teet

Map No: 129
Jurisdiction: County




Exhibit A. Contextual Images

Location Map

¥ =%% “

G, / I\
R4 IVD‘ Fo\/RK DR

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 1 3-H-25-RZ

E Case boundary I —Feet




\ AN \}
Zoning Map \\\/ PR(|}") o % L
. ' 1-1.8DUJ/AC 2 @
N9 = S 9
We, \ % o “
ST . %. 6-MO5-RZ & %
GALLAHER g, ), NN & s
% %, N % o "'5'7"‘\
% 4 NGB o“gc SN
¢ 2C p g\dRD\a)/\g_., _—
o\\\goq:\’ L%
‘ \)‘\C SSs>
@Y\ouow DR
A
o
O
/ e ®
| J PR At
\ /c_.\x\‘e
) <2.8 DU/AC
(\ \
& \
o' N \
AN N ’ A N
S NN oY \PR(k) \ -
A AORL N BN \ “\ Pt
"74, ,}23 C%\ \\ \\ y <2.8 Dl‘i'/AC \ "of‘
gy D 1-C-13-RZ N -

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 2

3-H-25-RZ

820

Feet

: Case boundary




Existing Land Use Map

RR W
EST‘GALU.\HER:F@ )
upo

AgForVac

X

Z

AgForVac

AgForVac
AgForVac

SFR

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 3

0 550
: Case boundary I I
Feet




DEVELOPMENT REQUEST APPLICATION Staff - Slope Analysis
Case: 3-H-25-RZ

RECOMMENDED
CATEGORY ACRES | pistureanceupcer | DISTURBANCEAREA
(Percent) (Acres)
Total Area of Site 16.54
Non-Hillside 2.18 N/A
0-15% Slope 5.61 100% 5.61
15-25% Slope 7.07 50% 3.53
25-40% Slope

Greater than
Ridgetops

Recommended
Hillside Protection (HP) Area SUKTIN disturbance budget within

HP Area (acres)

Percent of HP Area

Hillside & Ridgetop
- =3 Protection Area
i Percent Slope
> \:| 0% - 15%
- _PR(k) 15.1% - 25%
<‘z;§:DU/A9/ =< > \:l
.~ 1C13RZ 25.1%- 40%
. , t\T‘T’ .Y \ - >40%
REZONING 3-H-25-RZ Petitioner: Ball Homes, LLC

From: A (Agricultural)

: oo
To: PR (Planned Residential) Jurisdiction: County

0 200

Original Print Date: 1/30/2025
Knoxville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902 Tt

Slope Analysis



¢& Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

March 13, 2025
Planning Commission meeting

Public Comments
5 Comments for 3-H-25-RZ and

John (37932), February 22, 2025 at 1:19 PM

There is no consideration on traffic flow and public usage of Hickory Creek Road and the surrounding public road
infrastructure to accommodate the existing traffic let alone future traffic thoroughfare to this area. The Knox
County Planning Commision should require the developers to commit financially and procure to expand the
necessary road systems above the current road systems before being allowed to add any new development to the
Harden Valley residential and commercial areas. The taxpayer should not be footing the bill for road
improvements to satisfy the developers profit margins.

Kathleen (37932), March 6, 2025 at 7:55 AM

| live on W Gallaher Ferry Rd and oppose this development due to the amount of traffic | will have to go through to
access my home. Ball Homes was supposed to fix the unsafe angle of turning onto W Gallaher Ferry Rd, but they
have done nothing to remedy the problem. Instead, there has been mud washed onto the roads whenever it rains,
bulldozers and tractor trailer rigs have blocked the roads for sometimes 30-45 minutes at a time and traffic cannot
flow in or out of W Gallaher Ferry Rd. It is an unsightly eyesore, Inconvenience, and Ball Homes is already not
doing what they said they would do to fix access to our road. | cant imagine the amount of traffic we will have to
go into and out of our homes at the hickory creek intersection. The number of developments in Hardin Valley
needs to slow down, although everything continues to be approved by the commission. This is probably why there
are so few comments on this case - everyone knows that no matter what they say, its still going to be approved.
Very frustrating when we are told to be an active community member, but our voices and concerns are ignored.

Michael (37932), March 7, 2025 at 1:43 PM

I'm curious when the overdevelopment of Hardin Valley will stop. Is it when every inch is paved over? Is it when
every farm is turned into a subdivision? Is it when all the natural beauty and wildlife is replaced with asphalt and
roadkill? Whatever happened to preserving at least some of the heritage that once had Hardin Valley and Hickory
Creek roads listed as "Scenic Drives?" What about the now defunct "Ridgetop Protection Plan" that was so quickly
rolled back to appease the wallets of already wealthy developers? When will it end? When will our elected
commissioners actually listen to their citizens that repeatedly ask them to PLEASE stop destroying our
communities?! | could list all of the other reasons about the failing infrastructure, the increased flooding due to
runoff, the decreased quality of water in Conner Creek because of pollution in the runoff, the safety concerns
caused by even more traffic on rural roads, and on and on and on... But, what's the point? You haven't listened
once yet - so why should any of us expect you to actually listen now?

Karen (37932), March 8, 2025 at 8:16 PM

We strongly oppose this property rezoning. The infrastructure and schools cannot handle it. The roads are falling
apart and are narrow country backroads that need improving and widening. The area cant support another high
density subdivision. We moved to this area due to the country feel and more rural setting. There are many homes
in this area that fit that description with homes on an acre and more or in more upscale neighborhoods like
Covered Bridge. Knox county needs to stop Ball Homes cheapening this wonderful country area. The only way |
would support rezoning of this property is if it was for 1 house per acre.

Michael (37932), March 13, 2025 at 10:08 AM


https://knoxplanning.org/agenda
https://knoxplanning.org/agenda

See attached file "Proposed Rezoning per 3-H-25-RZ.pdf"



https://agenda.knoxplanning.org/attachments/20250313100818.pdf

Draft Minutes
Planning Commission Meeting

“‘ Planning March 13, 2025

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

The Planning Commission met in regular session on March 13, 2025, at
Assembly Room of the City County Building.

Item No.

61. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE

1:30 PM. | Main Assembly Room

City County Building

1:30 p.m. in the Small

File No.

Commissioner Present | Absent Arrive late/left
early

John Huber, Vice-Chair

Louis Browning

Rich Levenson

Tamara Boyer

NENENENEN

Nancy Barger

Left at 3:25 p.m.

Katie Overton V4

Marité Pérez

Matt Anderson

Logan Higgins

Miles Biggs

Kara Daley

Nick Gill

Amy Midis

Karyn Adams

NSNS N ENEN LN

Tim Hill, Chair

35. BALL HOMES, LLC
0 Hickory Creek Road; 0, 2300, 2304 West Gallaher Ferry Road /

3-H-25-RZ

Parcel ID 129 03512, 03513, 03514, 03515, 03516, Commission

District 6. Rezoning from A (Agricultural) to PR (Planned
Residential) up to 3.5 du/ac.

Speaking:
Carol Rose, 1432 Dempsey Rd., Knoxville, TN 37932

1. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

3/20/2025 10:38 AM

Page 1



Draft Minutes Planning Commission Meeting — March 13, 2025
Item No. File No.

Approve the PR (Planned Residential) zone with up to
3.5 du/ac because it is consistent with the Knox County
Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development.

2. MOTION (HUBER) AND SECOND (LEVENSON) WERE MADE
TO APPROVE PER STAFF RECOMMENDATION.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 14-0. APPROVED

3/20/2025 10:38 AM Page 2



“‘ Development Request

DEVELOPMENT SUBDIVISION ZONING
° [J Development Plan [ Concept Plan 0 Plan Amendment
Pla n n I ng [J Planned Development O Final Plat O SP O PA
KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY [ Use on Review / Special Use @ Rezoning

[ Hillside Protection COA

Ball Homes, LLC

Applicant Name ' Affiliation
01/23/2025 March 13, 2025 File Number(s)
Date Filed Meeting Date (if abblic;ble)

CORRESPONDENCE All correspondence related to this application should be directed to the approved contact listed below.

[® Applicant [ Property Owner [ Option Holder [ Project Surveyor [] Engineer [ Architect/Landscape Architect

Mr. Brian Stephens Ball Homes, LLC

Name Company

3609 Walden Drive Lexington KY 40517

Address i City State e
859-268-1191 _

Phone Email

Brandon & Jocelyn Gibson 2304 W. Gallaher Fery Road

Property Owner Name (if different) Property Owner Address Property Owner Phone
2300/2304 W. Gallaher Ferry Road & 0 Hickory Creek Road 12903512, 12903516, 12903515, 12903514
Property Address Parcel ID 12903513
WKUD WKUD N

Sewer Provider ' 7 Water Provider 7 Septic (Y/N)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT Sign and return the Public Notice & Community Engagement form with this application.

Planning strives to provide community members with information about upcoming cases in a variety of ways. In addition to
posting public notice signs, our agency encourages applicants to provide information and offer opportunities for dialogue
related to their upcoming case(s). We require applicants to acknowledge their role in this process.

JULY 2024

Package ID: 253D037133D33A720B365A66B7FFADA3



DEVELOPMENT REQUEST

[ Development Plan [ Use on Review / Special Use  [] Hillside Protection COA

[ Residential [ Non-Residential
Home Occupation (specify)

Other (specify)

SUBDIVISION REQUEST

Related City Permit Number(s)

Proposed Subdivision Name

. - [ Combine Parcels
Unit / Phase Number

[ Other (specify)

[ Attachments / Additional Requirements

ZONING REQUEST

[C] Divide Parcel

Total Number of Lots Created

Related Rezoning File Number

(W Zoning Change
Proposed Zoning

[ Plan Amendment Change

Planned Residential (<3.5 DU/AC)

Proposgd Planibesignation(s)

Proposed Density (units/acre) Previous Rezoning Requests

[J Other (specify)

STAFF USE ONLY

Pending Plat File Number

PLAT TYPE
[[] Staff Review [ Planning Commission

ATTACHMENTS

[ Property Owners / Option Holders  [] Variance Request

[CJ Amendment Request (Comprehensive Plan)
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

[C] Use on Review / Special Use (Concept Plan)
[ Traffic Impact Study

[C] COA Checklist (Hillside Protection)

Fee 1

Fee 2

Fee 3

Total

By signing below, I declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct: 1) He/she/it is the owner of the property AND
2) The application and all associated materials are being submitted with his/her/its consent. If there are additional owners or options
holders, each additional individual must sign the Property Owners/Option Holders Form.

( ls
Applicant Signature

859-268-1191

Phone Number

Package ID: 253D037133D33A720B365A66B7FFADA3

Mr. Brian Stephens
Print Name / Affiliation

Email

Jocelyn Gibson
Please Print

\\‘&’7126'

Date

Date Paid



. Public Notice
¢4 Planning and Community
Enga gement
Sign Posting
and Removal

The Administrative Rules and Procedures of the Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission require a sign
to be posted on the property for each application subject to consideration by the Planning Commission.

Planning staff will post the required sign. If a replacement sign(s) is needed, the applicant is responsible
for picking up the new sign(s) from Planning and will be charged $10 for each replacement.

Location and Visibility Timing

The sign must be posted on the nearest The sign(s) must be posted not less than 12 days

adjacent/frontage street and in a location prior to the scheduled Planning Commission

clearly visible to vehicles traveling in either public hearing and must remain in place until the

direction. If the property has more than one day after the meeting. In the case of a

street frontage, the sign should be placed postponement, the sign can either remain in

along the street that carries more traffic. place or be removed and reposted not less than

Planning staff may recommend a preferred 12 days prior to the next Planning Commission

location for the sign to be posted at the meeting. The applicant is responsible for

time of application. removing the sign after the application has been
acted upon by the Planning Commission.,

Community
Engagement

Planning strives to provide community members with information about upcoming cases in a variety of
ways. In addition to posting public notice signs, our agency encourages applicants to provide information
and offer opportunities for dialogue related to their upcoming case(s).

Acknowledgement Have you engaged the

By signing below, you acknowledge that public notice signs must be ::::;‘::::nis:::e':zs:r ners
posted and visible on the property consistent with the guidelines above v q

and between the dates listed below. O Yes No
2/28/2 3/14/25 O No, but | plan to prior to the
/28/25 / / Planning Commission meeting
Date to be Posted Date to be Removed
<) c % c , f & ] =
Wﬁ /fk > Al 0. STeviless \[z27|2%
Applicant Signature Applicant Name Date
FILE NUMBER

Package ID: 253D037133D33A720B365A66B7FFADA3



THANK YOU for your submission!

Your notice has been submitted for publication. Below is a confirmation of your order. You will also receive an email confirmation.

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:
LOKR0260476
Order Status:
Submitted
Classification:
Public Notices
Package:
General Package
Total payment:
141.48

Payment Type:
Account Billed
User ID:
LO013876
External User ID:
676064

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Knoxville-Knox County Planning

400 W Main ST # 403 DALLAS DEARMOND
Knoxville, TN 37902-2427

865-215-3810
dallas.dearmond@knoxplanning.org
Knoxville-Knox County Planning

Contract ID: GOVT

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date
March 17, 2025 10:56:30 AM EDT
Amount:
141.48
ADDITIONAL OPTIONS
1 Affidavit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

March 19, 2025
Knoxville News Sentinel

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

PUBLIC NOTICE

The following items will be considered by the Knox County
Board of Commissioners on April 21, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room, City County Bldg., 400 Main St.,
Knoxville, TN. For information related to these items visit
knoxplanning.org/agenda or visit the Planning Office in suite
403 of the City County Bldg. Knox County does not discrimi-
nate on the basis of disability in its provision of services,
programs, dctivities or benefits. If you need assistance or
accommodation for a disability, please contact the ADA
office at (865) 215-2952.

PLAN AMENDMENTS/REZONINGS
3-A-25-RZ - SIERRA KIRBY- 1562 SAYLORS FORD RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-B-25-RZ - BRYAN ANDREW BYRD- 4912 E EMORY RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-D-25-RZ - DANIEL HUMPHREYS- 1137 GRANVILLE
CONNER RD. Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission
Action: Approve RA (Low Density Residential)
3-F-25-RZ - ELIZABETH D. RAINES- 7639 GIBBS RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-H-25-RZ - BALL HOMES, LLC-0, HICKORY CREEK RD; 0,
2300, 2304 WEST GALLAHER FERRY RD. Proposed rezon-
ing. Planning Commission Action: Approve PR (Planned
Residential) up to 3.5 du/ac
3-J-25-RZ — WILLIAM ZAYETS — 7000 Ball Road. Proposed
rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve RA (Low
Density Residential)
March 19 2025
LOKR0260476

<< Click here to print a printer friendly version >>

Privacy Policy | Terms of Service

Contact Us

i-Publish® AdPortal: v2.6
©2025 iPublish Media Solutions, LLC


https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-and-conditions/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/okr/static/contact.html
javascript:window.print()
http://www.ipublishmedia.com/

This case is scheduled to be
heard by County Commission on
April 21, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room of the
City County Building, 400 Main
St.,Knoxville, TN. YOU or YOUR
representative must be
present. The item will be
postponed or withdrawn if you
are not represented.



Drucilla Stills mkﬂ
e S ELHIH LTS TN ST, TS

From: Ryan Hickey <rhickey@ballhomes.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 10, 2025 12:24 PM

To: Drucilla Stills

Subject: [External]Rezoning - 3-H-25-RZ Postponement

Ryan Hickey

BallHomes

1914 Pinnacle Pointe Way
Knoxville, TN 37922
Office - 865-862-4774

Fax - 865-862-4775
rhickey@ballhomes.com

http://www.ballhomes.com
http://www.facebook.com/ballhomes

/T
Balliomes.

From: Ryan Hickey
Sent: Thursday, April 10, 2025 12:17 PM

To: Dru.stills@knoxcounty.org

Cc: gina.oster@knoxcounty.org

Subject: Rezoning - 3-H-25-RZ Postponement

Mrs, Stills,

We would like to request postponement of the rezoning hearing for file number 3-H-25-RZ from the 4/21/25
meeting to the 5/12/25 meeting. T

If you have questions or need anything else from me, please let me know.

Thank You,

RECEIVED
Ryan Hickey APR 1 0 2025
Ball Homes KNOX CounTy

i ‘ COMMISSION
1914 Pinnacle Pointe Way "

Knoxville, TN 37922




Office - 865-862-4774
Fax - 865-862-4775
rhickey@ballhomes.com

http://www.ballhomes.com
http://www.facebook.com/ballhomes

VA N
Balliomes.

>>>CAUTION<<<
This message originates outside of the Knox County email system. Use caution if this message contains attachments, links or requests for
information.



RLA-17174 3-B-25-RZ
ZONINGS

Meeting Date: 04/21/2025

Requested By: Dallas DeArmond, METROPOLITAN PLANNING
COMMISSION

Department: METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Requires Expenditure of Funds: NO Funded in Current Budget: NO

Appropriation Required: NO

CAPTION

Request of Bryan Andrew Byrd for rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low
Density Residential). Property located at 4912 E Emory Road / Parcel ID 029 061.
Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA (Low Density
Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan and surrounding development, by a vote of 14-0 Consent.

(Commission District 7)

Attachments
Bryan Andrew Byrd 3-B-25-RZ




KNOXVILLE-KNOX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
REPORT OF RECOMMENDATION

3/19/2025 10:58 AM

APPLICANT:
APPLICANT'S REQUEST:

FROM:
TO:

COMM. RECOMMENDATION:

COMMISSION VOTE COUNT:

LOCATION:
ACREAGE:
DISTRICT:

COMMISSION HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

APPLICANT'S ADDRESS:

LEGISLATIVE BODY:

Consistent with Land Use Plan?
Consistent with Growth Plan?

TTCDA Approval?

FILE NUMBER: 3-B-25-RZ

BRYAN ANDREW BYRD
REZONING

A (Agricultural)
RA (Low Density Residential)

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is
consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive Plan and
surrounding development.

14-0 Consent

4912 E EMORY RD / Parcel ID 29 061
1.11 acres

Commission District 7

3/13/2025
News-Sentinel

2/11/2025

4/21/2025
News-Sentinel
3/19/2025
Andrew Byrd

243 Hillcrest Dr
Knoxville, TN 37714

Knox County Commission

Yes
Yes

N/A

Suite 403 - City/County Building - 400 Main Street - Knoxville, Tennessee - 37902 - (865-215-2500)



<

REZONING REPORT

-
Planning
m FILE#:  3-B-25-RZ AGENDA ITEM #: 31
AGENDA DATE: 3/13/2025
* APPLICANT: BRYAN ANDREW BYRD
OWNER(S): Emmaus Abbey Church Inc

TAX ID NUMBER:

29 061 View map on KGIS

JURISDICTION: County Commission District 7
STREET ADDRESS: 4912 E EMORY RD
* LOCATION: South side of East Emory Rd, west of Brown Gap Rd
* APPX. SIZE OF TRACT: 1.11 acres
GROWTH POLICY PLAN: Planned Growth Area
ACCESSIBILITY: Access is via E Emory Road, a major arterial street with a 20-ft pavement
width within a right-of-way which varies from 40 ft to 100 ft.
UTILITIES: Water Source:  Hallsdale-Powell Utility District
Sewer Source:  Hallsdale-Powell Utility District
FIRE DISTRICT: Rural Metro Fire
WATERSHED: Beaver Creek
* PRESENT ZONING: A (Agricultural)
k= ZONING REQUESTED: RA (Low Density Residential)
k EXISTING LAND USE: Agriculture/Forestry/Vacant Land
(3
EXTENSION OF ZONE: Yes, this is an extension.
HISTORY OF ZONING: None noted.
SURROUNDING LAND North:  Single family residential - A (Agricultural)
USE AND ZONING: South:  Single family residential, agriculture/forestry/vacant land - PR
(Planned Residential) up to 5 du/ac
East:  Rural residential - A (Agricultural)
West:  Single family residential - RA (Low Density Residential)
NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT: The surrounding area has a residential character mainly consisting of single-
family dwellings on a range of lot sizes and multi-family developments. The
subject property is 0.93 miles northeast of the commercial node at the
intersection of E Emory Road and Maynardville Pike. Halls Elementary,
Middle, and High schools are nearby to the west, as is Halls Public Library
and Halls Greenway Park.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County

Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development.

COMMENTS:

AGENDA ITEM # 31

FILE # 3-B-25-RZ

3/6/2025 08:52 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 31-1



https://www.kgis.org/maps/planningcases.html?run=SearchCases&casenumber=3-B-25-RZ

PURSUANT TO THE KNOX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE 6.30.01, THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS MUST BE MET FOR ALL REZONINGS (must meet all of these):

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE NECESSARY BECAUSE OF SUBSTANTIALLY CHANGED OR
CHANGING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA AND ZONES AFFECTED, OR IN THE COUNTY GENERALLY.

1. Development trends in the surrounding area have largely been residential in nature, consisting of single-
family and multi-dwelling developments. Since the early 1980s, there has been a gradual transition from A
(Agricultural) zoning to residential zoning, such as RA (Low Density Residential) and PR (Planned Residential)
with up to 5 du/ac.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF THE
APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE.

1. The RA zone is intended to provide for residential areas with low population densities. The RA zone is
compatible with the surrounding zoning, which consists of properties zoned RB (General Residential), RA, and
PR with up to 5 du/ac.

2. Rezonings should be based on the entire range of uses allowed within a zone to ensure that any
development brought forth at a future time would be compatible with the surrounding land uses. The allowable
uses in the RA zone are primarily residential and civic in nature, which aligns with the residential character of
the area.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT ANY OTHER PART OF THE COUNTY
NOR SHALL ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT ADVERSE EFFECTS RESULT FROM SUCH AN AMENDMENT.
1. The RA zone is considered a low-density residential zone. As such, it is not anticipated to negatively impact
the surrounding area, which is largely residential.

PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH AND NOT IN CONFLICT WITH THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF KNOX COUNTY, INCLUDING ANY OF ITS ELEMENTS, MAJOR ROAD PLAN,
LAND USE PLAN, COMMUNITY FACILITIES PLAN, AND OTHERS:

1. The subject property’s place type is SR (Suburban Residential) in the Knox County Comprehensive Plan.
The RA zone is directly related to the SR place type. The housing mix of the SR place type calls for
predominantly single-family dwellings with lots smaller than one acre and attached residential dwellings such
as duplexes, both of which are permitted in the RA zone.

2. The recommended rezoning complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Implementation Policy 2, to ensure
that new development is sensitive to existing community character. The lot sizes and allowable uses in the RA
zone are consistent with the residential development in the surrounding area, which consist of single-family
dwellings on a range of lot sizes, townhouses, and duplexes.

3. The subject property is within the Planned Growth Area of the Growth Policy Plan, which encourages a
reasonably compact development pattern. The allowable lot sizes and housing types in the RA zone support
the intent of the Planned Growth Area.

ESTIMATED TRAFFIC IMPACT: Not required.

ESTIMATED STUDENT YIELD: Not applicable.

Schools affected by this proposal: Adrian Burnett Elementary, Halls Middle, and Halls High.

» Potential new school population is estimated using locally-derived data on public school student yield
generated by new housing.

+ Students are assigned to schools based on current attendance zones as determined by Knox County
Schools. Students may request transfers to different zones, and zone boundaries are subject to change.

» Estimates presume full build-out of the proposed development. Build-out is subject to market forces, and
timing varies widely from proposal to proposal.

» Student yields from new development do not reflect a net addition of children in schools. Additions occur
incrementally over the build-out period. New students may replace current population that ages through the
system or moves from the attendance zone.

If approved, this item will be forwarded to Knox County Commission for action on 4/21/2025. If denied,
Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission's action is final, unless the action to deny is appealed to Knox
County Commission. The date of the appeal hearing will depend on when the appeal application is filed.
Appellants have 30 days to appeal a Planning Commission decision in the County.

AGENDA ITEM #: 31 FILE #. 3-B-25-RZ 3/6/2025 08:52 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 31-2




PR s
<5DU/AC

25

PR
/
1-5'DU/AC
13
13
14 \ 4
15 )/56.03
16 \
REZONING 3-B-25-RZ Petitioner: Bryan Andrew Byrd

From: A (Agricultural)
E Map om o
To: RA (Low Density Residential) Jurisdiction: County

0 110
Original Print Date: 1/31/2025 —
Feet

Knoxville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902




Exhibit A. Contextual Images

Location Map

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 1 3-B-25-Rz
0 310
E Case boundary —
Feet




Zoning Map

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 2

3-B-25-RZ

E Case boundary

290

Feet




Existing Land Use Map - \ RR ? \/ \/
SFR \\ o\

‘”%ERR A , -

AgForVac
SFER
MFE
G AgForVac
RR (el'q’
5,
N
ME > SFR
2y
& A,
4704’ s
% U,
001, <)
= Sy,
\ ( )
RR 7
e\@
L 2% PER
= R
7 96,
(0' 4'?0
RR %l* SFR 6‘4,‘1,
> QU7
CONTEXTUAL MAPS 3 3-B-25-RZ
0 550

 —
E Case boundary —




Draft Minutes
Planning Commission Meeting

“‘ Planning March 13, 2025

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY 1:30 PM. | Main Assembly Room
City County Building

The Planning Commission met in regular session on March 13, 2025, at 1:30 p.m. in the Small
Assembly Room of the City County Building.

Item No. File No.

1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE

Commissioner Present | Absent Arrive late/left
early

John Huber, Vice-Chair
Louis Browning

Rich Levenson

Tamara Boyer

NENENENEN

Nancy Barger Left at 3:25 p.m.
Katie Overton V4
Marité Pérez

Matt Anderson

Logan Higgins

Miles Biggs

Kara Daley
Nick Gill

Amy Midis
Karyn Adams
Tim Hill, Chair

NSNS N ENEN LN

CONSENT ITEMS READ

1. MOTION (BOYER) AND SECOND (LEVENSON) WERE MADE
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT ITEMS AS READ, WITH THE
EXCEPTION OF ITEM #35.

3/20/2025 10:40 AM Page 1



Draft Minutes Planning Commission Meeting — March 13, 2025
Item No. File No.

31. BRYAN ANDREW BYRD 3-B-25-RZ

4912 E Emory Road / Parcel ID 029 061, Commission District 7.
Rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low Density Residential).

1. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because
it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan and surrounding development.

APPROVED ON CONSENT EARLIER IN THE MEETING

3/20/2025 10:40 AM Page 2



44  Development Request

DEVELOPMENT SUBDIVISION ZONING
® [J Development Plan [0 Concept Plan 00 Plan Amendment
Plannlng (] Planned Development [ Final Plat OSP OPA
KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY ] Use on Review / Special Use Rezoning

[ Hillside Protection COA

Bryan Andrew Byrd Applicant

Applicant Name Affiliation

1/2/2025 03/13/2025 File Number(s)
Date Filed Meeting Date (if applicable) 3-B-25-R7

CORRESPONDENCE All correspondence related to this application should be directed to the approved contact listed below.

B Applicant [ Property Owner [ Option Holder [] Project Surveyor [] Engineer [ Architect/Landscape Architect

Bryan Andrew Byrd

Name Company

243 Hillcrest Drive Caryville TN 37714
Address City State Z\P
423-827-2944 .

Phone Email

EMMAUS ABBEY CHURCH INC 7317 Glastonbury Rd, Knoxville, TN 37931 865-661-1418
Property Owner Name (if different) Property Owner Address Property Owner Phone
4912 E Emory Rd 029 061

Property Address Parcel ID

HPUD HPUD

Sewer Provider Water Provider Septic {Y/N)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT Sign and return the Public Notice & Community Engagement form with this application.

Planning strives to provide community members with information about upcoming cases in a variety of ways. In addition to
posting public notice signs, our agency encourages applicants to provide information and offer opportunities for dialogue
related to their upcoming case(s). We require applicants to acknowledge their role in this process.

JULY 2024



DEVELOPMENT REQUEST e e

T B B B R S B Related City Permit Nurnber({s)

D Development Plan D Use on Review / gp"dn] |jse lil ”i”‘\i(‘(‘ Protection COA
[0 Residential [ Non Residential

Home Occupation (specify)

Other (specify)

SUBDIVISION REQUEST N

Cil e Ak st
Felaterd Pezoring Fie Number

Mroposed Subdivision Name

ine Parcels Divide Parcel
it Phase Number It o [ Total Number of Lots Created

2 Other (specify)

O Attachments / Additional Requirements

ZONING REQUEST

B Zoning Change

Pending Plat File Number

Proposed Zoning

[ Plan Amendment Change aled e
Proposed Plan Designation(s)

Proposed Density (un—i-ts/acre) Pre;/ious Rezoning Requests

{3 Other (specify)

STAFF USE ONLY

Fee 1
PLAT TYPE
[ Staff Review [ Planning Commission
ATTACHMENTS s
W Property Owners / Option Holders [J Variance Request 650.00
|
[J Amendment Request (Comprehensive Plan) ; $ -
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 'f ,
(3 Use on Review / Special Use (Concept Plan) Fee 3
[ Traffic Impact Study :
] COA Checklist (Hillside Protection) |

Total

By signing below, | declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct: 1 ) He/she/it is the owner of the property AND
2) The epplication and oll associated materials are being submitted with hi

s/her/its consent. If there are additional owners or options
holders, each additiongl individual must sign the Property Owners/Option Holders Form.

W V/ ————" BryanAndrew Byrd 1/2/2025

Applicant Signature Print Namé / Affiliatiou

. I

PhOjN?ﬂ:( Email

! e BN Emmaus Abbey Church
B
Property Owner Signat e\B

Date

01/08/2025, SG
ey

Please Print Date Paid



) Public Notice
44 Planning and Community
- Engagement

Sign Posting
and Removal

The Administrative Rules and Procedures of the Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission require a sign
to be posted on the property for each application subject to consideration by the Planning Commission.

Planning staff will post the required sign. If a replacement sign(s) is needed, the applicant is respensible
for picking up the new sign(s) from Planning and will be charged $10 for each replacement.

Location and Visibility
The sign must be posted on the nearest
adjacent/frontage street and in a location
5 clearly visible to vehicles traveling in either
! direction. If the property has more than one day after the meeting. In the case of a
street frontage, the sign should be placed postponement, the sign can either remain in
along the street that carries more traffic. % place or be removed and reposted not less than
Planning staff may recommend a preferred 12 days prior to the next Planning Commission
! location for the sign to be posted at the meeting. The applicant is responsible for
' time of application. removing the sign after the application has been
acted upon by the Planning Commission.

Timing

The sign(s) must be posted not less than 12 days
prior to the scheduled Planning Commission
public hearing and must remain in place until the

Community
Engagement

Planning strives to provide community members with information about upcoming cases in a variety of
ways. In addition to posting public notice signs, our agency encourages applicants to provide information
and offer opportunities for dialogue related to their upcoming case(s).

 Acknowledgement -

|
| Have you engaged the

| surrounding property owners
| to discuss your request?

By signing below, you acknowledge that public notice signs must be
posted and visible on the property consistent with the guidelines above

and between the dates listed below. [JYes [JNo

2/28/2025 3/14/2025 W No, but | plan to prior to the |
Planning Commission meeting

Date to be Posted Date to be Removed L =
W %,/ Bryan Andrew Byrd 1/7/2025
Applicant Signature Applicant Name Date

3-B-25-RZ

FILE NUMBER



THANK YOU for your submission!

Your notice has been submitted for publication. Below is a confirmation of your order. You will also receive an email confirmation.

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:
LOKR0260476
Order Status:
Submitted
Classification:
Public Notices
Package:
General Package
Total payment:
141.48

Payment Type:
Account Billed
User ID:
LO013876
External User ID:
676064

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Knoxville-Knox County Planning

400 W Main ST # 403 DALLAS DEARMOND
Knoxville, TN 37902-2427

865-215-3810
dallas.dearmond@knoxplanning.org
Knoxville-Knox County Planning

Contract ID: GOVT

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date
March 17, 2025 10:56:30 AM EDT
Amount:
141.48
ADDITIONAL OPTIONS
1 Affidavit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

March 19, 2025
Knoxville News Sentinel

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

PUBLIC NOTICE

The following items will be considered by the Knox County
Board of Commissioners on April 21, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room, City County Bldg., 400 Main St.,
Knoxville, TN. For information related to these items visit
knoxplanning.org/agenda or visit the Planning Office in suite
403 of the City County Bldg. Knox County does not discrimi-
nate on the basis of disability in its provision of services,
programs, dctivities or benefits. If you need assistance or
accommodation for a disability, please contact the ADA
office at (865) 215-2952.

PLAN AMENDMENTS/REZONINGS
3-A-25-RZ - SIERRA KIRBY- 1562 SAYLORS FORD RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-B-25-RZ - BRYAN ANDREW BYRD- 4912 E EMORY RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-D-25-RZ - DANIEL HUMPHREYS- 1137 GRANVILLE
CONNER RD. Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission
Action: Approve RA (Low Density Residential)
3-F-25-RZ - ELIZABETH D. RAINES- 7639 GIBBS RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-H-25-RZ - BALL HOMES, LLC-0, HICKORY CREEK RD; 0,
2300, 2304 WEST GALLAHER FERRY RD. Proposed rezon-
ing. Planning Commission Action: Approve PR (Planned
Residential) up to 3.5 du/ac
3-J-25-RZ — WILLIAM ZAYETS — 7000 Ball Road. Proposed
rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve RA (Low
Density Residential)
March 19 2025
LOKR0260476

<< Click here to print a printer friendly version >>

Privacy Policy | Terms of Service

Contact Us

i-Publish® AdPortal: v2.6
©2025 iPublish Media Solutions, LLC


https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-and-conditions/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/okr/static/contact.html
javascript:window.print()
http://www.ipublishmedia.com/

This case is scheduled to be
heard by County Commission on
April 21, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room of the
City County Building, 400 Main
St.,Knoxville, TN. YOU or YOUR
representative must be
present. The item will be
postponed or withdrawn if you
are not represented.



RLA-17175 3-D-25-RZ
ZONINGS

Meeting Date: 04/21/2025

Requested By: Dallas DeArmond, METROPOLITAN PLANNING
COMMISSION

Department: METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Requires Expenditure of Funds: NO Funded in Current Budget: NO

Appropriation Required: NO

CAPTION

Request of Daniel Humphreys for rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low Density
Residential). Property located at 1137 Granville Conner Road / Parcel ID 056FE007.
Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA (Low Density
Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan and would bring zoning into compliance, by a vote of 13-0.

(Commission District 7)

Attachments
Daniel Humphreys 3-D-25-RZ




KNOXVILLE-KNOX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
REPORT OF RECOMMENDATION

3/19/2025 11:00 AM

APPLICANT:
APPLICANT'S REQUEST:

FROM:
TO:

COMM. RECOMMENDATION:

COMMISSION VOTE COUNT:

LOCATION:
ACREAGE:
DISTRICT:

COMMISSION HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

APPLICANT'S ADDRESS:

LEGISLATIVE BODY:

Consistent with Land Use Plan?
Consistent with Growth Plan?

TTCDA Approval?

FILE NUMBER: 3-D-25-RZ

DANIEL HUMPHREYS
REZONING

A (Agricultural)
RA (Low Density Residential)

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is
consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive Plan and
would bring zoning into compliance.

13-0

1137 GRANVILLE CONNER RD / Parcel ID 56 F E 007
0.91 acres

Commission District 7

3/13/2025
News-Sentinel

2/11/2025

4/21/2025

News-Sentinel

3/19/2025

Daniel Humphreys Beginning Point Land Surveying

234 Ladd Ridge Rd. Rd.
Kingston, TN 37763

Knox County Commission

Yes
Yes

N/A

Suite 403 - City/County Building - 400 Main Street - Knoxville, Tennessee - 37902 - (865-215-2500)



<

REZONING REPORT

-
Planning
m FILE#:  3-D-25-RZ AGENDA ITEM #: 32
AGENDA DATE: 3/13/2025
* APPLICANT: DANIEL HUMPHREYS
OWNER(S): Matthew S Garrett

TAX ID NUMBER:

56 F E 007 View map on KGIS

JURISDICTION: County Commission District 7
STREET ADDRESS: 1137 GRANVILLE CONNER RD
= LOCATION: North side of Granville Conner Rd, northeast of Fersner Rd
* APPX. SIZE OF TRACT: 0.91 acres
GROWTH POLICY PLAN: Planned Growth Area
ACCESSIBILITY: Access is via Granville Connor Road, a local street with a pavement width of
14 ft within a right-of-way which varies from 40 ft to 50 ft.
UTILITIES: Water Source:  Hallsdale-Powell Utility District
Sewer Source:  Hallsdale-Powell Utility District
FIRE DISTRICT: Rural Metro Fire
WATERSHED: Beaver Creek
* PRESENT ZONING: A (Agricultural)
k= ZONING REQUESTED: RA (Low Density Residential)
k EXISTING LAND USE: Single Family Residential
(3
EXTENSION OF ZONE: No, this is not an extension.
HISTORY OF ZONING: None noted.
SURROUNDING LAND North:  Rural residential, single family residential - A (Agricultural)
USE AND ZONING: South:  Single family residential, rural residential - RB (General Residential)
East:  Rural residential - A (Agricultural)
West:  Single family residential - A (Agricultural)
NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT: This area predominantly consists of single family detached dwellings, though
there are some condos across Granville Conner Rd. Powell Elementary
School is nearby to the southwest, and Collier Preserve is nearby to the
southeast.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
k Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County

Comprehensive Plan and would bring zoning into compliance.

COMMENTS:

PURSUANT TO THE KNOX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE 6.30.01, THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS MUST BE MET FOR ALL REZONINGS (must meet all of these):

AGENDA ITEM # 32

FILE # 3-D-25-RZ

3/6/2025 08:58 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 32-1



https://www.kgis.org/maps/planningcases.html?run=SearchCases&casenumber=3-D-25-RZ

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE NECESSARY BECAUSE OF SUBSTANTIALLY CHANGED OR
CHANGING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA AND ZONES AFFECTED, OR IN THE COUNTY GENERALLY.

1. Development trends in the surrounding area have primarily been residential and civic in nature, consisting
largely of single-family, duplex, and townhouse developments. Small-scale commercial developments have
been concentrated southwest of the subject property along E Emory Road.

2. Since the early 1990s, there has been a gradual transition from A (Agricultural) zoning to residential zoning,
such as RA (Low Density Residential), RB (General Residential), and PR (Planned Residential) with up to 4 to
8 du/ac.

3. The subject property has a lot size of 0.91 acres, and the minimum lot area under the A zone is one acre.
Approving the requested RA zone would bring the subject property into compliance, as it meets the minimum
standards of the RA zone, which is 10,000 sq ft.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF THE
APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE.

1. The RA zone provides for residential areas with low population densities. The RA zone is compatible with
the surrounding zoning, which consists of properties zoned A, RA, RB, and PR with up to 4 to 8 du/ac.

2. Rezonings should be based on the entire range of uses allowed within a zone to ensure that any
development brought forth at a future time would be compatible with the surrounding land uses. The allowable
uses in the RA zone, which are primarily residential and civic in nature, align with the surrounding area’s
character.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT ANY OTHER PART OF THE COUNTY
NOR SHALL ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT ADVERSE EFFECTS RESULT FROM SUCH AN AMENDMENT.
1. The RA zone is considered a low-density residential zone. As such, it is not anticipated to adversely impact
the surrounding area, which is mainly residential.

2. The north side of the subject property is relatively steep, with slopes in the 15-25% and 25-40% ranges
(Exhibit B). All proposed developments must comply with the Knox County Stormwater Management
Ordinance in managing stormwater runoff.

PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH AND NOT IN CONFLICT WITH THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF KNOX COUNTY, INCLUDING ANY OF ITS ELEMENTS, MAJOR ROAD PLAN,
LAND USE PLAN, COMMUNITY FACILITIES PLAN, AND OTHERS:

1. The subject property’s place type is SR (Suburban Residential) in the Knox County Comprehensive Plan.
The RA zone is directly related to the SR place type. The housing mix of the SR place type calls for
predominantly single-family dwellings with lots smaller than one acre and attached residential dwellings such
as duplexes, both of which are permitted in the RA zone.

2. The recommended rezoning complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Implementation Policy 2, to ensure
that new development is sensitive to existing community character. The lot sizes and allowable uses in the RA
zone are consistent with the character of the surrounding area.

3. The subject property is within the Planned Growth Area of the Growth Policy Plan, which encourages a
reasonably compact development pattern. The allowable lot sizes and housing types in the RA zone support
the intent of the Planned Growth Area.

ESTIMATED TRAFFIC IMPACT: Not required.

ESTIMATED STUDENT YIELD: Not applicable.

Schools affected by this proposal: Powell Elementary, Powell Middle, and Powell High.

» Potential new school population is estimated using locally-derived data on public school student yield
generated by new housing.

» Students are assigned to schools based on current attendance zones as determined by Knox County
Schools. Students may request transfers to different zones, and zone boundaries are subject to change.

» Estimates presume full build-out of the proposed development. Build-out is subject to market forces, and
timing varies widely from proposal to proposal.

+ Student yields from new development do not reflect a net addition of children in schools. Additions occur
incrementally over the build-out period. New students may replace current population that ages through the
system or moves from the attendance zone.

If approved, this item will be forwarded to Knox County Commission for action on 4/21/2025. If denied,
Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission's action is final, unless the action to deny is appealed to Knox
County Commission. The date of the appeal hearing will depend on when the appeal application is filed.
Appellants have 30 days to appeal a Planning Commission decision in the County.

AGENDA ITEM #: 32 FILE #. 3-D-25-RZ 3/6/2025 08:58 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 32-2




REZONING

3-D-25-RZ

From: A (Agricultural)
To: RA (Low Density Residential)

Original Print Date: 1/31/2025
Knoxville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902

Petitioner: Daniel Humphreys

Map No: 56
Jurisdiction: County
0 110

Feet




Exhibit A. Contextual Images

Location Map

8 X
@ ‘ O 5
AN

\/

N

<
<

<// :

P

Aerial Map

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 1

: Case boundary

Feet




Zoning Map

Comprehensive Plan Map |

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 2 3-D-25-RZ

: Case boundary I Foot I




Existing Land Use Map

Xy
4.
4’894
AgForVac E)
\ . /‘« /

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 3

7 f AgForVac

3-D-25-Rz

E Case boundary

550

Feet




DEVELOPMENT REQUEST APPLICATION

Greater than 40% Slope
Ridgetops

Hillside Protection (HP) Area

0.91

RECOMMENDED
CATEGORY ACRES | pistureanceupcer | DISTURBANCEAREA
(Percent) (Acres)
Total Area of Site 0.91
Non-Hillside 0.00 N/A
0-15% Slope 0.40 100% 0.40
15-25% Slope 0.29 50% 0.14
25-40% Slope

Recommended
disturbance budget within

HP Area (acres)

Percent of HP Area

Staff - Slope Analysis
Case: 3-D-25-RZ

Hillside & Ridgetop
. = Protection Area
Percent Slope

0% -15%
15.1% - 25%

=
=l
[:] 25.1% - 40%
=i

REZONING

3-D-25-RZ

From: A (Agricultural)

E To: RA (Low Density Residential)

Original Print Date: 1/30/2025

Knoxuville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902

Petitioner: Daniel Humphreys

Map No: 56
Jurisdiction: County
0 110

Feet

Slope Analysis



<

$ Plannin

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

9

Draft Minutes
Planning Commission Meeting

March 13, 2025

1:30 P.M.

| Main Assembly Room
City County Building

The Planning Commission met in regular session on March 13, 2025, at 1:30 p.m. in the Small

Assembly Room of the City County Building.

Item No.

1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF

32.

ALLEGIANCE

File No.

Commissioner

Present

Absent

Arrive late/left
early

John Huber, Vice-Chair

Louis Browning

Rich Levenson

Tamara Boyer

Nancy Barger

NENENENEN

Left at 3:25 p.m.

Katie Overton

Marité Pérez

Matt Anderson

Logan Higgins

Miles Biggs

Kara Daley

Nick Gill

Amy Midis

Karyn Adams

Tim Hill, Chair

NSNS N ENEN LN

DANIEL HUMPHREYS
1137 Granville Conner Road / Parcel ID 056FEO07, Commission
District 7. Rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low Density

Residential).

Commission Higgins left the room during this item and was not

present for the vote.

3/20/2025 10:37 AM

3-D-25-RZ

Page 1



Draft Minutes Planning Commission Meeting — March 13, 2025
Item No. File No.
Speaking:
William Edmonds, 1133 Granville Conner Rd., Powell, TN 37849
Daniel Humphreys, 234 Ladd Ridge Rd., Kingston, TN 37763

1. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because
it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan and would bring zoning into compliance.

2. MOTION (HUBER) AND SECOND (LEVENSON) WERE MADE
TO APPROVE PER STAFF RECOMMENDATION.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 13-0. APPROVED

3/20/2025 10:37 AM Page 2



KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

Daniel Humphreys

Applicant Name

01/24/2025

Date Filed

[ property Owner

B Applicant

Daniel Humphreys

t

DEVELOPMENT SUBDIVISION ZONING
{1 Development Plan 1 Concept Plan 3 Plan Amendment
L1 Planned Development 1 Final Plat {1SP [ PA
{3 Use on Review / Special Use Rezoning
L1 Hillside Protection COA
Surveyor
..... Affiliation o

03/1 3/2025 File Number(s)

Mesting Date (if applicable) 3-D-25-RZ

{71 Option Holder [ Project Surveyor [ Engineer [ Architect/Landscape Architect

Begmnmg Point Land Surveymg

Name

234 Ladd Ridge Road
Address
865-696-4613

Phone

Company
Kangston TN 37763
Cnty State ZIP

rEsZOEO@comcast net

Emall

Matthew S Ga rfEtt/_mgh A VonGruemgen

Propertv Owner Name (if dn‘ferent)
érﬁwu, e

W&mner Road

Property Address
HPUD

Sewer Provider

912 Crown Ridge Ln, Powell, TN 37849 865-385-#A%F T2

Propertv Owner Address Property Owner Phone
056FE0Q7

Parcel ID

HPUD N

Water Provider Septic (Y/N)

Sign and return the Public Notice & Community Engagement form with this application.

JULY 2024

Ah’ correspondence re!ated to this apphcatvon shoufd be dfrected to the approved contact hsied below '




[3 Development Plan  [[] Use on Review / Special Use [ Hillsidte Protection COA
{1 Residential {] Non-Residential
Home Occupation (specify)

Other (specify)

Related City Permit Number(s) |

proposed subdrgvis';on Name o et o e

[} Combine Parcels [} Divide Parcel

Related Rezoning File Number

Unit / Phase Number Total Number of Lots Created

[ Other {specify)

[] Attachments / Additional Requirements

From A to RA

8 Zoning Change

Proposed Zomng

[] #lan Amendment Change SO
Proposed Plan Designation(s)

Proposed Density {units/acre)  Previous Rezoning Requests

L] Other {specify)

Pending .Plat F|IeNumber

Fee 1

PLAT TYPE
[] Staff Review )ﬂ Planning Commission 0801

ATTACHMENTS

L] Property Owners / Option Holders  [] Variance Request
i ] Amendment Request {Comprehensive Plan)
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

[ Use on Review / Special Use {Concept Plan)

[1 Traffic Impact Study

] “QOA Checklist (Hillside Protection)

Fomg T

Total

$650.00

|
1
%

ividual must sign the Property Owners/Optlon Holders Form.

L 2) Thd applice at ? aff
\hojde s, cl a d:/;

\-

R Daniel Humphreys

| Apphcant S|gﬂ ure | B pﬁnt Né'me/'Afﬁ”a‘t;'dﬁ

865- 696 4613 r!sZOSO@comcast net

By s;gnmg below, | declare ur)ér penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct: 1} He/she/it is the owner of the property AND
asgociated materials are being submitted with his/her/its consent. If there are additional owners or opttons

o B - /(m;( '
e

Emai

Matthew 3 Garretyﬁeigh A VenGruenigen

01/24/2025, SG (MY)
S22~ 2025

perty Owner Signature ' R Please Print

Date Paid




J& Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

Sign Posting
and Removal

Public Notice
and Community
Engagement

The Administrative Rules and Procedures of the Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission require a sign
to be posted on the property for each application subject to consideration by the Planning Commission.

Planning staff will post the required sign. If a replacement sign(s) is needed, the applicant is responsible
for picking up the new sign(s) from Planning and will be charged $10 for each replacement.

Location and Visibility

The sign must be posted on the nearest
adjacent/frontage street and in a location
clearly visible to vehicles traveling in either
direction. If the property has more than one
street frontage, the sign should be placed
along the street that carries more traffic.
Planning staff may recommend a preferred
location for the sign to be posted at the

Timing

The sign(s) must be posted not less than 12 days
prior to the scheduled Planning Commission
public hearing and must remain in place until the
day after the meeting. In the case of a
postponement, the sign can either remain in
place or be removed and reposted not less than
12 days prior to the next Planning Commission
meeting. The applicant is responsible for

removing the sign after the application has been
acted upon by the Planning Commission.

time of application.

Community
Engagement

Planning strives to provide community members with information about upcoming cases in a variety of
ways. In addition to posting public notice signs, our agency encourages applicants to provide information
and offer opportunities for dialogue related to their upcoming case(s).

Acknowledgement

By signing below, you acknowledge that public notice signs must be
posted and visible on the property consistent with the guidelines above
and between the dates listed below.

Have you engaged the
surrounding property owners
to discuss your request?

éYes 1 No

I No, but | plan to prior to the
Planning Commission meeting

02/28/2025 03/14/2025
Date tolbe Posted ™ ~ Date to be Removed
“Appl Applicant Name Date

Applicantéig/rtatﬁm
3-D-25-RZ

FILE NUMBER




THANK YOU for your submission!

Your notice has been submitted for publication. Below is a confirmation of your order. You will also receive an email confirmation.

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:
LOKR0260476
Order Status:
Submitted
Classification:
Public Notices
Package:
General Package
Total payment:
141.48

Payment Type:
Account Billed
User ID:
LO013876
External User ID:
676064

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Knoxville-Knox County Planning

400 W Main ST # 403 DALLAS DEARMOND
Knoxville, TN 37902-2427

865-215-3810
dallas.dearmond@knoxplanning.org
Knoxville-Knox County Planning

Contract ID: GOVT

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date
March 17, 2025 10:56:30 AM EDT
Amount:
141.48
ADDITIONAL OPTIONS
1 Affidavit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

March 19, 2025
Knoxville News Sentinel

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

PUBLIC NOTICE

The following items will be considered by the Knox County
Board of Commissioners on April 21, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room, City County Bldg., 400 Main St.,
Knoxville, TN. For information related to these items visit
knoxplanning.org/agenda or visit the Planning Office in suite
403 of the City County Bldg. Knox County does not discrimi-
nate on the basis of disability in its provision of services,
programs, dctivities or benefits. If you need assistance or
accommodation for a disability, please contact the ADA
office at (865) 215-2952.

PLAN AMENDMENTS/REZONINGS
3-A-25-RZ - SIERRA KIRBY- 1562 SAYLORS FORD RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-B-25-RZ - BRYAN ANDREW BYRD- 4912 E EMORY RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-D-25-RZ - DANIEL HUMPHREYS- 1137 GRANVILLE
CONNER RD. Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission
Action: Approve RA (Low Density Residential)
3-F-25-RZ - ELIZABETH D. RAINES- 7639 GIBBS RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-H-25-RZ - BALL HOMES, LLC-0, HICKORY CREEK RD; 0,
2300, 2304 WEST GALLAHER FERRY RD. Proposed rezon-
ing. Planning Commission Action: Approve PR (Planned
Residential) up to 3.5 du/ac
3-J-25-RZ — WILLIAM ZAYETS — 7000 Ball Road. Proposed
rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve RA (Low
Density Residential)
March 19 2025
LOKR0260476

<< Click here to print a printer friendly version >>

Privacy Policy | Terms of Service

Contact Us

i-Publish® AdPortal: v2.6
©2025 iPublish Media Solutions, LLC


https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-and-conditions/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/okr/static/contact.html
javascript:window.print()
http://www.ipublishmedia.com/

This case is scheduled to be
heard by County Commission on
April 21, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room of the
City County Building, 400 Main
St.,Knoxville, TN. YOU or YOUR
representative must be
present. The item will be
postponed or withdrawn if you
are not represented.



RLA-17176 3-F-25-RZ
ZONINGS

Meeting Date: 04/21/2025

Requested By: Dallas DeArmond, METROPOLITAN PLANNING
COMMISSION

Department: METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Requires Expenditure of Funds: NO Funded in Current Budget: NO

Appropriation Required: NO

CAPTION

Request of Elizabeth D. Raines for rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low
Density Residential). Property located at 7639 Gibbs Road / Parcel ID 021 08510.
Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA (Low Density
Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan and surrounding development, by a vote of 14-0 Consent.

(Commission District 8)

Attachments
Elizabeth D. Raines 3-F-25-RZ




KNOXVILLE-KNOX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
REPORT OF RECOMMENDATION

3/19/2025 11:01 AM FILE NUMBER: 3-F-25-RZ

APPLICANT: ELIZABETH D. RAINES
APPLICANT'S REQUEST: REZONING

FROM: A (Agricultural)
TO: RA (Low Density Residential)

COMM. RECOMMENDATION: Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is
consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive Plan and
surrounding development.

COMMISSION VOTE COUNT: 14-0 Consent

LOCATION: 7639 GIBBS RD / Parcel ID 21 08510
ACREAGE: 1.27 acres
DISTRICT: Commission District 8

COMMISSION HEARING ON: 3/13/2025
PUBLISHED IN: News-Sentinel
DATE PUBLISHED: 2/11/2025

LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON: 4/21/2025
PUBLISHED IN: News-Sentinel
DATE PUBLISHED: 3/19/2025
APPLICANT'S ADDRESS: Elizabeth D. Raines

7639 Gibbs Rd
Corryton, TN 37721

LEGISLATIVE BODY: Knox County Commission

Consistent with Land Use Plan? Yes, the SR (Suburban Residential) place type directly relates to
the RA (Low Density) zoning.

Consistent with Growth Plan? Yes

TTCDA Approval? N/A

Suite 403 - City/County Building - 400 Main Street - Knoxville, Tennessee - 37902 - (865-215-2500)



<

REZONING REPORT

-
Planning
* FILE#:  3-F-25-RZ AGENDA ITEM #: 34
AGENDA DATE: 3/13/2025
* APPLICANT: ELIZABETH D. RAINES
OWNER(S): Elizabeth D. Raines

TAX ID NUMBER:

21 08510 View map on KGIS

JURISDICTION: County Commission District 8

STREET ADDRESS: 7639 GIBBS RD
* LOCATION: West side of Gibbs Rd, northeast of Tazewell Pike
* APPX. SIZE OF TRACT: 1.27 acres

GROWTH POLICY PLAN: Planned Growth Area

ACCESSIBILITY: Access is via Gibbs Road, a local street with a pavement width of 15-ft within
a 40-ft right-of-way.

UTILITIES: Water Source:  Hallsdale-Powell Utility District
Sewer Source:  Hallsdale-Powell Utility District

FIRE DISTRICT: Rural Metro Fire

WATERSHED: Beaver Creek

* PRESENT ZONING: A (Agricultural)

k= ZONING REQUESTED: RA (Low Density Residential)
k EXISTING LAND USE: Single Family Residential

(3

EXTENSION OF ZONE: Yes, it is an extension.

HISTORY OF ZONING: None noted, but the abutting parcel to the east, which will contain the access
easement for the subject property, was recently rezoned from A to RA (6-A-
24-RZ)

SURROUNDING LAND North:  Rural residential, single family residential - A (Agricultural)

USE AND ZONING: South: Rural residential - A (Agricultural)
East:  Single family residential - A (Agricultural), RA (Low Density
Residential)
West:  Public/quasi-public land (School) - A (Agricultural)

NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT: The surrounding area largely consists of single-family houses situated on
large lots. The rear of the property abuts the rear of Gibbs High School, and
E Emory Road is approximately 3/4 miles to the southeast.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

* Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County

Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development.

COMMENTS:

AGENDA ITEM #: 34

FILE # 3-F-25-RZ

3/6/2025 08:57 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 34-1



https://www.kgis.org/maps/planningcases.html?run=SearchCases&casenumber=3-F-25-RZ

PURSUANT TO THE KNOX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE 6.30.01, THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS MUST BE MET FOR ALL REZONINGS (must meet all of these):

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE NECESSARY BECAUSE OF SUBSTANTIALLY CHANGED OR
CHANGING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA AND ZONES AFFECTED, OR IN THE COUNTY GENERALLY.

1. The area to the south along E Emory Road has been increasing in single family residential intensity since
the late 1990s, with substantial agricultural to residential rezoning cases being approved within the past two
years.

2. Gibbs Middle School opened in the fall of 2018, adding to the Gibbs school system.

3. Around the same time, Tazewell Pike and Emory Road were widened at their intersection. Both were
previously two-lane roads that now consist of four lanes with a separate right turn and protected left turn lanes.
4. Also at that time, there were major improvements with the alignment of E Emory Road and Beeler Road to
the west of the parcel.

5. The stretch of E Emory Road between Maynardville Pike and Tazewell Pike lies just south of Gibbs High,
Middle, and Elementary School and would likely be the main route to the schools. This stretch is to be widened
from 2 lanes to 4 lanes including a median and bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

6. Data trends have shown an increased demand for a variety of housing options in Knox County, and a
residential rezoning could provide an opportunity for additional dwellings to meet this need.

7. A pedestrian bridge crossing Tazewell Pike is in the County’s CIP budget.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF THE
APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE.

1. The RA zone is intended to provide for residential areas with low population densities. The RA zone is
compatible with the surrounding zoning, which includes properties zoned A, RA, and PR with up to 3.6 du/ac.
2. Rezonings should be based on the entire range of uses allowed within a zone to ensure that any
development brought forth at a future time would be compatible with the surrounding land uses. The allowable
uses in the RA zone are primarily residential and civic in nature, which aligns with the surrounding area’s
character.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT ANY OTHER PART OF THE COUNTY
NOR SHALL ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT ADVERSE EFFECTS RESULT FROM SUCH AN AMENDMENT.
1. The RA zone is considered a low-density residential zone. As such, it is not anticipated to negatively impact
the surrounding area, which is primarily residential.

2. A blue line stream runs through the eastern side of the property. A 2024 recorded plat shows that a 50-ft no-
build stream buffer is in place (Exhibit B).

PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH AND NOT IN CONFLICT WITH THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF KNOX COUNTY, INCLUDING ANY OF ITS ELEMENTS, MAJOR ROAD PLAN,
LAND USE PLAN, COMMUNITY FACILITIES PLAN, AND OTHERS:

1. The subject property’s place type is SR (Suburban Residential) in the Knox County Comprehensive Plan.
The RA zone is directly related to the SR place type. The housing mix of the SR place type calls for
predominantly single-family dwellings with lots smaller than one acre and attached residential dwellings such
as duplexes, both of which are permitted in the RA zone.

2. The recommended rezoning complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Implementation Policy 2, to ensure
that new development is sensitive to existing community character. The lot sizes and allowable uses in the RA
zone are consistent with the residential character of the surrounding area, which primarily consists of single-
family dwellings on a range of lot sizes.

3. The subject property is within the Planned Growth Area of the Growth Policy Plan, which encourages a
reasonably compact development pattern. The allowable lot sizes and housing types in the RA zone support
the intent of the Planned Growth Area.

ESTIMATED TRAFFIC IMPACT: Not required.

ESTIMATED STUDENT YIELD: Not applicable.
Schools affected by this proposal: Gibbs Elementary, Gibbs Middle, and Gibbs High.

AGENDA ITEM #: 34 FILE #. 3-F-25-RZ 3/6/2025 08:57 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 34-2




» Potential new school population is estimated using locally-derived data on public school student yield
generated by new housing.

 Students are assigned to schools based on current attendance zones as determined by Knox County
Schools. Students may request transfers to different zones, and zone boundaries are subject to change.

» Estimates presume full build-out of the proposed development. Build-out is subject to market forces, and
timing varies widely from proposal to proposal.

 Student yields from new development do not reflect a net addition of children in schools. Additions occur
incrementally over the build-out period. New students may replace current population that ages through the
system or moves from the attendance zone.

If approved, this item will be forwarded to Knox County Commission for action on 4/21/2025. If denied,
Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission's action is final, unless the action to deny is appealed to Knox
County Commission. The date of the appeal hearing will depend on when the appeal application is filed.
Appellants have 30 days to appeal a Planning Commission decision in the County.

AGENDA ITEM #: 34 FILE #. 3-F-25-RZ 3/6/2025 08:57 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 34-3




L —
76.01
N\
74.01 76.02
— 76
76.03
\/ 81.02
85.08
85.03
A
A
85.01
g 85.04
c,(:!\'oo CCQ&
/ 76
86
L/
I""
‘o' 16 P/R 55
L/
_->"| 3.6DU/AC PA
REZONING 3-F-25-RZ Petitioner: Elizabeth D. Raines

From: A (Agricultural)

: Map o -
To: RA (Low Density Residential) Jurisdiction: County

0 200

Original Print Date: 1/31/2025 ——

Knoxville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902 Teet




Exhibit A. Contextual Images

Location Map

i ;"'"’t A \ 4\\\ o '

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 1

3-F-25-RZ

: Case boundary

390

Feet




Zoning Map

78.04

SR

7Y

75

Comprehensive Plan Map

74.01

A
76.03
B

HP:
Cl

76

85.08%

85.1

81.02

160 [ 2555

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 2

3-F-25-RZ

: Case boundary




RR
Existing Land Use Map \/
AgForVac
RR
e
% SFR
& |
¢l
o
% SFR
AgForVac ]
SFR RR \
plQp ~CIBBS Ry
PIQP.
RR
/(_\JICHOL'ASZDR
Tcu SFR EFR
\ECROS
(O P TINAMARIA DR
<\ \ %) i s |
CONTEXTUAL MAPS 3 3-F-25-RZ
0 550
E Case boundary —
Feet




3-F-25-RZ - Exhibit B

1. INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ILLUSTRATES THE EXISTING

CONDITIONS ON 04-17-24

2. ALL DOCUMENTS OF RECORD CONSIDERED AND/OR
REVIEWED BY THE SURVEYOR AS A PART OF THIS

SURVEY IN NOTED HEREON. THE SURVEYOR WAS NOT FURNISHED A COPY

OF TITLE COMMITMENT. ALL DEED REFERENCES

PROVIDED ARE SHOWN HEREON. THIS IS THE SAME PROPERTY
DESCRIBED IN THE REGISTER'S DEEDS OFFICE OF KNOX
COUNTY, TENNESSEE.

3. UTILITY NOTE:
THE SURVEYOR IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DETERMINATION

OR LOCATION OF ANY UNDERGROUND CONDITIONS NOT VISIBLE
AND INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, SOILS, GEOLOGICAL

CONDITIONS, PHYSICAL DEVICES AND FACILITIES, PIPELINES OR
BURIED CABLES AND SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY
LIABILITY THAT MAY ARISE OUT OF THE MAKING OF OR FAILURE
TO MAKE SUCH DETERMINATION OR LOCATION OF ANY
SUBSURFACE CONDITION. FOR UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATION
CALL 811 (TENNESSEE ONE CALL)

4. CURRENT ZONING: RA & A

5. SUBJECT PARCEL 1S NOT LOCATED WITHIN A SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREA ACCORDING TO FEMA FLOOD MAP 47093C0065F
DATED 5-2-07

6. IRON RODS$ INCH IN DIAMETER) LOCATED AT ALL PROPERTY
CORNERS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED HEREON.

7. LOT 1R-2 SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING EASEMENTS PER PLAT OF
RECORD - INSTRUMENT # 201706300080243
a. 50' STREAM BUFFER
b. 40' DRAINAGE EASEMENT
¢. 20' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT

8. LOT 3 PROPERTY LINE LOCATED WITHIN 50' OF EXISTING
SANITARY SEWER LINE.

9. PLANNING REZONING CASE FILE NUMBER: 6-A-24-RZ
DATE OF APPROVAL: JUNE 13, 2024

10. THIS SURVEY INDICATES ONE OR MORE SITE FEATURES THAT
CROSS LOT LINES. IT HAS NOT BEEN ADDRESSED BY PLAT
REVIEWING AGENCIES.

Certification of No Recorded Easements
This is to certify that there are no known recorded drainage or utility
easements on lot line (s) being eliminated on this subdivision plat.

Registered Land Surveyor :
Tennessee License No.: ___%_
Date: / 724

Certificate of Ownership and General Dedication.

(I, We), the undersigned owner(s) of the property shown herein, hereby adopt
this as (my, our) plan of subdivision and dedicate the streets as shown to the
public use forever and hereby certify that (I am, we are) the owner(s) in fee
simple of the property, and as property owner(s) have an unrestricted right to
dedicate right-of-way and/or grant easement as shown on this plat

Owner(s) Prj Name: BETH D. RAINES
Signaturefdy.
Date: 9/17/2024

Owner Certification for Public Sewer and Water Service — Minor Subdivisions
(1, We) the undersigned owner(s) of the property shown herein understand
that it is our responsibility to verify with the Ultility Provider the

availability of public sewer and water systems in the vicinity of the lot(s)

and to pay for the installation of the required connections.

Owner(s) Print me: ELIZABETH D RAINES
Signature(s): X
Date: _ 9/17/20%4 L

@

Dickinson
Map 21, Parcel 835.08
Elizabeth D. Roines Property
Plat: 201405300067541
Instr#: 202102010061958

/’x/‘ ﬁ@
”
g &2
o

N (52
55398.83 SF
1.272 Acres

Knox County Board of Education K
Map 21, Parcel 76.00

WDB 1392, Pg 488

IR(O}

Certification of Approval of Public Sanitary Sewer System — Minor Subdivisions
This is to certify that the subdivision shown hereon is approved subject

to the installation of public sanitary sewers and treatment facilities, and

that such installation shall be in accordance with State and local

regulations.

It is the responsibility of the property owner to verify with the Utility

Provider the availability of sanitary sewers in the vicinity of the lot(s)

and to pay for the installation of the required connections.

HALLSDALE POWELL UTILITY DISTRICT
UtiltgSrovider

9/25/2024
Date

Authorized Signature for Utility

Certification of Approval of Public Water System — Minor Subdivisions
This is to certify that the subdivision shown hereon is approved subject
to the installation of a public water system, and that such installation
shall be in accordance with State and local regulations.

it is the responsibility of the property owner to verify with the Utility
Provider the availability of water system in the vicinity of the lof(s)

and to pay for the installation of the required connections.

NORTHEAST KNOX MTIL/TL; DISTRICT
e ByhinEeR OV st e BIOFRIC

UtilipyProvider
. S -: Z

Autgforized Signature for Utility Date

10/02/2024

Taxes and Assessments. Certification that taxes and assessments have been
paid shall be as follows:

This is to certify that all property taxes and assessments due on this property
have been paid.
JUSTIN BIGGS ) 10/03/2024
o:

Knox County Trustee: Signed:

Zoning.
Zoning district(s) in which the land being subdivided is located shall be
indicated as shown on the zoning map by the Planning Commission as
follows:

Zoning Shown on Official Map RA&A

Date: 10/4/2024

Addressing Department Certification

1, the undersigned, hereby certify that the subdivision name and all
street names conform to the Knoxville or Knox County Street
Naming and Addressing Ordinance, the Addressing Guidelines and
Procedures, and these regulations.

g

Signed:

Date: 10/4/24

Knox County Department of Engineering and Public Works

The Knox County Department of Engineering and Public Works
hereby approves this plat on

this the day of
Engineering Director

. 2024

for Jim Snowden 10/3/24

25" No Disturb Stream Buffer

40" Droinage, Easerment
\/\ \
\

|R(o) \
g AN

(\o\ b
oXo
o s \\
50' No Build AN
Strearmn Buffer
RO /
$48°2028" EX KW
21.68'
500
~ N'63°0220" E
a1 23 37 ‘\\ o w
g Al
9 \ / :
Z . - \
E \ 50, X
©
£ \'/ \\ : \
% \
el
“J \ \
15 ‘ \
\ \
\ \
50" No Build -l .
qu Stream Buffer . \\
> ) h \25’ No Disturb Stream Buffer
H* .
Tiller
Map 21, Parcel 83.03

Instri: 201603030050970

STANDARD UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS

Ten (10) feet in width inside exterior lot lines adjoining streets and private
rights of ways and five (5) feet in width shall be provided along both sides
of all interior lot lines and on the inside of all other exterior lot lines.

50" No Build
\/Streom Buffer

'l\so No Build

AN

A «

N\ N
\ N

W

Planning Staff Certification of Approval for Recording ~ Final Plat 4
This is to certify that the subdivision plat shown hereon has been found to
comply with the Subdivision Regulations of Knoxville and Knox County and
with existing official plans, with the exception of any variances and waivers
noted on this plat, and that the record plat is hereby approved for recording
in the office of the Knox County Register of Deeds. Pursuant to Section
13-3-405 of Tennessee Code, Annotated, the approval of this plat by the
Planning Commission shall not be deemed to constitute or effect an
acceptance by the City of Knoxville or Knox County of the dedication of any
street or other ground

upon the pla %
%m / M

Date’l 0/4/2024

Certification of Final Plat — All Indicated Markers, Monuments and Benchmarks Set.
| hereby certify that | am a registered land surveyor licensed to practice
surveying under the laws of the State of Tennessee. | further certify that

o)
)

Signed; GIBBS RD

()

CLAPPS CHAPEL RD

TN GRID NORTH

this plat and accompanying drawings, documents, and statements conform, NADB3(2011)
to the best of my knowledge, to all applicable provisions of the NAVD88
Knoxville/Knox County Subdivision Regulations except as has been
itemized, described and justified in a report filed with the Planning
Commission, or for variances and waivers which have been approved as \_ LOCATION MAP N.T.S.
identified on the final plat. The indicated permanent reference markers and — - — -
monuments, benchmarks and property monuments were in place on the 3 LEGEND:
17th day of April, 2024. @ %
Y 7 1/2" IRON ROD (NEW)
Registered Land Surveyor @M G@. < 2 ® IR(W)
Tennessee License No. 2446 3 pYe ® /R0) 12”7 IRON ROD (OL0)
Date: 4.17.24 5 N2
Certification of Category and Accuracy of Survey. ® WATER METER
I hereby certify that this is a Category | & IV survey and the ratio S 33°09'25" E
of precision of the unadjusted survey is not less than 1:10,000 @ R, 4 25.04' o POWER POLE
as shown hereon and that said survey was prepared in compliance </ e
with the current edition of the Rules of Tennessee State Board of 31372.60 SF SR o CLEANOUT
Examiners for Land Surveyo‘r%?Standards of Practice. 0.72 Acres 2 OHP OVERHEAD POWER LINE
Registered Land Surveyor M SS SAMITARY SEWER LINE

Tennessee License No. 2446 BOUNDARY LINE

Date: 4.17.24
& ——— — ZONING LINE (R4)
@ 2
Dickinson o) %\’6
Map 21, Parcel 85.08 %)
Elizabeth D. Raines Property / % \
Plat: 201405300067541 ‘\&b o
Instr#: 202102010061958/ Gardner REFERENCE TIE: N69'56'58"W
A Map 21, Parcel 85.09 2202.68' FROM THE CENTERLINE
. . a7 4 , ‘ Final Plat of x INTERSECTION OF GIBBS RD AND
25' Exclusive Permanent Access Easement f Elizabeth D. Raines Property CLAPPS CHAPEL RD TO THE
Instrument No. _202410110020045 (=) Plat: 201706300080243 R(O) POINT OF BEGINNING (POB)
11294.34 SF . Instr#: 202004060066404
0.26 Acres e PN
/&9. f o
/ ’Lo 3 %o 0
, o,
‘%‘ Y. * @0?}
N ok g
1 ‘\(,,0
28 1°
\ ‘ Tiller
¢ RO Map 21, Parcel 85.03
| Instr#: 201603030050970
° 13
‘" SEE W gy
1 \
B 9 17-2¢
31372.60 SF
0.72 Acres
ROy . .
o Nick McBride
R g7 P : GPS CERTIFICATION:
S P Register of Deeds I, RANDALL WHITE, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN
Knox County UNDER MY SUPERVISION WITH A PORTION OF THE SURVEY USING GPS.
THE FOLLOWING GPS INFORMATION WAS USED TO PERFORM THE
o SURVEY:
N 28°16'19" W ., . 1) TYPE OF SURVEY: RTK (REAL TIME KINEMATIC)
62.16'(Total) 0‘@0‘“ o PR wic No/11/202a 16es an T 2) POSITIONAL ACCURACY: 0.02 FEET
v RECORD FEE: $17.00 120240039214 3) DATE OF SURVEY: APRIL 17, 2024
i M. TAX: $0.00 T. TAX: $0.00 4) DATUM / EPOCH: NADS83 (2011) EPOCH 2010.00
o 5) PUBLISHED / FIXED CONTROL USED: TDOT CORS NETWORK
g o 202410110020046 6) GEOID MODEL: GEOID 12B
R(N) NEW LOT LINE LOCATED WITHIN 7) COl INED SCALE,FACTOR: 0.9999077
50" OF EXISTING SEWER MAIN O’ 50 100 150

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR
RANDALL R. WHITE

TENN. REG. NO. 2446

DATE OF SURVEY 4.17.24

™ ™ e

SCALE: 1 INCH = 50 FEET

Strearm Buffer

40’ Droinage Easement
WOB 1923, PG 1083

20" Sanitary Sewer Eosement

!' WOB 1834, PG 518

RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 1R1 OF ELIZABETH D.

Q RAINES PROPERTY OF THE RESUBDIVISION OF LOT

1 OF ELIZABETH D. RAINES PROPERTY

PLANNING FILE NUMBER : 4-DDD-24

OWNER INFORMATION: TAXMAP 021 _ CTRL GROUP PARCEL _085.10
ELIZABETH D. RAINES 08 CORRYTON STATE__TN
630 GISBS RD DISTRICT COUNTY _KNOX cITyY WARD

CORRYTON. TN ZONING: _RA

865-719-0330
SURVEYOR INFORMATION:

DEED INFORMATION PARCEL 085.10;: _WDB 1923, PG 1085

: 2017 24
RANDALL WHITE LAND SURVEYS FINAL PLAT OF ELIZABETH D. RAINES PROPERTY: __201706300080243
5404 WILDERCLIFF LANE ACREAGE - LOT 1R-2 1.27 ACRES
KNOXVILLE, TN 37918 - |
865.748-4674 ACREAGE -LOT 3 0.72 ACRES (0.46 Acres less 25' Access Easement)

rwis-tn@comcast.net TOTAL ACREAGE LOTS 1R-2 AND 3:  1.99 Acres




Draft Minutes
Planning Commission Meeting

“‘ Planning March 13, 2025

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY 1:30 PM. | Main Assembly Room
City County Building

The Planning Commission met in regular session on March 13, 2025, at 1:30 p.m. in the Small
Assembly Room of the City County Building.

Item No. File No.

1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE

Commissioner Present | Absent Arrive late/left
early

John Huber, Vice-Chair
Louis Browning

Rich Levenson

Tamara Boyer

NENENENEN

Nancy Barger Left at 3:25 p.m.
Katie Overton V4
Marité Pérez

Matt Anderson

Logan Higgins

Miles Biggs

Kara Daley
Nick Gill

Amy Midis
Karyn Adams
Tim Hill, Chair

NSNS N ENEN LN

CONSENT ITEMS READ

1. MOTION (BOYER) AND SECOND (LEVENSON) WERE MADE
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT ITEMS AS READ, WITH THE
EXCEPTION OF ITEM #35.

3/20/2025 10:40 AM Page 1



Draft Minutes Planning Commission Meeting — March 13, 2025
Item No. File No.

34. ELIZABETH D. RAINES 3-F-25-RZ

7639 Gibbs Road / Parcel ID 021 08510, Commission District 8.
Rezoning from A (Agricultural) to RA (Low Density Residential).

1. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because
it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan and surrounding development.

APPROVED ON CONSENT EARLIER IN THE MEETING

3/20/2025 10:40 AM Page 2



A 7oL

i : ".‘Ss’.':“"/&-
LY % /s i =
C /7,’52{ e Al Lt
DEVELOPMENT p SUBD!VIS}ONq ZONING
. 1 Development Plan ] Concept Plan (] Plan Amendment
Plan nlng [J Planned Development 1 Final Plat . OSP OPA
KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY [ Use on Review / Special Use dRezoning

O Hiliside Protection COA

E\liﬂr(b&“ﬁﬁ D Q\Q‘\.i\é k‘j)‘x—{w 0SNG

Appiicant Name Affiliation Y

IQ‘QA *"{):{""2\(7/ //(M(‘/L_ 943".)_,{ File Number(s,
oate Filed Meeting Date {if applicabie) - :%) . F 3 f" Q(Z

3F25RZ +

All correspondence related to this application shouid be directed to the approved contact listed below.

E!/App\icam*‘ @/Property Owner [ Option Holder [ Project Surveyor [] Engineer [[] Architect/Landscape Architect

e mers D R@,;[.A)J.LS
C

Pal ———————
i i - 3 \ . ; s
ab“-‘?)ﬁ o (% RS /P\f’j\ C o o LoAl L po \391&,7}‘{
I

AddressJ City ! Siate Z
FL5N0230 I
Phone Email \

N p 638 Giass R J.{ 10 432

Property Owner Name {if dlfferent) Property Owner Address Property Owner Phone
1639 Cuass Lk == (02(-0351.0
Property Address Parcel 1D
. ) ’ ) M na .
K| o plifraalll N E I n. A
Sewer Provider Water Providér Septic (Y/N)

Sign and return the Public Notice & Community Engagement form with this application.

JULY 2024



-

s . il e .
Y potcs e f DT 9Pl £y

—

: . . . Related City Permit Number(s)
["] Developmext Plan [[] Use on Review / Special Use [ Hillside Protection COA

[J Residential [} Nen-Residential
Home Occupaﬁoeﬁsﬁecify)

Other (specify) \

N

! Related Rezoning File Number

Proposed Subdivision Name  \

O Coméine Parcels [ Divide Parcel
Unit / Phase Number \ Total Number of Lots Created

[ Other (specify) : \

[ Attachments / Additional Requirements

Y

Pending Plat File Number

@/Zoning Change K )ﬂ\b

Proposed Zoning

[ Plan Amendment Change

Proposed Plan Designation(s)

Proposed Density {unitsfacre} Previous Rezoning Requests

(] Other (specify)

STAFF USE ONLY

PLAT TYPE Feet : Total
] Staff Review L] Planning Cemmission ‘ :

; $650
ATTACHMENTS
3 Preperty Owners / Option Holders [ Variance Request Fee 2
1 Amendment Request {Comprehensive Plan)
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS o3

' Fee

[[] Use on Review / Special Use (Concept Plan)
[ Traffic Impact Study
] COA Checklist {Hillside Protection)

By signing below, 1 declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct: 1) He/she/it is the owner of the property AND
2] The gpplication and alf associated materials are being submitted with his/her/its consent. If there are additional owners or options

hofdj%h additional mdrwduahﬁvst 5:ng the Property Qwners/Option Holders Form.
‘/W/_& A//M Elizabeth D Raines / / f/

ApphcantS/nature Print Name / Affiliation Date

Phone Number Emaii

j@q@M QMJ Elizabeth D Raines /01?[/51 3 112712025 SH

Property er Signature Please Pring / " Date Paid




i Public Notice
Planning and Community
B Engagement

Sign Posting
and Removal

The Administrative Rules and Procedures of the Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission require a sign
to be posted on the property for each application subject to consideration by the Planning Commission.

Planning staff will post the required sign. if 2 replacement sign(s) is needed, the applicant is responsible
for picking up the new sign{s) from Planning and will be charged $10 for each replacement.

Location and Visibility Timing

The sign must be posted on the nearest The sign{s) must be posted not less than 12 days

adjacent/frontage street and in a location prior to the scheduled Planning Commission

clearly visible to vehicles traveling in either public hearing and must remain in place until the

direction. |f the property has more than one day after the meeting. In the case of a

street frontage, the sign should be placed postponement, the sign can either remain in

along the street that carries more traffic. place or be removed and reposted not less than

Planning staff may recommend z preferred 12 days prior to the next Planning Commission

lacation for the sign to be posted at the meeting. The applicant is responsible for

fime of application. removing the sign after the application has been
acted upon by the Planning Commission.

Community
Engagement

Planning strives to provide community members with information about upcoming cases in a variety of
ways. In addition to posting public notice signs, our agency encourages applicants to provide information
and offer opportunities for dialogue related to their upcoming case(s).

" / Have you engaged the

e surrounding broperty oWners
By signing below, you acknowledge thot public notice signs must be to discuss izr rp ::: 12
posted and visible on the property consistent with the guidelines above ;/15 ¥ eq y

Yes [ No

and between the dates listed below.

[J No, but | plan to prior to the

2/28/2025 3/14/2025 Pianning Commission meeting
Date to be Posted Date to be Rermoved
L Lol s+ sl Resse o)
L LA s~ [ izdgag ) Nedes 2 /AT 28
Applicant Sigﬁature 5! Applicant Name ’ / / Date
’ 3-F-25-RZ

FILE NUMBER



THANK YOU for your submission!

Your notice has been submitted for publication. Below is a confirmation of your order. You will also receive an email confirmation.

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:
LOKR0260476
Order Status:
Submitted
Classification:
Public Notices
Package:
General Package
Total payment:
141.48

Payment Type:
Account Billed
User ID:
LO013876
External User ID:
676064

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Knoxville-Knox County Planning

400 W Main ST # 403 DALLAS DEARMOND
Knoxville, TN 37902-2427

865-215-3810
dallas.dearmond@knoxplanning.org
Knoxville-Knox County Planning

Contract ID: GOVT

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date
March 17, 2025 10:56:30 AM EDT
Amount:
141.48
ADDITIONAL OPTIONS
1 Affidavit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

March 19, 2025
Knoxville News Sentinel

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

PUBLIC NOTICE

The following items will be considered by the Knox County
Board of Commissioners on April 21, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room, City County Bldg., 400 Main St.,
Knoxville, TN. For information related to these items visit
knoxplanning.org/agenda or visit the Planning Office in suite
403 of the City County Bldg. Knox County does not discrimi-
nate on the basis of disability in its provision of services,
programs, dctivities or benefits. If you need assistance or
accommodation for a disability, please contact the ADA
office at (865) 215-2952.

PLAN AMENDMENTS/REZONINGS
3-A-25-RZ - SIERRA KIRBY- 1562 SAYLORS FORD RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-B-25-RZ - BRYAN ANDREW BYRD- 4912 E EMORY RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-D-25-RZ - DANIEL HUMPHREYS- 1137 GRANVILLE
CONNER RD. Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission
Action: Approve RA (Low Density Residential)
3-F-25-RZ - ELIZABETH D. RAINES- 7639 GIBBS RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-H-25-RZ - BALL HOMES, LLC-0, HICKORY CREEK RD; 0,
2300, 2304 WEST GALLAHER FERRY RD. Proposed rezon-
ing. Planning Commission Action: Approve PR (Planned
Residential) up to 3.5 du/ac
3-J-25-RZ — WILLIAM ZAYETS — 7000 Ball Road. Proposed
rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve RA (Low
Density Residential)
March 19 2025
LOKR0260476

<< Click here to print a printer friendly version >>

Privacy Policy | Terms of Service

Contact Us

i-Publish® AdPortal: v2.6
©2025 iPublish Media Solutions, LLC


https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-and-conditions/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/okr/static/contact.html
javascript:window.print()
http://www.ipublishmedia.com/

This case is scheduled to be
heard by County Commission on
April 21, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room of the
City County Building, 400 Main
St.,Knoxville, TN. YOU or YOUR
representative must be
present. The item will be
postponed or withdrawn if you
are not represented.



RLA-17173 3-A-25-RZ
ZONINGS

Meeting Date: 04/21/2025

Requested By: Dallas DeArmond, METROPOLITAN PLANNING
COMMISSION

Department: METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Requires Expenditure of Funds: NO Funded in Current Budget: NO

Appropriation Required: NO

CAPTION

Request of Sierra Kirby for rezoning from I (Industrial) to RA (Low Density
Residential). Property located at 1562 Saylors Ford Road / Parcel ID 042 19532.
Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve the RA (Low Density
Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive
Plan and surrounding development, by a vote of 14-0.

(Commission District 8)

Attachments
Sierra Kirby 3-A-25-RZ




KNOXVILLE-KNOX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
REPORT OF RECOMMENDATION

3/19/2025 10:51 AM

APPLICANT:
APPLICANT'S REQUEST:

FROM:
TO:

COMM. RECOMMENDATION:

COMMISSION VOTE COUNT:

LOCATION:
ACREAGE:
DISTRICT:

COMMISSION HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

APPLICANT'S ADDRESS:

LEGISLATIVE BODY:

Consistent with Land Use Plan?
Consistent with Growth Plan?

TTCDA Approval?

FILE NUMBER: 3-A-25-RZ

SIERRA KIRBY
REZONING

| (Industrial)
RA (Low Density Residential)

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is
consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive Plan and
surrounding development.

14-0

1562 SAYLORS FORD RD / Parcel ID 42 19532
0.67 acres

Commission District 8

3/13/2025
News-Sentinel

2/11/2025

4/21/2025
News-Sentinel
3/19/2025
Sierra Kirby

3169 Washington Ridge Way PO Box: Apt 1908
Knoxville, TN 37918

Knox County Commission

Yes
Yes

N/A

Suite 403 - City/County Building - 400 Main Street - Knoxville, Tennessee - 37902 - (865-215-2500)



<

REZONING REPORT

-
Planning
= FILE#:  3-A-25-RZ AGENDA ITEM #: 30
AGENDA DATE: 3/13/2025
* APPLICANT: SIERRA KIRBY
OWNER(S): Sierra Kirby
TAX ID NUMBER: 42 19532 View map on KGIS

JURISDICTION: County Commission District 8
STREET ADDRESS: 1562 SAYLORS FORD RD
= LOCATION: East of Saylor Ford Rd, north of Fish Trap Ln
* APPX. SIZE OF TRACT: 0.67 acres
GROWTH POLICY PLAN: Planned Growth Area
ACCESSIBILITY: Access is via Saylors Ford Road, a local street with a pavement width of 15
ft within a right-of-way ranging from 40 to 50 ft.
UTILITIES: Water Source:  Northeast Knox Utility District
Sewer Source:  Knoxville Utilities Board
FIRE DISTRICT: Rural Metro Fire
WATERSHED: Holston-French Broad
* PRESENT ZONING: | (Industrial)
k= ZONING REQUESTED: RA (Low Density Residential)
k EXISTING LAND USE: Agriculture/Forestry/Vacant Land
3
EXTENSION OF ZONE: Yes, it is an extension.
HISTORY OF ZONING: None noted.
SURROUNDING LAND North:  Single family residential - | (Industrial)
USE AND ZONING: South:  Agriculture/forestry/vacant land - | (Industrial)
East:  Agriculture/forestry/vacant land - | (Industrial)
West:  Single family residential - RA (Low Density Residential)
NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT:  The surrounding area has a rural character and features a mix of residential
uses on various lot sizes and large, undeveloped, forested lands and grassy
lots. Industrial and mining activity is present to the north.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
* Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because it is consistent with the Knox County

Comprehensive Plan and surrounding development.

COMMENTS:

PURSUANT TO THE KNOX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE 6.30.01, THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS MUST BE MET FOR ALL REZONINGS (must meet all of these):

AGENDA ITEM # 30

FILE # 3-A-25-RZ

3/6/2025 08:46 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 30-1



https://www.kgis.org/maps/planningcases.html?run=SearchCases&casenumber=3-A-25-RZ

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE NECESSARY BECAUSE OF SUBSTANTIALLY CHANGED OR
CHANGING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA AND ZONES AFFECTED, OR IN THE COUNTY GENERALLY.

1. Though mining and industrial activity is still active in the surrounding area, it has been concentrated north of
the railroad tracks, along Mine Road and east of Mascot Road. Development trends south of the railroad
tracks, where the subject property is located, have largely been residential, consisting of detached single-family
dwellings on a range of lot sizes.

2. Since the early 1980s, the surrounding area has gradually transitioned from | (Industrial) zoning to A
(Agricultural) zoning and residential zoning such as RA (Low Density Residential) and PR (Planned
Residential) with up to 5 du/ac.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF THE
APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE.

1. The RA zone is intended to provide for areas with low population densities. The RA zone is compatible with
the surrounding residential zoning, which includes properties zoned RA and PR with up to 5 du/ac.

2. Rezonings should be based on the entire range of uses allowed within a zone to ensure that any
development brought forth at a future time would be compatible with the surrounding land uses. The allowable
uses in the RA zone, which are mainly residential and civic in nature, align with the character of the
surrounding area.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT ANY OTHER PART OF THE COUNTY
NOR SHALL ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT ADVERSE EFFECTS RESULT FROM SUCH AN AMENDMENT.
1. The RA zone is considered a low-density residential zone intended to protect the residential environment
from the encroachment of uses that do not perform a necessary function to the residential environment. The
subject property is situated between single-family dwellings and lots zoned I. The requested RA zone would
provide additional buffering between residential development and more intense industrial zoning.

PROPOSED AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH AND NOT IN CONFLICT WITH THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF KNOX COUNTY, INCLUDING ANY OF ITS ELEMENTS, MAJOR ROAD PLAN,
LAND USE PLAN, COMMUNITY FACILITIES PLAN, AND OTHERS:

1. The subject property’s place type is SR (Suburban Residential) in the Knox County Comprehensive Plan.
The RA zone is directly related to the SR place type. The housing mix of the SR place type calls for
predominantly single-family dwellings with lots smaller than one acre and attached residential dwellings such
as duplexes, both of which are permitted in the RA zone.

2. The recommended rezoning complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Implementation Policy 2, to ensure
that new development is sensitive to existing community character. The lot sizes and allowable uses in the RA
zone are consistent with the residential developments in the surrounding area.

3. The subject property is within the Planned Growth Area of the Growth Policy Plan, which encourages a
reasonably compact development pattern. The allowable lot sizes and housing types in the RA zone support
the intent of the Planned Growth Area.

ESTIMATED TRAFFIC IMPACT: Not required.

ESTIMATED STUDENT YIELD: Not applicable.

Schools affected by this proposal: East Knox County Elementary, Carter Middle, and Carter High.

» Potential new school population is estimated using locally-derived data on public school student yield
generated by new housing.

+ Students are assigned to schools based on current attendance zones as determined by Knox County
Schools. Students may request transfers to different zones, and zone boundaries are subject to change.

» Estimates presume full build-out of the proposed development. Build-out is subject to market forces, and
timing varies widely from proposal to proposal.

» Student yields from new development do not reflect a net addition of children in schools. Additions occur
incrementally over the build-out period. New students may replace current population that ages through the
system or moves from the attendance zone.

If approved, this item will be forwarded to Knox County Commission for action on 4/21/2025. If denied,
Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission's action is final, unless the action to deny is appealed to Knox
County Commission. The date of the appeal hearing will depend on when the appeal application is filed.
Appellants have 30 days to appeal a Planning Commission decision in the County.

AGENDA ITEM #: 30 FILE #: 3-A-25-RZ 3/6/2025 08:46 AM KELSEY BOUSQUET PAGE #: 30-2




195.74

REZONING 3-A-25-RZ Petitioner: Sierra Kirby

From: | (Industrial)

To: RA (Low Density Residential) Jurisdiction: County

0 110

Original Print Date: 1/31/2025 [E—

Knoxville - Knox County Planning Commission * City / County Building * Knoxville, TN 37902 Teet




Exhibit A. Contextual Images

Location Map

@

S BLUEBONNELO

4

e v

J |

CONTEXTUAL MAPS 1 3-A-25-RZ

: Case boundary —
Feet




260

Feet

RZ

3-A-25

Zoning Map

Comprehensive Plan Map
CONTEXTUAL MAPS 2

Case boundary




) \J
Existing Land Use Map [

AgForVac I

RER

AgForVac

AgForVac
SFR

SFR
TCU
P AgForVac
CONTEXTUAL MAPS 3 3-A-25-RZ
E Case boundary

550

Feet




<

$ Plannin

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

9

Draft Minutes
Planning Commission Meeting

March 13, 2025

1:30 P.M.

| Main Assembly Room
City County Building

The Planning Commission met in regular session on March 13, 2025, at 1:30 p.m. in the Small

Assembly Room of the City County Building.

Item No.

1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF

30.

ALLEGIANCE

File No.

Commissioner

Present

Absent

Arrive late/left
early

John Huber, Vice-Chair

Louis Browning

Rich Levenson

Tamara Boyer

Nancy Barger

NENENENEN

Left at 3:25 p.m.

Katie Overton

Marité Pérez

Matt Anderson

Logan Higgins

Miles Biggs

Kara Daley

Nick Gill

Amy Midis

Karyn Adams

Tim Hill, Chair

NSNS N ENEN LN

SIERRA KIRBY

1562 Saylors Ford Road / Parcel ID 042 19532, Commission
District 8. Rezoning from | (Industrial) to RA (Low Density

Residential).

1. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

3-A-25-RZ

Approve the RA (Low Density Residential) zone because
it is consistent with the Knox County Comprehensive

Plan and surrounding development.

3/20/2025 10:36 AM

Page 1



Draft Minutes Planning Commission Meeting — March 13, 2025

Item No. File No.
2. MOTION (HIGGINS) AND SECOND (HUBER) WERE MADE TO
APPROVE PER STAFF RECOMMENDATION.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 14-0. APPROVED

3/20/2025 10:36 AM Page 2



Planing

KNOXVILLE { KNOX COUNTY

Development Request

DEVELOPMENT SUBDIVISION ZONING

[J Development Plan [} Concept Plan 3 Plan Amendment
[J Planned Development [J Final Plat OsP O PA
[1 Use on Review / Special Use B Rezoning

O Hillside Protection COA

e cea e o

Applicant Name D) Affiliation
: 03/13/2025 | File Number(s)
W\ 2\e=s
Date filkd Meeting Date (if applicable) 3-A-25-RZ

AA Applicant [ Property Owner

Alf carrespondence refated to this application should be directed to the approved contact listed below.

{0 Option Holder [ Project Surveyor [} Engineer [3 Architect/Landscape Architect

TNe el e o

=GN

Name : Company
%}f&m&x&g}miuwg%m&@xxﬁxeﬁw\kxxlc@&xx\\\(° O

State P

(e L e,

Phone

Ematl -

Property Owner N'gr;g (if diff'é'?ent)

\Stez

Property Address

Ao

Property Owner Address‘ - Property Owner Phone

ib;,\%@s‘?@\d&x& QOO T RN o O\ 22

Sewer Provider

Parcel iD
_MNestneasi ok | ,\J
Water Provider Septic {Y/N}

Sign and return the Public Notice & Community Engagement form with this application.

JULY 2024



] Development Plan
[C] Residential
Home Occupation {specify)

[ Use on Review / Speclal Use  [[] Hillside Protection COA

"1 Non-Residential

Other (speciy)

Related City Permit Number(s}

Proposed Subdivision Name

{1 Combine Parcels 7] Divide Parcel

Related Rezoning Fite Number

Unit / Phase Number Total Number of Lots Created

3 Other {specify)

[ Attachments / Additional Requirements

JZ’Zonmg Change hﬁﬁ\@‘iﬁ\\\ﬂ\ V\ p\

Proposed Zoning

Pending Plat File Number

] Plan Amendment Change
Proposed Plan Designation(s)

Proposed Density {units/acre)
[ Other {specify)

Previous Rezoning Requests

STAFF USE ONLY

PLAT TYPE Feel

[ staff Review
ATTACHMENTS

[Y(Planning Commission

Total

] Property Owners / Option Holders  [7] variance Request Fee 2

£ Amendment Request (Comprehensive Plan)
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

$650.00

L] Use on Review / Special Use {Concept Plan) Fee3

] Traffic Impact Study
[_] COA Checklist {Hillsicle Protection)

By slgning below, 1 declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct: 1) He/she/it is the owner of the property AND
2) The application and alf associated materials are being submitted with his/her/its consent, If there are additional owners or aptions

holders, each additional individual must sign the Property Owners/Option Holders Form,

Q?m Q\L,; g\ %\(” O \\“\\Y Ao

\ \(' \?%

¢

Ap@nt Sigf\féture \_) Print Name / Affiliation

ate

Phone Number Email
%3\ m %v 5\(’ X \}"\\Vb\ 01/03/2025’ SG
Prc@erty Owner ngna ure Q Please Print Date Paid




] Public Notice
@ Planning and Community
T e Engagement

Sign Posting
and Removal

The Administrative Rules and Procedures of the Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission require a sign
to be posted on the property for each application subject to consideration by the Planning Commission.

Planning staff will post the required sign. If a replacement sign(s) is needed, the applicant is responsible
for picking up the new sign{s) from Planning and will be charged $10 for each replacement.

Location and Visibility Timing

The sign must be posted on the nearest The sign(s) must be posted not less than 12 days

adjacent/frontage street and in a location prior ta the scheduled Planning Commission

clearly visible to vehicles traveling in either nublic hearing and must remain in place until the

direction, If the property has more than one day after the meeting. In the case of a

street frontage, the sign should be placed postponement, the sign can either remain in

along the street that carries more traffic. place or be removed and reposted not less than

Planning staff may recommend a preferred 12 days prior to the next Planning Commission

location for the sign to be posted at the meeting. The applicant is responsible for

time of application. removing the sign after the application has been
acted upon by the Planning Commission.

Community
Engagement

Planning strives to provide community members with information about upcoming cases in a variety of
ways. [n addition to posting public notice signs, our agency encourages applicants to provide information
and offer opportunities for dialogue related to their upcoming case(s).

Have you engaged the
surrounding property owners
to discuss your request?

By signing below, you acknowledge that public notice signs must be
posted and visible on the property consistent with the guidelines above

and between the dates listed below.
Yes [] No
2/28/2025 _
[ No, but | plan to prior to the
% - \H - 9‘5 Planning Commission meeting
Date ta be Posted Date to be Removed

Q s \
% ;£ 2 itc-’.,.::_. m___\ AN OO WM &"E:j \N\CTA S
App cafmt ignature Applicant Name . 3 A 2D5ateRZ

FILE NUMBER



THANK YOU for your submission!

Your notice has been submitted for publication. Below is a confirmation of your order. You will also receive an email confirmation.

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:
LOKR0260476
Order Status:
Submitted
Classification:
Public Notices
Package:
General Package
Total payment:
141.48

Payment Type:
Account Billed
User ID:
LO013876
External User ID:
676064

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Knoxville-Knox County Planning

400 W Main ST # 403 DALLAS DEARMOND
Knoxville, TN 37902-2427

865-215-3810
dallas.dearmond@knoxplanning.org
Knoxville-Knox County Planning

Contract ID: GOVT

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date
March 17, 2025 10:56:30 AM EDT
Amount:
141.48
ADDITIONAL OPTIONS
1 Affidavit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

March 19, 2025
Knoxville News Sentinel

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02604760

PUBLIC NOTICE

The following items will be considered by the Knox County
Board of Commissioners on April 21, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room, City County Bldg., 400 Main St.,
Knoxville, TN. For information related to these items visit
knoxplanning.org/agenda or visit the Planning Office in suite
403 of the City County Bldg. Knox County does not discrimi-
nate on the basis of disability in its provision of services,
programs, dctivities or benefits. If you need assistance or
accommodation for a disability, please contact the ADA
office at (865) 215-2952.

PLAN AMENDMENTS/REZONINGS
3-A-25-RZ - SIERRA KIRBY- 1562 SAYLORS FORD RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-B-25-RZ - BRYAN ANDREW BYRD- 4912 E EMORY RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-D-25-RZ - DANIEL HUMPHREYS- 1137 GRANVILLE
CONNER RD. Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission
Action: Approve RA (Low Density Residential)
3-F-25-RZ - ELIZABETH D. RAINES- 7639 GIBBS RD.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RA (Low Density Residential)
3-H-25-RZ - BALL HOMES, LLC-0, HICKORY CREEK RD; 0,
2300, 2304 WEST GALLAHER FERRY RD. Proposed rezon-
ing. Planning Commission Action: Approve PR (Planned
Residential) up to 3.5 du/ac
3-J-25-RZ — WILLIAM ZAYETS — 7000 Ball Road. Proposed
rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve RA (Low
Density Residential)
March 19 2025
LOKR0260476

<< Click here to print a printer friendly version >>

Privacy Policy | Terms of Service

Contact Us

i-Publish® AdPortal: v2.6
©2025 iPublish Media Solutions, LLC


https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-and-conditions/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/okr/static/contact.html
javascript:window.print()
http://www.ipublishmedia.com/

This case is scheduled to be
heard by County Commission on
April 21, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room of the
City County Building, 400 Main
St.,Knoxville, TN. YOU or YOUR
representative must be
present. The item will be
postponed or withdrawn if you
are not represented.



RLA-17121 0-25-3-101
ZONINGS

Meeting Date: 04/21/2025

Requested By: Dallas DeArmond, METROPOLITAN PLANNING
COMMISSION

Department: METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Requires Expenditure of Funds: NO Funded in Current Budget: NO

Appropriation Required: NO

CAPTION

Consideration of an Ordinance of the Commission of Knox County, Tennessee,
amending the Knox County Code, Appendix A — Zoning, Articles 2.20, 4.91, 5.11,
5.12,5.13,5.22,5.31, 5.32, 5.33, 5.34, 5.36, 5.37, 5.38, 5.40, 5.41, 5.42, 5.50, and
5.51 to align zoning regulations with Department of Human Services (DHS) licensure
rules for child care agencies and to streamline the provision of child care services.
(Ord. No. 0-90-9-130, adopted 9-10-90, as amended)Planning Commission
Recommendation: Approve the proposed childcare zoning ordinance
amendments because these changes are consistent with Knox County
Comprehensive Plan Implementation Policies and State Department of Human
Services (DHS) licensure regulations for childcare facilities, by a vote of 15-0.
(SECOND READING) (Public Hearing scheduled for Monday, April 21, 2025 at 3:30 pm)
(Planning Commission and Commissioner Jay)

Attachments
Ordinance
Exhibit A - redlined changes
Ordinance Amendment 2-A-25-OA
Fiscal Note




ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION

OF KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE, AMENDING
THE KNOX COUNTY CODE, APPENDIX A —
ZONING, ARTICLES 2.20, 4.91, 5.11, 5.12, 5.13,
5.22,5.31, 5.32, 5.33, 5.34, 5.36, 5.37, 5.38, 5.40,
5.41, 5.42,5.50, AND 5.51 TO ALIGN ZONING
REGULATIONS WITH DEPARTMENT OF
HUMAN SERVICES (DHS) LICENSURE RULES
FOR CHILD CARE AGENCIES AND TO
STREAMLINE THE PROVISION OF CHILD
CARE SERVICES. (Ord. No. 0-90-9-130,

adopted 9-10-90, as amended).

ORDINANCE: 0-25-3-101

REQUESTED BY: PLANNING COMMISSION
AND COMMISSIONER JAY

PREPARED BY: KNOX COUNTY LAW
DIRECTOR’S OFFICE

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND CORRECTNESS:

DIRECTOR OF LAW

APPROVED 15T READING:

DATE
APPROVED 2™° READING:

DATE
APPROVED EMERGENCY:

(YES) (NO)

VETOED:

DATE
VETO
OVERRIDE:

DATE
MINUTE

BOOK PAGE




WHEREAS, the Knox County Mayor’s Office and the Knox County Chamber of
Commerce collaborated on proposed changes to the Knox County Zoning Ordinance as it
pertains to the permitting processes for child care services; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the proposed changes is to align zoning regulations with
Department of Human Services (DHS) licensure rules for child care agencies and to
streamline the provision of child care services, which are an essential component of the
local economy; and

WHEREAS, at its meeting on February 13, 2025, the Knoxville-Knox County
Planning Commission recommended approval of the amendments to the Knox County
Zoning Ordinance as shown on the attached Exhibit A.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COMMISSION OF KNOX
COUNTY AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Code of Knox County, Tennessee, Appendix A, entitled “Zoning”,
is hereby amended in Articles 2.20, 4.91, 5.11, 5.12, 5.13, 5.22, 5.31, 5.32, 5.33, 5.34, 5.36,
5.37,5.38, 5.40, 5.41, 5.42, 5.50 and 5.51 to read as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto and
fully incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall take effect as provided by the Charter of
Knox County, Tennessee, the public welfare requiring it.

Presiding Officer of the Commission Date
County Clerk Date
Approved:

County Mayor Date
Vetoed:

County Mayor Date



2.20. Specific terms.

Accessory building: A subordinate building customarily incidental to and located on the same lot with the
main building.

Accessory structure: A subordinate structure customarily incidental to and located on the same lot with the
main building or structure.

Accessory use: A subordinate use customarily incidental to and located on the same lot with the main use.
Adult: Any person who is eighteen (18) years of age or older.

Adult book store: An establishment having more than fifty (50) percent of the face value of its stock in trade,
books, magazines, motion pictures, periodicals, and other materials which are distinguished or characterized by
their emphasis on matters depicting, describing or relating to "specified anatomical areas" hereinbelow defined or
an establishment with a segment or section devoted to the sale of display of such material.

Adult day care facility: A facility which provides non-medical care to three (3) or more persons eighteen (18)
years of age and older in need of personal services, supervision, or assistance essential for sustaining the activities
of daily living or for the protection of the individual on less than a twenty-four (24) hour a day basis. Any persons
who are related to the provider by blood or marriage shall not be included in the total number of persons for
which care is provided.

Adult motion picture theater: Any public place, whether open or enclosed, used for presenting material
distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on matter depicting, describing, or relating to "specified sexual
activities" or "specified anatomical areas," hereinbelow defined, for observation by patrons therein.

Adult-oriented establishments: Sexually explicit establishments which cater to an exclusively or
predominantly adult clientele and including, but not limited to: adult bookstores, adult motion picture theaters,
cabarets and other enterprises which regularly feature materials, acts or displays involving complete nudity or
exposure of the "specified anatomical areas" hereinbelow defined and/or sexual excitement or enticement.

Aged persons: Persons who are fifty-five (55) years of age or older.

Agritourism: A form of commercial enterprise that links agricultural production and/or processing with
tourism in order to attract visitors onto a farm, ranch, or other agricultural business for the purposes of
entertaining and/or educating the visitors and generating income for the farm, ranch, or business owner. This
includes the sales of agricultural products produced on site.

Airsoft range: See "paintball/airsoft range" as hereinbelow defined.
Alteration, interior: Any change in the interior walls of a building.

Alteration, structural: Any change in the exterior walls, foundation or other supporting members of a
building or structure.

Apartment: See "Multi-dwelling structure" as defined hereinbelow under "Residential structure types."

Assisted living facility: A building, establishment, complex, or distinct part thereof which accepts aged
persons, whom constitute a substantial majority of not less than eighty-five (85) percent of the facility population,
for domiciliary care provided that residential units may be shared with a person under the age of fifty-five (55), if
the head of household meets the definition of an aged person. The facility provides on-site to its residents, room,
board, nonmedical living assistance services appropriate to the residents' respective needs, and medical services as
prescribed by each resident's treating physician.

Auto wrecking yard: Any space or building used by the owner or operator for the dismantling of two (2) or
more inoperable vehicles or vehicles not in running condition, or for storage of such vehicles or the dismantled
parts thereof.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 1 of 67



Boarding home for sheltered care: A profit or nonprofit boarding home, rest home or other home licensed by
the appropriate governmental agency which in addition to providing food and shelter to three (3) but not more
than twelve (12) persons unrelated to the proprietor, also provides, any personal care or service beyond food,
shelter, and laundry. Such services may include: (1) supervision and assistance in dressing, bathing and
maintenance of good personal hygiene; (2) care in emergencies or in temporary illness, usually for periods of one
(1) week or less; (3) supervision in the taking of medications; and (4) other services conducive to the residents'
welfare.

Boarding house: A dwelling or part thereof in which lodging is and meals from a common kitchen are
provided by the owner or operator for not more than twelve (12) persons.

Boat livery: An establishment, which can include docking facilities, at which boats are rented for recreational
purposes.

Boatel: A combination of a motel and marina that is accessible to boats as well as automobiles and may
include overnight accommodations for transients and permanent staff, eating and drinking facilities, and meeting
rooms.

Buffer strip: A greenbelt planting strip twenty (20) to sixty (60) feet in width extending along the entire
length of one or more commercial or industrial property lines, planted with trees and shrubs of a given height and
distance apart and in a given planting pattern.

Build-to line: A line running parallel to a street to which the front of buildings are sited.

Building: Any structure built for the support, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, moveable possessions,
or property of any kind which has a roof and enclosing walls for at least fifty (50) percent of its perimeter. The term
"building" shall be as if followed by the words "or part thereof." For the purpose of area and height limitations this
definition shall be applicable to sheds and open sheds.

Business park: A tract of land that is planned, developed, and operated as an integrated facility for a number
of individual business, research, assembly, distribution, or light manufacturing uses with consideration to
transportation facilities, circulation, parking, utilities, aesthetics, and compatibility.

Business service: Any activity conducted for gain, which renders services primarily to other commercial and
industrial enterprises, or which services and repairs appliances and machines used in a home or business.

Cabaret: Any restaurant, bar, dance hall, nightclub or other such place which features dancers exhibiting
"specified anatomical areas" (as defined below), strippers, male or female impersonators or similar entertainers.

Child dey-care -agencyfaeitity: A place or facility, regardless of whether it is currently licensed, that is operated as a
“family child care home”, a “group child care home”, a “child care center” that provides child care for three (3) or
more hours per day to five (5) or more children who are not related to the primary educator. A-facitity-whieh

twenty-four{24}-heurbasis—Types of child day-care facilities-agencies are defined in the following categories:

Child dey-care center: Any place or facility operated by any person or entity that provides child care for three

(3) or more hours per day for at least thirteen (13) children who are not related to the primary educator. An

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 2 of 67



Group dey-child care home: Any place or facility operated by any person or entity that provides child care for
three (3) or more hours per day for at least eight (8) children who are not related to the primary educator,

but not more than twelve (12) children or fifteen (15) children if approved for three (3) additional school-

Family child care home: Any place or facility which is operated by any person or entity that provides child
care for three (3) or more hours per day for at least five (5) children, but not more than seven (7) children
who are not related to the primary educator.

Club: An association or group of persons organized for some common purpose, but not including such
associations or groups organized to render a service which is customarily carried on as a business.

Commercial mulching operation: A type of solid waste processing facility that processes woody waste
consisting of stumps, trees, limbs, branches, bark, leaves and other clean wood waste which has undergone size
reduction by grinding, shredding, or chipping and is distributed to the general public for landscaping and
horticultural purposes. Such woody waste is generally transported to the operation from off-site, and the mulch
product is sold to the general public. (See "Solid waste processing facility".)

Commercial vehicles: Any vehicle designed, maintained or used primarily for hire, compensation or profit.

Composting facility: A type of solid waste processing facility for the purpose of processing waste that
undergoes biological decomposition of organic matter. Such waste has been stabilized to a degree which is
potentially beneficial to plant growth and which is suitable for use as a soil amendment, artificial top soil, growing
medium amendment, or other similar uses. (See "Solid waste processing facility".)

Congregate housing: A dwelling licensed by the appropriate governmental agency providing shelter and
services for the elderly which may include meals, housekeeping and personal care assistance. The residents may be
functionally impaired or socially isolated, but otherwise in good health. The residents can maintain a semi-
independent life style and do not require more intensive care as provided in a nursing home.

Contractor: Any person or firm engaged in construction, building trades, landscaping services or
maintenance, on a contract basis, either licensed or unlicensed.

Contractor's storage yard: An outdoor area used for the storage of equipment and/or materials used for
providing contracting services, including but not limited to building construction, heating, plumbing, roofing,
landscaping and excavation.

Corner lot: A lot abutting upon two (2) or more roads at their intersection, provided the angle at which the
roads intersect does not exceed one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees.

Demolition landfill: An engineered method of disposal of material that results from construction, land
clearing, landscaping or demolition activity. Such materials would include concrete, steel, clean soil, rubble, rock,
inert road spoils, gypsum board, brick, glass, lumber, vinyl siding, roofing, fiberglass insulation, asphalt-
impregnated materials, tree stumps, brush, branches, leaves and clippings or any other material approved by the
state department of health and environment; but not toxic materials such as paint thinners, caulking compounds,
asbestos or material containing asbestos, paving and sealing components still in a liquid or semi-solid state, or
agricultural wastes or any other material prohibited by the state department of health and environment.

Demolition landfill site: All or a portion of a parcel or contiguous parcels which is intended to be used as a
demolition landfill. The site shall include all borrow areas and areas of ingress and egress, all structures and other
improvements on the land for processing and disposal of solid waste material and all buffers, berms, fences and
set backs. The development plan as approved will constitute the site.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 3 of 67



Domestic employee: A person hired by a household to perform general household services such as nanny,
baby-sitting, cooking, cleaning, laundering, gardening, yard and maintenance work, caregiving and other duties
commonly associated with the meaning of domestic servant.

Dwelling, condominium: A multiple dwelling designed for individual ownership of dwelling units, but joint
ownership and/or responsibility for maintenance and upkeep of building, grounds and recreational facilities.

Electronic message center sign: A sign which uses a bank of lights that can be individually lit to form copy
such as words, letters, logos, figures, symbols, illustrations, or patterns to form a message without altering the sign
face.

Family: The heads of household plus persons who are related to the heads of the household and any
domestic employees thereof. These relationships may be of the whole or half blood, by adoption, guardianship,
including foster children, or through a marriage to a person with such a relationship with the heads of household.

Fill area: The area containing waste placed for final disposal, not including earthen berms or other
appurtenances.

Five hundred (500) year flood: A flood having a two-tenths of one percent (0.2%) chance of occurring in any
given year and which, over a long period of time, can be expected to be equaled or exceeded on the average of
once every five hundred (500) years.

Flea market: The occasional or periodic sale held in an open area where groups of individual sellers offer
goods for sale to the public and the sale goods are moved off the premise between sale dates.

Flood: An overflow of lands not normally covered by water that results in significant adverse effects.

Floodway: The natural channel and the portion of the flood plain along the channel that must be retained
solely for the passage of floodwaters to prevent an undue increase in flood heights upstream.

Floodway fringe area: Areas adjacent to a F, Floodway Zone that are below the level of the five hundred
(500) year flood.

Floor area ratio (FAR): The number of square feet of floor area in a building, divided by the square feet of lot
area.

Garage apartment: A dwelling unit erected above a private garage.

Ground area coverage ratio (GAC): The number of square feet of ground area covered by the building,
divided by the square feet of lot area.

Heads of the household: One (1) person or two (2) adult persons establishing a household.
Home occupation: See article 4, "Supplementary regulations," section 4.90, "Home occupations."
Household: One (1) or more persons occupying a dwelling unit.

Inoperable vehicle: Any motor vehicle which does not have an engine in running condition, four (4) tires, a
battery, and valid state license plate issued to the person owning the land on which it is parked, or which is in fact
abandoned by its owner, or which for any reason is not operable and not repairable, shall be deemed an
inoperative motor vehicle.

Knox County Board of Commissioners: The Knox County Commission also referred to as county commission
and board of commissioners.

Knox County Codes Administration and Inspections Department: A department of Knox County government
authorized to enforce this ordinance, also referred to as the office of building inspector, department of codes
administration, codes enforcement, codes and Knox County codes administration and enforcement.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 4 of 67



Knox County Highway Department: The department of engineering and public works also referred to as
highways and public works, department of engineering and division of engineering and hydrology.

Liner building: A structure that covers one (1) or more sides of a "big box" commercial building, parking
structure or similar structure. A liner building must have a ground level entrance to the sidewalk and have a
minimum depth of thirty (30) feet.

Live/work unit: A combination of a dwelling unit and business space, such as a shop or office that is open to
the public for retail trade or personal or professional services.

Lot: A parcel of land which is or may be occupied by a building and its accessory buildings or uses customarily
incident thereto, together with such yards or open spaces within the lot lines as may be required by this
resolution.

Lot coverage: The building coverage expressed as a percentage of the total lot or parcel area.

Lot, key: A lot adjacent to a corner lot having its side lot line in common with the rear lot line of the corner
lot and fronting on the street which forms the side boundary of the corner lot.

KEY LOT CONCEPT DIAGRAMS

Example: Corner lots with adjacent “key” lots

Fro i

ntj

g Street

Interior | Interior » Corner | Interior | Interior
a Lot Lot Lot
o
[
-~
=
®

Interior | Interior | Corner = Corner | Interior | Interior

Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot

Fronting Street
| | I | | | 1
Example: Corner lots with adjacent interior lots

Marina: A facility for storing, servicing, fueling, berthing and securing of pleasure boats. The facility may
include eating, sleeping and retail facilities for owners, crews and guests.

Medical, dental, or chiropractic office/clinic: A facility for the examination and treatment of ill or afflicted
human outpatients, provided, however, that the patients are not kept overnight except under emergency

conditions.
Methadone treatment clinic or facility: A licensed facility for the counseling of patients and the distribution of
methadone for outpatient, nonresidential purposes only.

Mini-warehouse: See "Self-service storage facility" as hereinbelow defined.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 5 of 67



Mobile home: A single dwelling designed for transportation after fabrication on streets and highways on its
own wheels or on a flat bed or other trailer, and arriving at the site where it is to be occupied as a dwelling
complete and ready for occupancy, except for minor and incidental unpacking and assembly operations, location
on jacks or permanent foundations, connection to utilities and the like.

Mobile home park: Any area, tract, site or plot of land whereupon three (3) or more mobile homes as herein
defined are placed, located or maintained, or intended to be placed, located or maintained for permanent
residence, and shall include all accessory buildings used or intended to be used as part of the equipment thereof.

Mobile home park, transient: Any area, tract, site or plot of land open to the traveling public where
temporary accommodations are provided for parking travel trailers, camp trailers, house cars, mobile homes or
tents.

Mobile home space: A plot of ground within a mobile home park which is designed for and designated as the
location for only one (1) automobile and one (1) mobile home and not used for any other purposes whatsoever
other than the customary accessory use thereof.

Mobile home subdivisions: A subdivision of land designed for occupancy by mobile homes exclusively and
where the individual lots are sold to the occupant.

Motel: A building or group of buildings used for the temporary residence of motorists or travelers.

Nonconforming use: A use of a building or land that does not agree with the provisions of this ordinance for
the zone in which it is located.

Nursing home: An extended or intermediate care facility licensed by the appropriate governmental
agency(ies) to provide care to those persons who by reason of advanced age, chronic illness or infirmity, are
unable to care for themselves. This includes intensive care, intermediate care and long-term care facilities for the
elderly.

Off-street parking, class "A": An off-street parking facility, either controlled or uncontrolled, provided for the
use of occupants, employees, visitors, patients, patrons, or students, without charge for its use.

Off-street parking, class "B": A controlled or partially controlled off-street parking facility provided for the
use of occupants, employees, visitors, patients, patrons, or students, with or without charge for its use. Such
facilities shall be operated by or for the owner or owners of the principal use which it is intended to serve.

Off-street parking, class "C": An off-street parking facility operated for profit, which is provided for use by the
general public at a fee, whether the fee is charged for a partial hour, hourly, daily, weekly, monthly, or other basis.
Such facility shall be considered a commercial parking lot or facility.

Pain management clinic (as found in T.C.A. § 63-1-301): A privately-owned facility in which a medical doctor, an
osteopathic physician, an advanced practice nurse, and/or a physician assistant provides pain management
services to patients, a majority of whom are issued a prescription for, or are dispensed, opioids, benzodiazepine,
barbiturates, or carisoprodal, but not including suboxone, for more than ninety (90) days in a twelve (12) month
period. A pain management clinic does not include:

¢ A medical or dental school, an osteopathic medical school, a nursing school, a physician assistant program
or an outpatient clinic associated with any of the foregoing schools or programs;

¢ A hospital as defined in T.C.A. § 68-11-201, including any outpatient facility or clinic of a hospital;
¢ Hospice services as defined in T.C.A. § 68-11-201;

e A nursing home as defined in T.C.A. § 68-11-201;

¢ A facility maintained or operated by the state government; or

¢ A hospital or clinic maintained or operated by the federal government.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 6 of 67



Paintball/airsoft range: An indoor or outdoor facility used for the discharging of paintball and/or airsoft guns
for the purpose of target practice, mock war games, or similar competitions. Excluded from these facilities shall be
general hunting and the unrestricted and nonrecurring discharging of firearms.

Parking lot: An off-street facility including parking spaces along with adequate provision for drives and aisles
for maneuvering and giving access, and for entrance and exit, all laid out in a way to be usable for the parking of
more than six (6) automobiles.

Parking space: An off-street space available for the parking of one (1) motor vehicle and having an area of
not less than two hundred (200) square feet exclusive of passageways and driveways appurtenant thereto and
giving access thereto, and having direct access to a street or alley.

Personal service: An establishment primarily engaged in providing services involving the care of a person or
his or her apparel.

Planning commission: The Planning Commission of Knoxville and Knox County also referred to as the
planning commission.

Public garage: A building or portion thereof used for the purpose of housing, servicing, repair, or hiring of
self-propelled vehicles for pay, or where such vehicles are sold.

Public place: Shall mean any place to which the public or a substantial group of persons has access and
congregates, regardless of whether admission is charged thereto, and includes, but is not limited to: businesses
open to the public; highways; transportation facilities; schools; places of amusement; parks, playgrounds, hotels,
theaters; auditoriums, restaurants, nightclubs; cocktail lounges; and burlesque houses.

Public safety facility: A facility operated by and for the use of public safety agencies, such as the fire and
emergency rescue services, including the dispatch, storage, and maintenance of police and fire vehicles.

Recovery Housing: Housing for six (6) persons or more, with no limit on length of stay, that is occupied by the
target population as defined below, and that is linked to on- or off-site services that assist the recovery housing
residents in retaining the housing, improving his or her health status, and maximizing his or her ability to live and,
when possible, work in the community.

Recreation vehicle: A vehicular-type, portable structure without a permanent foundation that can be towed,
hauled, or driven, and primarily designed as a temporary living accommodation for recreational camping and travel
use, including, but not limited to: travel trailers, truck campers, camping trailers, and self-propelled motor homes.

Residential structure types:

Duplex: A building that contains two (2) dwelling units on one (1) lot. The units must share a common wall or
common floor/ceiling.

Dwelling unit: A building, or a portion of a building, that has independent living facilities including provisions
for sleeping, cooking, and sanitation, and that is designed for standards.

House: A detached dwelling unit located on its own lot.

House, attached: A dwelling unit located on its own lot that shares one (1) or more common or abutting walls
with one (1) or more dwelling units.

Multi-dwelling development: A grouping of individual structures where each structure contains one (1) or
more dwelling units. The land underneath the structures is not divided into separate lots. A multi-dwelling
development may include an existing house with one (1) or more new detached houses, duplexes or multi-
dwelling structures located on the same lot. The key characteristic of this housing type is that there is no
requirement for the structures on the lot to be attached.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 7 of 67



Multi-dwelling structure: A building, or portion of a building, that contains three (3) or more dwelling units
that share common walls or floor/ceilings with one (1) or more units. The land underneath the structure is
not divided into separate lots.

Retail sales: The process of selling goods or merchandise to customers for their own personal or household
use, including the characteristics of attracting the general public to the place of business, inventorying, selling and
receiving merchandise, and with the possibility of processing some of the products where such processing is
incidental and subordinate to the selling activity.

Road: A public thoroughfare forty (40) feet or more wide, provided however that any existing thoroughfare
less than forty (40) feet wide generally known as a road shall be considered a road for the purpose of this
ordinance.

Road line: Right-of-way line of a road.

Roadside stand: A farm structure used or intended to be used solely by the owner or tenant of the farm on
which it is located, for the sale of only seasonal farm products of the farm on which it is located.

Rummage sale: A temporary sale conducted by an organization not more than twice during any calendar
year where members of the group donate articles or items to the organization for sale from the organization's
location for the purpose of raising money for use by the organization.

Rural retreat: A facility owned and operated by an entity for the purpose of providing a rural setting in which
lodging, conferences, banquet facilities/restaurants, day spas, recreational amenities and meeting/event facilities
are provided with or without compensation. Rural retreat does not include a farm engaged in agriculture as
defined by state law.

Sanitary landfill: An engineered method of solid waste disposal as defined by the state department of health
and environment.

School: An academic learning center, whether public or private, from the level of nursery through twelfth
grade.

Self-service storage facility: A structure containing separate storage spaces of varying sizes, leased or rented
to the general public, businesses, or institutions.

Setback line: A line back of the road line, existing or proposed, between which and the road line no building
or portion thereof, except as provided in this resolution, may be erected. "Within a setback line" means between
the setback line and the road right-of-way.

Shopping center: A group of commercial establishments, planned, developed, owned, and managed as a unit,
with off-street parking provided on the property, and related in its location, size, and type of shops to the trade
area which the unit serves.

Sign, billboard, or other advertising device: Any structure or part thereof or device attached thereto or represented
thereon, which shall display or include any letter, words, model, banner, flag, pennant, insignia or representation
used as, or which is in the nature of an announcement, direction or advertisement. The word "sign" includes the
word "billboard" or any other type of advertising device, but does not include the flag, pennant, or insignia of any
nation, state, city or other political unit. Types of signs are defined in the following categories:

Abandoned sign: A sign which no longer identifies or advertises a bona fide business, lessor, owner, service,
product, or activity and/or for which no legal owner can be found.

Advertising sign: A sign which directs attention to a business, commodity, service or entertainment
conducted, sold or offered elsewhere than on the premises and only incidentally on the premises if at all.

Advertising sign, electronic: An advertising sign utilizing electronic means to form or alter the announcement,
direction, or advertisement appearing on the sign.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 8 of 67



Billboard: A type of advertising sign having more than one hundred (100) square feet of display surface which
is either erected on the ground or attached to or supported by a building or structure.

Business sign: A sign which directs attention to the business or profession conducted on the premises. A "for

sale", "to let" or "information" sign shall be deemed a business sign.
Ground sign: A sign supported by a pole, uprights, or braces on the ground.

Marquee sign: A projecting sign attached to or hung from a marquee and said marquee shall be known to
mean a canopy or covered structure projecting from and supported by a building, when such canopy or
covered structure extends beyond the building, building line, or property line.

Monument sign: A sign which is supported by and integrated with a solid base, as opposed to poles, posts, or
other such supports.

Portable sign: All movable or portable advertising or business signs mounted upon trailers or other structures
or devices designed to be transported with only incidental parking and assembling for reuse.

Projecting sign: A sign which is attached to the face or outside wall of a building which projects out at any
angle therefrom and projects more than twelve (12) inches beyond the face of such wall.

Roof sign: A sign that is mounted on the roof of a building or which is wholly dependent upon a building roof
for support.

Temporary sign: Temporary signs shall include any sign, banner, pennant, valance, or advertising display
constructed of wood, metal, cloth, canvas, light fabric, cardboard, wallboard, or other light material, with or
without frames, where either by reason of construction or purpose the sign is intended to be displayed for a
short period of time only.

Unipole structure: A single large diameter pole used to support structures.

Wall or face sign: Any sign erected parallel to the face, or on the outside wall, of any building and supported
throughout its entire length by such wall where the edges of the sign do not project more than twelve (12)
inches therefrom.

Solid waste processing facility: A facility for the purpose of modifying the characteristics or properties of solid
wastes to facilitate their transportation, disposal, or re-use, including, but not limited to incineration, composting,
separation, grinding, shredding, and volume reduction.

Specified anatomical areas:
a. Less than completely and opaquely covered:
1. Human genitals, pubic region;
2. Buttock; and
3. Female breast below a point immediately above the top of the areola; and
b. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered.
Specified sexual activities:
a. Human genitals in a state of actual or simulated sexual stimulation or arousal;
b. Acts of actual or simulated human masturbation, sexual intercourse or sodomy;

c. Actual or simulated fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic regions, buttock, or
female breast.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 9 of 67



Sports playing field: An open space set aside for the playing of field sports that may include benches or
bleachers for observers. Sports playing fields include, but are not limited to, baseball, field hockey, football,
lacrosse, soccer, softball, and volleyball.

Structure: A combination of materials to form a construction that is safe and stable for use, occupancy, or
ornamentation, whether installed on, above, or below the surface of land or water.

Swimming pool: Any structure intended for swimming or recreational bathing that has the capacity to
contain water over twenty-four (24) inches deep. This includes in-ground, aboveground and on-ground pools, hot
tubs and spas.

Target population: People experiencing substance abuse or other chronic health conditions.

Telecommunications tower: A structure, other than a building, on which a transmitting or receiving
antenna(e) is located.

Terminal, motor freight: The use of land, or buildings, for the temporary parking of motor freight vehicles or
trucks of common carriers during loading and unloading and/or repair and between trips, either intrastate or
interstate, including necessary warehouse space for storage of transitory freight.

Tourist court: See "Motel" (as defined above).

Tourist home: A residential building where lodging is furnished to transients for compensation, and
containing not more than five (5) sleeping rooms for such transients.

Vehicle repair/service: A business that provides repair services to motor vehicles, motorcycles, and all-terrain
vehicles (ATV).

Yard, front: The required open space between the road right-of-way line and the main building.

Yard, rear: A space, unoccupied except by a building of accessory use as herein provided, extending from the
rear of the main building to the rear lot line for the full width of the lot.

Yard sale: The sale of personal goods such as used clothing and/or household items to the general public by a
resident from any portion of their residential property not more than three (3) times a year. For the purpose of this
ordinance yard sale includes estate sales.

Yard, side: A space along the side line of a lot, unoccupied by buildings except as herein provided, extending
from the setback line to the rear yard.

Zone: A part or parts of the county for which the regulations relating to the use of land and buildings are
uniform.

(Ord. No. 0-95-9-102, § 1, 10-23-95; Ord. No. 0-95-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-27-95; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-
96; Ord. No. 0-97-10-101B, § 1, 11-17-97; Ord. No. 0-97-8-104, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No. 0-98-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-
16-98; Ord. No. 0-98-12-102, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-99-8-101, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-
25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-11-106, § 1(Exh. A), 1-4-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1, 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-01-6-101, § 1(Exh.
A), 7-23-01; Ord. No. 0-03-2-102, § 1(Exh. A), 3-24-03; Ord. No. 0-04-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-24-04; Ord. No. 0-06-7-
101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-09-10-101, § 1, 11-16-09; Ord. No. 0-09-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-10; Ord. No.
0-11-1-103, § 1(Exhs. A, B), 2-28-11; Ord. No. 0-11-2-101, § 1(Exh. C), 3-28-11; Ord. No. 0-11-11-102, § 1(Exh. A),
12-19-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-13-1-103, § 1(Exh. A), 2-25-13; Ord. No. O-13-4-
102, § 1(Exh. A), 5-28-13; Ord. No. 0-17-7-102, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-17; Ord. No. 0-17-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord.
No. 0-17-8-102, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. O-18-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 2-26-18; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A),
6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-20-1-101, 1(Exh. A), 2-24-20; Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, §§ 1, 2, 3-28-22; Ord. No. 0-23-7-101, § 1,
8-28-23)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 10 of 67



4.91. Requirements for-child-day-care-centers-and-group-day-care-homes Child Care Agencies,

when considered as uses permitted on review.

This section prescribes conditions under which child day-care agencies-facilities-and-group-day-care-homes,

when considered as uses permitted on review, may be permitted.

4.91.01. Minimum requirements.

Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-Street parking requirements." In addition, parking
and loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children, as well as safe
and convenient ingress and egress to and from the property. The off-street parking and circulation plan
shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering and public works.

The planning commission shall consider the-abeverequirements-and-other information about the site
including the functional street classification of the street accessing the site, and the character of
surrounding development in determining whether to deny or approve a request. Any approval shall
state the maximum number of children to be kept at the facility.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12)

5.11. RA Low Density Residential Zone.

5.11.01. General description. This residential zone provides for residential areas with low population
densities. These areas are intended to be defined and protected from encroachment of uses not performing a
function necessary to the residential environment.

5.11.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Houses.
B Accessory buildings.
C. Churches, schools, libraries, and museums.
D (Deleted August 17, 1971.)
E. Gardening and horticulture.
F. Mobile homes.
G.  Public golf courses, public parks and playgrounds; swimming pools, and other associated recreational
facilities, none of which shall be used for commercial purposes.
Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 11 of 67



M.

Public utilities, such as transmission lines, substations, railroad lines, bus loading or waiting platforms,
dams, water treatment plants, including water filtration and storage facilities, and other similar public
service uses and buildings, and also such other buildings and structures, as are used by utility and
sanitary districts in the performance of services in which they are authorized to engage.

Uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses, including home occupation, as regulated by
section 4.90, "Home occupations."

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.

Bay-Family child care homes and group day-child care homes, if the provider lives in the home, subject
to the following conditions:

14. Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements." In addition,
parking and loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children,
as well as safe and convenient ingress and egress to and from the site. The off-street parking and
circulation plan shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering
and public works.

Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

5.11.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.
B.

G.
H.

Garage apartments.
Duplexes.

Group day-child care homes, if the provider does not live on site, provided they meet the requirements
of section 4.91, "Requirements for child eéay-care centers and group day-child care homes, when
considered as uses permitted on review," and child day-care centers, provided they meet the
requirements of section 4.91, "Requirements for child day-care centers and group eay-child care
homes, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Private golf courses, swimming clubs, country clubs, and tennis clubs.

Nonprofit public and private sports playing fields, none of which shall be used for commercial
purposes.

Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.

Public Safety Facilities, subject to the standards of section 4.107.

5.11.04. Area regulations. All buildings shall be set back from street or road right-of-way lines and lot lines to
comply with the following yard requirements.

5.11.05. Front yard.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 12 of 67



For dwellings the minimum depth of the front yard shall be thirty-five (35) feet and in no case shall an
accessory building be located to extend into the front yard.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, shall have a front yard set back
of thirty-five (35) feet.

5.11.06. Side yard.

A.

For single-story dwellings, located on interior lots, side yards shall be not less than eight (8) feet in
width.

For dwellings of more than one (1) story there shall be side yards of not less than twelve (12) feet each.

For unattached buildings of accessory use there shall be a side yard of not less than eight (8) feet;
provided, however, that unattached one-story buildings of accessory use shall not be required to set
back more than five (5) feet from an interior side lot line when all parts of the accessory building are
located more than ninety (90) feet behind the front property line.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, and buildings accessory to
dwellings, shall set back from all side lot lines a distance of not less than twenty-five (25) feet.

5.11.07. Rear yard.

A.

For main buildings, other than garage apartments, there shall be a rear yard of not less than twenty-
five (25) feet.

A garage apartment may be located in the rear yard of houses, but shall not be closer than ten (10) feet
to the rear lot line. Unattached buildings of accessory use shall not be located closer to any rear lot line
than five (5) feet.

5.11.08. Lot width.

A.

Where dwellings are served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a minimum lot width of seventy-
five (75) feet at the front building line.

Where dwellings are not served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a minimum lot width of one
hundred (100) feet at the front building line.

5.11.09. Intensity of use.

A.

Not more than one (1) dwelling unit shall be permitted on any lot except as provided in subsection
5.11.03, "Uses permitted on review," of these regulations and not more than two (2) dwelling units
shall be permitted on any lot under the provisions of this subsection.

For each house and building accessory thereto served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a lot
area of not less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet.

Where two (2) dwelling units and buildings accessory thereto are located on the same lot served by a
sanitary sewer system, there shall be a lot area of not less than twelve thousand (12,000) square feet.

There shall be a lot area of not less than twelve thousand (12,000) square feet where a garage
apartment is located on the same lot with a house served by a sanitary sewer.

For each house and buildings accessory thereto, not served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a
minimum lot area of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet; however, a greater area may be required
based on recommendations by the health department.

There shall be a lot area of not less than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet where a garage
apartment is located on the same lot with a house not served by a sanitary sewer system. However, a
greater area may be required based on recommendations of the health department.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 13 of 67



G.  Where two (2) dwelling units and buildings accessory thereto are located on the same lot not served by
a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a minimum lot area of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet;
however, a greater area may be required based on recommendation by the health department.

H.  For those dwellings and buildings accessory thereto not served by a public water supply, there shall be
a minimum lot area as prescribed in the Minimum Subdivision Regulations for Knoxville and Knox
County, Tennessee.

For churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings and buildings accessory to
dwellings, the lot area shall be adequate to provide the yard areas required by this section and the off
street parking areas required in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these regulations;
provided, however, that the lot area for a church shall not be less than thirty thousand (30,000) square
feet.

5.11.10. Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory buildings shall cover not more than thirty (30) percent
of the lot area.

5.11.11. Height regulations. No main building shall exceed three (3) stories or thirty-five (35) feet in height.
Accessory buildings shall not exceed eighteen (18) feet in height; provided, however, the eighteen (18) feet height
limitation may be exceeded to conform the pitch of the accessory building roof to the pitch of the roof of the
principal use. In no case shall the bottom chord of the roof truss or the bottom of the ceiling joist of an accessory
building exceed eighteen (18) feet in height.

5.11.12. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these
regulations.

5.11.13. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 1, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-97-7-101, § 1, 8-25-97; Ord. No.
0-98-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-98-12-102, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-
25-00; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, §
1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord.
No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.12. RB General Residential Zone.

5.12.01. General description. This residential zone provides for medium population density. The principal
uses of land may range from houses to multi-dwelling structures or developments. Certain uses which are more
compatible functionally with intensive residential uses than with commercial uses are permitted. Other related
uses in keeping with the residential character of the zone may be permitted on review by the planning
commission.

5.12.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Accessory buildings.

B Churches, schools, libraries, and museums.

C. Garage apartments.

D Gardening and horticulture, but not on a commercial basis.

E. Nonprofit public golf courses, public parks and playgrounds; swimming pools, and other associated
recreational facilities, none of which shall be used for commercial purposes.

F. Mobile homes.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 14 of 67



0.

Multi-dwelling structures or developments, provided that the development density shall be less than
twelve (12) dwelling units per acre.

Nurseries and greenhouses for the propagating and cultivating of plants, but not on a commercial
basis.

Public utilities, such as transmission lines, substations, railroad lines, bus loading or waiting platforms,
dams, water treatment plants, including water filtration and storage facilities, fire stations, and other
similar public service uses and buildings, and also such other buildings and structures, as are used by
utility and sanitary districts in the performing of the services in which they are authorized to engage.

Houses and duplexes.

Uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses including home occupation subject to section
4.90, "Home occupations."

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.

Bay-Family child care homes and group gay-child care homes, if the provider lives on site, subject to the
following conditions:

14. Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements." In addition,
parking and loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children,
as well as safe and convenient ingress and egress to and from the site. The off-street parking and
circulation plan shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering
and public works.

Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

5.12.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Multi-dwelling structures and developments at a density of twelve (12) to twenty-four (24) dwelling
units per acre, provided they meet the administrative requirements of subsection 5.13.15,
"Administrative procedure for a planned residential development," and the requirements of
subsections 4.10.14 through 4.10.19, "Development standards for uses permitted on review," and
section 6.50, "Procedures for authorizing uses permitted on review."

B. Mobile home parks and mobile home subdivisions subject to all requirements set forth in sections
4.20, "Mobile home parks," and 6.50, "Procedures for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these
regulations.

C. Retail business or service establishments may be permitted within multi-dwelling structures and
developments only as a use-on-review in accordance with the provisions of section 6.50, "Procedures
for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these regulations, and subject to the following
requirements:

1.  There shall be no entrance to such place of business except from inside the building.
Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 15 of 67



r o m

J.

K.

2. There shall be no show window, sign, or other advertising matter visible from outside the
building.

3. Such uses shall be conducted for the convenience of the occupants of the building only and shall
not cater to outside trade.

4.  The planning commission shall determine the compatibility of such establishments based on the
nature, size and number proposed with respect to the number of dwelling units to be served and
the availability of similar services in the vicinity.

5. Detailed plans shall be submitted with the application for use-on-review giving the nature, exact
size and location of each such use within the building, the location of all entrances to such use
and the exact location of all building ground floor entrances and exits.

Group day-child care homes, if the provider does not live on site, provided they meet the requirements
of section 4.91, "Requirements for child €ay care centers and group eay-child care homes when
considered as uses permitted on review," and child éay-care centers, provided they meet the
requirements of section 4.91, "Requirements for child éay-care centers and group eay-child care homes
when considered as uses permitted on review."

Private golf courses, swimming clubs, country clubs, and tennis clubs.

Assisted living facilities.

Hospitals and sanitariums.

Private or nonprofit sports playing fields, none of which shall be used for commercial purposes.

Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.

Public Safety Facilities, subject to the standards of section 4.107.

5.12.04. Area regulations. All buildings shall be set back from street or road right-of-way and lot lines to
comply with the following yard requirements.

5.12.05. Front yard.

A.

For houses, duplexes and multi-dwelling structures and developments the minimum depth of the front
yard shall be thirty-five (35) feet and in no case shall an accessory building be located to extend into
the front yard. The planning commission may approve a reduction of the front yard if it finds such
reduction consistent with section 6.50, "Procedures for authorizing uses permitted on review," and the
administrative standards for approval.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, shall have a front yard set back
of thirty-five (35) feet.

5.12.06. Side yard.

A.  For single-story dwellings, located on interior lots, side yards shall be not less than eight (8) feet in
width.

B. For two- and three-story dwellings there shall be side yards of not less than twelve (12) feet each.

C. For buildings more than three (3) stories in height, one (1) foot additional side yard on each side of the
main building shall be added for each additional two (2) feet in excess of thirty-six (36) feet in height.

D.  For unattached buildings of accessory use there shall be a side yard of not less than eight (8) feet;
provided, however, that unattached one-story buildings of accessory use shall not be required to set

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 16 of 67



back more than five (5) feet from an interior side lot line when all parts of the accessory building are
located more than ninety (90) feet behind the front property line.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, and buildings accessory to
dwellings, shall set back from all side lot lines a distance of not less than twenty-five (25) feet.

5.12.07. Rear yard.

A.

For main buildings of three (3) stories in height and less, other than garage apartments, there shall be a
rear yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet.

For all main buildings more than three (3) stories in height, there shall be a rear yard of not less than
thirty (30) feet.

A garage apartment may be located in the rear yard of another dwelling, but shall not be located closer
than ten (10) feet to the rear lot line. Unattached buildings of accessory use shall not be located closer
to any rear lot line than five (5) feet.

5.12.08. Lot width.

A.

For houses and duplexes served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a minimum lot width of
seventy-five (75) feet at the front building line. For houses and duplexes not served by a sanitary sewer
system there shall be a minimum lot width of one hundred (100) feet at the front building line.

For multi-dwelling structures and developments there shall be a minimum lot width of one hundred
(100) feet at the front building line.

5.12.09. Intensity of use.

A.  The appropriate development density of each multi-dwelling structure or development project having
a density of twelve (12) dwelling units or more per acre shall be determined by the planning
commission, but shall not exceed twenty-four (24) dwelling units per acre.

B. For each house, and buildings accessory thereto, served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a lot
area of not less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet.

C. For each duplex served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a lot area of not less than twelve
thousand (12,000) square feet.

D.  For multi-dwelling structures and developments of one (1) and two (2) stories served by a sanitary
sewer system, the lot area requirements shall be not less than nine thousand (9,000) square feet plus
an additional one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet for each dwelling unit.

E. For those residential structures exceeding two (2) stories served by a sanitary sewer system, the
minimum lot area requirements shall be as follows:

Multi-Dwelling Lot Area

Structures Requirement

3—5 story 12,000 square feet plus 1,200 square feet per
dwelling unit.

6—8 story 12,000 square feet plus 1,050 square feet per
dwelling unit.

9—12 story 12,000 square feet plus 1,000 square feet per
dwelling unit.

13 story and over 12,000 square feet plus 900 square feet per
dwelling unit.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 17 of 67




For those structures which provide off-street parking within the main building, the lot area
requirement may be reduced two hundred (200) square feet per such parking space.

F. Usable open space areas and recreation uses for multi-dwelling developments and structures may
include a community center, a golf course, a swimming pool, or parks, playgrounds or other public
recreational uses. Any structures involved in such uses, including lighted tennis courts and swimming
pools, shall have a 35-foot setback from all periphery boundary lines. For developments with a density
of twelve (12) dwelling units per acre or more, the amount of land set aside for usable open space and
recreational uses shall not be less than fifteen (15) percent of the gross development area for a multi-
dwelling structure or development occupying twenty (20) or more acres, or ten (10) percent for a
multi-dwelling structure or development occupying more than eight (8) but less than twenty (20) acres.

G. There shall be a lot area of not less than twelve thousand (12,000) square feet where a garage
apartment is located on the same lot with a house served by a sanitary sewer. Where a garage
apartment is located in the rear yard of a duplex or multi-dwelling structure or development served by
a sanitary sewer, the lot area shall not be less than one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet
more than is required for the duplex or multi-dwelling structure or development.

H.  There shall be a lot area of not less than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet where a garage
apartment is located on the same lot with a house not served by a sanitary sewer system. When a
garage apartment is located in the rear yard of a duplex or multi-dwelling structure or development,
not served by a sanitary sewer system, the lot area shall not be less than five thousand (5,000) square
feet more than is required for the duplex or multi-dwelling structure or development.

For those houses and buildings accessory thereto, not served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be
a minimum lot area of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet; however, a greater area may be required
based on recommendations by the health department.

J. For duplexes and buildings accessory thereto, not served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a
minimum lot area of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet; however, a greater area may be required
based on recommendations by the health department.

K. For multi-dwelling structures and developments not served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a
lot area of not less than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet for the first two (2) units, plus two
thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet for each additional dwelling unit. Where off-street parking is
provided within the main structure the lot area requirement may be reduced one hundred fifty (150)
square feet per such parking space. However, in any case a greater lot area than herein specified may
be required based on recommendations by the health department.

L. For those dwellings and buildings accessory thereto not served by a public water supply there shall be a
minimum lot area as prescribed in the minimum subdivision regulations for Knoxville and Knox County,
Tennessee.

M.  For churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings and buildings accessory to
dwellings, the lot area shall be adequate to provide the yard areas required by this section and the off-
street parking areas required in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these regulations;
provided, however, that the lot area for a church shall not be less than thirty thousand (30,000) square
feet.

5.12.10. Maximum lot coverage. The maximum lot area which may be covered by main buildings shall be as
follows:

Multi-Dwelling Maximum Net
Structures Building Coverage
Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 18 of 67



2 story or less 30%
3—5 story 30%
6—8 story 25%
9—12 story 20%
13 story and over 17%

5.12.11. Height regulations. Houses and duplexes shall not exceed thirty-six (36) feet in height. The height of
multi-dwelling structures approved as a use-on-review by the planning commission shall be determined by the
planning commission. The height of other main buildings shall be unlimited. Accessory buildings shall not exceed
eighteen (18) feet in height; provided, however, the eighteen (18) feet height limitation may be exceeded to
conform the pitch of the accessory building roof to the pitch of the roof of the principal use. In no case shall the
bottom chord of the roof truss or the bottom of the ceiling joist of an accessory building exceed eighteen (18) feet
in height.

5.12.12. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these
regulations, except as provided for in subsection 5.12.09, "Intensity of use," above.

5.12.13. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 1, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-97-7-101, § 1, 8-25-97; Ord. No.
0-97-10-101B, § 1, 11-17-97; Ord. No. 0-96-11-104, § 1, 3-23-98; Ord. No. 0-98-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord.
No. 0-98-12-102, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A),
3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-17-8-
101, & 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19;
Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, § 1, 3-28-22)

5.13. PR Planned Residential Zone.

5.13.01. General description. The regulations established in this zone are intended to provide optional
methods of land development which encourage more imaginative solutions to environmental design problems.
Residential areas thus established would be characterized by a unified building and site development program,
open space for recreation and provision for commercial, religious, educational, and cultural facilities which are
integrated with the total project by unified architectural and open space treatment.

Each planned unit development shall be compatible with the surrounding or adjacent zones. Such
compatibility shall be determined by the planning commission by review of the development plans.

A planned unit development occupying not less than twenty (20) acres may contain commercial uses as
hereinafter provided.

5.13.02. Permitted uses.

A.  The following dwelling units are permitted:
1. Houses and attached houses, not including mobile homes.
2. Duplexes.
3. Multi-dwelling structures and developments.

B.  Accessory uses, buildings and structures.

C.  Commercial uses in a planned unit development occupying not less than twenty (20) acres only.
Commercial uses shall include marinas and boat liveries, provided they meet the requirements of
section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat livery development," of these regulations. One (1) acre of

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 19 of 67



commercial uses may be permitted for each one hundred (100) units in the project provided that
twenty-five (25) percent of the total units proposed shall be ready for occupancy prior to any
commercial building permit being issued. Such commercial uses shall conform with the use and parking
requirements of the Shopping Center Zone as regulated in section 5.34, "Shopping Center Zone (SC),"
of these regulations.

D. Recreation uses. Recreation uses may include a community center, a golf course, a swimming pool, or
parks, playground or other public recreational uses. Any structures involved in such uses, including
lighted tennis courts, and swimming pools, shall have a 35-foot set back from all periphery boundary
lines. The amount of land set aside for usable open space and recreational use shall be not less than
fifteen (15) percent of the gross development area for a planned unit development occupying twenty
(20) or more acres or ten (10) percent for a planned unit development occupying more than eight (8)
but less than twenty (20) acres.

E. Education uses.

F. Community facilities uses such as churches and other religious institutions and nonprofit clubs such as
country clubs, swimming and/or tennis clubs.

G.  Other uses, deemed compatible with the proposed development by the planning commission,
including home occupations subject to section 4.90, "Home occupations."

H.  Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations",
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

l. Yard sales and rummage sales.

J. Bay-Family child care homes and group day-child care homes, if the provider lives on site, subject to the
following conditions:

14. Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking." In addition, parking and
loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children, as well as
safe and convenient ingress and egress to and from the site. The off-street parking and
circulation plan shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering
and public works.

K. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
5.13.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Group day-child care homes, if the provider does not live on site, provided they meet the requirements
of section 4.91, "Requirements for child éay-care centers and group day-child care homes, when
considered as uses permitted on review," and child day-care centers, provided they meet the
requirements of section 4.91, "Requirements for child day-care centers and group eay-child care
homes, when considered as uses permitted on review."

B.  Assisted living facilities.

C.  Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 20 of 67



D.  Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.
E. Public Safety Facilities, subject to the standards of section 4.107.

5.13.04. Area regulations. All buildings and structures shall be set back from street or road right-of-way lines
and from the periphery of the project to comply with the following requirements.

5.13.05. Front yard.
A.  Houses, twenty (20) feet.

B.  All other as determined by the planning commission with the setback being increased in proportion to
structure height, but not less than fifteen (15) feet from a street or road right-of-way.

5.13.06. Periphery boundary. All buildings shall be set back from the periphery boundary not less than thirty-
five (35) feet unless adjacent to A, Agricultural, RA, Low Density Residential, RB, General Residential, RAE, Exclusive
Residential, PR, Planned Residential, OS, Open Space, E, Estates, or TC, Town Center zone districts, where the
planning commission may reduce this set back to not less than fifteen (15) feet.

5.13.07. Side yard.

A.  Asdetermined by the planning commission but not greater than fifteen (15) feet unless this setback is
also the periphery boundary.

B.  Where side yards are reduced to zero (0) the development site plans and restrictive covenants which
provide for the privacy of such units and the right of maintenance of exterior walls facing adjacent
properties shall be submitted to the planning commission.

5.13.08. Rear yard.

A.  Asdetermined by the planning commission but the planning commission may not require a setback
greater than thirty-five (35) feet.

5.13.09. Default minimum setbacks. For situations when there are no building setbacks specified on
approved development plans and when not controlled by a periphery boundary setback, the minimum setbacks for
main structures will be as follows:

Front: Not less than twenty (20) feet.
Side: Not less than five (5) feet.
Rear: Not less than fifteen (15) feet.

Accessory structures, when not controlled by the periphery boundary setback, shall be subject to the
minimum accessory structure setbacks of the RA, Low Density Residential zoning district.

5.13.10. Lot area and size.

A. Developments which subdivide and transfer property with the sale of individual units but which do not
provide common open space controlled and maintained by a public body or a duly established
homeowners association shall provide lot areas which are not less than three thousand (3,000) square
feet in size and which shall average four thousand (4,000) square feet per lot for the entire
development.

B. Developments which subdivide and transfer property with the sale of individual units and which
provide common open space controlled and maintained by a duly established home owners
association in accordance with state law shall be permitted to create lots less than three thousand
(3,000) square feet in size subject to planning commission approval of a site plan, consistent with the
intent as stated in the general description of this section.

5.13.11. Maximum site coverage.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 21 of 67



A.  The maximum area which may be covered by buildings shall be fifty (50) percent of the gross acreage
of the site.

5.13.12. Height regulations.

A.  Houses and duplexes shall not exceed three (3) stories.

B. Height of all others shall be as determined by the planning commission.
5.13.13. Population density.

A.  The appropriate development density of each project shall be determined by the planning commission
but shall not exceed twenty-four (24) dwelling units per acre excluding areas set aside for churches,
schools, or commercial uses.

5.13.14. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these
regulations.

5.13.15. Administrative procedure for a planned residential development.

A.  The planning commission may recommend establishment of a PR, Planned Residential Zone or an
application may be made to the planning commission for rezoning to PR, Planned Residential in
accordance with the regulations set forth in section 6.30, "Amendments," of this resolution.

B. No building permit shall be issued for development of any property within a PR, Planned Residential
Zone until a written application for review and approval of the development plan has been filed with
the planning commission. This same requirement shall apply to multi-dwelling structures and
developments as required under the RB, General Residential Zone, when the density of the
development is twelve (12) dwelling units per acre or greater. Said application shall be made in
conformity with section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these
regulations and shall be accompanied by the following information:

1.  The application must be accompanied by an overall development plan showing the use or uses,
dimensions and locations of proposed streets, parks, playgrounds, school sites, and other open
spaces, with such other pertinent information as may be necessary to determine the
contemplated arrangement or use which makes it desirable to apply regulations and
requirements different from those ordinarily applicable under these regulations.

2.  The proposed development plan shall be prepared by and have the seal of an architect or
engineer duly registered to practice in the state.

3. The planning commission shall review the conformity of the proposed development and shall
recognize principles of good civic design, land use planning and landscape architecture. The
planning commission and county board of commissioners may impose conditions regarding
layout, circulation, and performance of the proposed development and may require that
appropriate deed restrictions be filed.

4.  Applications considered under the planned residential zoning must be filed by the property
owner or their designated representative, by an appropriate governmental agency, or the county
board of commissioners.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 1, 6-21-96; Ord. 0-97-10-101B, § 1, 11-17-97; Ord. No.
0-96-11-104, § 1, 3-23-98; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No.
0-05-6-103, § 1(Exh. A), 7-25-05; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-11-2-101, § 1(Exh. B), 3-28-
11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-17-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, §
1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, §§ 1, 2, 3-28-22)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 22 of 67



5.22. A Agricultural Zone.

5.22.01. General description. This zone provides for a wide range of agricultural and related uses as well as
residential uses with low population densities and other compatible uses which generally require large areas or
open spaces.

5.22.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Houses and duplexes.

B. Churches, schools, libraries and museums.

C. Farming, including all types of agriculture and horticulture; commercial dairies; rabbit, goat and other
animal or fish and minnow raising farms; egg-producing ranches and farms devoted to the hatching,
raising, fattening and butchering of chickens, pigeons, turkeys and other poultry; and hog and other
feeding for commercial purposes.

D. Garage apartments.

E. Mobile homes, but not mobile home parks.

F. Portable sawmills.

G. Roadside stands.

H.  Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

Public utilities, such as transmission lines, substations, railroad lines, bus loading or waiting platforms,

dams, water treatment plants, including water filtration and storage facilities, and other similar public

service uses and buildings, and also such other buildings and structures, as are used by utility and
sanitary districts in the performance of services in which they are authorized to engage.

J. Home occupation subject to section 4.90, "Home occupations."

K. Uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses, including parking of not more than two (2)
commercial vehicles and/or trailers used by the residents in their home occupation.

L. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

M.  Yard sales and rummage sales.

N.  BayFamily child- care homes and group day-child care homes, if the provider lives on site, subject to the
following conditions:

14. Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements." In addition,
parking and loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children,
as well as safe and convenient ingress and egress to and from the site. The off-street parking and
circulation plan shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering
and public works.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 23 of 67



0. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

5.22.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Aircraft landing fields, hangars and equipment.

1.

The general intent of this subsection is to insure the development of aircraft landing fields,
hangars, equipment and local traffic patterns in agricultural zones, which will also afford some
protection to residences in the area and which will hereby promote the public health, safety,
morals and general welfare of the citizens of the county.

a. Before a landing field can be located in an agricultural zone, plans for the run-ways, local
traffic pattern, hangars and other incidental uses of the airport shall be submitted to the
planning commission for approval.

b.  Where airport landing fields and hangars are already established in the county, plans for
the expansion of additional buildings, run-ways, hangars, or where local traffic pattern has
been changed because of expansion, or where additional uses are added such as the sale of
planes, flight schools, or eating establishments (except vending machines) shall be
submitted to the planning commission for approval.

The planning commission shall have the power to authorize the issuance of a permit after the
plans have been approved and certified by the county board of commissioners, and before a
permit can be issued by the director of the code administration and enforcement department for
an addition to an existing operation or the location of a new airport, if the planning commission
finds that the conditions are such that the location or expansion will not:

a. Increase the hazard from planes flying over houses.

b. Diminish value of land and buildings throughout the surrounding area within one thousand
(1,000) feet of the airport.

c. Increase the congestion or traffic hazards in the public streets and highways adjacent to
the airport.

d.  Otherwise impair the public health, safety, comfort, morals and general welfare of the
inhabitants of the county.

Then the planning commission may impose such conditions as will lessen any injury to the
character of the area and shall submit their recommendations to the county board of
commissioners.

Administration. The planning commission shall approve or disapprove the plans, and if approved,
shall submit the plans to the county board of commissioners who shall hold a public hearing
thereon, the time and place of which shall be given by one (1) publication in a newspaper of
general circulation in the county (T.C.A. §§ 13-404 and 13-405). Such notice shall state the place
at which the text and maps as certified by the planning commission may be examined.

B.  Sanitary landfill subject to meeting all requirements set forth in section 4.70, "Sanitary landfills," and
section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

C. Boat liveries, subject to the standards of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat livery
development," of these regulations.

D. Cemeteries.

E. Dog kennels.

F. Golf courses and public, private, and commercial golf driving ranges.

(Supp. No. 21)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

Page 24 of 67



G. Indoor storage.

H.  Livery stables.

l. Lodging and boarding houses.
J. Rifle ranges.

K.  The following uses may be permitted provided that, no such use shall be located nearer than three
hundred (300) feet to a public park, school, church, hospital, sanitarium, residential zone or land
subdivided and restricted to residential uses, except as otherwise provided in section 4.50, "Standards
for mining and mineral extraction," of these regulations.

1. Mining and mineral extraction subject to all requirements set forth in section 4.10,
"Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all zones," and section 4.50,
"Standards for mining and mineral extraction," of these regulations.

L. Demolition landfills, off-site, subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations," subsection 4.80.01.B,
"Demolition landfills," (off-site generated waste).

M.  Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals meeting the following standards:

1. No animals shall be kept outdoors within one hundred (100) feet of any residence other than that
of the owner or user of the property.

2.  The applicant shall demonstrate that the use of the property will not create nuisance conditions
for adjoining properties due to noise, odor, or lack of adequate sanitation.

N.  Group day-child care homes, if the provider does not live on site, provided they meet the requirements
of section 4.91, "Requirements for child eéay-care centers and group day-child care homes, when
considered as uses permitted on review," and child day-care centers, provided they meet the
requirements of section 4.91, "Requirements for child day-care centers and group eay-child care
homes, when considered as uses permitted on review."

O. Public parks and playgrounds and public, private and commercial sports playing fields.

Commercial mulching operation, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through
4.10.19, "Development standards for uses permitted on review," section 4.96, "Standards for the use-
on-review approval of commercial mulching operations," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing
uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

Q. Composting facility, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through 4.10.19,
"Development standards for uses permitted on review," section 4.95, "Standards for the use-on-review
approval of solid waste processing facilities," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses
permitted on review," of these regulations.

R. Marinas, subject to the standards of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat livery development,"
of these regulations.

S. Indoor and outdoor paintball airsoft ranges, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary
Regulations," section 4.97, "Standards for the approval of indoor and outdoor paintball/airsoft ranges."

T.  Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

U.  Storage of school buses under contract to a public or private school system. See article 3, "General
provisions," section 3.54, "Storage of school buses" for facility development criteria.

V. Retail sales of agricultural products grown on site, or acquired elsewhere and then maintained on the
site, subject to the following restrictions:

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 25 of 67



There shall be a minimum lot area of ten (10) acres.

Sales area and related facilities, including parking area, shall not occupy more than four (4) acres
of the property. The sales area shall be subordinate and incidental in scope and size to the
principal agricultural use of the property.

a. "Sales area" is defined as the area where the purchase of agricultural products takes place
and where certain fertilizer, herbicides, fungicides, irrigation equipment and landscape
supplies are stored or displayed.

b. "Related facilities" is defined as non-connected buildings, sheds, coverings or awnings used
for storage of equipment or material that is used in the business. Greenhouses are not
considered related facilities.

The majority of retail inventory must be grown on site. Items for sale must be limited to those
produced through farming as described under subsection 5.22.02 C. above; nursery products
such as trees, shrubs, flowers, bedding plants, and other plant stock; and mulch, compost,
fertilizer, irrigation equipment, herbicides, fungicides and other landscape materials, not
produced on site.

The retail sales area shall be open to the public only between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.

Any proposed signage shall comply with section 3.90.06, "Agricultural Zones", of these
regulations and shall be approved with the site plan.

The retail operation shall be screened from adjoining property by a landscaping screen, provided
that the planning commission finds that the screening is necessary to protect adjoining
properties from visual and noise impacts of the sales area.

The retail sales area, including the building layout, parking area, and signage, shall be designed to
minimize its impact on the character of the surrounding area.

W. Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.

X. Public Safety Facilities, subject to the standards of section 4.107.

5.22.04. Area regulations. All buildings shall be set back from street or road right-of-way lines and lot lines to
comply with the following yard requirements.

A.  Frontyard.

1.

For dwellings the minimum depth of the front yard shall be forty (40) feet and in no case shall an
accessory building, other than accessory farm buildings, be located between the principal
structure and the street.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, shall have a front yard
setback of fifty (50) feet.

B.  Sideyard.

1.

For single-story dwellings, located on interior lots, side yards shall be not less than ten (10) feet in
width.

For unattached buildings of accessory use there shall be a side yard of not less than ten (10) feet
provided, however, that unattached one-story buildings of accessory use shall not be required to
set back more than eight (8) feet from an interior side lot line when all parts of the accessory
building are located more than ninety (90) feet behind the front property line.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, and buildings accessory
to dwellings, shall set back from all side lot lines a distance of not less than thirty-five (35) feet.

(Supp. No. 21)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

Page 26 of 67



C.  Rearyard.

1. For main buildings, other than garage apartments, there shall be a rear yard of not less than
thirty-five (35) feet.

2. A garage apartment may be located in the rear yard of another dwelling, but shall not be located
closer than fifteen (15) feet to the rear lot line. Unattached buildings of accessory use shall not be
located closer to any rear lot line than eight (8) feet.

D. Lot width. No lot shall be less than one hundred (100) feet wide at the building line.
E. Intensity of use.

1. Forresidential development, there shall be a lot area of not less than one (1) acre per dwelling,
as follows:

a. For each house or mobile home, and buildings accessory thereto, there shall be a minimum
lot area of not less than one (1) acre.

b. For each duplex, and buildings accessory thereto, there shall be a minimum lot area of not
less than two (2) acres.

c. For each multi-dwelling development, and buildings accessory thereto, up to two (2)
dwelling units (two (2) houses or a house with a garage apartment) may be located on a
recorded lot that is two (2) acres or more.

2. For uses other than residential development, the lot area shall be adequate to provide the yard
areas required by this section and the off-street parking areas required in section 3.50, "Off-
street parking requirements," of these regulations; provided, however, that the lot area for a
church shall not be less than one (1) acre.

F. Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory buildings shall cover not more than thirty (30) percent of
the lot area.

5.22.05. Height regulations. No main building shall exceed three (3) stories or thirty-five (35) feet in height.
Accessory buildings shall not exceed eighteen (18) feet in height; provided, however, the eighteen (18) feet height
limitation may be exceeded to conform the pitch of the accessory building roof to the pitch of the roof of the
principal use. In no case shall the bottom chord of the roof truss or the bottom of the ceiling joist of an accessory
building exceed eighteen (18) feet in height.

5.22.06. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these
regulations.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-98-12-102, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99;
Ord. No. 0-99-8-101, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, & 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00;
Ord. No. 0-00-11-106, & 1(Exh. A), 1-4-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-102, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, & 1(Exh.
A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-01-1-101, & 1(Exh. A), 4-23-01; Ord. No. 0-01-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-24-01; Ord. No. 0-07-4-
102, § 1(Exh. A), 5-29-07; Ord. No. 0-11-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-23-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12;
Ord. No. 0-13-11-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-27-14; Ord. No. 0-17-7-102, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-17; Ord. No. 0-17-8-101, §
1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.31. CA General Business Zone.

5.31.01. General description. This zone is for general retail business and services but not for manufacturing or
for processing materials other than farm products, except that portable sawmills are allowed.

5.31.02. Uses permitted.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 27 of 67



Houses and duplexes.
Aircraft landing fields, hangars, and equipment.

Armories, undertaking establishments, and assembly halls.

O 0 ® »

Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

E. Canneries.

F. Child care agencies

GE. Churches, schools, libraries and museumes.
HG. Dry cleaning shops, except that such use shall not include fabric dyeing.

IH.  Farming, including all types of agriculture and horticulture, except as noted below under subsection
5.31.03, "Uses permitted on review," subsection I.

M Garage apartments.

K. Hotels, motels, and transient mobile home parks, provided that water and sewage disposal plans meet
the requirements of the county health department.

LK. Lodging and boarding houses.
Mt. Mobile homes, but not mobile home parks.

NM. Motor vehicles and bicycle service and repair shops, skating rinks, dance halls and establishments
selling beer for consumption on the premises.

ON. Offices, banks, theaters, indoor and outdoor, except that in any outdoor theater the screen of such
shall be so erected or located that its face, or that side upon which the motion picture image is
projected, shall not be visible from any state highway, studios, photograph galleries, barber shops,
police and fire stations, service stations, restaurants, cafes and lunch rooms, grocery, clothing or shoe
stores, and other retail business or commercial enterprise which is similar in character and not
injurious to adjacent premises or occupants thereof by the emission of dust, fumes, smoke, odor,
noise, or vibration.

PO. Portable sawmills.

QPR. Retail poultry business, provided that the enterprise is conducted in strict compliance with the
regulations of the health department, and that adjacent premises or the occupants thereof are not
injured by reason of the emission of dust, odors, or noise.

RQ. Roadside stands.

SR. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

TS. Yard sales, rummage sales and flea markets.
UF. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
VY. Indoor paintball ranges.

WA Storage of school buses under contract to a public or private school system. (See article 3,
"Supplementary regulations," section 3.54, "Storage of school buses," for development criteria for
school bus storage facilities.)

XW. Public Safety Facilities.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 28 of 67



YX. Vehicle Repair/Service.
5.31.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals.

BE. Self-service storage facilities.

CB. Commercial mulching operation, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through
4.10.19, "Development standards for uses permitted on review," section 4.96, "Standards for the use-
on-review approval of commercial mulching operations," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing
uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

DE. Composting facility, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through 4.10.19,
"Development standards for uses permitted on review," section 4.95, "Standards for the use-on-review
approval of solid waste processing facilities," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses
permitted on review," of these regulations.

EE.  Marinas and boat liveries, subject to the standards of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat
livery development," of these regulations.

FG. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

GH. Commercial dairies; commercial kennels, rabbit, goat, and other animal or fish and minnow raising
farms; egg producing ranches and farms devoted to the hatching, raising, fattening, and butchering of
chickens, pigeons, turkeys and other poultry; and hog and other livestock feeding for commercial
purposes, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary regulations", section 4.99,
"Requirements for certain agricultural uses, when considered as uses permitted on review in CA,
General Business and CB, Business and Manufacturing Zones."

Hi.  Contractor's storage yard.
14.  Indoor self-service storage facilities.

5.31.04. Storage. Outdoor storage of material and equipment is prohibited unless it is fully screened on all
sides by an opaque screen and is located in the rear of the principal permitted use or structure. This shall not apply
to the display for sale of new or used vehicles in working condition, unless otherwise provided for in these
regulations. These requirements also shall not apply to materials and equipment stored on a construction site
where such materials or equipment are to be used, or to the storage of commercial vehicles.

5.31.05. Height. No building shall exceed forty-five (45) feet or three (3) stories in height.

5.31.06. Lot area. The minimum requirements for every building or portion of a building used as a dwelling
shall be seven thousand five hundred (7,500) square feet for the first household, and five thousand (5,000) square
feet of lot area for each additional household: except that for hotels, motels, and transient mobile home parks, the
minimum lot area shall be one (1) acre and in addition to the seven thousand five hundred (7,500) square feet of
lot area required for the owner or operator there shall be at least one thousand eight hundred (1,800) square feet
of lot area for each sleeping accommodation provided for transient guests of the hotel, motel or transient mobile
home park, and the building area of such hotel, motel or transient mobile home park shall be not greater than fifty
(50) percent of the lot area.

5.31.07. Setback. No building shall be located closer than twenty (20) feet to the road line; no building or
portion of a building used as a dwelling shall be located closer than twenty-five (25) feet to the road line; and no
hotel or tourist court shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to the road line.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 29 of 67



5.31.08. Side yards. There shall be a side yard on each side of every building or portion of a building used as a
dwelling, which side yard shall have a minimum width of five (5) feet, increased by two (2) feet for each story
above the first story.

5.31.09. Rear yard. There shall be a rear yard on every lot, which rear yard shall have a minimum depth of
sixteen (16) feet for a one-story building, twenty (20) feet for a two-story building, and twenty-four (24) feet for a
three-story building. If the building is designed for residential purposes only, the provisions of the RA, Low Density
Residential Zone shall apply.

5.31.10. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50.

(Ord. No. 0-95-3-102, § 1, 4-24-95; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No.
0-98-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-16-98; Ord. No. 0-99-8-101, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No.
0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00; Ord. No. 0-00-11-106, § 1(Exh. A), 1-4-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-
01; Ord. No. 0-01-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 4-23-01; Ord. No. 0-02-11-101, § 1(Exh. A), 12-16-02; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, §
1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-09-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-10; Ord. No. 0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No.
0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-13-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-23-13; Ord. No. O-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-
20-17; Ord. No. O-18-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-19-18; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-20-1-
101, § 1(Exh. A), 2-24-20)

5.32. CB Business and Manufacturing Zone.

5.32.01. General description. This zone provides for a wide range of business and manufacturing uses. The
nature of such businesses is to attract large volumes of automobile and truck traffic and to have adverse effects on
surrounding properties. Hence, they are not properly associated with, nor compatible with residential or
institutional uses or with other uses that require an environment free of noise, odors and congestion. Uses
permitted in the CB, Business and Manufacturing Zone are intensive users of roads, sewers and other public
facilities.

5.32.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Aircraft landing fields, hangars, and equipment.

B Amusement resorts.

C.  Armories, undertaking establishments, and assembly halls.
D

Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this

resolution.
E. Book bindery.
F. Bottling or packaging works.

G.  Building contractors', building, electrical, and plumbing supply establishments.
H Canneries.

l. Child care agencies

M. Churches, schools, libraries, and museums.

K} Creamery.

LK. Dry cleaning shops, except that such use shall not include fabric dyeing.
ML. Electrical appliances and equipment assembly.

NM. Electronic equipment assembly and manufacturing.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 30 of 67



ON. Engraving and/or printing plant.

PS. Farming, including all types of agriculture and horticulture, except as noted below under subsection
5.32.03, "Uses permitted on review," subsection L.

QPR. Furniture manufacturing.
RQ. Garage apartments.

SR. Hotels, motels, and transient mobile home parks, provided that water and sewage disposal plans meet
the requirements of the county health department.

TS. Ice manufacture or storage of not more than twenty (20) tons of ice.

UF. Instrument and meter manufacturing.

VY. Laundry and dry cleaning establishments.

WA\, Leather goods fabrication.

XW.  Lodging and boarding houses.

YX%. Lumber yards for sale, storage or distribution, but not manufacturing.

Z¥. (Deleted May 5, 1970.)

AAZ. Monument engraving and sales, but no stone cutting, grinding or polishing.

BBAA. Motor vehicles and bicycle service and repair shops, skating rinks, dance halls and establishments
selling beer for consumption on the premises.

CCBB. Offices, banks, theaters, indoor and outdoor except that in any outdoor theater the screen of
such shall be so erected or located that its face, or that side upon which the motion picture image is
projected, shall not be visible from any state highway, studios, photograph galleries, barber shops,
police and fire stations, service stations, restaurants, cafes and lunch rooms, grocery, clothing or shoe
stores, and other retail business or commercial enterprise which is similar in character and not
injurious to adjacent premises or occupants thereof by the emission of dust, fumes, smoke, odor,
noise, or vibration.

DDee€. Optical goods manufacturing.

EEDBD. Paper products fabrication.

FFEE. Produce markets.

GGFF. Portable sawmills.

HHGG. Public utility service yard or electrical receiving or transforming station.

IHH. Retail poultry business, provided that the enterprise is conducted in strict compliance with the
regulations of the Health Department, and that adjacent premises or the occupants thereof are not
injured by reason of the emission of dust, odors, or noise.

JJH.  Roadside stands.
KKH. Sporting goods manufacturing.

LLKK. The manufacturing, compounding, processing, packaging and treatment of bakery goods, candy, and
food products.

MMLE. Wholesale, warehousing, or distribution enterprise.

NNMM.  Any other retail, wholesale, or light industrial use similar in nature to those described.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 31 of 67



OONN. Truck, tractor, and heavy equipment sales, but not motor freight terminals.

PPOO. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary
regulations," subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

QQRPP. Yard sales, rummage sales and flea market.
RRQQ. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

SSRR. Commercial mulching operation, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
section 4.96, "Standards for the use on review approval of commercial mulching operations."

TTSS. Indoor paintball ranges.

UUFF. Storage of school buses under contract to a public or private school system. See article 3,
"Supplementary regulations," section 3.54, "Storage of school buses," for development criteria for
school bus storage facilities.

VVUHY. Contractor's storage yard.
WWAAL Public Safety Facilities.
XXM, Vehicle Repair/Service.
5.32.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Sanitary landfill subject to meeting all requirements set forth in sections 4.70, "Sanitary landfills," and
6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

B.  The following uses may be permitted, provided that, no such use shall be located nearer than three
hundred (300) feet to a public park, school, church, hospital, sanitarium, residential zone or land
subdivided and restricted to residential uses, except as otherwise provided in sections 4.10,
"Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all zones," and 4.50, "Standards for
mining and mineral extraction," of these regulations.

1. Mining and mineral extraction subject to all requirements set forth in sections 4.10,
"Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all zones," and 4.50,
"Standards for mining and mineral extraction," of these regulations.

C. Demolition landfills, off-site, subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations," subsection 4.80.01.B,
"Demolition landfills," (off-site generated waste).

D.  Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals.

EF. Self-service storage facilities.

FG. Composting facility, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through 4.10.19,
"Development standards for uses permitted on review", section 4.95, "Standards for the use-on-review
approval of solid waste processing facilities," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses
permitted on review," of these regulations.

GH. Marinas and boat liveries subject to the requirements set forth in section 4.30, "Standards for marina
and boat livery development," of these regulations.

Hi.  Outdoor paintball ranges, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
section 4.97, "Standards for the approval of indoor and outdoor paintball ranges."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 32 of 67



14, Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Jk.  Commercial dairies; commercial kennels, rabbit, goat, and other animal or fish and minnow raising
farms; egg producing ranches and farms devoted to the hatching, raising, fattening, and butchering of
chickens, pigeons, turkeys and other poultry; and hog and other livestock feeding for commercial
purposes, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary regulations," section 4.99,
"Requirements for certain agricultural uses, when considered as uses permitted on review in CA,
General Business Zones, and CB, Business and Manufacturing Zones."

KE.  Indoor self-service storage facilities.

5.32.04. Height. No building may be built to a height exceeding twice the width of the road upon which the
building abuts; buildings may exceed this height limit providing the portion of the building higher than twice the
width of the road is set back from every road and lot line one (1) foot for each three (3) feet of height in excess of
twice the road width.

5.32.05. Lot area. Requirements for hotels, motels, and transient mobile home parks: The minimum lot area
shall be one (1) acre.

5.32.06. Setback. No building shall be located closer than twenty (20) feet to the road line; no building or
portion of a building used as a dwelling shall be located closer than twenty-five (25) feet to the road line; and no
hotel or tourist court shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to the road line.

5.32.07. Side yards. There shall be a side yard on each side of every building or portion of a building used as a
dwelling, which side yard shall have a minimum width of five (5) feet, increased by two (2) feet for each story
above the first story.

5.32.08. Rear yard. There shall be a rear yard on every lot, which rear yard shall have a minimum depth of
sixteen (16) feet for a one-story building, twenty (20) feet for a two-story building, and twenty-four (24) feet for a
three-story building.

5.32.09. Off-street parking. As regulated by section 3.50.

(Ord. No. 0-96-1-102, § 1, 2-26-96; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No.
0-98-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-16-98; Ord. No. 0-99-8-101, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No.
0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00; Ord. No. 0-00-11-106, § 1(Exh. A), 1-4-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-
01; Ord. No. 0-01-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 4-23-01; Ord. No. 0-02-11-101, § 1(Exh. A), 12-16-02; Ord. No. 0-09-12-101, §
1(Exh. A), 1-25-10; Ord. No. 0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No.
0-13-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. O-18-10-102, § 1(Exh. A),
11-19-18; Ord. No. 0-19-1-102, § 1(Exh. A), 2-25-19; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. O-20-1-
101, § 1(Exh. A), 2-24-20)

5.33. PC Planned Commercial Zone.

5.33.01. General description. The PC, Planned Commercial Zone, is intended for a unified grouping of
commercial buildings which do not require or desire a central business district location. It is the objective of this
zone to achieve the highest quality site design, building arrangement, landscaping and traffic circulation patterns
possible.

5.33.02. Uses permitted. It is not the intent of this zone to restrict potential development by limiting uses. In

2 and-g 2 o when-consideredasusespermitted-onreview" Marinas and boat liveries
shall also be permitted, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 33 of 67



livery development," of these regulations. As per the requirements of 4.107, "Standards for use-on-review
approval of public safety facilities." Since some permitted uses may be incompatible with others the developer of a
planned commercial complex shall provide the planning commission with a list of uses permitted in the
development which shall be compatible with each other and neighboring uses as authorized under restrictive
covenants. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste), shall also be permitted. Wireless
communications facilities shall be a permitted use, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

5.33.03. Uses permitted on review. (None)

5.33.04. Appropriate size. The intent of the PC, Planned Commercial Zone is to provide the best design and
coordinated arrangement of commercial buildings. It is not likely therefore, that a planned commercial
development would contain less than twenty (20) acres. However, if in the opinion of the planning commission the
functional design of a building grouping meets the intent of these regulations the commission may approve a
planned commercial development of less than twenty (20) acres.

5.33.05. Periphery boundary. All buildings shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from any peripheral
boundary of the project, or any public street or road existing prior to the PC, Planned Commercial Zone.

5.33.06. Lot coverage. Any project divided into individual lots or building sites shall specify yard and lot
coverage requirements in its protective covenants provided however, that no buildings shall cover more than fifty
(50) percent of its lot at its ultimate expansion potential.

5.33.07. Height. In general, height shall be limited to forty-five (45) feet. However, to permit the greatest
flexibility of design the planning commission may approve greater heights provided such height is an integral part
of the building grouping and enhances the design of the entire project.

5.33.08. Parking and loading.

A.  Parking and loading requirements shall be specified in the restrictive covenants governing the
development but in no case may they be less than the requirements specified in section 3.50, "Off-
street parking requirements," of these regulations.

B. No parking shall be permitted in the front yard of any structure constructed on an individual lot unless
such parking area is landscaped with trees, shrubs, and grass islands to prevent the appearance of an
open parking lot.

5.33.09. Storage. Outdoor storage shall be prohibited unless fully screened on all sides by an opaque
ornamental screen.

5.33.10. Landscaping.

A.  Alandscape plan for the entire development shall be prepared and presented to the planning
commission for approval. This plan shall show the type and location of plantings, locate and show the
purpose of visual screens and establish a means to insure the accomplishment of the landscape plan.

B.  The landscaping plan shall include but not be limited to approaches to building entrances, appropriate
visual screens and any parking areas.

5.33.11. Access. Access to the planned commercial complex shall be designed to minimize conflicts in traffic.
Insofar as possible all lots shall be designed to front on streets within the commercial development. Lots should
not have direct access to existing streets, roads, or highways, except as may otherwise be approved by the
planning commission.

5.33.12. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.33.13. Administration.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 34 of 67



A development plan for the planned commercial complex shall be submitted to the planning
commission for approval as a use permitted on review.

Protective covenants. All development plans shall include protective covenants for the planned
commercial development. These covenants shall indicate the use and design of structures in the
planned complex as well as establishing measures to protect occupants of the development from
incompatible uses and structures. These covenants shall include but not be limited to:

1. A statement of the purpose and function of the planned complex.

2.  Astatement identifying the type of operations permitted listing uses permitted or performance
standards required in the development. If performance standards are proposed as the criteria, a
firm means of enforcing such standards must be included in the covenants.

3.  Alist of uses prohibited in the commercial park, or a list of the type of uses or operations which
would generally be considered to be incompatible with the purpose and function of the proposed
development.

4, Site requirements, including minimum lot size, maximum site coverage and any front, side and
rear yard requirements for the development.

5.  Parking and loading requirements of the development insuring a standard at least equal to the
minimum specified in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these regulations.

6. Restrictions on outdoor storage.
7. Landscaping requirements.

8. Building construction and design standards which establish specific building standards, either by
construction material or performance standards, and establish criteria as well as a means of
enforcing the requirements. An architect or engineer for the development or an architectural
review board should approve such designs and construction plans.

9.  Any other consideration which may be established to better insure that the development is in
accordance with the stated purpose and intent of the development.

The development plan shall show all streets and suggested lots. The plan shall meet all the
requirements of the minimum regulations for the subdivision and development of land in the county.
All streets in any planned commercial development shall have as a minimum standard, the standards
for minor collectors.

A revised development plan shall be submitted to the planning commission for approval of any
changes, alterations, amendments, or extensions to the development plan. Approval of such changes
may be granted if, in the opinion of the planning commission, the requested changes would be in
keeping with the intent and provisions of this resolution.

No building permit shall be issued for construction of any building on the land until the planning
commission has approved the development plan and a statement of approval has been affixed.

The building permit shall be revoked if construction of any part, or phase, of the development is not in
compliance with the approved plans.

(Ord. No. 0-96-1-102, § 1, 1-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No.
0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-13-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-
23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, & 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, & 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-22-2-
101, § 1, 3-28-22)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 35 of 67



5.34. SC Shopping Center Zone.

5.34.01. General description. The general intent of this section is to encourage and insure the development
of unified retail shopping centers which will promote the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare for the
citizens of the county. The purposes of these subsections are:

A.

To promote safe and efficient movement of traffic within the site of the shopping center and in
connection with adjacent access streets.

To lessen the adverse effects which such shopping centers might have on the uses of adjacent land.

To prohibit the development of uses of a heavy repair, wholesaling, industrial, and residential character

in SC, Shopping Center Zones.

5.34.02. Uses permitted. The list below specifies the uses which shall be permitted in SC, Shopping Center
Zones. In addition to these uses, the planning commission may recommend the inclusion of other uses of a related

nature, provided that the intent of this resolution is maintained. Uses permitted:

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"

subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

A.  Appliance, radio and television store.
B Art supply store.
C. Bakery (retail).
D Bank.
E. Barber shop.
F. Camera store.
G. Candy store.
H.  Child care agencies
IH#.  Clinic (not veterinary).
il Clothing and clothing accessory store.
Ki.  Delicatessen.
LK.
M¢E.  Restaurants.
NM. Department store.
ON. Drug store.
PS. Film exchange.
QP. Five and ten cent store.
RQ. Radio or television repair shop.
SR.  Shoe repair shop.
TS. Flower shop.
UF. Furniture store.
VY. Gift shop.
WM. Grocery store.
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 36 of 67

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]



XW. Hardware store.
YX. Hobby store.
Z¥. Ice cream parlor.

AAZ. Jewelry store.

BBAA. Laundry and dry cleaning establishments.
CCBB. Meat market.

DDee€. Music store.

EEBB. Notion or variety store.

FFEE. Photographic studio.

)

GFF. Business and professional offices.

T

HGG. Shoe store.

|IHH. Sporting goods store.
JJH. Stationery store.
KKH. Toy store.

LLKK. Gasoline service station provided that such gasoline service station is designed as an integral part of
the shopping center building group.

MMLE. Yard sales and rummage sales.
NNMM.  Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
OONN. Public Safety Facilities.

5.34.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Adult-oriented establishments subject to meeting all requirements of section 4.60, "Adult-oriented
establishments," of this resolution.

BE. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

5.34.04. Height. No building shall exceed three (3) stories or forty (40) feet in height.
5.34.05. Yards.

A.  Where the SC, Shopping Center Zone abuts a lot which is residential in zoning classification no building
shall be constructed less than fifty (50) feet from any lot line.

Where the SC, Shopping Center Zone abuts any street right-of-way buildings shall be constructed not
less than sixty (60) feet from such right-of-way.

B. Buildings may be constructed less than fifty (50) feet from any lot line:
1. Where the SC, Shopping Center Zone abuts a lot which is nonresidential in zoning classification.

2. Where the SC, Shopping Center Zone abuts any street right-of-way when parking is not to be
provided between the right-of-way of such street and buildings, in which case there shall be a
minimum setback requirement of twenty (20) feet.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 37 of 67



C.  Onthesides of a SC, Shopping Center Zone facing streets the development plan shall include planted
parkways of not less than ten (10) feet in width. The presence of these parkways will aid in the
integration of shopping centers into adjacent areas, and they will aid in keeping vehicular entrance and
exit points to a minimum.

D. Onthe sides of SC, Shopping Center Zones facing residential properties adequate screening shall be
provided whereby the noise, light, and possible unsightliness of the developed center will be held to a
minimum. A plan for screening shall be included as a part of the development plan for the shopping
center.

5.34.06. Divided zones. For the purpose of calculating the zone width, lot dimensions, floor area ratios,
percentage of lot covered by building, yard requirements and parking ratios, a single shopping center cannot lie on
two (2) sides of a major public street. Any area designated as being zoned a SC, Shopping Center Zone and lying on
both sides of a public street shall be deemed to be two (2) SC, Shopping Center Zones, and all minimum
requirements shall be met by buildings on each side of said public street as separate zones. This requirement is
included to prevent large movement of shoppers across a major street from parking areas to shopping areas.

5.34.07. Health department approval. The development plan shall not be approved until the planning
commission has a statement from the health department that the disposal system for sewage abides by standards
of the health department.

5.34.08. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.34.09. Off-street parking. As regulated by section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements."
5.34.10. Administration.

A.  Adevelopment plan of the shopping center shall be submitted to the planning commission for approval
as a use permitted on review.

B.  Arevised development plan shall be submitted to the planning commission for approval of any
changes, alterations, amendments, or extensions to the development plan. Approval of such changes
may be granted if, in the opinion of the planning commission, the requested changes would be in
keeping with the intent and provisions of this resolution.

C.  No building permit shall be issued for construction of any building on the land until the planning
commission has approved the development plan and a statement of approval has been affixed.

D. The building permit shall be revoked if construction of any part, or phase, of the development is not in
compliance with the approved plans.

E. Application for review and approval of WCF shall be subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

(Ord. No. 0-96-1-102, § 1, 1-26-96; Ord. No. 0-96-7-101, § 1, 8-26-96; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, & 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01;
Ord. No. 0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-13-8-103, §
1(Exh. A), 9-23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No.
0-22-2-101, § 1, 3-28-22)

5.36. T Transition Zone.

5.36.01. Intent. The general intent of this section is to insure the development of land adjacent to residential
areas into a T, Transition Zone, between other types of commercial and residential classifications and which will
promote the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the citizens of the county. The purpose of this
section is:

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 38 of 67



A.

B.

To allow types of commercial use which are not major traffic generators, and would not open the area
to objectionable types of commercial uses.

To have a T, Transition Zone, that will be compatible with adjacent residential areas.

5.36.02. Uses permitted. The list below specifies the uses which shall be permitted in a T, Transition Zone. In
addition to these uses the planning commission may recommend the inclusion of other uses of a related nature,
provided the intent of this resolution is maintained. Uses permitted:

A.
B.
C.

Apartments.
Accessory buildings.

Child care agencies

DE.
ED.
FE.
GF.

Churches, schools, libraries, and museums.
Garage apartments.
Gardening and horticulture, but not on a commercial basis.

Public golf courses, public parks and playgrounds; swimming pools, and other associated recreational
facilities, none of which shall be used for commercial purposes.

Hospitals and sanitariums, but not for contagious diseases, nor for the care of epileptics or drug or
alcoholic patients, nor for the care of the insane or feeble minded.

Nurseries and greenhouses for the propagating and cultivating of plants, but not on a commercial
basis.

Public utilities, such as transmission lines, substations, railroad lines, bus loading or waiting platforms,
dams, water treatment plants, including water filtration and storage facilities, and other similar public
service uses and buildings, and also such other buildings and structures, as are used by utility and
sanitary districts in the performing of the services in which they are authorized to engage.

Houses and duplexes.
Tourist homes (as defined in article 2).

Clinics, professional buildings, general business offices, institutions of an educational or a philanthropic
nature. Private clubs, fraternities, sororities, excepting those the chief activity of which is a service
customarily carried on as a business. Accessory uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses
when located in the same building.

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations",
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.
Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

Public Safety Facilities.

5.36.03. Uses permitted on review.

AB. Private golf courses, swimming clubs, country clubs, and tennis clubs.
BE. Assisted living facilities.
Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 39 of 67



CB. Marinas and boat liveries, subject to the standards of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat
livery development," of these regulations.

DE. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

EF. Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.
FG. Recovery housing.

5.36.04. Height. No building or structure shall exceed forty-five (45) feet, except that the planning
commission may approve a greater height during plan review where the following conditions are met:

A.  The petitioner can show that such increase in height is compatible with surrounding development and
is clearly within the intent of this section.

B. Required depth of all yards is increased one (1) foot for each foot of building height permitted in excess
of forty-five (45) feet. No variance to this requirement shall be permitted.

5.36.05. Lot area. Main and accessory buildings shall not occupy more than thirty (30) percent of the lot
area.

5.36.06. Front yards. No building shall be located closer than thirty-five (35) feet to the front property line
and no tourist court shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to the front property line except the office of the
tourist court may be located within thirty-five (35) feet, and no accessory buildings shall be located within or so as
to project into the front yard. Planted parkways, with curbs, shall be provided between driveways in front of
buildings and the street so that they will aid in keeping vehicular entrance and exit points to a minimum.

5.36.07. Side and rear yards. The side and rear yards of every main building shall have a minimum width of
thirty (30) feet when adjoining a residentially zoned district, and fifteen (15) feet when adjoining a commercial
zone. On corner lots the building shall be located in accordance with article 3, "General provisions," subsection
3.30.01.

5.36.08. Health department approval. The development shall not be approved until the planning commission
has a statement from the health department that the disposal system for sewage abides by standards of the health
department.

5.36.09. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.36.10. Parking. As regulated by section 3.50.
5.36.11. Administration.

A.  The developer of any property in a T, Transition Zone shall submit a development plan to the planning
commission for approval as a use permitted on review.

B.  Arevised development plan shall be submitted to the planning commission for approval of any
changes, alterations, amendments or extension of the development plan. Approval of such changes
may be granted if, in the opinion of the planning commission, the requested changes would be in
keeping with the intent and provisions of this resolution.

C. No building permit shall be issued for construction of any building on the land until the planning
commission has approved the development plan and a statement of approval has been affixed.

D. The building permit shall be revoked if construction of any part, or phase, of the development is not in
compliance with the approved plans.

(Ord. No. 0-96-7-101, § 1, 8-26-96; Ord. No. 0-97-10-101B, § 1, 11-17-97; Ord. No. 0-97-7-101, § 1, 8-25-97; Ord.
No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 40 of 67



06; Ord. No. 0-11-1-103, § 1(Exh. A), 2-28-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-8-101, §
1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-8-102, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No.
0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, § 1, 3-28-22)

5.37. CR Rural Commercial Zone.

5.37.01. General description. This commercial zoning district provides the opportunity to locate limited retail
and service uses in a manner convenient to outlying rural areas. It is intended to provide for the recurring shopping
and personal service needs of nearby rural residential areas. This zoning should be placed on properties that are
located at or near intersections of arterial and/or collector streets in order to maximize accessibility from
surrounding areas. The range of permitted uses is limited to those which are generally patronized on a frequent
basis by area residents. Development performance standards are included to maximize compatibility between
commercial uses and surrounding rural areas, and to maintain the rural character of these areas.

5.37.02. Uses permitted. Only the following uses shall be permitted by right in the CR, Rural Commercial,
zoning district. Where North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes are indicated after permitted
uses, the businesses listed under that classification in the United States Office of Management and Budget North
American Industry Classification Manual, 1997 edition, shall be permitted providing all other requirements of this
ordinance are fulfilled. All uses permitted are subject to article 6, "Administration, enforcement and
interpretation," section 6.70, "Administrative site plan review":

A. Retail sales limited to:

1. Farm equipment and supplies.

2. Plant nurseries (NAICS 444220).

3. Soils and mulch.

4, Grocery stores (NAICS 4451).

5. Household supplies.

6.  Clothing/shoes/jewelry (NAICS 448).

7.  Garden and lawn supplies (NAICS 4442).

8. Fueling service stations with or without convenience stores (NAICS 447110).

9. Drugs and medicine (NAICS 446110).

10. Small appliance sales (NAICS 44311) and repair (NAICS 811412).

11. Baked goods (NAICS 445291).

12. Specialty foods (NAICS 4452).

13. Newsstands/bookstores (NAICS 45121).

14. Produce (NAICS 445230) (including roadside produce stands).

15. Florists (NAICS 453110).

16. Gift shops (NAICS 453220).

17. Arts/crafts (NAICS 453920).

18. Antiques.

19. Sporting goods (NAICS 451110).

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 41 of 67



20. Hardware (NAICS 44413).
21. Fabric/upholstery shops.
22. Video sales and rentals (NAICS 532230).
B. Business and personal services limited to:
Barber and beauty shops (NAICS 8121).
Tailor/shoe repair (NAICS 811430).
Laundry and dry cleaning (drop-off/pick-up stations only).
Banks and similar institutions (NAICS 522).
Laundromats limited to self-service facilities (NAICS 812310).
Copying services (NAICS 56143).
Restaurants (NAICS 722).

Service and repair of farm equipment.

W O N Uk~ w N e

Equipment rental (excluding vehicles intended for highway use) (NAICS 532).

,_\
©

Instructional schools (limited to dancing, music, arts, crafts, or sports) (NAICS 611610, 611620).

[y
[y

Exercise/fitness centers (NAICS 713940).
12. Child care agencies (NAICS 624410).

C. Business and professional offices, which provide direct services to customers limited to:
Travel agencies (NAICS 561510).

Outpatient medical (NAICS 621).

Dental (NAICS 6212).

Real estate (NAICS 531).

Finance and accounting (NAICS 523, 5412).

Architect/engineering (NAICS 5413).

Insurance (NAICS 524).

Legal services (NAICS 5411).

W O N o v A~ W N e

Local, state and federal government offices and programs.
D. Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals (NAICS 541940).

E.  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above uses such as: parking facilities subject
to section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," and signs subject to section 3.90, "Signs, billboards,
and other advertising structures."

F. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

G. Residential uses may be located on the second floor and above of a business. Dwellings may also be
located on the same site only if an accessory use to the primary use for a business.

H.  Uses similar to the uses listed as "uses permitted" may be considered for appropriateness by the
planning commission under the use determination public hearing process. If the requested use is
approved, it may be located in this zoning district.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 42 of 67



J.

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Public Safety Facilities.

5.37.03. Uses permitted on review.

GH.

H4.

Adult day care facilities, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Standards for adult day
care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Any use listed under permitted uses above, which includes drive-through or drive-in facilities.
Outdoor storage of materials, product, equipment, etc.

Self-service storage facilities, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.93, "Standards for self-
service storage facilities."

Self-service car wash facilities (non-automated) (NAICS 811192).
Dog kennels/animal boarding facilities.
Contractor's storage yard.

Indoor self-service storage facilities.

5.37.04. Building size regulations.

A.
B.

No building shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet in height.

No individual building or commercial establishment shall have a floor area exceeding twenty thousand
(20,000) square feet.

5.37.05. Lot area. The building lot must be a minimum of one (1) acre and a maximum of four (4) acres in

size.

5.37.06. Front yard setbacks and landscaping requirements. All buildings shall be set back from the street
right-of-way lines not less than thirty-five (35) feet. Parking may not be located within the front setback area. The
required front yard must contain a minimum of one (1) native shade tree, capable of reaching fifty (50) feet in
height at maturity, per every fifty (50) feet or portion thereof of linear street frontage. The native shade trees must
be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of planting. One (1) ornamental tree is required per every
twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of linear street frontage, to be placed between and among the shade trees,
with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

5.37.07. Side yard setbacks and landscaping requirements.

A.

Where the side yard is adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be not
less than twenty-five (25) feet. The side yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) evergreen
tree per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of side yard property depth outside of required
front and rear yards. The evergreen trees must be spaced a minimum of thirty (30) feet apart at the
time of planting. Shrubs and/or ground cover plantings must cover the remainder of the side yard,
except for the space within ten (10) feet from the base of the evergreen trees.

Where the side yard is not adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be
not less than ten (10) feet. The side yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) native shade
tree per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of side yard property depth outside of required front
and rear yards. The native shade trees must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of
planting. One (1) ornamental tree is required per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of side

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 43 of 67



yard property depth (portion outside of required front and rear yards), to be placed between and
among the shade trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

C. Parking may not be located in the required side yard.
5.37.08. Rear yard setbacks and landscaping requirements.

A.  Where the rear yard is adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be not
less than thirty-five (35) feet. The required rear yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1)
evergreen tree per every twenty-five (25) linear feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length.
The evergreen trees must be spaced a minimum of thirty (30) feet apart at the time of planting. Shrubs
and/or ground cover plantings must cover the remainder of the rear yard, except for within ten (10)
feet from the base of the evergreen trees.

B.  Where the rear yard is not adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be
not less than ten (10) feet. The rear yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) native shade
tree per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length. The native shade trees
must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of planting. One (1) ornamental tree is
required per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length, to be placed
between and among the shade trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

C. Parking may not be located in the required rear yard.
5.37.09. Additional landscaping and site development standards.
A.  Parking areas:

1.  All parking lots of twenty (20) or more spaces shall contain within the interior of the parking lot
not less than one (1) native shade tree, capable of reaching fifty (50) feet in height at maturity for
every ten (10) spaces or fraction thereof. In no case shall more than ten (10) parking spaces be
located in a row without a planting island a minimum of nine (9) feet in width containing at least
one (1) native shade tree surrounded by shrubs and groundcovers.

2. Where parking abuts the building, there must be a sidewalk of at least five (5) feet in width
between the parking spaces and the building.

3.  Atthe end of any parking row, there must be a terminal planting island a minimum of five (5) feet
in width containing at least one (1) native shade tree surrounded by shrubs and groundcovers.

4. At least fifty (50) percent of the length of the exterior walls of the building must have a
landscaping strip of at least four (4) feet in width.

B.  Any pre-existing, healthy, applicable landscaping on a proposed site may be counted toward meeting
any of the landscaping requirements of this zoning district.

5.37.10. Off-street parking. As regulated in article 3, "General provisions," section 3.50, "Off-street parking
requirements," of this resolution.

5.37.11. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.37.12. Health department approval. The development shall not be approved until the county department
of code administration has been notified in writing by the county health department that the disposal system for
sewage abides by all applicable standards.

5.37.13. Utilities. All utility transmission lines serving individual uses shall be placed underground.

5.37.14. Site lighting. Lighting of all types shall be directed away from all residential or agricultural zones and
any public rights-of-way.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 44 of 67



5.37.15. Administration. For uses listed as permitted uses within the CR, Rural Commercial zoning district, no
building or structure shall be erected or altered until and unless a plan for such development has been filed with
and approved by the county department of code administration. The plan shall be filed in accordance with the
requirements of article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.70, "Administrative site plan
review," of this zoning ordinance.

(Ord. No. 0-03-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-24-03; Ord. No. 0-09-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-10; Ord. No. 0-11-4-101, §
1(Exh. A), 5-23-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord.
No. 0-18-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-19-18; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.38. CN Neighborhood Commercial Zone.

5.38.01. General description. This commercial zoning district provides the opportunity to locate limited retail
and service uses in a manner convenient to and yet not disruptive to established residential neighborhoods. It is
intended to provide for the recurring shopping and personal service needs of nearby residential areas.
Development should be compatible with the character of the adjacent neighborhood. This zoning should generally
be placed at street intersections that include either a collector or arterial street, as close to the edge of the
neighborhood as possible. The range of permitted uses is limited to those that are generally patronized on a
frequent basis by neighborhood residents. Development performance standards are provided to maximize
compatibility between commercial uses and adjacent residential uses.

5.38.02. Uses permitted. Only the following uses shall be permitted by right in the CN, Neighborhood
Commercial, zoning district. Where North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes are indicated
after permitted uses, the businesses listed under that classification in the United States Office of Management and
Budget North American Industry Classification Manual, 1997 edition, shall be permitted providing all other
requirements of this ordinance are fulfilled. All uses permitted are subject to article 6, "Administration,
enforcement and interpretation," section 6.70, "Administrative site plan review."

A.  Retail sales limited to:

Grocery stores (NAICS 4451).

Household supplies.

Clothing, shoes and jewelry (NAICS 448).

Garden and lawn supplies (NAICS 4442).

Drugs and medicine (NAICS 446110).

Small appliance sales (NAICS 44311) and repair (NAICS 811412).
Baked goods (NAICS 445291).

Delicatessen goods.

W O N o v A~ wNe

Newsstands/bookstores (NAICS 45121).

H
©

Florists (NAICS 453110).

[y
[y

Gift shops (NAICS 453220).

[EnY
N

Arts/crafts (NAICS 453920).

[EEY
w

Antiques.

,_.
E

Hardware (NAICS 44413).

H
o

Fabric/upholstery shops.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 45 of 67



J.

16. Video sales and rentals (NAICS 532230).

Business and personal services limited to:

Barber and beauty shops (NAICS 8121).

Tailor/shoe repair (NAICS 811430).

Laundry and dry cleaning drop-off/pick-up stations only.
Banks and similar institutions (NAICS 522).

Laundromats limited to self-service facilities (NAICS 812310).
Copying services (NAICS 56143).

Equipment rental (excluding vehicles for highway use) (NAICS 532).

© N o U kA W NoR

Child care agencies

Business and professional offices, which provide direct services to customers limited to:
Travel agencies (NAICS 561510).

Outpatient medical (NAICS 621).

Dental (NAICS 6212).

Real estate (NAICS 531).

Finance and accounting (NAICS 523, 5412).

Architect/engineering (NAICS 5413).

Insurance (NAICS 524).

Legal services (NAICS 5411).

W O N U A~ w N Re

Local, state and federal government offices and programs.
Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals, with no boarding of animals (NAICS 541940).

Accessory uses to the principal use such as: parking facilities subject to section 3.50, "Off-street parking
requirements," indoor storage areas, signs subject to section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other
advertising structures."

Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

Residential uses may be located on the second floor and above of a business. Dwellings may also be
located on the same site only if an accessory use to the primary use for a business.

Uses similar to the uses listed as "uses permitted" may be considered for appropriateness by the
planning commission under the use determination public hearing process. If the requested use is
approved, it may be located in this zoning district.

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations",
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Public Safety Facilities.

5.38.03. Uses permitted on review.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 46 of 67



AB. Adult day care facilities, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

BE. Restaurants (NAICS 722).

CB. Fueling service stations with or without convenience stores (NAICS 447110).

DE. Any permitted use listed above, which includes drive-through or drive-in facilities.
EF. Outdoor storage of materials, products, or equipment.

FG. Self-service storage facilities, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.106, standards for the
use-on-review approval of self-service storage facilities in the CN zoning district.

GH. Vehicle Repair/Service, provided the use meets the requirements of section 4.106, standards for the
use-on-review approval of vehicle repair/service in the CN Neighborhood Commercial Zone.

5.38.04. Building size regulations.
A.  No building shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet in height.

B.  Noindividual building or commercial establishment shall have a floor area exceeding five thousand
(5,000) square feet.

5.38.05. Lot area. The building lot must be a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) square feet in size.

5.38.06. Front yard setbacks and landscaping requirements. All buildings shall be setback from the street
right-of-way lines not less than thirty-five (35) feet. Parking must be setback a minimum of ten (10) feet. The
parking setback area must contain a minimum of one (1) native shade tree, capable of reaching fifty (50) feet in
height at maturity, per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of linear street frontage. The native shade trees
must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of planting. One (1) ornamental tree is required per
every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of linear street frontage, to be placed between and among the shade
trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

5.38.07. Side yard setbacks and landscaping requirements.

A.  Where the side yard is adjacent to a residential zone, the building setback shall be not less than twenty
(20) feet. The required side yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) evergreen tree per
every thirty (30) feet or portion thereof of side yard property depth outside of required front and rear
yards. The evergreen trees must be spaced a minimum of thirty (30) feet apart at the time of planting.
Shrubs and/or ground cover plantings must cover the remainder of the side yard, except for the space
within ten (10) feet from the base of the evergreen trees.

B.  Where the side yard is not adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be
not less than ten (10) feet. The side yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) native shade
tree per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of side yard property depth outside of required front
and rear yards. The native shade trees must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of
planting. One (1) ornamental tree is required per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of side
yard property depth (portion outside of required front and rear yards), to be placed between and
among the shade trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

5.38.08. Rear yard setbacks and landscaping requirements.

A.  Where the rear yard is adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be not
less than twenty-five (25) feet. The required rear yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1)
evergreen tree per every twenty-five (25) linear feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length.
The evergreen trees must be spaced a minimum of thirty (30) feet apart at the time of planting. Shrubs
and/or ground cover plantings must cover the remainder of the rear yard, except for within ten (10)
feet from the base of the evergreen trees.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 47 of 67



B.  Where the rear yard is not adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be
not less than ten (10) feet. The rear yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) native shade
tree per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length. The native shade trees
must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of planting. One (1) ornamental tree is
required per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of rear yard property depth to be placed
between and among the shade trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

5.38.09. Additional landscaping and site development standards.
A.  Parking areas:

1.  All parking lots of twenty (20) or more spaces shall contain within the interior of the parking lot
not less than one (1) native shade tree, capable of reaching fifty (50) feet in height at maturity for
every ten (10) spaces or fraction thereof. In no case shall more than ten (10) parking spaces be
located in a row without a planting island a minimum of nine (9) feet in width containing at least
one (1) native shade tree surrounded by shrubs and groundcovers.

2. Where parking abuts the building, there must be a sidewalk of at least five (5) feet in width
between the parking spaces and the building.

3. Atthe end of any parking row, there must be a terminal planting island a minimum of five (5) feet
in width containing at least one (1) native shade tree surrounded by shrubs and groundcovers.

4. At least fifty (50) percent of the length of the exterior walls of the building must have a
landscaping strip of at least four (4) feet in width.

B.  Any pre-existing, healthy, applicable landscaping on a proposed site may be counted toward any of the
landscaping requirements of this zoning district.

5.38.10. Off-street parking. As regulated in article 3, "General provisions," section 3.50, "Off-street parking
requirements," of this resolution.

5.38.11. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.38.12. Health department approval. The development shall not be approved until the county department
of code administration has been notified in writing by the county health department that the disposal system for
sewage abides by all applicable standards.

5.38.13. Utilities. All utility transmission lines serving individual uses shall be placed underground.

5.38.14. Site lighting. Lighting of all types shall be directed away from all residential or agricultural zones and
any public rights-of-way.

5.38.15. Administration. For uses listed as permitted uses within the CN, Neighborhood Commercial zoning
district, no building or structure shall be erected or altered until and unless a plan for such development has been
filed with and approved by the county department of code administration. The plan shall be filed in accordance
with the requirements of article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.70, "Administrative
site plan review," of this zoning ordinance.

5.38.16. Sidewalks. Pedestrian sidewalks must be provided on each site to allow access to the adjacent
neighborhood. If adjacent properties have a sidewalk, the sidewalk must connect with it. If adjacent properties are
vacant, then the developer must post a bond with the county department of engineering and public works to
guarantee installation of a sidewalk at the time of development of adjacent properties. Sidewalks must be paved
with a minimum width of four (4) feet.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 48 of 67



(Ord. No. 0-03-2-102, § 1(Exh. A), 3-24-03; Ord. No. O-11-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-23-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh.
A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. O-
19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-20-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 2-24-20)

5.40. OA Office Park Zone.

5.40.01. General description. This zone is intended to provide for orderly development of office parks so that
structures, access road improvements, utility distribution, landscaping, pedestrian circulation, waste disposal and
related elements are complementary and allow orderly sequential development through initial coordination of
utilities and other services. To create a zone which is compatible with surrounding residential areas and serves as a
transitional area from residential to other less compatible land uses.

5.40.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Professional, business, and governmental offices in which no activity is carried on catering to retail
trade with the general public, and no stock of goods is maintained for sale to customers. These shall
include, but not be limited to, offices for lawyers, architects, engineers, insurance and real estate
agents.

B. Child care agencies

C.  Clinics, medical, and dental offices.
D€. Radio, TV, and recording studios.

ED. Artgallery and museums.

FE. Public and private schools, excluding residences.

GE. Telegraph message center.

HG. Barber and beauty shops.

IH.  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted uses and structures.

Jt.  Recreational uses associated with and maintained primarily for the uses permitted above.

K. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

LK. Yard sales and rummage sales.
ME.  Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

NM. Public Safety Facilities.

5.40.03. Uses permitted on review.

AB. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

BE. Methadone treatment clinic or facility.
CB. Pain management clinic.
5.40.04. Area regulations. The following requirements shall apply to all uses permitted in this zone.

5.40.05. Front yard. Twenty-five (25) feet.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 49 of 67



5.40.06. Side yard. Twenty (20) feet where adjacent to a RAE, Exclusive Residential, or RA, Low Density
Residential Zone. In all other cases the same as required in the zone it adjoins, or twenty (20) feet, whichever is
less.

5.40.07. Rear yard. Twenty (20) feet (where adjacent to a RAE, Exclusive Residential or RA, Low Density
Residential Zone. In all other cases the same as required in the zone it adjoins, or twenty (20) feet, whichever is
less.

5.40.08. Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory buildings shall cover not more than thirty-five (35)
percent of the lot area.

5.40.09. Height regulations. No building or structure shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet, except as provided in
section 3.20, "General exceptions."

5.40.10. Landscaping regulations.

A.  Anyrequired yard shall be landscaped with live vegetation of a nature normally found in residential
areas.

B. Parking areas.

1. Parking areas shall contain five hundred (500) square feet of landscaping for every twenty
thousand (20,000) square feet, or fraction thereof, of paved parking area.

2. Parking areas located closer than fifty (50) feet to public right-of-way or adjacent property lines
shall be screened by evergreen planting that will obtain a minimum height of five (5) feet at
maturity.

3. For each five thousand (5,000) square feet of parking area a tree shall be provided that will
obtain a minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

C. Open spaces.

1.  That area designated as open space situated between the site boundary and the nearest building
line shall be landscaped or left to remain in natural vegetation.

2. For each five thousand (5,000) square feet of open space a tree shall be provided that will obtain
a minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

5.40.11. Utilities. All utility transmission lines serving individual uses shall be placed underground.

5.40.12. Signs. Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.40.13. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," except that
parking shall not be permitted in the required front yard, or, the required side yards adjacent to any RAE, Exclusive
Residential, or RA, Low Density Residential Zone.

(Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-96-7-101, § 1, 8-26-96; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, & 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00;
Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-04-4-101, & 1(Exh. A), 5-24-04; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, & 1(Exh.

A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-11-11-102, § 1(Exh. A), 12-19-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-
17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, & 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.41. OB Office, Medical, and Related Services Zone.

5.41.01. General description. This zone is intended to provide areas for professional and business offices and
related activities that require separate buildings and building groups surrounded by landscaped yards and open

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 50 of 67



areas. The intent herein is to provide centralized, compact locations for business offices, clinics, medical, and
dental offices near residential neighborhoods.

5.41.02. Uses permitted.

A.

Any use permitted and as regulated in the RB, General Residential Zone, except that height shall be as
regulated in subsection 5.41.09, "Height regulations."

Professional and business offices in which no activity is carried on catering to retail trade with the
general public, and no stock of goods is maintained for sale to customers. These shall include, but not
be limited to, offices for lawyers, architects, engineers, insurance, real estate agents and beauty shops.

Hospital, clinics, and medical and dental offices.

Child care agencies

Ra.
SR.
TS.

Undertaking establishments and funeral homes.

Hotels, motels, (including dining room facilities) excepting those containing retail sales for other than
the convenience of guests in the building.

Private clubs and lodges.

Art gallery and museums.

Business colleges.

Public and private schools and colleges with student residence and dormitories associated therewith.
Commercial parking lot or garage.

Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted uses and structures.

Recreational uses associated with and maintained primarily for the uses permitted above and for the
benefit and use of the occupants and their guests.

Establishments rendering business service associated with the uses listed above including but not
limited to the sale of office supplies and business forms and machines.

Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

Other uses similar in character to those enumerated above, and which in the opinion of the planning
commission will not be injurious to the zone.

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.
Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

Public Safety Facilities.

5.41.03. Uses permitted on review.

AB. Assisted living facilities.
BE€. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."
Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 51 of 67



CB. Methadone treatment clinic or facility.
DE. Pain management clinic.
E.F-  Recovery housing.

5.41.04. Area regulations. The area requirements for dwellings, and buildings accessory thereto, shall be the
same as the area requirements for the RB, General Residential Zone. The following requirements shall apply to all
other uses permitted in this zone.

5.41.05. Front yard. All buildings shall set back from the street right-of-way line to provide a front yard
having not less than twenty-five (25) feet in depth.

5.41.06. Side yard. Side yard requirements for residential uses shall be the same as in the RB, General
Residential Zone. Where a side yard is adjacent to a residential zone, no nonresidential building shall be located
closer than twenty (20) feet to the side lot line. In all other cases no building shall be located closer than fifteen
(15) feet to the side lot line.

5.41.07. Rear yard. No building shall be located closer than twenty (20) feet to the rear lot line.
5.41.08. Maximum lot coverage.

A.  The maximum lot area which may be covered by residential structures shall be the same as required in
the RB, General Residential Zone.

B.  Other main and accessory buildings shall cover not more than thirty-five (35) percent of the lot area.

5.41.09. Height regulations. No building or structure shall exceed four (4) stories or forty-five (45) feet in
height, except:

A.  As provided in section 3.20 "General exceptions."

B.  The planning commission may approve, as a use permitted on review, an increase in height above
forty-five (45) feet and may, as a condition of such approval, require an increase in set back and/or
yard requirements where appropriate.

5.41.10. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," except that
parking shall not be located in the required front yard.

(Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-96-7-101, § 1, 8-26-96; Ord. No. 0-97-10-101B, & 1, 11-17-97; Ord.
No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, & 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-04-4-101, & 1(Exh. A),

5-24-04; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-11-11-102, § 1(Exh. A), 12-19-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-
102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-8-102, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. O-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17;
Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.42. OC Civic and Institutional Zone.

5.42.01. General description. The OC, Civic and Institutional, zoning district and regulations are intended to
provide a zoning classification for specified religious, governmental, recreational, and institutional uses where a
separate zoning district is appropriate. These regulations are intended to minimize any conflicts or adverse impacts
on other properties, public roads or facilities. Locations for civic and institutional uses should be on arterial or
major collector streets.

5.42.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Churches, synagogues, mosques, temples, and other similar places of worship, except as permitted
under subsection 5.42.03, "Uses permitted on review."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 52 of 67



B.  The following uses when they are accessory to the main uses listed above, subject to the conditions
and requirements listed below: religious book stores and gift shops; health and fitness clubs, including
those offering memberships to persons outside the congregation; denominational offices; food
pantries; parish housing; and thrift shops and stores selling second-hand or used merchandise.

1.  Accessory uses shall occupy no more that forty (40) percent of the total developed floor space of
the main use.

2. Accessory structures and buildings shall be designed and constructed according to the
regulations and requirements for area, landscaping, lighting, signage, and off-street parking
described for civic and institutional uses.

C. Public and private elementary and secondary schools, excluding residences.

D.  Child care agencies

E. _ Private clubs, lodges, and fraternal organizations.

FE. Libraries, museums and art galleries.

GF. Local, state and federal government facilities, excluding correctional facilities.
HG. Public utilities.

IH#.  Philanthropic, charitable and service organizations.

Jt. Public parks, playgrounds and recreation facilities.

K. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

LK. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
Mt.  Public Safety Facilities.

5.42.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Public and private elementary and secondary schools, with residences.

B. Junior colleges, colleges, universities, and business and trade schools, including residences.

0

Hospitals, sanitariums and nursing homes.

DE. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

EF. Assisted living facilities.

FG. Developments requiring waivers as allowed under the following site development standards:
1. Landscaping, subsection 5.42.06, "Landscaping requirements."

5.42.04. Area regulations.

A.  Height regulations.

1. No building shall be built to a height exceeding forty-five (45) feet at the minimum required
setback line.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 53 of 67



2. No building shall exceed a height of thirty-five (35) feet, if located within one hundred (100) feet
of a residential zone. However, for each additional foot of setback from the minimum setback
line, the building height may be increased by one (1) foot to a maximum of forty-five (45) feet.

Setback requirements.

1.  Frontyard setback: A minimum of thirty-five (35) feet.
2 Side yard setback: A minimum of twenty-five (25) feet.
3. Rear yard setback: A minimum of twenty-five (25) feet.
4

Front, side or rear yard setback, when abutting a residential or agricultural zone: A minimum of
fifty (50) feet.

5.42.05. Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory buildings shall not cover more than fifty (50) percent of
the lot area.

5.42.06. Landscaping requirements.

A.

A landscaping plan shall be submitted as a part of any application for administrative site plan approval.
The following minimum standards shall apply:

1.  Anyrequired yard shall be landscaped with live vegetation of a nature normally found in
residential areas.

Parking areas.

1. Parking areas shall contain one thousand (1,000) square feet of landscaping for every twenty
thousand (20,000) square feet, or fraction thereof, of paved parking area.

2. For every five thousand (5,000) square feet of parking area, a tree shall be provided that will
obtain a minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

Buffer yards.

1.  Within the required building setback, a buffer yard shall be established along any property line
that abuts a residential or agricultural zoning district. The planning commission may waive or
reduce this requirement when there is no principal residential structure within two hundred
(200) feet of said property line.

2.  The following standards shall apply in buffer yards:
Minimum width: Fifteen (15) feet.

Landscaping and screening: A screen, opaque to a height of six (6) feet and consisting of any
combination of a fence, wall, evergreen plants, or earth berms shall be provided in the buffer
yard.

The planning commission may approve a landscaping plan that differs from the minimum standards if
the commission finds that such plan meets the intent of this section.

The department of code administration shall verify the installation of landscaping as shown on the
approved landscaping plan prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. Installation of planting
materials may be delayed until the next planting season, in the event that literal compliance with the
above standard would require plants to be installed at a time when they would not survive. In such
cases, a certificate of occupancy can be issued prior to the installation of landscaping with the posting
of a bond with the county department of engineering and public works to guarantee such installation.

5.42.07. Lighting. Lighting of all types shall be directed away from all residential or agricultural zoning
districts, or any public rights-of-way.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 54 of 67



5.42.08. Sign regulations. Signage shall comply with the requirements of section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and
other advertising structures," including subsection 3.90.08, "Office and Transition Zones."

5.42.09. Off-street parking regulations. Off-street parking shall comply with the requirements of section 3.50,
"Off-street parking requirements."

5.42.10. Administration.

A.  For uses listed as permitted uses in the OC, Civic and Institutional zoning district, no building or
structure shall be erected or altered until and unless a plan for such development has been filed with
and approved by the county department of code administration. The plan shall be filed in accordance
with the requirements of article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation”, section 6.70,
"Administrative site plan review," of this zoning ordinance.

B. In administratively reviewing plans for specific sites, the department of code administration shall
approve any site plan that complies with the above referenced design standards and the requirements
of the county zoning and subdivision regulations. Anyone aggrieved by a decision of the department of
code administration may appeal such decision to the board of zoning appeals, pursuant to article 6,
"Administration, enforcement and interpretation,"” section 6.60, "Board of zoning appeals," of these
regulations.

C.  The planning commission shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny applications for uses on
review, as described in section 4.42.03, "Uses permitted on review," and in compliance with relevant
county zoning and subdivision regulations.

(Ord. No. 0-03-4-103, § 1(Exh. A), 5-27-03; Ord. No. 0-04-1-102, § 1(Exh. A), 2-23-04; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, & 1(Exh.
A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. O-
22-2-101, § 1, 3-28-22)

5.50. BP Business and Technology Park Zone.

5.50.01. General description. This zoning district is intended to provide for a wide range of land uses which
are generally categorized in business, industrial and/or office classifications of use, whether in the public or private
sectors. The permitted land uses are intended to include those businesses which require building spaces
characterized by offices, research and development, manufacturing, and/or combinations of such uses. The
permitted uses include, but are not limited to, those which reflect particular emphasis on scientific and
engineering applications in product and/or process. The on-site and off-site impacts of such uses are typically
similar in kind and degree to such uses located within other zoning districts which allow such uses. Potential
impacts are addressed within this district through site-specific planning and design, consistent with the regulations
contained herein specific to, but not limited to: area requirements, maximum lot coverage and building height
limits, landscaping, utilities, signs, and off-street parking regulations.

The intended and desired effect of the site regulations is to create an attractive park-like setting for the
businesses which locate within the park. The planning and design for the park is intended to accomplish an
aesthetic environment which is complementary to site features and the surrounding environment. Site features
and infrastructure are to be consistent with the park-like design theme.

The BP, Business and Technology Park, zoning district shall be located only within the designated TO,
Technology Overlay Zone, subject to the jurisdiction and development review of the Tennessee Technology
Corridor Development Authority or its successor, and the planning commission.

5.50.02. Minimum size of zone. In order to achieve the above intent an area of sufficient size to permit a
spacious design and coordinated arrangement of buildings and facilities is necessary. Therefore, no BP Business
and Technology Park Zone may be created which has an area of less than five (5) acres.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 55 of 67



5.50.03. Uses permitted. The following uses may be permitted by approval of a development plan that
indicates they are within the intent of this zone as described in subsection 5.50.01, "General description," above,
that they comply with the development plan standards of subsection 5.50.13, and that they will meet the
performance standards of section 4.10, "Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all
zones." These performance standards, like all other provisions of this ordinance are continuing obligations and all
uses must continue to operate in compliance with the standards. Where SIC codes are indicated after permitted
uses, the businesses listed under that classification in the U.S. Department of Commerce Standard Industrial
Classification Manual, 1987 Edition, shall be permitted, providing all other requirements of this ordinance are

fulfilled.

All of the uses permitted under this section shall have their primary operations conducted entirely within
enclosed buildings, and shall not emit any obnoxious dust or smoke, or noxious odor or fumes outside of the
building housing the operation or produce any noise level occurring on the adjacent street. Operations shall cause
no radiation or radioactivity at any exterior wall and no electrical radiation that affects any operation or equipment
other than those of the creator of the radiation. All storage shall be confined to the interior of buildings.

A.  Professional, business, governmental and medical offices in which no activity is carried on catering to
retail trade with the general public, and no stock of goods is maintained for sale to customers.

B. Hospitals, clinics, medical and dental offices, medical and dental laboratories, and veterinary clinics.

C. Child care agencies

D. Assembly of electrical appliances, electronic instruments and devices, radios and phonographs.

EB. Research, development, experimental, or testing laboratories.

FE. The manufacturing, compounding, processing, packaging, treatment, or fabrication of ceramics,
instruments, optical goods and pharmaceuticals.

GFE. The manufacturing, compounding, assembling, or treatment of articles of merchandise from prepared
materials.

HG. Manufacture of electronic components and accessories (SIC 367).

IH.  Manufacture or assembly of measuring, analyzing, controlling, photographic, and optical instruments
(SIC 38).

A Motion picture production and allied services (SIC 781).

K. Manufacture of miscellaneous electrical parts, including automotive (SIC 369).

LK. Manufacture of motor vehicle parts and accessories including mechanical, electrical and electronic
parts, components and subassemblies, such as braking systems, safety devices, pollution control
mechanisms, and electronically controlled fuel systems.

MtE.  Manufacture of musical instruments (SIC 393).

NM. Manufacture of computer and office equipment (SIC 357).

ON. Manufacturing electrical switchgear and switchboard apparatus (SIC 3613).

PS. Manufacturing relays and industrial controls (SIC 3625).

QP. Manufacture of household audio and video equipment and audio recordings (SIC 365).

RQ. Manufacture of communications equipment (SIC 366).

SR.  Other assembly or limited manufacturing uses, of a similar nature, when located and arranged
according to a plan providing for aesthetic or other conditions in harmony with the neighborhood, and
approved by the planning commission.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 56 of 67



TS. Retail commercial uses may be approved as part of the overall development proposal, subject to the
following conditions:

1. Minimum parcel size for the total development plan shall be twenty (20) acres.

2. Retail uses shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the total floor areas of the approved
development plan.

3. Only the following retail uses shall be permitted, provided that there shall be no sales, display or
storage of merchandise outside of a fully enclosed building:

a. Banks and credit unions.

b. Barber shops and beauty salons.

C. Book stores.

d. Camera and photography supply stores, including film processing.
e. Clothing stores.

f. Drug stores.

8. Dry cleaners.

h. Employment services.

i Florists.

j. Food stores, including convenience stores without gasoline pumps.
k.  Gift stores.

I Toy stores.

m. Jewelers.

n. Restaurants, without drive-through facilities.

o. Sales of office supplies, office equipment, and computers.

p.  Sporting goods stores.

g. Accessory uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses, including recreational uses
associated with and maintained primarily for the uses permitted above.

4, Retail commercial locations within the development shall be approved as part of the overall
development proposal.

5. Building permits for retail commercial development may not be issued until certificates of
occupancy have been granted for non retail uses equal to ten (10) percent of the total floor area
of the approved development.

UF. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

VY. Yard sales and rummage sales.
WM. Churches.
XW.  Utility substations, easements, transportation rights-of-way, and alleys.

YX%. Order processing centers for goods and services, including television home shopping networks, call
centers and internet and catalog order processing centers, corporate and business offices, order

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 57 of 67



fulfillment operations and related receiving, warehousing and distribution of goods for sale to
customers and incidental on premises sales, subject to the following conditions:

1. Floor areas devoted to on premises, over-the-counter sales to walk-in customers shall not exceed
ten (10) percent of the total floor area of the approved development plan.

2.  On premises sales may be permitted at special events no more than five (5) times during any
calendar year.
Z¥. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

AAZ. Public Safety Facilities.

5.50.04. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Houses may be permitted by the planning commission as a use-on-review in accordance with the
provisions of section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses permitted on review," of this resolution.

BE. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

5.50.05. Nonconforming uses (exception to section 3.60, "Nonconforming uses," of the county zoning
ordinance). Nonconforming churches, houses, agricultural lots and structures existing immediately preceding a
change of zoning to the BP, Business and Technology Park Zone shall be allowed to continue, expand, construct or
replace structures and other improvements to the property provided that the proposed improvement complies
with the requirements of the A, Agricultural Zone.

5.50.06. Area requirements. The following requirements shall apply to all parcels within a BP, Business and
Technology Park Zone, and to all uses permitted in this zone:

A.  Peripheral boundary. All buildings or structures shall be set back from the peripheral boundary of a BP,
Business and Technology Park Zone, not less than fifty (50) feet. Where the peripheral boundary abuts
a residential zone, all buildings and structures shall be set back from that residential zoning line not less
than seventy-five (75) feet.

B.  Frontyard. All buildings shall set back from all street right-of-way lines not less than fifty (50) feet.
C.  Side yard. No building shall be located closer than forty (40) feet to a side yard lot line.
D.  Rearyard. No building shall be located closer than thirty (30) feet to the rear lot line.

The depth of any rear yard which abuts a residential district shall be not less than fifty (50) feet,
provided, however, that no rear yard is required where the lot abuts on an existing or proposed
railroad right-of-way or spur.

E. Minimum parcel size. The minimum parcel size shall be one (1) acre and shall conform to the
Tennessee Technology Corridor Design Guidelines as adopted by the Tennessee Technology Corridor
Development Authority.

5.50.07. Maximum lot coverage and height of building. The maximum area of site permitted to be covered by
structures shall be governed by a ground area coverage (GAC) ratio, and the height of structures shall be governed
by a floor area ratio (FAR). The GAC is defined as the number of square feet of ground area covered by the
building, divided by the square feet of lot area. The FAR is defined as the number of square feet of floor area in a
building, divided by the square feet of lot area. The GAC and FAR for any area zoned BP, Business and Technology
Zone shall be established at the time of zoning or site plan review upon a recommendation of the planning
commission that takes into account the topography, size, accessibility and surroundings of the site and planning

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 58 of 67



policy for the area. In no case shall the GAC exceed twenty-five (25) percent nor shall the FAR exceed thirty (30)

percent.

5.50.08. Landscaping regulations. The following requirements shall apply in this zone:

A.

Required yard. Any required yard shall be landscaped with live vegetation of a nature normally found in
residential areas. All yard areas required under this section and other yards and open spaces existing
around buildings shall be landscaped and maintained in such a manner as to provide a park-like setting
for the district.

Parking areas. Parking areas shall contain five hundred (500) square feet of landscaping for every
twenty thousand (20,000) square feet, or fraction thereof, of paved parking area.

Parking areas located closer than fifty (50) feet to public rights-of-way or adjacent property lines shall
be screened by evergreen planting that will obtain a minimum height of five (5) feet at maturity.

For each five thousand (5,000) square feet of parking area a tree shall be provided that will obtain a
minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

5.50.09. Utilities. All utility transmission lines serving individual uses shall be placed underground.

5.50.10. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this

resolution.

5.50.11. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," except that
parking shall not be permitted in the required front yard, or the required side yards.

5.50.12. Application procedures for business and technology park developments. Within the BP, Business and
Technology Park Zone, no building or structure shall be erected or altered until and unless there shall have been
filed with and approved by the planning commission a written application for approval of a plan for the
contemplated development within said zone. The application shall be accompanied with the following information:

A.

A description of all operations proposed in sufficient detail to show that the proposed uses are within
the intent of the BP, Business and Technology Park Zone, as described in subsection 5.50.01, "General
description," and to indicate the effects of those operations in production of excessive auto and traffic
congestion or problems of noise, glare, odor, sewerage, air pollution, water pollution, fire or safety
hazards, or other factors detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of the area. See section 1,
"Performance standards for commercial and industrial uses," in section 4.10, "Supplementary
regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all zones."

A development plan indicating the following: location of present and proposed buildings, loading
docks, driveways, parking lots, other accessory uses, existing wooded areas, proposed landscaping, and
trash disposal areas.

Preliminary architectural plans for the proposed building or buildings.

An estimate of the maximum number of employees contemplated for the proposed development and
the number of employees per shift.

A storm drainage plan which includes accurate existing and proposed water courses; the system of
open channels, pipes, culverts, drains, inlets, catch basins, and similar facilities designed to handle
storm water in times of rainstorms, the calculations used in the design of such systems and the
easements required in the construction and maintenance of the drainage system and meeting all
requirements of section 6.11, "Grading permit."

Other engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any problems of the type outlined in
subsection 5.50.12.A above, including a designation of sewers to be used and necessary plans for
controlling smoke or other nuisances.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 59 of 67



G.  Any other information the planning commission may need to adequately consider the effect that the
proposed uses may have upon their environment and on the cost of providing public services to the
area. All sewage disposal systems and land requirements for such systems must be approved before a
building permit is issued.

5.50.13. The planning commission may approve an overall development plan for a business park comprising
an area of twenty (20) acres or more subject to administrative review and approval of plans for development of
individual sites or parcels within the park by the planning commission staff.

A. Inlieu of site specific plans as referenced in subsections 5.50.12.B and 5.50.12.C, the overall
development plan shall provide design standards for landscaping and architectural features in
sufficient detail to allow the planning commission to determine that the development would comply
with the intent of the BP Business and Technology Park Zone.

B. In administratively reviewing plans for specific sites, the staff shall approve any site plan that complies
with the above-referenced design standards, the overall development plan approved by the planning
commission, and the requirements of the county zoning and subdivision regulations. Planning
commission staff decisions may be appealed to the planning commission. Anyone aggrieved by a
decision of the planning commission may appeal such decision to the board of zoning appeals,
pursuant to article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.60, "Board of zoning
appeals," of these regulations.

5.50.14. The planning commission shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny the development plan
based on the following standards:

A.  Roads, driveways, parking lots and curb cuts are designed so as to promote safe and efficient
movement of vehicular traffic.

B.  The development will comply with all applicable requirements of section 1, "Performance standards for
commercial and industrial uses," in section 4.10, "Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to
several, or to all zones."

C.  The development will comply with all dimensional and area requirements and requirements for
landscaping, parking, signs and utilities contained in this section.

5.50.15. Application for review and approval of WCF shall be subject to the provisions of article 4, section
4.92.

(Ord. No. 0-96-1-102, § 1, 1-26-96; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-97-8-104, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No.
0-98-3-102, § 1(Exh. A), 4-27-98; Ord. No. 0-98-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-
25-00; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-04-1-102, § 1(Exh. A), 2-23-04; Ord. No. 0-05-3-101, §
1(Exh. A), 4-25-05; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-11-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-23-11; Ord. No.
0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-13-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-
23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-22-2-
101, 8§ 1, 2, 3-28-22)

5.51. EC Employment Center Zone.

5.51.01. General description. This zoning district is intended to encourage development of business parks and
other employment centers that will contribute to the future economic well being of the county; to provide
standards and procedures that will minimize any conflicts or adverse impacts of these developments with other
properties, public roads or facilities; to provide a zoning district for use in areas meeting the locational standards
for industrial parks and technology based development contained in the Knoxville-Knox County General Plan; and

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 60 of 67



to provide a zoning district for business and technology park development that requires site plan review and
complies with the requirements of the Farragut-Knoxville-Knox County Growth Policy Plan.

5.51.02. Uses permitted. Only the following uses may be permitted in this zone. Where North American
Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes are indicated after permitted uses, the businesses listed under that
classification in the United States Office of Management and Budget North American Industry Classification System
Manual, 1997 edition, and any subsequent edition, may be permitted providing all other requirements of this
ordinance are fulfilled. The permitted uses in any proposal for development shall be identified through the process
outlined in subsection 5.51.05, "Administration":

A.  Construction and contracting, including:
1.  Building, developing and general contracting (NAICS 233).
2. Heavy construction (NAICS 234).
3.  Special trades contractors (NAICS 235).
B. Manufacturing, including:
1. Food manufacturing (NAICS 311), excluding slaughter of animals and fat rendering.
Beverage and tobacco product manufacturing (NAICS 312).
Textile mills (NAICS 313).
Textile product mills (NAICS 314).

2

3

4

5.  Apparel manufacturing (NAICS 315).

6 Leather and allied product manufacturing (NAICS 316).

7 Wood product manufacturing (NAICS 321).

8 Printing and related support activities (NAICS 323).

9 Pharmaceutical and medicine manufacturing (NAICS 3254).
10. Plastics and rubber products manufacturing (NAICS 326).
11. Fabricated metal product manufacturing (NAICS 332).
12. Machinery manufacturing (NAICS 333).
13. Computer and electronic product manufacturing (NAICS 334).
14. Electrical equipment, appliance and component manufacturing (NAICS 335).
15. Transportation equipment manufacturing (NAICS 336).
16. Furniture and related product manufacturing (NAICS 337).
17. Miscellaneous manufacturing (NAICS 339).

C. Wholesale trade, including:
1.  Wholesale trade, durable goods (NAICS 421).
2. Wholesale trade, non-durable goods (NAICS 422).

D. Transportation and warehousing, including:
1.  Air transportation (NAICS 481).
2. Rail transportation (NAICS 482).

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 61 of 67



Water transportation (NAICS 483).

Truck transportation (NAICS 484).

Transit and ground passenger transportation (NAICS 485).
Pipeline transportation (NAICS 486).

Scenic and sightseeing transportation (NAICS 487).
Support activities for transportation (NAICS 488).

W N W

Postal service (NAICS 491).
10. Couriers and messengers (NAICS 492).
11. Warehousing and storage (NAICS 493).
E. Information, including:
1. Publishing industries (NAICS 511).
2. Motion picture and sound recording industries (NAICS 512).
3. Broadcasting and telecommunications (NAICS 513).
4.  Information services and data processing services (NAICS 514).
F. Finance and insurance, including:
1. Monetary authorities and banks (NAICS 521).
2 Credit intermediation and related activities (NAICS 522).
3 Securities, commodity contracts and other financial investments (NAICS 523).
4, Insurance carriers and related activities (NAICS 524).
5 Funds, trusts and other financial vehicles (NAICS 525).
G. Real estate and rental and leasing, including:
1. Real estate (NAICS 531).
2. Rental and leasing services (NAICS 532).
3. Lessors of other nonfinancial intangible assets, except copyrighted works (NAICS 533).
H.  Professional, scientific and technical services (NAICS 541).
l. Management of companies and enterprises, including:
1. Management of companies and enterprises (NAICS 551).
2. Administrative and support services (NAICS 561).
J. Educational services, excluding elementary and secondary schools (NAICS 611).
K. Health care and social assistance, including hospitals (NAICS 622).
L. Other services, except public administration, including:
1. Support activities for agriculture and forestry (NAICS 115).
2. Support activities for mining (NAICS 213).
3. Repair and maintenance (NAICS 811).

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 62 of 67



M.  Public administration, including:
1. Local, state and federal government offices and programs.
2. Space research and technology (NAICS 927).
3. National security and international affairs (NAICS 928).
Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

O. Inan EC Employment Center Zone development, twenty (20) percent of the land area may be set aside
for retail commercial development, subject to the following conditions and requirements:

1.  The overall EC Employment Center Zone development must include a minimum of twenty (20)
acres.

2. Only the following retail commercial uses shall be permitted, provided that there shall be no
sales, display or storage of merchandise outside of a fully enclosed building.

a. Drug stores.

b.  Convenience stores, without gasoline pumps.

c. Restaurants, without drive-through facilities.

d.  Sales of office supplies, office equipment and computers.

e. Employment services.

f. Hotels and motels.

g. Accessory uses customarily incidental to any of the commercial uses listed in this section.

3.  The locations of commercial uses shall be integrated by means of access within the EC
Employment Center Zone development.

P.  Other uses of the same general character as those listed in this section as permitted uses and deemed
appropriate by the planning commission.

"
B 7

Q. Child day-care eentersagencies.;

H "

7

R.  Adult day care centers, consistent with the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult day
care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

S. Outdoor storage, subject to the following requirements:

1.  Outdoor storage shall be fully screened on all sides by an opaque, ornamental or vegetative
screen.

2. Outdoor storage must be an accessory use to a principal use on the same site.

T. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

U.  Public Safety Facilities.
5.51.03. Area regulations. The following requirements shall apply to all uses permitted in this zone:
A.  Minimum size requirements.

1.  Minimum size of an EC Employment Center Zone: Five (5) acres, providing that smaller areas may
be rezoned when they directly abut EC Employment Center zoning, regardless of ownership.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 63 of 67



2. Minimum lot size: One (1) acre.
B.  Height regulations.

1. No building shall be built to a height exceeding forty-five (45) feet, at the minimum required
setback line.

2. No building shall exceed a height of thirty-five (35) feet, if located within one hundred (100) feet
of a residential zone. However, for each additional foot of setback from the minimum setback
line, the building height may be increased by one (1) foot to a maximum of forty-five (45) feet.

C.  Setback requirements.
1.  Frontyard setback: A minimum of fifty (50) feet.
2. Side yard setback: A minimum of fifty (50) feet.
3. Rear yard setback: A minimum of fifty (50) feet.

D.  Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory building footprints and loading platforms shall not cover
more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area.

5.51.04. Site development standards. The following standards will guide development in the EC Employment
Center Zone:

A.  Off-street vehicle parking, bicycle parking and sidewalks.

1. Asasupplement to the off-street parking requirements of section 3.50, "Off-street parking
requirements," the following shall apply:

a. No parking shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet from any public right-of-way, twenty-
five (25) feet from any side property line, or twenty-five (25) feet from any rear property
line. Parking for commercial uses as described in subsection 5.51.02.0 may be located no
closer than twenty-five (25) feet from any public right-of-way. The areas between roads
and parking lots shall be landscaped with ground cover and one (1) medium or large
maturing tree for every fifty (50) feet of the length of the road or lot line. Tree species lists
are available through the planning commission.

b.  The dimensions for required off-street parking spaces may be less than that required under
section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," provided that those dimensions are
approved in the development plan and established through the variance process.

c. Where the business is located within a one-quarter (%) mile walk via sidewalks of a
Knoxville Area Transit (KAT) stop, the number of required parking spaces may be reduced
by fifteen (15) percent.

d.  All other provisions of section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," shall apply.

2. Bicycle parking spaces on bicycle racks or in bicycle lockers, as defined by the Knoxville Regional
Bicycle Plan, shall be located near the entrances to all buildings within the park or development.

3. Any EC Employment Center Zone development that is accessed by interior streets or easements
shall include at a minimum sidewalks along one (1) side of all streets or easements within the
development.

B. Loading and unloading areas.

1. Allloading docks shall be located at the rear or side of buildings. Truck and trailer parking shall
also be located at the rear or side of buildings. Where the size and/or shape of the building and
property, or some physical characteristic of the property (i.e., topography, wetlands, sinkholes,

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 64 of 67



etc.), make it infeasible to locate a loading dock at the rear of a building, the loading dock may be
located at the side of a building providing that landscaping is used to screen the loading dock
from neighboring properties and public rights-of-way.

2. Allloading docks shall be set back and permanently screened, either by landscaping, berming or
architectural screens, from neighboring properties and public view to minimize the effect of their
appearance from neighboring building sites.

3. Vehicle maneuvering for loading and unloading shall not be permitted on abutting rights-of-way.
C. Landscaping.

1. Alandscaping plan shall be submitted as a part of any application for use-on-
review/development plan approval. The species lists for recommended trees are available at the
planning commission, or on its website (www.knoxplanning.org). The following minimum
standards shall apply:

a.  Anyrequired yard shall be landscaped with various sizes of native trees. One (1) large
maturing tree and one (1) medium or small maturing tree shall be provided per acre of
required yard spaces.

b.  Grass or other natural ground cover shall be used in the required yard spaces. The majority
of the area around buildings shall be landscaped with shrubs, and yards shall be maintained
in such a manner as to provide a park-like setting for the district.

2. Parking areas.

a. Parking areas shall contain one thousand (1,000) square feet of landscaping for every
twenty thousand (20,000) square feet, or fraction thereof, of paved parking area.

b. For each five thousand (5,000) square feet of parking area, or fraction thereof, a tree shall
be provided that will obtain a minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

3. Buffer yards and other screening.

a. Within the required building setback, a buffer yard shall be established along any property
line that abuts a residential or agricultural zoning district. The planning commission may
consider buffer yards in relation to other zones as the site plan is considered.

b.  The following standards shall apply in buffer yards:

Minimum width: One hundred (100) feet adjacent to residential zones and fifty (50) feet
adjacent to agricultural and open space zones.

Landscaping and screening: A combination of medium and large evergreen trees and
evergreen shrubs, which will provide an eighty (80) percent screen at maturity from
adjoining properties to a height of forty-five (45) feet, shall be planted in the buffer yard.

C. Other sight obscuring screens shall be provided with the following minimum heights:
Refuse collection: One (1) foot height higher the refuse container.
Loading areas: Eight (8) feet.
Outdoor storage (where permitted): Six (6) feet.

For these operations, adequate screening can be either natural or architectural material
which obscures the line of sight from vehicles, pedestrians, and first story windows.
Storage, loading and refuse container screening shall be of a material and design
compatible with the overall architecture of the associated structure. The trees and shrubs

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 65 of 67



E.

shall cover a minimum of fifty (50) percent of the fence or architectural material in order to
soften the screen.

d. Berms, which have a minimum height of three (3) feet at any point, are strongly
encouraged as a technique to screen on-site activities and to provide a buffer between
those activities and adjacent properties. Berms should vary in height to provide interest.
The plan materials previously identified should be used in landscaping berms.

e. Existing trees that shall be conserved to create the buffer and other screening shall be
identified on the landscaping plan.

4.  The planning commission may approve a landscaping plan that differs from the minimum
standards if the commission finds that such plan meets the intent of this section.

5.  The department of code administration shall verify the installation of landscaping as shown on
the approved landscaping plan prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. Installation of
planting materials may be delayed until the next planting season, in the event that literal
compliance with the above standard would require plants to be installed at a time when they
would not survive. In such cases, a certificate of occupancy can be issued prior to the installation
of landscaping with the posting of a bond with the county department of engineering and public
works to guarantee such installation.

Lighting. Lighting of all types shall be directed away from all residential or agricultural zoning districts,
or any public rights-of-way. Locate lights to avoid glare or excessive light spillover on adjacent sites and
direct exterior lighting away from adjacent properties. Cut-off luminaries shall be used for all parking,
road and security lights to reduce the amount of glare and light spillover.

Signage. Signs shall comply with the requirements of subsection 3.90.12, "Employment center zones."

5.51.05. Administration. Within the EC Employment Center Zone, no building or structure shall be erected or
altered until and unless a written application and development plan for the contemplated development within said
district has been filed with and approved by the planning commission. The plan and application shall include the

following:

A.

In consideration of the difference in the scale of potential uses and their impact on the environment
and the surrounding area, a list of the permitted uses shall be approved by the planning commission
and recorded with the county register of deeds prior to the issuance of any permits for the approved
EC Employment Center Zone development.

Architectural, landscaping, lighting and signage plans for the proposed development. These plans may
be in the form of a design guideline document that is approved with the development plan and is used,
via covenants, in developing individual sites or parcels.

A development plan indicating the following: location of present and proposed buildings, loading
docks, driveways, parking lots, other accessory uses, existing wooded areas, proposed landscaping,
building and free-standing signs, and trash disposal areas.

An estimate of the maximum number of employees contemplated for the proposed development and
the number of employees per shift.

A storm drainage plan which includes accurate existing and proposed water courses; the system of
open channels, pipes, culverts, drains, inlets, catch basins, and similar facilities designed to handle
storm water in times of rainstorms; the calculations used in the design of such systems; and the
easements required in the construction and maintenance of the drainage system, consistent with the
requirements of section 6.11, "Grading permit."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 66 of 67



F. Any other information the planning commission may need to adequately consider the effect that the
proposed uses may have upon the environment and on the cost of providing services to the area.

5.51.06. Following the approval of a development plan by the planning commission, the planning commission
staff may approve plans for individual sites or parcels. In administratively reviewing plans for specific sites or
parcels, the staff shall approve any site plan that complies with the above referenced design guidelines document,
the overall development plan approved by the planning commission, and the requirements of the county zoning
and subdivision regulations. Planning commission staff decisions may be appealed to the planning commission.
Anyone aggrieved by a decision of the planning commission may appeal such decision to the board of zoning
appeals, pursuant to article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.60, "Board of zoning
appeals," of these regulations.

5.51.07. The planning commission shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny applications for uses on
review, as described in this section and in compliance with relevant county zoning and subdivision regulations.

5.51.08. Application for review and approval of WCF shall be subject to the provisions of article 4, section
4.92.

(Ord. No. 0-03-2-101, § 1(Exh. A), 3-24-03; Ord. No. 0-04-1-102, § 1(Exh. A), 2-23-04; Ord. No. 0-07-4-101, & 1(Exh.
A), 5-29-07; Ord. No. 0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-13-8-
103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19;
Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, §§ 1, 2, 3-28-22)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 67 of 67



KNOXVILLE-KNOX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
REPORT OF RECOMMENDATION

2/18/2025 01:39 PM

APPLICANT:
APPLICANT'S REQUEST:

COMM. RECOMMENDATION:

COMMISSION VOTE COUNT:

COMMISSION HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON:
PUBLISHED IN:
DATE PUBLISHED:

APPLICANT'S ADDRESS:

LEGISLATIVE BODY:

FILE NUMBER: 2-A-25-OA

KNOX COUNTY MAYOR'S OFFICE

Consideration of amendments to the Knox County Code, Appendix B, Zoning
Code, Articles 2.20, 4.91, 5.11, 5.12, 5.13, 5.22, 5.31, 5.32, 5.33, 5.34, 5.36,
5.37, 5.38, 5.40, 5.41, 5.42, 5.50, and 5.51, regarding childcare facilities.

Approve the proposed childcare zoning ordinance
amendments because these changes are consistent with Knox
County Comprehensive Plan Implementation Policies and
State Department of Human Services (DHS) licensure
regulations for childcare facilities

15-0

2/13/2025
News-Sentinel

1/28/2025

3/24/2025
News-Sentinel

2/20/2025

Mandi Benedict / Knox County Mayor's Office
400 Main St

Knoxville, TN 37902

Knox County Commission

Suite 403 - City/County Building - 400 Main Street - Knoxville, Tennessee - 37902 - (865-215-2500)



OFFICE OF COUNTY MAYOR GLENN JACOBS

January 29, 2025

Planning Commission,

A survey of Tennesseans last year suggests that challenges finding quality childcare led to 39 percent of
working parents faced employment disruptions; 27 percent turned down a job or promotion; 24 percent
dropped back to part-time or couldn’t increase work hours to full-time; 18 percent quit or were fired; and
16 percent left the workforce.

Parents, employers, and government must work together to solve this crisis.

In Knox County, roughly 26,280 children are too young to start kindergarten, so childcare centers are
essential for working parents. However, even if parents meticulously plan and/or place their children on a
waitlist, our area does not have enough centers to meet the community’s needs.

One low-hanging fruit? Knox County zoning regulations. Currently, the county’s ordinances conflict with
state regulations and disincentivize employers from subsidizing centers at their sites or nearby sites.

In other words, Knox County’s current zoning ordinance’s terminology and classification of childcare
homes and centers have led to confusion because they do not mirror that of the Tennessee Department of
Human Services, which inspects, licenses, regulates, and enforces state quality and safety laws at
childcare centers. Additionally, the ordinance contains regulations that conflict with DHS requirements

relative to the center’s size and play areas.

Such restrictions are outside the purview of zoning - the key reason for confusion, costs, and arbitrary
interpretations.

Further, the ordinance only allows childcare centers in employer-related areas as a “use-on-review”
versus a “use-by-right.” This adds unnecessary costs and delays, as DHS is responsible for approving the
proposed site before issuing its license.

The following recommendations are simple changes to the zoning ordinance that should address the
childcare crisis, and not only reduce confusion and costs for those seeking to open centers but also time.

Knox County is in the process of creating its first Unified Development Ordinance, which addresses
zoning and regulations. I believe it is critical to make these small changes now to assist with the childcare
crisis in Knox County.

Sincerely,

Glenn Jacobs

Knox County Mayor

cc: files

400 West Main Street, Suite 615 * Knoxville, TN 37902 ¢ county.mayor@knoxcounty.org * phone 865-215-2005 * www.knoxcounty.org



4 Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

TO: Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission
FROM: Jessie Hillman, AICP | Principal Planner
DATE: February 3, 2025

SUBJECT: 2-A-25-0A

Agenda ltem #31

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve the proposed child care zoning ordinance amendments because these changes are consistent
with Knox County Comprehensive Plan Implementation Policies and State Department of Human
Services (DHS) licensure regulations for child care facilities.

BACKGROUND

The Knox County Mayor’s office and the Knox County Chamber of Commerce collaborated on proposed
changes to the zoning ordinance as it pertains to the permitting processes for child care services. The
purpose of the proposed changes is to align zoning regulations with Department of Human Services (DHS)
licensure rules for child care agencies and to streamline the provision of child care services, which are an
essential component of the local economy.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CHANGES

e Article 2.20, Specific Terms
o Revised the terms “Child Daycare Facility” to “Child Care Agency”; “Child Daycare
Center” to “Child Care Center”; “Group Daycare Home” to “Group Child Care Home”;
and “Day Care Home” to “Family Child Care Home”
o Terms and definitions were updated reflect the terminology and definitions within the
DHS licensure rules for child care agencies.

e Article 4.91, Requirements for Child Day Care Centers and Group Day Care Homes when
considered as Uses Permitted on Review
o Revised the Article title to reference only Child Care Agencies, which is the updated
umbrella term for all child care facilities considered through the Use on Review process.
o 4.91.01, Minimum Requirements
= Removed all requirements except item D, referencing off-street parking

requirements, and item F, instructing the Planning Commission to consider other
information about the subject property and that approval shall state the
maximum number of children to be kept at a facility.

Knoxville-Knox County Planning | KnoxPlanning.org
400 Main Street, Suite 403 | Knoxville, TN 37902 | 865.215.2500


https://publications.tnsosfiles.com/rules/1240/1240-04/1240-04-01.20220629.pdf

e Article 5.11, RA Low Density Residential Zone

o 5.11.02, Uses Permitted
= [tem L was revised with updated child care terms, and all conditions applied to

child care facilities were removed except for off-street parking requirements.
These conditions specified area regulations for child care facilities that conflict
with or exceed DHS licensure regulations.
o 5.11.03, Uses Permitted on Review
= [tem C was revised with the updated Group Child Care Home term.
e Article 5.12, RB General Residential Zone

o 5.12.02, Uses Permitted
= [tem N was revised with updated child care terms, and all conditions applied to

child care facilities were removed except for off-street parking requirements.
These conditions specified area regulations for child care facilities that conflict
with or exceed DHS licensure regulations.
o 5.12.03, Uses Permitted on Review
= |tem D was revised with the updated Group Child Care Home term.
e Article 5.13, PR Planned Residential Zone

o 5.13.02, Uses Permitted
= |tem J was revised with updated child care terms, and all conditions applied to

child care facilities were removed except for off-street parking requirements.
These conditions specified area regulations for child care facilities that conflict
with or exceed DHS licensure regulations.
o 5.13.03, Uses Permitted on Review
= |tem A was revised with the updated Group Child Care Home term.
e Article 5.22, A Agricultural Zone

o 5.22.02, Uses Permitted
= Jtem N was revised with updated child care terms, and all conditions applied to

child care facilities were removed except for off-street parking requirements.
These conditions specified area regulations for child care facilities that conflict
with or exceed DHS licensure regulations.
o 5.22.03, Uses Permitted on Review
= |tem N was revised with the updated Group Child Care Home term.
e Article 5.31, CA General Business Zone

o 5.31.02, Uses Permitted
= Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.

o 5.31.03, Uses Permitted on Review
= |tem B pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.

<

Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

Knoxville-Knox County Planning | KnoxPlanning.org
400 Main Street, Suite 403 | Knoxville, TN 37902 | 865.215.2500



Article 5.32, CB Business and Manufacturing Zone

O

O

5.32.02, Uses Permitted

=  Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.
5.32.02, Uses Permitted on Review

= |tem E pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.

Article 5.33, PC Planned Commercial Zone

o

5.33.02, Uses Permitted

= The requirement that Child Care Centers meet the requirements of Article 4.91

was removed.

Article 5.34, SC Shopping Center Zone

o

o

5.34.02, Uses Permitted

=  Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.
5.34.03, Uses Permitted on Review

= |tem B pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.

Article 5.36, T Transition Zone

O

O

5.36.02, Uses Permitted
= Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.
5.36.03, Uses Permitted on Review

= |tem A pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.

Article 5.37, CR Rural Commercial Zone

O

O

5.37.02, Uses Permitted

=  Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.
5.37.03, Uses Permitted on Review

= [tem A pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.

Article 5.38, CN Neighborhood Commercial Zone

O

O

5.38.02, Uses Permitted

= Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.
5.38.03, Uses Permitted on Review

= [tem A pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.

Article 5.4, OA Office Park Zone

O

O

5.40.02, Uses Permitted

=  Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.
5.40.03, Uses Permitted on Review

= |tem A pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.

Article 5.41, OB Office, Medical, and Related Services Zone

O

5.41.02, Uses Permitted
= Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.

<

Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

Knoxville-Knox County Planning | KnoxPlanning.org
400 Main Street, Suite 403 | Knoxville, TN 37902 | 865.215.2500



o 5.41.03, Uses Permitted on Review
= [tem A pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.
e Article 5.42, OC Civic and Institutional Zone
o 5.42.02, Uses Permitted
= Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.
o 5.42.03, Uses Permitted on Review
= Jtem D pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.
e Article 5.50, BP Business and Technology Park Zone
o 5.50.03, Uses Permitted
=  Child Care Agencies were added as a permitted use.
o 5.50.04, Uses Permitted on Review
= [tem B pertaining to Child Care Centers was removed.
e Article 5.51, EC Employment Center Zone
o 5.51.02, Uses Permitted
= |tem Q revised to reference Child Care Agencies, and the reference to
requirements in Article 4.91 was removed.

STAFF ANALYSIS

Staff recommend approval of the proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance because they align the
review of child care facilities with State regulation, the Knox County Comprehensive Plan, and best
practices according to the American Planning Association’s Policy Guide on the Provision of Child Care.

The DHS Licensure Rules for Child Care Agencies specify indoor and outdoor area capacity limits, which
make the current Supplementary Requirements for child care agencies in Article 4.91 redundant or
contradictory. For example, DHS requires a minimum of 50 square feet of usable outdoor play space per
child (Rule 1240-04-01-.16), whereas Article 4.91 of the zoning code requires an outdoor play area of not
less than 2,500 square feet for the first twenty (20) children and 100 square feet for each additional
child. Deferring to DHS as the licensing and monitoring agency for child care facilities and removing
criteria like this from the zoning ordinance alleviates child care providers from unnecessary confusion
and restriction in the permitting process.

The updated terms, the removal of redundant review criteria tied to DHS licensing, and the transition of
child care facilities from a “use on review” to a “use by right” in employer-based zoning districts is
supported by several Knox County Comprehensive Plan Implementation Policies. Policy 3.4 emphasizes
developing simpler permitting and review processes to incentivize certain types of development. Policy
3.1 describes identifying and revising regulatory standards that are barriers to redevelopment. Policy 10
prioritizes the long-term fiscal health of the County. Policy 17 supports opportunities for innovation and
growth in our local economy. Child care plays a vital role in the ability of parents to participate in the

<

Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

Knoxville-Knox County Planning | KnoxPlanning.org
400 Main Street, Suite 403 | Knoxville, TN 37902 | 865.215.2500


https://www.planning.org/policy/guides/adopted/childcare.htm

paid workforce, and to foster innovation and engage in the local economy. This ordinance amendment
creates a simpler regulatory process and removes barriers to the establishment of child care facilities,
which often take the form of redevelopment within a vacant establishment.

These revisions to the zoning code are also aligned with policy principles of the American Planning
Association, which encourages municipalities to amend local zoning ordinances to remove obstacles to
the provision of regulated group and family child care and supports local legislation which provides for
small child care homes as a permitted land use in all zoning districts. The proposed changes to the
zoning ordinance are consistent with State regulation, the Knox County Comprehensive Plan and best
practices promoted by the certifying body for the American Planning profession.

"
Planning

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

Knoxville-Knox County Planning | KnoxPlanning.org
400 Main Street, Suite 403 | Knoxville, TN 37902 | 865.215.2500



2.20. Specific terms.

Accessory building: A subordinate building customarily incidental to and located on the same lot with the
main building.

Accessory structure: A subordinate structure customarily incidental to and located on the same lot with the
main building or structure.

Accessory use: A subordinate use customarily incidental to and located on the same lot with the main use.
Adult: Any person who is eighteen (18) years of age or older.

Adult book store: An establishment having more than fifty (50) percent of the face value of its stock in trade,
books, magazines, motion pictures, periodicals, and other materials which are distinguished or characterized by
their emphasis on matters depicting, describing or relating to "specified anatomical areas" hereinbelow defined or
an establishment with a segment or section devoted to the sale of display of such material.

Adult day care facility: A facility which provides non-medical care to three (3) or more persons eighteen (18)
years of age and older in need of personal services, supervision, or assistance essential for sustaining the activities
of daily living or for the protection of the individual on less than a twenty-four (24) hour a day basis. Any persons
who are related to the provider by blood or marriage shall not be included in the total number of persons for
which care is provided.

Adult motion picture theater: Any public place, whether open or enclosed, used for presenting material
distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on matter depicting, describing, or relating to "specified sexual
activities" or "specified anatomical areas," hereinbelow defined, for observation by patrons therein.

Adult-oriented establishments: Sexually explicit establishments which cater to an exclusively or
predominantly adult clientele and including, but not limited to: adult bookstores, adult motion picture theaters,
cabarets and other enterprises which regularly feature materials, acts or displays involving complete nudity or
exposure of the "specified anatomical areas" hereinbelow defined and/or sexual excitement or enticement.

Aged persons: Persons who are fifty-five (55) years of age or older.

Agritourism: A form of commercial enterprise that links agricultural production and/or processing with
tourism in order to attract visitors onto a farm, ranch, or other agricultural business for the purposes of
entertaining and/or educating the visitors and generating income for the farm, ranch, or business owner. This
includes the sales of agricultural products produced on site.

Airsoft range: See "paintball/airsoft range" as hereinbelow defined.
Alteration, interior: Any change in the interior walls of a building.

Alteration, structural: Any change in the exterior walls, foundation or other supporting members of a
building or structure.

Apartment: See "Multi-dwelling structure" as defined hereinbelow under "Residential structure types."

Assisted living facility: A building, establishment, complex, or distinct part thereof which accepts aged
persons, whom constitute a substantial majority of not less than eighty-five (85) percent of the facility population,
for domiciliary care provided that residential units may be shared with a person under the age of fifty-five (55), if
the head of household meets the definition of an aged person. The facility provides on-site to its residents, room,
board, nonmedical living assistance services appropriate to the residents' respective needs, and medical services as
prescribed by each resident's treating physician.

Auto wrecking yard: Any space or building used by the owner or operator for the dismantling of two (2) or
more inoperable vehicles or vehicles not in running condition, or for storage of such vehicles or the dismantled
parts thereof.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 1 of 67



Boarding home for sheltered care: A profit or nonprofit boarding home, rest home or other home licensed by
the appropriate governmental agency which in addition to providing food and shelter to three (3) but not more
than twelve (12) persons unrelated to the proprietor, also provides, any personal care or service beyond food,
shelter, and laundry. Such services may include: (1) supervision and assistance in dressing, bathing and
maintenance of good personal hygiene; (2) care in emergencies or in temporary illness, usually for periods of one
(1) week or less; (3) supervision in the taking of medications; and (4) other services conducive to the residents'
welfare.

Boarding house: A dwelling or part thereof in which lodging is and meals from a common kitchen are
provided by the owner or operator for not more than twelve (12) persons.

Boat livery: An establishment, which can include docking facilities, at which boats are rented for recreational
purposes.

Boatel: A combination of a motel and marina that is accessible to boats as well as automobiles and may
include overnight accommodations for transients and permanent staff, eating and drinking facilities, and meeting
rooms.

Buffer strip: A greenbelt planting strip twenty (20) to sixty (60) feet in width extending along the entire
length of one or more commercial or industrial property lines, planted with trees and shrubs of a given height and
distance apart and in a given planting pattern.

Build-to line: A line running parallel to a street to which the front of buildings are sited.

Building: Any structure built for the support, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, moveable possessions,
or property of any kind which has a roof and enclosing walls for at least fifty (50) percent of its perimeter. The term
"building" shall be as if followed by the words "or part thereof." For the purpose of area and height limitations this
definition shall be applicable to sheds and open sheds.

Business park: A tract of land that is planned, developed, and operated as an integrated facility for a number
of individual business, research, assembly, distribution, or light manufacturing uses with consideration to
transportation facilities, circulation, parking, utilities, aesthetics, and compatibility.

Business service: Any activity conducted for gain, which renders services primarily to other commercial and
industrial enterprises, or which services and repairs appliances and machines used in a home or business.

Cabaret: Any restaurant, bar, dance hall, nightclub or other such place which features dancers exhibiting
"specified anatomical areas" (as defined below), strippers, male or female impersonators or similar entertainers.

Child dey-care -agencyfecitity: A place or facility, regardless of whether it is currently licensed, that is operated as a
“family child care home”, a “group child care home”, a “child care center” that provides child care for three (3) or
more hours per day to five (5) or more children who are not related to the primary educator. Afacility-which

twenty-four{24)-heur-basis-Types of child day-care facilities-agencies are defined in the following categories:

Child dey-care center: Any place or facility operated by any person or entity that provides child care for three

(3) or more hours per day for at least thirteen (13) children who are not related to the primary educator. Ar

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 2 of 67



Group dey-child care home: Any place or facility operated by any person or entity that provides child care for
three (3) or more hours per day for at least eight (8) children who are not related to the primary educator,

but not more than twelve (12) children or fifteen (15) children if approved for three (3) additional school-

Family child care home: Any place or facility which is operated by any person or entity that provides child
care for three (3) or more hours per day for at least five (5) children, but not more than seven (7) children
who are not related to the primary educator.

Club: An association or group of persons organized for some common purpose, but not including such
associations or groups organized to render a service which is customarily carried on as a business.

Commercial mulching operation: A type of solid waste processing facility that processes woody waste
consisting of stumps, trees, limbs, branches, bark, leaves and other clean wood waste which has undergone size
reduction by grinding, shredding, or chipping and is distributed to the general public for landscaping and
horticultural purposes. Such woody waste is generally transported to the operation from off-site, and the mulch
product is sold to the general public. (See "Solid waste processing facility".)

Commercial vehicles: Any vehicle designed, maintained or used primarily for hire, compensation or profit.

Composting facility: A type of solid waste processing facility for the purpose of processing waste that
undergoes biological decomposition of organic matter. Such waste has been stabilized to a degree which is
potentially beneficial to plant growth and which is suitable for use as a soil amendment, artificial top soil, growing
medium amendment, or other similar uses. (See "Solid waste processing facility".)

Congregate housing: A dwelling licensed by the appropriate governmental agency providing shelter and
services for the elderly which may include meals, housekeeping and personal care assistance. The residents may be
functionally impaired or socially isolated, but otherwise in good health. The residents can maintain a semi-
independent life style and do not require more intensive care as provided in a nursing home.

Contractor: Any person or firm engaged in construction, building trades, landscaping services or
maintenance, on a contract basis, either licensed or unlicensed.

Contractor's storage yard: An outdoor area used for the storage of equipment and/or materials used for
providing contracting services, including but not limited to building construction, heating, plumbing, roofing,
landscaping and excavation.

Corner Iot: A lot abutting upon two (2) or more roads at their intersection, provided the angle at which the
roads intersect does not exceed one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees.

Demolition landfill: An engineered method of disposal of material that results from construction, land
clearing, landscaping or demolition activity. Such materials would include concrete, steel, clean soil, rubble, rock,
inert road spoils, gypsum board, brick, glass, lumber, vinyl siding, roofing, fiberglass insulation, asphalt-
impregnated materials, tree stumps, brush, branches, leaves and clippings or any other material approved by the
state department of health and environment; but not toxic materials such as paint thinners, caulking compounds,
asbestos or material containing asbestos, paving and sealing components still in a liquid or semi-solid state, or
agricultural wastes or any other material prohibited by the state department of health and environment.

Demolition landfill site: All or a portion of a parcel or contiguous parcels which is intended to be used as a
demolition landfill. The site shall include all borrow areas and areas of ingress and egress, all structures and other
improvements on the land for processing and disposal of solid waste material and all buffers, berms, fences and
set backs. The development plan as approved will constitute the site.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 3 of 67



Domestic employee: A person hired by a household to perform general household services such as nanny,
baby-sitting, cooking, cleaning, laundering, gardening, yard and maintenance work, caregiving and other duties
commonly associated with the meaning of domestic servant.

Dwelling, condominium: A multiple dwelling designed for individual ownership of dwelling units, but joint
ownership and/or responsibility for maintenance and upkeep of building, grounds and recreational facilities.

Electronic message center sign: A sign which uses a bank of lights that can be individually lit to form copy
such as words, letters, logos, figures, symbols, illustrations, or patterns to form a message without altering the sign
face.

Family: The heads of household plus persons who are related to the heads of the household and any
domestic employees thereof. These relationships may be of the whole or half blood, by adoption, guardianship,
including foster children, or through a marriage to a person with such a relationship with the heads of household.

Fill area: The area containing waste placed for final disposal, not including earthen berms or other
appurtenances.

Five hundred (500) year flood: A flood having a two-tenths of one percent (0.2%) chance of occurring in any
given year and which, over a long period of time, can be expected to be equaled or exceeded on the average of
once every five hundred (500) years.

Flea market: The occasional or periodic sale held in an open area where groups of individual sellers offer
goods for sale to the public and the sale goods are moved off the premise between sale dates.

Flood: An overflow of lands not normally covered by water that results in significant adverse effects.

Floodway: The natural channel and the portion of the flood plain along the channel that must be retained
solely for the passage of floodwaters to prevent an undue increase in flood heights upstream.

Floodway fringe area: Areas adjacent to a F, Floodway Zone that are below the level of the five hundred
(500) year flood.

Floor area ratio (FAR): The number of square feet of floor area in a building, divided by the square feet of lot
area.

Garage apartment: A dwelling unit erected above a private garage.

Ground area coverage ratio (GAC): The number of square feet of ground area covered by the building,
divided by the square feet of lot area.

Heads of the household: One (1) person or two (2) adult persons establishing a household.
Home occupation: See article 4, "Supplementary regulations," section 4.90, "Home occupations."
Household: One (1) or more persons occupying a dwelling unit.

Inoperable vehicle: Any motor vehicle which does not have an engine in running condition, four (4) tires, a
battery, and valid state license plate issued to the person owning the land on which it is parked, or which is in fact
abandoned by its owner, or which for any reason is not operable and not repairable, shall be deemed an
inoperative motor vehicle.

Knox County Board of Commissioners: The Knox County Commission also referred to as county commission
and board of commissioners.

Knox County Codes Administration and Inspections Department: A department of Knox County government
authorized to enforce this ordinance, also referred to as the office of building inspector, department of codes
administration, codes enforcement, codes and Knox County codes administration and enforcement.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 4 of 67



Knox County Highway Department: The department of engineering and public works also referred to as
highways and public works, department of engineering and division of engineering and hydrology.

Liner building: A structure that covers one (1) or more sides of a "big box" commercial building, parking
structure or similar structure. A liner building must have a ground level entrance to the sidewalk and have a
minimum depth of thirty (30) feet.

Live/work unit: A combination of a dwelling unit and business space, such as a shop or office that is open to
the public for retail trade or personal or professional services.

Lot: A parcel of land which is or may be occupied by a building and its accessory buildings or uses customarily
incident thereto, together with such yards or open spaces within the lot lines as may be required by this
resolution.

Lot coverage: The building coverage expressed as a percentage of the total lot or parcel area.

Lot, key: A lot adjacent to a corner lot having its side lot line in common with the rear lot line of the corner
lot and fronting on the street which forms the side boundary of the corner lot.

KEY LOT CONCEPT DIAGRAMS

Example: Corner lots with adjacent “key” lots

F’Onting

Street

Corner Corner | Interior | Interior

Interior | Interior
[}
Lot s Lot Lot Lot
o
(7]
-~
(=
©
Interior | Interior | Corner 2 Corner | Interior | Interior
Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot

Fronting Street
| [ I | I | 1
Example: Corner lots with adjacent interior lots

Marina: A facility for storing, servicing, fueling, berthing and securing of pleasure boats. The facility may
include eating, sleeping and retail facilities for owners, crews and guests.

Medical, dental, or chiropractic office/clinic: A facility for the examination and treatment of ill or afflicted
human outpatients, provided, however, that the patients are not kept overnight except under emergency

conditions.
Methadone treatment clinic or facility: A licensed facility for the counseling of patients and the distribution of

methadone for outpatient, nonresidential purposes only.

Mini-warehouse: See "Self-service storage facility" as hereinbelow defined.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 5 of 67



Mobile home: A single dwelling designed for transportation after fabrication on streets and highways on its
own wheels or on a flat bed or other trailer, and arriving at the site where it is to be occupied as a dwelling
complete and ready for occupancy, except for minor and incidental unpacking and assembly operations, location
on jacks or permanent foundations, connection to utilities and the like.

Mobile home park: Any area, tract, site or plot of land whereupon three (3) or more mobile homes as herein
defined are placed, located or maintained, or intended to be placed, located or maintained for permanent
residence, and shall include all accessory buildings used or intended to be used as part of the equipment thereof.

Mobile home park, transient: Any area, tract, site or plot of land open to the traveling public where
temporary accommodations are provided for parking travel trailers, camp trailers, house cars, mobile homes or
tents.

Mobile home space: A plot of ground within a mobile home park which is designed for and designated as the
location for only one (1) automobile and one (1) mobile home and not used for any other purposes whatsoever
other than the customary accessory use thereof.

Mobile home subdivisions: A subdivision of land designed for occupancy by mobile homes exclusively and
where the individual lots are sold to the occupant.

Motel: A building or group of buildings used for the temporary residence of motorists or travelers.

Nonconforming use: A use of a building or land that does not agree with the provisions of this ordinance for
the zone in which it is located.

Nursing home: An extended or intermediate care facility licensed by the appropriate governmental
agency(ies) to provide care to those persons who by reason of advanced age, chronic illness or infirmity, are
unable to care for themselves. This includes intensive care, intermediate care and long-term care facilities for the
elderly.

Off-street parking, class "A": An off-street parking facility, either controlled or uncontrolled, provided for the
use of occupants, employees, visitors, patients, patrons, or students, without charge for its use.

Off-street parking, class "B": A controlled or partially controlled off-street parking facility provided for the
use of occupants, employees, visitors, patients, patrons, or students, with or without charge for its use. Such
facilities shall be operated by or for the owner or owners of the principal use which it is intended to serve.

Off-street parking, class "C": An off-street parking facility operated for profit, which is provided for use by the
general public at a fee, whether the fee is charged for a partial hour, hourly, daily, weekly, monthly, or other basis.
Such facility shall be considered a commercial parking lot or facility.

Pain management clinic (as found in T.C.A. § 63-1-301): A privately-owned facility in which a medical doctor, an
osteopathic physician, an advanced practice nurse, and/or a physician assistant provides pain management
services to patients, a majority of whom are issued a prescription for, or are dispensed, opioids, benzodiazepine,
barbiturates, or carisoprodal, but not including suboxone, for more than ninety (90) days in a twelve (12) month
period. A pain management clinic does not include:

¢ A medical or dental school, an osteopathic medical school, a nursing school, a physician assistant program
or an outpatient clinic associated with any of the foregoing schools or programs;

¢ A hospital as defined in T.C.A. § 68-11-201, including any outpatient facility or clinic of a hospital;
¢ Hospice services as defined in T.C.A. § 68-11-201;

¢ A nursing home as defined in T.C.A. § 68-11-201;

¢ A facility maintained or operated by the state government; or

¢ A hospital or clinic maintained or operated by the federal government.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 6 of 67



Paintball/airsoft range: An indoor or outdoor facility used for the discharging of paintball and/or airsoft guns
for the purpose of target practice, mock war games, or similar competitions. Excluded from these facilities shall be
general hunting and the unrestricted and nonrecurring discharging of firearms.

Parking lot: An off-street facility including parking spaces along with adequate provision for drives and aisles
for maneuvering and giving access, and for entrance and exit, all laid out in a way to be usable for the parking of
more than six (6) automobiles.

Parking space: An off-street space available for the parking of one (1) motor vehicle and having an area of
not less than two hundred (200) square feet exclusive of passageways and driveways appurtenant thereto and
giving access thereto, and having direct access to a street or alley.

Personal service: An establishment primarily engaged in providing services involving the care of a person or
his or her apparel.

Planning commission: The Planning Commission of Knoxville and Knox County also referred to as the
planning commission.

Public garage: A building or portion thereof used for the purpose of housing, servicing, repair, or hiring of
self-propelled vehicles for pay, or where such vehicles are sold.

Public place: Shall mean any place to which the public or a substantial group of persons has access and
congregates, regardless of whether admission is charged thereto, and includes, but is not limited to: businesses
open to the public; highways; transportation facilities; schools; places of amusement; parks, playgrounds, hotels,
theaters; auditoriums, restaurants, nightclubs; cocktail lounges; and burlesque houses.

Public safety facility: A facility operated by and for the use of public safety agencies, such as the fire and
emergency rescue services, including the dispatch, storage, and maintenance of police and fire vehicles.

Recovery Housing: Housing for six (6) persons or more, with no limit on length of stay, that is occupied by the
target population as defined below, and that is linked to on- or off-site services that assist the recovery housing
residents in retaining the housing, improving his or her health status, and maximizing his or her ability to live and,
when possible, work in the community.

Recreation vehicle: A vehicular-type, portable structure without a permanent foundation that can be towed,
hauled, or driven, and primarily designed as a temporary living accommodation for recreational camping and travel
use, including, but not limited to: travel trailers, truck campers, camping trailers, and self-propelled motor homes.

Residential structure types:

Duplex: A building that contains two (2) dwelling units on one (1) lot. The units must share a common wall or
common floor/ceiling.

Dwelling unit: A building, or a portion of a building, that has independent living facilities including provisions
for sleeping, cooking, and sanitation, and that is designed for standards.

House: A detached dwelling unit located on its own lot.

House, attached: A dwelling unit located on its own lot that shares one (1) or more common or abutting walls
with one (1) or more dwelling units.

Multi-dwelling development: A grouping of individual structures where each structure contains one (1) or
more dwelling units. The land underneath the structures is not divided into separate lots. A multi-dwelling
development may include an existing house with one (1) or more new detached houses, duplexes or multi-
dwelling structures located on the same lot. The key characteristic of this housing type is that there is no
requirement for the structures on the lot to be attached.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 7 of 67



Multi-dwelling structure: A building, or portion of a building, that contains three (3) or more dwelling units
that share common walls or floor/ceilings with one (1) or more units. The land underneath the structure is
not divided into separate lots.

Retail sales: The process of selling goods or merchandise to customers for their own personal or household
use, including the characteristics of attracting the general public to the place of business, inventorying, selling and
receiving merchandise, and with the possibility of processing some of the products where such processing is
incidental and subordinate to the selling activity.

Road: A public thoroughfare forty (40) feet or more wide, provided however that any existing thoroughfare
less than forty (40) feet wide generally known as a road shall be considered a road for the purpose of this
ordinance.

Road line: Right-of-way line of a road.

Roadside stand: A farm structure used or intended to be used solely by the owner or tenant of the farm on
which it is located, for the sale of only seasonal farm products of the farm on which it is located.

Rummage sale: A temporary sale conducted by an organization not more than twice during any calendar
year where members of the group donate articles or items to the organization for sale from the organization's
location for the purpose of raising money for use by the organization.

Rural retreat: A facility owned and operated by an entity for the purpose of providing a rural setting in which
lodging, conferences, banquet facilities/restaurants, day spas, recreational amenities and meeting/event facilities
are provided with or without compensation. Rural retreat does not include a farm engaged in agriculture as
defined by state law.

Sanitary landfill: An engineered method of solid waste disposal as defined by the state department of health
and environment.

School: An academic learning center, whether public or private, from the level of nursery through twelfth
grade.

Self-service storage facility: A structure containing separate storage spaces of varying sizes, leased or rented
to the general public, businesses, or institutions.

Setback line: A line back of the road line, existing or proposed, between which and the road line no building
or portion thereof, except as provided in this resolution, may be erected. "Within a setback line" means between
the setback line and the road right-of-way.

Shopping center: A group of commercial establishments, planned, developed, owned, and managed as a unit,
with off-street parking provided on the property, and related in its location, size, and type of shops to the trade
area which the unit serves.

Sign, billboard, or other advertising device: Any structure or part thereof or device attached thereto or represented
thereon, which shall display or include any letter, words, model, banner, flag, pennant, insignia or representation
used as, or which is in the nature of an announcement, direction or advertisement. The word "sign" includes the
word "billboard" or any other type of advertising device, but does not include the flag, pennant, or insignia of any
nation, state, city or other political unit. Types of signs are defined in the following categories:

Abandoned sign: A sign which no longer identifies or advertises a bona fide business, lessor, owner, service,
product, or activity and/or for which no legal owner can be found.

Advertising sign: A sign which directs attention to a business, commodity, service or entertainment
conducted, sold or offered elsewhere than on the premises and only incidentally on the premises if at all.

Advertising sign, electronic: An advertising sign utilizing electronic means to form or alter the announcement,
direction, or advertisement appearing on the sign.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 8 of 67



Billboard: A type of advertising sign having more than one hundred (100) square feet of display surface which
is either erected on the ground or attached to or supported by a building or structure.

Business sign: A sign which directs attention to the business or profession conducted on the premises. A "for
sale", "to let" or "information" sign shall be deemed a business sign.

Ground sign: A sign supported by a pole, uprights, or braces on the ground.

Marquee sign: A projecting sign attached to or hung from a marquee and said marquee shall be known to
mean a canopy or covered structure projecting from and supported by a building, when such canopy or
covered structure extends beyond the building, building line, or property line.

Monument sign: A sign which is supported by and integrated with a solid base, as opposed to poles, posts, or
other such supports.

Portable sign: All movable or portable advertising or business signs mounted upon trailers or other structures
or devices designed to be transported with only incidental parking and assembling for reuse.

Projecting sign: A sign which is attached to the face or outside wall of a building which projects out at any
angle therefrom and projects more than twelve (12) inches beyond the face of such wall.

Roof sign: A sign that is mounted on the roof of a building or which is wholly dependent upon a building roof
for support.

Temporary sign: Temporary signs shall include any sign, banner, pennant, valance, or advertising display
constructed of wood, metal, cloth, canvas, light fabric, cardboard, wallboard, or other light material, with or
without frames, where either by reason of construction or purpose the sign is intended to be displayed for a
short period of time only.

Unipole structure: A single large diameter pole used to support structures.

Wall or face sign: Any sign erected parallel to the face, or on the outside wall, of any building and supported
throughout its entire length by such wall where the edges of the sign do not project more than twelve (12)
inches therefrom.

Solid waste processing facility: A facility for the purpose of modifying the characteristics or properties of solid
wastes to facilitate their transportation, disposal, or re-use, including, but not limited to incineration, composting,
separation, grinding, shredding, and volume reduction.

Specified anatomical areas:
a. Less than completely and opaquely covered:
1. Human genitals, pubic region;
2. Buttock; and
3. Female breast below a point immediately above the top of the areola; and
b. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered.
Specified sexual activities:
a. Human genitals in a state of actual or simulated sexual stimulation or arousal;
b. Acts of actual or simulated human masturbation, sexual intercourse or sodomy;

c. Actual or simulated fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic regions, buttock, or
female breast.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 9 of 67



Sports playing field: An open space set aside for the playing of field sports that may include benches or
bleachers for observers. Sports playing fields include, but are not limited to, baseball, field hockey, football,
lacrosse, soccer, softball, and volleyball.

Structure: A combination of materials to form a construction that is safe and stable for use, occupancy, or
ornamentation, whether installed on, above, or below the surface of land or water.

Swimming pool: Any structure intended for swimming or recreational bathing that has the capacity to
contain water over twenty-four (24) inches deep. This includes in-ground, aboveground and on-ground pools, hot
tubs and spas.

Target population: People experiencing substance abuse or other chronic health conditions.

Telecommunications tower: A structure, other than a building, on which a transmitting or receiving
antenna(e) is located.

Terminal, motor freight: The use of land, or buildings, for the temporary parking of motor freight vehicles or
trucks of common carriers during loading and unloading and/or repair and between trips, either intrastate or
interstate, including necessary warehouse space for storage of transitory freight.

Tourist court: See "Motel" (as defined above).

Tourist home: A residential building where lodging is furnished to transients for compensation, and
containing not more than five (5) sleeping rooms for such transients.

Vehicle repair/service: A business that provides repair services to motor vehicles, motorcycles, and all-terrain
vehicles (ATV).

Yard, front: The required open space between the road right-of-way line and the main building.

Yard, rear: A space, unoccupied except by a building of accessory use as herein provided, extending from the
rear of the main building to the rear lot line for the full width of the lot.

Yard sale: The sale of personal goods such as used clothing and/or household items to the general public by a
resident from any portion of their residential property not more than three (3) times a year. For the purpose of this
ordinance yard sale includes estate sales.

Yard, side: A space along the side line of a lot, unoccupied by buildings except as herein provided, extending
from the setback line to the rear yard.

Zone: A part or parts of the county for which the regulations relating to the use of land and buildings are
uniform.

(Ord. No. 0-95-9-102, § 1, 10-23-95; Ord. No. 0-95-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-27-95; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-
96; Ord. No. 0-97-10-101B, § 1, 11-17-97; Ord. No. 0-97-8-104, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No. 0-98-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-
16-98; Ord. No. 0-98-12-102, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-99-8-101, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-
25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-11-106, § 1(Exh. A), 1-4-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1, 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-01-6-101, § 1(Exh.
A), 7-23-01; Ord. No. 0-03-2-102, § 1(Exh. A), 3-24-03; Ord. No. 0-04-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-24-04; Ord. No. 0-06-7-
101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-09-10-101, § 1, 11-16-09; Ord. No. 0-09-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-10; Ord. No.
0-11-1-103, § 1(Exhs. A, B), 2-28-11; Ord. No. 0-11-2-101, § 1(Exh. C), 3-28-11; Ord. No. 0-11-11-102, § 1(Exh. A),
12-19-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-13-1-103, § 1(Exh. A), 2-25-13; Ord. No. O-13-4-
102, § 1(Exh. A), 5-28-13; Ord. No. 0-17-7-102, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-17; Ord. No. 0-17-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord.
No. 0-17-8-102, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-18-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 2-26-18; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A),
6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-20-1-101, 1(Exh. A), 2-24-20; Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, §5§ 1, 2, 3-28-22; Ord. No. 0-23-7-101, § 1,
8-28-23)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:50 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 10 of 67



4.91. Requirements for ehild-day-care-centers-and-group-day-care-homesChild Care Agencies,

when considered as uses permitted on review.

This section prescribes conditions under which child day-care agencies facitities-and-group-day-care-homes,

when considered as uses permitted on review, may be permitted.

4.91.01. Minimum requirements.

Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-Street parking requirements." In addition, parking
and loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children, as well as safe
and convenient ingress and egress to and from the property. The off-street parking and circulation plan
shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering and public works.

The planning commission shall consider the-abeverequirementsand-other information about the site
including the functional street classification of the street accessing the site, and the character of
surrounding development in determining whether to deny or approve a request. Any approval shall
state the maximum number of children to be kept at the facility.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, & 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12)

5.11. RA Low Density Residential Zone.

5.11.01. General description. This residential zone provides for residential areas with low population
densities. These areas are intended to be defined and protected from encroachment of uses not performing a
function necessary to the residential environment.

5.11.02. Uses permitted.

A.

B
C.
D

Houses.

Accessory buildings.

Churches, schools, libraries, and museums.
(Deleted August 17, 1971.)

Gardening and horticulture.

Mobile homes.

Public golf courses, public parks and playgrounds; swimming pools, and other associated recreational
facilities, none of which shall be used for commercial purposes.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 11 of 67



Public utilities, such as transmission lines, substations, railroad lines, bus loading or waiting platforms,
dams, water treatment plants, including water filtration and storage facilities, and other similar public
service uses and buildings, and also such other buildings and structures, as are used by utility and
sanitary districts in the performance of services in which they are authorized to engage.

Uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses, including home occupation, as regulated by
section 4.90, "Home occupations."

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.

Bay-Family child care homes and group gay-child care homes, if the provider lives in the home, subject
to the following conditions:

14. Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements." In addition,
parking and loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children,
as well as safe and convenient ingress and egress to and from the site. The off-street parking and
circulation plan shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering
and public works.

M.  Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

5.11.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.
B.

G.
H.

Garage apartments.
Duplexes.

Group day-child care homes, if the provider does not live on site, provided they meet the requirements
of section 4.91, "Requirements for child éay-care centers and group €ay-child care homes, when
considered as uses permitted on review," and child éay-care centers, provided they meet the
requirements of section 4.91, "Requirements for child éay-care centers and group eay-child care
homes, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Private golf courses, swimming clubs, country clubs, and tennis clubs.

Nonprofit public and private sports playing fields, none of which shall be used for commercial
purposes.

Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.

Public Safety Facilities, subject to the standards of section 4.107.

5.11.04. Area regulations. All buildings shall be set back from street or road right-of-way lines and lot lines to
comply with the following yard requirements.

5.11.05. Front yard.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 12 of 67



A.  For dwellings the minimum depth of the front yard shall be thirty-five (35) feet and in no case shall an
accessory building be located to extend into the front yard.

B.  Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, shall have a front yard set back
of thirty-five (35) feet.

5.11.06. Side yard.

A.  For single-story dwellings, located on interior lots, side yards shall be not less than eight (8) feet in
width.

B.  For dwellings of more than one (1) story there shall be side yards of not less than twelve (12) feet each.

C.  For unattached buildings of accessory use there shall be a side yard of not less than eight (8) feet;
provided, however, that unattached one-story buildings of accessory use shall not be required to set
back more than five (5) feet from an interior side lot line when all parts of the accessory building are
located more than ninety (90) feet behind the front property line.

D.  Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, and buildings accessory to
dwellings, shall set back from all side lot lines a distance of not less than twenty-five (25) feet.

5.11.07. Rear yard.

A.  For main buildings, other than garage apartments, there shall be a rear yard of not less than twenty-
five (25) feet.

B. A garage apartment may be located in the rear yard of houses, but shall not be closer than ten (10) feet
to the rear lot line. Unattached buildings of accessory use shall not be located closer to any rear lot line
than five (5) feet.

5.11.08. Lot width.

A.  Where dwellings are served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a minimum lot width of seventy-
five (75) feet at the front building line.

B.  Where dwellings are not served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a minimum lot width of one
hundred (100) feet at the front building line.

5.11.09. Intensity of use.

A.  Not more than one (1) dwelling unit shall be permitted on any lot except as provided in subsection
5.11.03, "Uses permitted on review," of these regulations and not more than two (2) dwelling units
shall be permitted on any lot under the provisions of this subsection.

B.  Foreach house and building accessory thereto served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a lot
area of not less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet.

C.  Where two (2) dwelling units and buildings accessory thereto are located on the same lot served by a
sanitary sewer system, there shall be a lot area of not less than twelve thousand (12,000) square feet.

D. There shall be a lot area of not less than twelve thousand (12,000) square feet where a garage
apartment is located on the same lot with a house served by a sanitary sewer.

E. For each house and buildings accessory thereto, not served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a
minimum lot area of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet; however, a greater area may be required
based on recommendations by the health department.

F.  There shall be a lot area of not less than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet where a garage
apartment is located on the same lot with a house not served by a sanitary sewer system. However, a
greater area may be required based on recommendations of the health department.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 13 of 67



G.  Where two (2) dwelling units and buildings accessory thereto are located on the same lot not served by
a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a minimum lot area of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet;
however, a greater area may be required based on recommendation by the health department.

H.  For those dwellings and buildings accessory thereto not served by a public water supply, there shall be
a minimum lot area as prescribed in the Minimum Subdivision Regulations for Knoxville and Knox
County, Tennessee.

. For churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings and buildings accessory to
dwellings, the lot area shall be adequate to provide the yard areas required by this section and the off
street parking areas required in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these regulations;
provided, however, that the lot area for a church shall not be less than thirty thousand (30,000) square
feet.

5.11.10. Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory buildings shall cover not more than thirty (30) percent
of the lot area.

5.11.11. Height regulations. No main building shall exceed three (3) stories or thirty-five (35) feet in height.
Accessory buildings shall not exceed eighteen (18) feet in height; provided, however, the eighteen (18) feet height
limitation may be exceeded to conform the pitch of the accessory building roof to the pitch of the roof of the
principal use. In no case shall the bottom chord of the roof truss or the bottom of the ceiling joist of an accessory
building exceed eighteen (18) feet in height.

5.11.12. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these
regulations.

5.11.13. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 1, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-97-7-101, § 1, 8-25-97; Ord. No.
0-98-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-98-12-102, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-
25-00; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, §
1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord.
No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.12. RB General Residential Zone.

5.12.01. General description. This residential zone provides for medium population density. The principal
uses of land may range from houses to multi-dwelling structures or developments. Certain uses which are more
compatible functionally with intensive residential uses than with commercial uses are permitted. Other related
uses in keeping with the residential character of the zone may be permitted on review by the planning
commission.

5.12.02. Uses permitted.
A.  Accessory buildings.
Churches, schools, libraries, and museums.

B

C. Garage apartments.

D Gardening and horticulture, but not on a commercial basis.
E

Nonprofit public golf courses, public parks and playgrounds; swimming pools, and other associated
recreational facilities, none of which shall be used for commercial purposes.

F. Mobile homes.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 14 of 67



0.

Multi-dwelling structures or developments, provided that the development density shall be less than
twelve (12) dwelling units per acre.

Nurseries and greenhouses for the propagating and cultivating of plants, but not on a commercial
basis.

Public utilities, such as transmission lines, substations, railroad lines, bus loading or waiting platforms,
dams, water treatment plants, including water filtration and storage facilities, fire stations, and other
similar public service uses and buildings, and also such other buildings and structures, as are used by
utility and sanitary districts in the performing of the services in which they are authorized to engage.

Houses and duplexes.

Uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses including home occupation subject to section
4.90, "Home occupations."

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.

Bay-Family child care homes and group day-child care homes, if the provider lives on site, subject to the
following conditions:

14. Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements." In addition,
parking and loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children,
as well as safe and convenient ingress and egress to and from the site. The off-street parking and
circulation plan shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering
and public works.

Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

5.12.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.

Multi-dwelling structures and developments at a density of twelve (12) to twenty-four (24) dwelling
units per acre, provided they meet the administrative requirements of subsection 5.13.15,
"Administrative procedure for a planned residential development," and the requirements of
subsections 4.10.14 through 4.10.19, "Development standards for uses permitted on review," and
section 6.50, "Procedures for authorizing uses permitted on review."

Mobile home parks and mobile home subdivisions subject to all requirements set forth in sections
4.20, "Mobile home parks," and 6.50, "Procedures for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these
regulations.

Retail business or service establishments may be permitted within multi-dwelling structures and
developments only as a use-on-review in accordance with the provisions of section 6.50, "Procedures
for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these regulations, and subject to the following
requirements:

1.  There shall be no entrance to such place of business except from inside the building.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 15 of 67



o m

J.

K.

2. There shall be no show window, sign, or other advertising matter visible from outside the
building.

3. Such uses shall be conducted for the convenience of the occupants of the building only and shall
not cater to outside trade.

4.  The planning commission shall determine the compatibility of such establishments based on the
nature, size and number proposed with respect to the number of dwelling units to be served and
the availability of similar services in the vicinity.

5. Detailed plans shall be submitted with the application for use-on-review giving the nature, exact
size and location of each such use within the building, the location of all entrances to such use
and the exact location of all building ground floor entrances and exits.

Group day-child care homes, if the provider does not live on site, provided they meet the requirements
of section 4.91, "Requirements for child day care centers and group day-child care homes when
considered as uses permitted on review," and child éay-care centers, provided they meet the
requirements of section 4.91, "Requirements for child day-care centers and group éay-child care homes
when considered as uses permitted on review."

Private golf courses, swimming clubs, country clubs, and tennis clubs.

Assisted living facilities.

Hospitals and sanitariums.

Private or nonprofit sports playing fields, none of which shall be used for commercial purposes.

Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.

Public Safety Facilities, subject to the standards of section 4.107.

5.12.04. Area regulations. All buildings shall be set back from street or road right-of-way and lot lines to
comply with the following yard requirements.

5.12.05. Front yard.

A.

For houses, duplexes and multi-dwelling structures and developments the minimum depth of the front
yard shall be thirty-five (35) feet and in no case shall an accessory building be located to extend into
the front yard. The planning commission may approve a reduction of the front yard if it finds such
reduction consistent with section 6.50, "Procedures for authorizing uses permitted on review," and the
administrative standards for approval.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, shall have a front yard set back
of thirty-five (35) feet.

5.12.06. Side yard.

A.  For single-story dwellings, located on interior lots, side yards shall be not less than eight (8) feet in
width.

B.  For two- and three-story dwellings there shall be side yards of not less than twelve (12) feet each.

C.  For buildings more than three (3) stories in height, one (1) foot additional side yard on each side of the
main building shall be added for each additional two (2) feet in excess of thirty-six (36) feet in height.

D.  For unattached buildings of accessory use there shall be a side yard of not less than eight (8) feet;
provided, however, that unattached one-story buildings of accessory use shall not be required to set

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 16 of 67



back more than five (5) feet from an interior side lot line when all parts of the accessory building are
located more than ninety (90) feet behind the front property line.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, and buildings accessory to
dwellings, shall set back from all side lot lines a distance of not less than twenty-five (25) feet.

5.12.07. Rear yard.

A.

For main buildings of three (3) stories in height and less, other than garage apartments, there shall be a
rear yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet.

For all main buildings more than three (3) stories in height, there shall be a rear yard of not less than
thirty (30) feet.

A garage apartment may be located in the rear yard of another dwelling, but shall not be located closer
than ten (10) feet to the rear lot line. Unattached buildings of accessory use shall not be located closer
to any rear lot line than five (5) feet.

5.12.08. Lot width.

A.

For houses and duplexes served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a minimum lot width of
seventy-five (75) feet at the front building line. For houses and duplexes not served by a sanitary sewer
system there shall be a minimum lot width of one hundred (100) feet at the front building line.

For multi-dwelling structures and developments there shall be a minimum lot width of one hundred
(100) feet at the front building line.

5.12.09. Intensity of use.

A.  The appropriate development density of each multi-dwelling structure or development project having
a density of twelve (12) dwelling units or more per acre shall be determined by the planning
commission, but shall not exceed twenty-four (24) dwelling units per acre.

B.  For each house, and buildings accessory thereto, served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a lot
area of not less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet.

C.  For each duplex served by a sanitary sewer system there shall be a lot area of not less than twelve
thousand (12,000) square feet.

D.  For multi-dwelling structures and developments of one (1) and two (2) stories served by a sanitary
sewer system, the lot area requirements shall be not less than nine thousand (9,000) square feet plus
an additional one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet for each dwelling unit.

E. For those residential structures exceeding two (2) stories served by a sanitary sewer system, the
minimum lot area requirements shall be as follows:

Multi-Dwelling Lot Area

Structures Requirement

3—5 story 12,000 square feet plus 1,200 square feet per
dwelling unit.

6—8 story 12,000 square feet plus 1,050 square feet per
dwelling unit.

9—12 story 12,000 square feet plus 1,000 square feet per
dwelling unit.

13 story and over 12,000 square feet plus 900 square feet per
dwelling unit.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 17 of 67




For those structures which provide off-street parking within the main building, the lot area
requirement may be reduced two hundred (200) square feet per such parking space.

F. Usable open space areas and recreation uses for multi-dwelling developments and structures may
include a community center, a golf course, a swimming pool, or parks, playgrounds or other public
recreational uses. Any structures involved in such uses, including lighted tennis courts and swimming
pools, shall have a 35-foot setback from all periphery boundary lines. For developments with a density
of twelve (12) dwelling units per acre or more, the amount of land set aside for usable open space and
recreational uses shall not be less than fifteen (15) percent of the gross development area for a multi-
dwelling structure or development occupying twenty (20) or more acres, or ten (10) percent for a
multi-dwelling structure or development occupying more than eight (8) but less than twenty (20) acres.

G. There shall be a lot area of not less than twelve thousand (12,000) square feet where a garage
apartment is located on the same lot with a house served by a sanitary sewer. Where a garage
apartment is located in the rear yard of a duplex or multi-dwelling structure or development served by
a sanitary sewer, the lot area shall not be less than one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet
more than is required for the duplex or multi-dwelling structure or development.

H.  There shall be a lot area of not less than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet where a garage
apartment is located on the same lot with a house not served by a sanitary sewer system. When a
garage apartment is located in the rear yard of a duplex or multi-dwelling structure or development,
not served by a sanitary sewer system, the lot area shall not be less than five thousand (5,000) square
feet more than is required for the duplex or multi-dwelling structure or development.

. For those houses and buildings accessory thereto, not served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be
a minimum lot area of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet; however, a greater area may be required
based on recommendations by the health department.

J. For duplexes and buildings accessory thereto, not served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a
minimum lot area of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet; however, a greater area may be required
based on recommendations by the health department.

K. For multi-dwelling structures and developments not served by a sanitary sewer system, there shall be a
lot area of not less than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet for the first two (2) units, plus two
thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet for each additional dwelling unit. Where off-street parking is
provided within the main structure the lot area requirement may be reduced one hundred fifty (150)
square feet per such parking space. However, in any case a greater lot area than herein specified may
be required based on recommendations by the health department.

L. For those dwellings and buildings accessory thereto not served by a public water supply there shall be a
minimum lot area as prescribed in the minimum subdivision regulations for Knoxville and Knox County,
Tennessee.

M.  For churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings and buildings accessory to
dwellings, the lot area shall be adequate to provide the yard areas required by this section and the off-
street parking areas required in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these regulations;
provided, however, that the lot area for a church shall not be less than thirty thousand (30,000) square
feet.

5.12.10. Maximum lot coverage. The maximum lot area which may be covered by main buildings shall be as
follows:

Multi-Dwelling Maximum Net
Structures Building Coverage
Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 18 of 67



2 story or less 30%
3—5 story 30%
6—38 story 25%
9—12 story 20%
13 story and over 17%

5.12.11. Height regulations. Houses and duplexes shall not exceed thirty-six (36) feet in height. The height of
multi-dwelling structures approved as a use-on-review by the planning commission shall be determined by the
planning commission. The height of other main buildings shall be unlimited. Accessory buildings shall not exceed
eighteen (18) feet in height; provided, however, the eighteen (18) feet height limitation may be exceeded to
conform the pitch of the accessory building roof to the pitch of the roof of the principal use. In no case shall the
bottom chord of the roof truss or the bottom of the ceiling joist of an accessory building exceed eighteen (18) feet
in height.

5.12.12. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these
regulations, except as provided for in subsection 5.12.09, "Intensity of use," above.
5.12.13. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, & 1, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-97-7-101, & 1, 8-25-97; Ord. No.
0-97-10-101B, & 1, 11-17-97; Ord. No. 0-96-11-104, § 1, 3-23-98; Ord. No. 0-98-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord.
No. 0-98-12-102, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A),
3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-17-8-
101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. O-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19;
Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, § 1, 3-28-22)

5.13. PR Planned Residential Zone.

5.13.01. General description. The regulations established in this zone are intended to provide optional
methods of land development which encourage more imaginative solutions to environmental design problems.
Residential areas thus established would be characterized by a unified building and site development program,
open space for recreation and provision for commercial, religious, educational, and cultural facilities which are
integrated with the total project by unified architectural and open space treatment.

Each planned unit development shall be compatible with the surrounding or adjacent zones. Such
compatibility shall be determined by the planning commission by review of the development plans.

A planned unit development occupying not less than twenty (20) acres may contain commercial uses as
hereinafter provided.

5.13.02. Permitted uses.

A.  The following dwelling units are permitted:
1. Houses and attached houses, not including mobile homes.
2. Duplexes.
3. Multi-dwelling structures and developments.

B.  Accessory uses, buildings and structures.

C.  Commercial uses in a planned unit development occupying not less than twenty (20) acres only.
Commercial uses shall include marinas and boat liveries, provided they meet the requirements of
section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat livery development," of these regulations. One (1) acre of

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 19 of 67



commercial uses may be permitted for each one hundred (100) units in the project provided that
twenty-five (25) percent of the total units proposed shall be ready for occupancy prior to any
commercial building permit being issued. Such commercial uses shall conform with the use and parking
requirements of the Shopping Center Zone as regulated in section 5.34, "Shopping Center Zone (SC),"
of these regulations.

D. Recreation uses. Recreation uses may include a community center, a golf course, a swimming pool, or
parks, playground or other public recreational uses. Any structures involved in such uses, including
lighted tennis courts, and swimming pools, shall have a 35-foot set back from all periphery boundary
lines. The amount of land set aside for usable open space and recreational use shall be not less than
fifteen (15) percent of the gross development area for a planned unit development occupying twenty
(20) or more acres or ten (10) percent for a planned unit development occupying more than eight (8)
but less than twenty (20) acres.

E. Education uses.

F. Community facilities uses such as churches and other religious institutions and nonprofit clubs such as
country clubs, swimming and/or tennis clubs.

G. Other uses, deemed compatible with the proposed development by the planning commission,
including home occupations subject to section 4.90, "Home occupations."

H.  Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations",
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

I Yard sales and rummage sales.

J. Bay-Family child care homes and group day-child care homes, if the provider lives on site, subject to the
following conditions:

14. Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking." In addition, parking and
loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children, as well as
safe and convenient ingress and egress to and from the site. The off-street parking and
circulation plan shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering
and public works.

K. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
5.13.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Group day-child care homes, if the provider does not live on site, provided they meet the requirements
of section 4.91, "Requirements for child éay-care centers and group eay-child care homes, when
considered as uses permitted on review," and child ¢ay-care centers, provided they meet the
requirements of section 4.91, "Requirements for child éay-care centers and group eay-child care
homes, when considered as uses permitted on review."

B.  Assisted living facilities.

C.  Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 20 of 67



D. Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.
E. Public Safety Facilities, subject to the standards of section 4.107.

5.13.04. Area regulations. All buildings and structures shall be set back from street or road right-of-way lines
and from the periphery of the project to comply with the following requirements.

5.13.05. Front yard.
A.  Houses, twenty (20) feet.

B.  All other as determined by the planning commission with the setback being increased in proportion to
structure height, but not less than fifteen (15) feet from a street or road right-of-way.

5.13.06. Periphery boundary. All buildings shall be set back from the periphery boundary not less than thirty-
five (35) feet unless adjacent to A, Agricultural, RA, Low Density Residential, RB, General Residential, RAE, Exclusive
Residential, PR, Planned Residential, OS, Open Space, E, Estates, or TC, Town Center zone districts, where the
planning commission may reduce this set back to not less than fifteen (15) feet.

5.13.07. Side yard.

A.  Asdetermined by the planning commission but not greater than fifteen (15) feet unless this setback is
also the periphery boundary.

B.  Where side yards are reduced to zero (0) the development site plans and restrictive covenants which
provide for the privacy of such units and the right of maintenance of exterior walls facing adjacent
properties shall be submitted to the planning commission.

5.13.08. Rear yard.

A.  Asdetermined by the planning commission but the planning commission may not require a setback
greater than thirty-five (35) feet.

5.13.09. Default minimum setbacks. For situations when there are no building setbacks specified on
approved development plans and when not controlled by a periphery boundary setback, the minimum setbacks for
main structures will be as follows:

Front: Not less than twenty (20) feet.
Side: Not less than five (5) feet.
Rear: Not less than fifteen (15) feet.

Accessory structures, when not controlled by the periphery boundary setback, shall be subject to the
minimum accessory structure setbacks of the RA, Low Density Residential zoning district.

5.13.10. Lot area and size.

A.  Developments which subdivide and transfer property with the sale of individual units but which do not
provide common open space controlled and maintained by a public body or a duly established
homeowners association shall provide lot areas which are not less than three thousand (3,000) square
feet in size and which shall average four thousand (4,000) square feet per lot for the entire
development.

B.  Developments which subdivide and transfer property with the sale of individual units and which
provide common open space controlled and maintained by a duly established home owners
association in accordance with state law shall be permitted to create lots less than three thousand
(3,000) square feet in size subject to planning commission approval of a site plan, consistent with the
intent as stated in the general description of this section.

5.13.11. Maximum site coverage.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 21 of 67



A.  The maximum area which may be covered by buildings shall be fifty (50) percent of the gross acreage
of the site.

5.13.12. Height regulations.

A.  Houses and duplexes shall not exceed three (3) stories.

B.  Height of all others shall be as determined by the planning commission.
5.13.13. Population density.

A.  The appropriate development density of each project shall be determined by the planning commission
but shall not exceed twenty-four (24) dwelling units per acre excluding areas set aside for churches,
schools, or commercial uses.

5.13.14. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these
regulations.

5.13.15. Administrative procedure for a planned residential development.

A.  The planning commission may recommend establishment of a PR, Planned Residential Zone or an
application may be made to the planning commission for rezoning to PR, Planned Residential in
accordance with the regulations set forth in section 6.30, "Amendments," of this resolution.

B.  No building permit shall be issued for development of any property within a PR, Planned Residential
Zone until a written application for review and approval of the development plan has been filed with
the planning commission. This same requirement shall apply to multi-dwelling structures and
developments as required under the RB, General Residential Zone, when the density of the
development is twelve (12) dwelling units per acre or greater. Said application shall be made in
conformity with section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these
regulations and shall be accompanied by the following information:

1.  The application must be accompanied by an overall development plan showing the use or uses,
dimensions and locations of proposed streets, parks, playgrounds, school sites, and other open
spaces, with such other pertinent information as may be necessary to determine the
contemplated arrangement or use which makes it desirable to apply regulations and
requirements different from those ordinarily applicable under these regulations.

2.  The proposed development plan shall be prepared by and have the seal of an architect or
engineer duly registered to practice in the state.

3.  The planning commission shall review the conformity of the proposed development and shall
recognize principles of good civic design, land use planning and landscape architecture. The
planning commission and county board of commissioners may impose conditions regarding
layout, circulation, and performance of the proposed development and may require that
appropriate deed restrictions be filed.

4.  Applications considered under the planned residential zoning must be filed by the property
owner or their designated representative, by an appropriate governmental agency, or the county
board of commissioners.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 1, 6-21-96; Ord. 0-97-10-101B, § 1, 11-17-97; Ord. No.

0-96-11-104, § 1, 3-23-98; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No.
0-05-6-103, § 1(Exh. A), 7-25-05; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. O-11-2-101, § 1(Exh. B), 3-28-
11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-17-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. O-17-10-101, §
1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, §§ 1, 2, 3-28-22)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 22 of 67



5.22. A Agricultural Zone.

5.22.01. General description. This zone provides for a wide range of agricultural and related uses as well as
residential uses with low population densities and other compatible uses which generally require large areas or
open spaces.

5.22.02. Uses permitted.

A.
B.

Houses and duplexes.
Churches, schools, libraries and museums.

Farming, including all types of agriculture and horticulture; commercial dairies; rabbit, goat and other
animal or fish and minnow raising farms; egg-producing ranches and farms devoted to the hatching,
raising, fattening and butchering of chickens, pigeons, turkeys and other poultry; and hog and other
feeding for commercial purposes.

Garage apartments.

Mobile homes, but not mobile home parks.
Portable sawmills.

Roadside stands.

Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

Public utilities, such as transmission lines, substations, railroad lines, bus loading or waiting platforms,
dams, water treatment plants, including water filtration and storage facilities, and other similar public
service uses and buildings, and also such other buildings and structures, as are used by utility and
sanitary districts in the performance of services in which they are authorized to engage.

Home occupation subject to section 4.90, "Home occupations."

Uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses, including parking of not more than two (2)
commercial vehicles and/or trailers used by the residents in their home occupation.

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.

BayFamily child- care homes and group day-child care homes, if the provider lives on site, subject to the
following conditions:

14. Off-street parking, as regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements." In addition,
parking and loading areas shall be designed for safe off-street loading and unloading of children,
as well as safe and convenient ingress and egress to and from the site. The off-street parking and
circulation plan shall be designed to meet the requirements of the department of engineering
and public works.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 23 of 67



0. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

5.22.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Aircraft landing fields, hangars and equipment.

1.

The general intent of this subsection is to insure the development of aircraft landing fields,
hangars, equipment and local traffic patterns in agricultural zones, which will also afford some
protection to residences in the area and which will hereby promote the public health, safety,
morals and general welfare of the citizens of the county.

a. Before a landing field can be located in an agricultural zone, plans for the run-ways, local
traffic pattern, hangars and other incidental uses of the airport shall be submitted to the
planning commission for approval.

b.  Where airport landing fields and hangars are already established in the county, plans for
the expansion of additional buildings, run-ways, hangars, or where local traffic pattern has
been changed because of expansion, or where additional uses are added such as the sale of
planes, flight schools, or eating establishments (except vending machines) shall be
submitted to the planning commission for approval.

The planning commission shall have the power to authorize the issuance of a permit after the
plans have been approved and certified by the county board of commissioners, and before a
permit can be issued by the director of the code administration and enforcement department for
an addition to an existing operation or the location of a new airport, if the planning commission
finds that the conditions are such that the location or expansion will not:

a. Increase the hazard from planes flying over houses.

b. Diminish value of land and buildings throughout the surrounding area within one thousand
(1,000) feet of the airport.

c. Increase the congestion or traffic hazards in the public streets and highways adjacent to
the airport.

d.  Otherwise impair the public health, safety, comfort, morals and general welfare of the
inhabitants of the county.

Then the planning commission may impose such conditions as will lessen any injury to the
character of the area and shall submit their recommendations to the county board of
commissioners.

Administration. The planning commission shall approve or disapprove the plans, and if approved,
shall submit the plans to the county board of commissioners who shall hold a public hearing
thereon, the time and place of which shall be given by one (1) publication in a newspaper of
general circulation in the county (T.C.A. §§ 13-404 and 13-405). Such notice shall state the place
at which the text and maps as certified by the planning commission may be examined.

B.  Sanitary landfill subject to meeting all requirements set forth in section 4.70, "Sanitary landfills," and
section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

C. Boat liveries, subject to the standards of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat livery
development," of these regulations.

D. Cemeteries.

E. Dog kennels.

F. Golf courses and public, private, and commercial golf driving ranges.

(Supp. No. 21)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

Page 24 of 67



G. Indoor storage.

H.  Livery stables.

. Lodging and boarding houses.
J. Rifle ranges.

K.  The following uses may be permitted provided that, no such use shall be located nearer than three
hundred (300) feet to a public park, school, church, hospital, sanitarium, residential zone or land
subdivided and restricted to residential uses, except as otherwise provided in section 4.50, "Standards
for mining and mineral extraction," of these regulations.

1. Mining and mineral extraction subject to all requirements set forth in section 4.10,
"Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all zones," and section 4.50,
"Standards for mining and mineral extraction," of these regulations.

L. Demolition landfills, off-site, subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations," subsection 4.80.01.B,
"Demolition landfills," (off-site generated waste).

M.  Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals meeting the following standards:

1. No animals shall be kept outdoors within one hundred (100) feet of any residence other than that
of the owner or user of the property.

2. The applicant shall demonstrate that the use of the property will not create nuisance conditions
for adjoining properties due to noise, odor, or lack of adequate sanitation.

N.  Group day-child care homes, if the provider does not live on site, provided they meet the requirements
of section 4.91, "Requirements for child day-care centers and group day-child care homes, when
considered as uses permitted on review," and child éay-care centers, provided they meet the
requirements of section 4.91, "Requirements for child éay-care centers and group eay-child care
homes, when considered as uses permitted on review."

O. Public parks and playgrounds and public, private and commercial sports playing fields.

Commercial mulching operation, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through
4.10.19, "Development standards for uses permitted on review," section 4.96, "Standards for the use-
on-review approval of commercial mulching operations," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing
uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

Q. Composting facility, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through 4.10.19,
"Development standards for uses permitted on review," section 4.95, "Standards for the use-on-review
approval of solid waste processing facilities," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses
permitted on review," of these regulations.

R.  Marinas, subject to the standards of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat livery development,"
of these regulations.

S. Indoor and outdoor paintball airsoft ranges, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary
Regulations," section 4.97, "Standards for the approval of indoor and outdoor paintball/airsoft ranges."

T.  Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

U.  Storage of school buses under contract to a public or private school system. See article 3, "General
provisions," section 3.54, "Storage of school buses" for facility development criteria.

V.  Retail sales of agricultural products grown on site, or acquired elsewhere and then maintained on the
site, subject to the following restrictions:

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 25 of 67



There shall be a minimum lot area of ten (10) acres.

Sales area and related facilities, including parking area, shall not occupy more than four (4) acres
of the property. The sales area shall be subordinate and incidental in scope and size to the
principal agricultural use of the property.

a. "Sales area" is defined as the area where the purchase of agricultural products takes place
and where certain fertilizer, herbicides, fungicides, irrigation equipment and landscape
supplies are stored or displayed.

b. "Related facilities" is defined as non-connected buildings, sheds, coverings or awnings used
for storage of equipment or material that is used in the business. Greenhouses are not
considered related facilities.

The majority of retail inventory must be grown on site. Items for sale must be limited to those
produced through farming as described under subsection 5.22.02 C. above; nursery products
such as trees, shrubs, flowers, bedding plants, and other plant stock; and mulch, compost,
fertilizer, irrigation equipment, herbicides, fungicides and other landscape materials, not
produced on site.

The retail sales area shall be open to the public only between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.

Any proposed signage shall comply with section 3.90.06, "Agricultural Zones", of these
regulations and shall be approved with the site plan.

The retail operation shall be screened from adjoining property by a landscaping screen, provided
that the planning commission finds that the screening is necessary to protect adjoining
properties from visual and noise impacts of the sales area.

The retail sales area, including the building layout, parking area, and signage, shall be designed to
minimize its impact on the character of the surrounding area.

W. Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.

X. Public Safety Facilities, subject to the standards of section 4.107.

5.22.04. Area regulations. All buildings shall be set back from street or road right-of-way lines and lot lines to
comply with the following yard requirements.

A.  Frontyard.

1.

For dwellings the minimum depth of the front yard shall be forty (40) feet and in no case shall an
accessory building, other than accessory farm buildings, be located between the principal
structure and the street.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, shall have a front yard
setback of fifty (50) feet.

B.  Sideyard.

1.

For single-story dwellings, located on interior lots, side yards shall be not less than ten (10) feet in
width.

For unattached buildings of accessory use there shall be a side yard of not less than ten (10) feet
provided, however, that unattached one-story buildings of accessory use shall not be required to
set back more than eight (8) feet from an interior side lot line when all parts of the accessory
building are located more than ninety (90) feet behind the front property line.

Churches and other main and accessory buildings, other than dwellings, and buildings accessory
to dwellings, shall set back from all side lot lines a distance of not less than thirty-five (35) feet.

(Supp. No. 21)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

Page 26 of 67



C.  Rearyard.

1.  For main buildings, other than garage apartments, there shall be a rear yard of not less than
thirty-five (35) feet.

2. A garage apartment may be located in the rear yard of another dwelling, but shall not be located
closer than fifteen (15) feet to the rear lot line. Unattached buildings of accessory use shall not be
located closer to any rear lot line than eight (8) feet.

D. Lot width. No lot shall be less than one hundred (100) feet wide at the building line.
E. Intensity of use.

1. Forresidential development, there shall be a lot area of not less than one (1) acre per dwelling,
as follows:

a. For each house or mobile home, and buildings accessory thereto, there shall be a minimum
lot area of not less than one (1) acre.

b. For each duplex, and buildings accessory thereto, there shall be a minimum lot area of not
less than two (2) acres.

c. For each multi-dwelling development, and buildings accessory thereto, up to two (2)
dwelling units (two (2) houses or a house with a garage apartment) may be located on a
recorded lot that is two (2) acres or more.

2. For uses other than residential development, the lot area shall be adequate to provide the yard
areas required by this section and the off-street parking areas required in section 3.50, "Off-
street parking requirements," of these regulations; provided, however, that the lot area for a
church shall not be less than one (1) acre.

F. Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory buildings shall cover not more than thirty (30) percent of
the lot area.

5.22.05. Height regulations. No main building shall exceed three (3) stories or thirty-five (35) feet in height.
Accessory buildings shall not exceed eighteen (18) feet in height; provided, however, the eighteen (18) feet height
limitation may be exceeded to conform the pitch of the accessory building roof to the pitch of the roof of the
principal use. In no case shall the bottom chord of the roof truss or the bottom of the ceiling joist of an accessory
building exceed eighteen (18) feet in height.

5.22.06. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these
regulations.

(Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-98-12-102, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99;
Ord. No. 0-99-8-101, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, & 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00;
Ord. No. 0-00-11-106, & 1(Exh. A), 1-4-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-102, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, & 1(Exh.
A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-01-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 4-23-01; Ord. No. 0-01-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-24-01; Ord. No. 0-07-4-
102, § 1(Exh. A), 5-29-07; Ord. No. 0-11-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-23-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12;
Ord. No. 0-13-11-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-27-14; Ord. No. 0-17-7-102, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-17; Ord. No. 0-17-8-101, §
1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.31. CA General Business Zone.

5.31.01. General description. This zone is for general retail business and services but not for manufacturing or
for processing materials other than farm products, except that portable sawmills are allowed.

5.31.02. Uses permitted.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 27 of 67



Houses and duplexes.
Aircraft landing fields, hangars, and equipment.

Armories, undertaking establishments, and assembly halls.

o 0o =» »r

Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

E. Canneries.

F. Child care agencies

GE. Churches, schools, libraries and museums.
HG. Dry cleaning shops, except that such use shall not include fabric dyeing.

IH.  Farming, including all types of agriculture and horticulture, except as noted below under subsection
5.31.03, "Uses permitted on review," subsection I.

M. Garage apartments.

K. Hotels, motels, and transient mobile home parks, provided that water and sewage disposal plans meet
the requirements of the county health department.

LK. Lodging and boarding houses.
ME.  Mobile homes, but not mobile home parks.

NM. Motor vehicles and bicycle service and repair shops, skating rinks, dance halls and establishments
selling beer for consumption on the premises.

ON. Offices, banks, theaters, indoor and outdoor, except that in any outdoor theater the screen of such
shall be so erected or located that its face, or that side upon which the motion picture image is
projected, shall not be visible from any state highway, studios, photograph galleries, barber shops,
police and fire stations, service stations, restaurants, cafes and lunch rooms, grocery, clothing or shoe
stores, and other retail business or commercial enterprise which is similar in character and not
injurious to adjacent premises or occupants thereof by the emission of dust, fumes, smoke, odor,
noise, or vibration.

PO. Portable sawmills.

QP. Retail poultry business, provided that the enterprise is conducted in strict compliance with the
regulations of the health department, and that adjacent premises or the occupants thereof are not
injured by reason of the emission of dust, odors, or noise.

RQ. Roadside stands.

SR. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

TS. Yard sales, rummage sales and flea markets.
UF. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
VY. Indoor paintball ranges.

WA Storage of school buses under contract to a public or private school system. (See article 3,
"Supplementary regulations," section 3.54, "Storage of school buses," for development criteria for
school bus storage facilities.)

XW.  Public Safety Facilities.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 28 of 67



YX%. Vehicle Repair/Service.
5.31.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals.

BE. Self-service storage facilities.

CB. Commercial mulching operation, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through
4.10.19, "Development standards for uses permitted on review," section 4.96, "Standards for the use-
on-review approval of commercial mulching operations," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing
uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

DE. Composting facility, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through 4.10.19,
"Development standards for uses permitted on review," section 4.95, "Standards for the use-on-review
approval of solid waste processing facilities," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses
permitted on review," of these regulations.

EF. Marinas and boat liveries, subject to the standards of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat
livery development," of these regulations.

FG. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

GH. Commercial dairies; commercial kennels, rabbit, goat, and other animal or fish and minnow raising
farms; egg producing ranches and farms devoted to the hatching, raising, fattening, and butchering of
chickens, pigeons, turkeys and other poultry; and hog and other livestock feeding for commercial
purposes, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary regulations", section 4.99,
"Requirements for certain agricultural uses, when considered as uses permitted on review in CA,
General Business and CB, Business and Manufacturing Zones."

Hi.  Contractor's storage yard.
4. Indoor self-service storage facilities.

5.31.04. Storage. Outdoor storage of material and equipment is prohibited unless it is fully screened on all
sides by an opaque screen and is located in the rear of the principal permitted use or structure. This shall not apply
to the display for sale of new or used vehicles in working condition, unless otherwise provided for in these
regulations. These requirements also shall not apply to materials and equipment stored on a construction site
where such materials or equipment are to be used, or to the storage of commercial vehicles.

5.31.05. Height. No building shall exceed forty-five (45) feet or three (3) stories in height.

5.31.06. Lot area. The minimum requirements for every building or portion of a building used as a dwelling
shall be seven thousand five hundred (7,500) square feet for the first household, and five thousand (5,000) square
feet of lot area for each additional household: except that for hotels, motels, and transient mobile home parks, the
minimum lot area shall be one (1) acre and in addition to the seven thousand five hundred (7,500) square feet of
lot area required for the owner or operator there shall be at least one thousand eight hundred (1,800) square feet
of lot area for each sleeping accommodation provided for transient guests of the hotel, motel or transient mobile
home park, and the building area of such hotel, motel or transient mobile home park shall be not greater than fifty
(50) percent of the lot area.

5.31.07. Setback. No building shall be located closer than twenty (20) feet to the road line; no building or
portion of a building used as a dwelling shall be located closer than twenty-five (25) feet to the road line; and no
hotel or tourist court shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to the road line.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 29 of 67



5.31.08. Side yards. There shall be a side yard on each side of every building or portion of a building used as a
dwelling, which side yard shall have a minimum width of five (5) feet, increased by two (2) feet for each story
above the first story.

5.31.09. Rear yard. There shall be a rear yard on every lot, which rear yard shall have a minimum depth of
sixteen (16) feet for a one-story building, twenty (20) feet for a two-story building, and twenty-four (24) feet for a
three-story building. If the building is designed for residential purposes only, the provisions of the RA, Low Density
Residential Zone shall apply.

5.31.10. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50.

(Ord. No. 0-95-3-102, § 1, 4-24-95; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No.
0-98-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-16-98; Ord. No. 0-99-8-101, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No.
0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00; Ord. No. 0-00-11-106, § 1(Exh. A), 1-4-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-
01; Ord. No. 0-01-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 4-23-01; Ord. No. 0-02-11-101, § 1(Exh. A), 12-16-02; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, §
1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-09-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-10; Ord. No. 0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No.
0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-13-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-23-13; Ord. No. O-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-
20-17; Ord. No. 0-18-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-19-18; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-20-1-
101, § 1(Exh. A), 2-24-20)

5.32. CB Business and Manufacturing Zone.

5.32.01. General description. This zone provides for a wide range of business and manufacturing uses. The
nature of such businesses is to attract large volumes of automobile and truck traffic and to have adverse effects on
surrounding properties. Hence, they are not properly associated with, nor compatible with residential or
institutional uses or with other uses that require an environment free of noise, odors and congestion. Uses
permitted in the CB, Business and Manufacturing Zone are intensive users of roads, sewers and other public
facilities.

5.32.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Aircraft landing fields, hangars, and equipment.

B Amusement resorts.

C. Armories, undertaking establishments, and assembly halls.
D

Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this

resolution.
E. Book bindery.
F. Bottling or packaging works.
G.  Building contractors', building, electrical, and plumbing supply establishments.
H.  Canneries.

l. Child care agencies

M. Churches, schools, libraries, and museums.

K$.  Creamery.

Lk. Dry cleaning shops, except that such use shall not include fabric dyeing.
ME. Electrical appliances and equipment assembly.

NM. Electronic equipment assembly and manufacturing.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 30 of 67



ON. Engraving and/or printing plant.

PS. Farming, including all types of agriculture and horticulture, except as noted below under subsection
5.32.03, "Uses permitted on review," subsection L.

QP. Furniture manufacturing.
RQ. Garage apartments.

SR. Hotels, motels, and transient mobile home parks, provided that water and sewage disposal plans meet
the requirements of the county health department.

TS. Ice manufacture or storage of not more than twenty (20) tons of ice.

UF. Instrument and meter manufacturing.

VY. Laundry and dry cleaning establishments.

W\, Leather goods fabrication.

XW. Lodging and boarding houses.

Y%. Lumber yards for sale, storage or distribution, but not manufacturing.

Z¥. (Deleted May 5, 1970.)

AAZ. Monument engraving and sales, but no stone cutting, grinding or polishing.

BBAA. Motor vehicles and bicycle service and repair shops, skating rinks, dance halls and establishments
selling beer for consumption on the premises.

CCBB. Offices, banks, theaters, indoor and outdoor except that in any outdoor theater the screen of
such shall be so erected or located that its face, or that side upon which the motion picture image is
projected, shall not be visible from any state highway, studios, photograph galleries, barber shops,
police and fire stations, service stations, restaurants, cafes and lunch rooms, grocery, clothing or shoe
stores, and other retail business or commercial enterprise which is similar in character and not
injurious to adjacent premises or occupants thereof by the emission of dust, fumes, smoke, odor,
noise, or vibration.

DDee. Optical goods manufacturing.

EEBDB. Paper products fabrication.

FFEE. Produce markets.

GGFF. Portable sawmills.

HHGG. Public utility service yard or electrical receiving or transforming station.

IHH. Retail poultry business, provided that the enterprise is conducted in strict compliance with the
regulations of the Health Department, and that adjacent premises or the occupants thereof are not
injured by reason of the emission of dust, odors, or noise.

JJH.  Roadside stands.
KK3. Sporting goods manufacturing.

LLKK. The manufacturing, compounding, processing, packaging and treatment of bakery goods, candy, and
food products.

MM, Wholesale, warehousing, or distribution enterprise.

NNMM.  Any other retail, wholesale, or light industrial use similar in nature to those described.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 31 of 67



OONN. Truck, tractor, and heavy equipment sales, but not motor freight terminals.

PPOO. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary
regulations," subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

QQRP. Yard sales, rummage sales and flea market.
RRQAQ. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

SSRR. Commercial mulching operation, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
section 4.96, "Standards for the use on review approval of commercial mulching operations."

TTSS. Indoor paintball ranges.

UUFF. Storage of school buses under contract to a public or private school system. See article 3,
"Supplementary regulations," section 3.54, "Storage of school buses," for development criteria for
school bus storage facilities.

VVUU. Contractor's storage yard.
WWAA, Public Safety Facilities.
XXVAAL, Vehicle Repair/Service.
5.32.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Sanitary landfill subject to meeting all requirements set forth in sections 4.70, "Sanitary landfills," and
6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

B. The following uses may be permitted, provided that, no such use shall be located nearer than three
hundred (300) feet to a public park, school, church, hospital, sanitarium, residential zone or land
subdivided and restricted to residential uses, except as otherwise provided in sections 4.10,
"Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all zones," and 4.50, "Standards for
mining and mineral extraction," of these regulations.

1. Mining and mineral extraction subject to all requirements set forth in sections 4.10,
"Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all zones," and 4.50,
"Standards for mining and mineral extraction," of these regulations.

C. Demolition landfills, off-site, subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations," subsection 4.80.01.B,
"Demolition landfills," (off-site generated waste).

D.  Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals.

EF. Self-service storage facilities.

FG. Composting facility, consistent with the requirements of subsections 4.10.14 through 4.10.19,
"Development standards for uses permitted on review", section 4.95, "Standards for the use-on-review
approval of solid waste processing facilities," and section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses
permitted on review," of these regulations.

GH. Marinas and boat liveries subject to the requirements set forth in section 4.30, "Standards for marina
and boat livery development," of these regulations.

Hi. Outdoor paintball ranges, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
section 4.97, "Standards for the approval of indoor and outdoor paintball ranges."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 32 of 67



14, Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Jk.  Commercial dairies; commercial kennels, rabbit, goat, and other animal or fish and minnow raising
farms; egg producing ranches and farms devoted to the hatching, raising, fattening, and butchering of
chickens, pigeons, turkeys and other poultry; and hog and other livestock feeding for commercial
purposes, subject to the requirements of article 4, "Supplementary regulations," section 4.99,
"Requirements for certain agricultural uses, when considered as uses permitted on review in CA,
General Business Zones, and CB, Business and Manufacturing Zones."

Kt.  Indoor self-service storage facilities.

5.32.04. Height. No building may be built to a height exceeding twice the width of the road upon which the
building abuts; buildings may exceed this height limit providing the portion of the building higher than twice the
width of the road is set back from every road and lot line one (1) foot for each three (3) feet of height in excess of
twice the road width.

5.32.05. Lot area. Requirements for hotels, motels, and transient mobile home parks: The minimum lot area
shall be one (1) acre.

5.32.06. Setback. No building shall be located closer than twenty (20) feet to the road line; no building or
portion of a building used as a dwelling shall be located closer than twenty-five (25) feet to the road line; and no
hotel or tourist court shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to the road line.

5.32.07. Side yards. There shall be a side yard on each side of every building or portion of a building used as a
dwelling, which side yard shall have a minimum width of five (5) feet, increased by two (2) feet for each story
above the first story.

5.32.08. Rear yard. There shall be a rear yard on every lot, which rear yard shall have a minimum depth of
sixteen (16) feet for a one-story building, twenty (20) feet for a two-story building, and twenty-four (24) feet for a
three-story building.

5.32.09. Off-street parking. As regulated by section 3.50.

(Ord. No. 0-96-1-102, § 1, 2-26-96; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No.
0-98-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-16-98; Ord. No. 0-99-8-101, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No.
0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00; Ord. No. 0-00-11-106, § 1(Exh. A), 1-4-01; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-
01; Ord. No. 0-01-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 4-23-01; Ord. No. 0-02-11-101, § 1(Exh. A), 12-16-02; Ord. No. 0-09-12-101, §
1(Exh. A), 1-25-10; Ord. No. 0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No.
0-13-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-23-13; Ord. No. O-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. O-18-10-102, § 1(Exh. A),
11-19-18; Ord. No. 0-19-1-102, § 1(Exh. A), 2-25-19; Ord. No. O-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-20-1-
101, § 1(Exh. A), 2-24-20)

5.33. PC Planned Commercial Zone.

5.33.01. General description. The PC, Planned Commercial Zone, is intended for a unified grouping of
commercial buildings which do not require or desire a central business district location. It is the objective of this
zone to achieve the highest quality site design, building arrangement, landscaping and traffic circulation patterns
possible.

5.33.02. Uses permitted. It is not the intent of this zone to restrict potential development by limiting uses. In

3 and-g ay-care-hemes,-when-considered-as-uses-permitted-enreview" Marinas and boat liveries
shall also be permitted, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 33 of 67



livery development," of these regulations. As per the requirements of 4.107, "Standards for use-on-review
approval of public safety facilities." Since some permitted uses may be incompatible with others the developer of a
planned commercial complex shall provide the planning commission with a list of uses permitted in the
development which shall be compatible with each other and neighboring uses as authorized under restrictive
covenants. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste), shall also be permitted. Wireless
communications facilities shall be a permitted use, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

5.33.03. Uses permitted on review. (None)

5.33.04. Appropriate size. The intent of the PC, Planned Commercial Zone is to provide the best design and
coordinated arrangement of commercial buildings. It is not likely therefore, that a planned commercial
development would contain less than twenty (20) acres. However, if in the opinion of the planning commission the
functional design of a building grouping meets the intent of these regulations the commission may approve a
planned commercial development of less than twenty (20) acres.

5.33.05. Periphery boundary. All buildings shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from any peripheral
boundary of the project, or any public street or road existing prior to the PC, Planned Commercial Zone.

5.33.06. Lot coverage. Any project divided into individual lots or building sites shall specify yard and lot
coverage requirements in its protective covenants provided however, that no buildings shall cover more than fifty
(50) percent of its lot at its ultimate expansion potential.

5.33.07. Height. In general, height shall be limited to forty-five (45) feet. However, to permit the greatest
flexibility of design the planning commission may approve greater heights provided such height is an integral part
of the building grouping and enhances the design of the entire project.

5.33.08. Parking and loading.

A.  Parking and loading requirements shall be specified in the restrictive covenants governing the
development but in no case may they be less than the requirements specified in section 3.50, "Off-
street parking requirements," of these regulations.

B. No parking shall be permitted in the front yard of any structure constructed on an individual lot unless
such parking area is landscaped with trees, shrubs, and grass islands to prevent the appearance of an
open parking lot.

5.33.09. Storage. Outdoor storage shall be prohibited unless fully screened on all sides by an opaque
ornamental screen.

5.33.10. Landscaping.

A.  Alandscape plan for the entire development shall be prepared and presented to the planning
commission for approval. This plan shall show the type and location of plantings, locate and show the
purpose of visual screens and establish a means to insure the accomplishment of the landscape plan.

B.  The landscaping plan shall include but not be limited to approaches to building entrances, appropriate
visual screens and any parking areas.

5.33.11. Access. Access to the planned commercial complex shall be designed to minimize conflicts in traffic.
Insofar as possible all lots shall be designed to front on streets within the commercial development. Lots should
not have direct access to existing streets, roads, or highways, except as may otherwise be approved by the
planning commission.

5.33.12. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.33.13. Administration.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 34 of 67



A development plan for the planned commercial complex shall be submitted to the planning
commission for approval as a use permitted on review.

Protective covenants. All development plans shall include protective covenants for the planned
commercial development. These covenants shall indicate the use and design of structures in the
planned complex as well as establishing measures to protect occupants of the development from
incompatible uses and structures. These covenants shall include but not be limited to:

1.  Astatement of the purpose and function of the planned complex.

2.  Astatement identifying the type of operations permitted listing uses permitted or performance
standards required in the development. If performance standards are proposed as the criteria, a
firm means of enforcing such standards must be included in the covenants.

3.  Alist of uses prohibited in the commercial park, or a list of the type of uses or operations which
would generally be considered to be incompatible with the purpose and function of the proposed
development.

4.  Site requirements, including minimum lot size, maximum site coverage and any front, side and
rear yard requirements for the development.

5. Parking and loading requirements of the development insuring a standard at least equal to the
minimum specified in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," of these regulations.

6. Restrictions on outdoor storage.
7. Landscaping requirements.

8. Building construction and design standards which establish specific building standards, either by
construction material or performance standards, and establish criteria as well as a means of
enforcing the requirements. An architect or engineer for the development or an architectural
review board should approve such designs and construction plans.

9.  Any other consideration which may be established to better insure that the development is in
accordance with the stated purpose and intent of the development.

The development plan shall show all streets and suggested lots. The plan shall meet all the
requirements of the minimum regulations for the subdivision and development of land in the county.
All streets in any planned commercial development shall have as a minimum standard, the standards
for minor collectors.

A revised development plan shall be submitted to the planning commission for approval of any
changes, alterations, amendments, or extensions to the development plan. Approval of such changes
may be granted if, in the opinion of the planning commission, the requested changes would be in
keeping with the intent and provisions of this resolution.

No building permit shall be issued for construction of any building on the land until the planning
commission has approved the development plan and a statement of approval has been affixed.

The building permit shall be revoked if construction of any part, or phase, of the development is not in
compliance with the approved plans.

(Ord. No. 0-96-1-102, § 1, 1-22-96; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-99-9-101, § 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No.
0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-13-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-
23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-22-2-
101, § 1, 3-28-22)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 35 of 67



5.34. SC Shopping Center Zone.

5.34.01. General description. The general intent of this section is to encourage and insure the development
of unified retail shopping centers which will promote the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare for the
citizens of the county. The purposes of these subsections are:

A.  To promote safe and efficient movement of traffic within the site of the shopping center and in
connection with adjacent access streets.

B. Tolessen the adverse effects which such shopping centers might have on the uses of adjacent land.

C. To prohibit the development of uses of a heavy repair, wholesaling, industrial, and residential character
in SC, Shopping Center Zones.

5.34.02. Uses permitted. The list below specifies the uses which shall be permitted in SC, Shopping Center
Zones. In addition to these uses, the planning commission may recommend the inclusion of other uses of a related
nature, provided that the intent of this resolution is maintained. Uses permitted:

A.  Appliance, radio and television store.

Art supply store.

B

C.  Bakery (retail).
D Bank.

E

Barber shop.

-

Camera store.
Candy store.

H. Child care agencies

IH.  Clinic (not veterinary).
Jt.  Clothing and clothing accessory store.
K. Delicatessen.

Lk. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

ME. Restaurants.

NM. Department store.

ON. Drug store.

PS. Film exchange.

QPR. Five and ten cent store.

RQ. Radio or television repair shop.
SR.  Shoe repair shop.

TS. Flower shop.

UF. Furniture store.

VY. Gift shop.

WAL Grocery store.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 36 of 67



X\, Hardware store.
Y%. Hobby store.
Z¥. Ice cream parlor.

AAZ. Jewelry store.

BBAA. Laundry and dry cleaning establishments.
CCBB. Meat market.

DDee. Music store.

EEBB. Notion or variety store.

FFEE. Photographic studio.

GGFF. Business and professional offices.
HHGG. Shoe store.

IIHH. Sporting goods store.

JJH.  Stationery store.

KKH. Toy store.

LLKK. Gasoline service station provided that such gasoline service station is designed as an integral part of
the shopping center building group.

MMLE. Yard sales and rummage sales.
NNMM.  Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
OONN. Public Safety Facilities.

5.34.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Adult-oriented establishments subject to meeting all requirements of section 4.60, "Adult-oriented
establishments," of this resolution.

BE€. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

5.34.04. Height. No building shall exceed three (3) stories or forty (40) feet in height.
5.34.05. Yards.

A.  Where the SC, Shopping Center Zone abuts a lot which is residential in zoning classification no building
shall be constructed less than fifty (50) feet from any lot line.

Where the SC, Shopping Center Zone abuts any street right-of-way buildings shall be constructed not
less than sixty (60) feet from such right-of-way.

B.  Buildings may be constructed less than fifty (50) feet from any lot line:
1.  Where the SC, Shopping Center Zone abuts a lot which is nonresidential in zoning classification.

2. Where the SC, Shopping Center Zone abuts any street right-of-way when parking is not to be
provided between the right-of-way of such street and buildings, in which case there shall be a
minimum setback requirement of twenty (20) feet.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 37 of 67



C.  Onthe sides of a SC, Shopping Center Zone facing streets the development plan shall include planted
parkways of not less than ten (10) feet in width. The presence of these parkways will aid in the
integration of shopping centers into adjacent areas, and they will aid in keeping vehicular entrance and
exit points to a minimum.

D.  Onthe sides of SC, Shopping Center Zones facing residential properties adequate screening shall be
provided whereby the noise, light, and possible unsightliness of the developed center will be held to a
minimum. A plan for screening shall be included as a part of the development plan for the shopping
center.

5.34.06. Divided zones. For the purpose of calculating the zone width, lot dimensions, floor area ratios,
percentage of lot covered by building, yard requirements and parking ratios, a single shopping center cannot lie on
two (2) sides of a major public street. Any area designated as being zoned a SC, Shopping Center Zone and lying on
both sides of a public street shall be deemed to be two (2) SC, Shopping Center Zones, and all minimum
requirements shall be met by buildings on each side of said public street as separate zones. This requirement is
included to prevent large movement of shoppers across a major street from parking areas to shopping areas.

5.34.07. Health department approval. The development plan shall not be approved until the planning
commission has a statement from the health department that the disposal system for sewage abides by standards
of the health department.

5.34.08. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.34.09. Off-street parking. As regulated by section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements."
5.34.10. Administration.

A.  Adevelopment plan of the shopping center shall be submitted to the planning commission for approval
as a use permitted on review.

B.  Arevised development plan shall be submitted to the planning commission for approval of any
changes, alterations, amendments, or extensions to the development plan. Approval of such changes
may be granted if, in the opinion of the planning commission, the requested changes would be in
keeping with the intent and provisions of this resolution.

C.  No building permit shall be issued for construction of any building on the land until the planning
commission has approved the development plan and a statement of approval has been affixed.

D. The building permit shall be revoked if construction of any part, or phase, of the development is not in
compliance with the approved plans.

E.  Application for review and approval of WCF shall be subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

(Ord. No. 0-96-1-102, § 1, 1-26-96; Ord. No. 0-96-7-101, § 1, 8-26-96; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, & 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01;
Ord. No. 0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-13-8-103, §
1(Exh. A), 9-23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No.
0-22-2-101, § 1, 3-28-22)

5.36. T Transition Zone.

5.36.01. Intent. The general intent of this section is to insure the development of land adjacent to residential
areas into a T, Transition Zone, between other types of commercial and residential classifications and which will
promote the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the citizens of the county. The purpose of this
section is:

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 38 of 67



A.

B.

To allow types of commercial use which are not major traffic generators, and would not open the area
to objectionable types of commercial uses.

To have a T, Transition Zone, that will be compatible with adjacent residential areas.

5.36.02. Uses permitted. The list below specifies the uses which shall be permitted in a T, Transition Zone. In
addition to these uses the planning commission may recommend the inclusion of other uses of a related nature,
provided the intent of this resolution is maintained. Uses permitted:

A.
B.
C.

Apartments.
Accessory buildings.

Child care agencies

DE.
ED.
FE.
GF.

Churches, schools, libraries, and museumes.
Garage apartments.
Gardening and horticulture, but not on a commercial basis.

Public golf courses, public parks and playgrounds; swimming pools, and other associated recreational
facilities, none of which shall be used for commercial purposes.

Hospitals and sanitariums, but not for contagious diseases, nor for the care of epileptics or drug or
alcoholic patients, nor for the care of the insane or feeble minded.

Nurseries and greenhouses for the propagating and cultivating of plants, but not on a commercial
basis.

Public utilities, such as transmission lines, substations, railroad lines, bus loading or waiting platforms,
dams, water treatment plants, including water filtration and storage facilities, and other similar public
service uses and buildings, and also such other buildings and structures, as are used by utility and
sanitary districts in the performing of the services in which they are authorized to engage.

Houses and duplexes.
Tourist homes (as defined in article 2).

Clinics, professional buildings, general business offices, institutions of an educational or a philanthropic
nature. Private clubs, fraternities, sororities, excepting those the chief activity of which is a service
customarily carried on as a business. Accessory uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses
when located in the same building.

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations",
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.
Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

Public Safety Facilities.

5.36.03. Uses permitted on review.

Private golf courses, swimming clubs, country clubs, and tennis clubs.

Assisted living facilities.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 39 of 67



CB. Marinas and boat liveries, subject to the standards of section 4.30, "Standards for marina and boat
livery development," of these regulations.

DE. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

EF. Rural retreats, subject to standards of section 4.104.
FG. Recovery housing.

5.36.04. Height. No building or structure shall exceed forty-five (45) feet, except that the planning
commission may approve a greater height during plan review where the following conditions are met:

A.  The petitioner can show that such increase in height is compatible with surrounding development and
is clearly within the intent of this section.

B.  Required depth of all yards is increased one (1) foot for each foot of building height permitted in excess
of forty-five (45) feet. No variance to this requirement shall be permitted.

5.36.05. Lot area. Main and accessory buildings shall not occupy more than thirty (30) percent of the lot
area.

5.36.06. Front yards. No building shall be located closer than thirty-five (35) feet to the front property line
and no tourist court shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to the front property line except the office of the
tourist court may be located within thirty-five (35) feet, and no accessory buildings shall be located within or so as
to project into the front yard. Planted parkways, with curbs, shall be provided between driveways in front of
buildings and the street so that they will aid in keeping vehicular entrance and exit points to a minimum.

5.36.07. Side and rear yards. The side and rear yards of every main building shall have a minimum width of
thirty (30) feet when adjoining a residentially zoned district, and fifteen (15) feet when adjoining a commercial
zone. On corner lots the building shall be located in accordance with article 3, "General provisions," subsection
3.30.01.

5.36.08. Health department approval. The development shall not be approved until the planning commission
has a statement from the health department that the disposal system for sewage abides by standards of the health
department.

5.36.09. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.36.10. Parking. As regulated by section 3.50.
5.36.11. Administration.

A.  The developer of any property in a T, Transition Zone shall submit a development plan to the planning
commission for approval as a use permitted on review.

B.  Arevised development plan shall be submitted to the planning commission for approval of any
changes, alterations, amendments or extension of the development plan. Approval of such changes
may be granted if, in the opinion of the planning commission, the requested changes would be in
keeping with the intent and provisions of this resolution.

C.  No building permit shall be issued for construction of any building on the land until the planning
commission has approved the development plan and a statement of approval has been affixed.

D. The building permit shall be revoked if construction of any part, or phase, of the development is not in
compliance with the approved plans.

(Ord. No. 0-96-7-101, § 1, 8-26-96; Ord. No. 0-97-10-101B, § 1, 11-17-97; Ord. No. 0-97-7-101, § 1, 8-25-97; Ord.
No. 0-99-9-101, & 1, 10-25-99; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 40 of 67



06; Ord. No. 0-11-1-103, § 1(Exh. A), 2-28-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-17-8-101, §
1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. O-17-8-102, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No.
0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, § 1, 3-28-22)

5.37. CR Rural Commercial Zone.

5.37.01. General description. This commercial zoning district provides the opportunity to locate limited retail
and service uses in a manner convenient to outlying rural areas. It is intended to provide for the recurring shopping
and personal service needs of nearby rural residential areas. This zoning should be placed on properties that are
located at or near intersections of arterial and/or collector streets in order to maximize accessibility from
surrounding areas. The range of permitted uses is limited to those which are generally patronized on a frequent
basis by area residents. Development performance standards are included to maximize compatibility between
commercial uses and surrounding rural areas, and to maintain the rural character of these areas.

5.37.02. Uses permitted. Only the following uses shall be permitted by right in the CR, Rural Commercial,
zoning district. Where North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes are indicated after permitted
uses, the businesses listed under that classification in the United States Office of Management and Budget North
American Industry Classification Manual, 1997 edition, shall be permitted providing all other requirements of this
ordinance are fulfilled. All uses permitted are subject to article 6, "Administration, enforcement and
interpretation," section 6.70, "Administrative site plan review":

A. Retail sales limited to:

1. Farm equipment and supplies.

2. Plant nurseries (NAICS 444220).

3. Soils and mulch.

4.  Grocery stores (NAICS 4451).

5. Household supplies.

6.  Clothing/shoes/jewelry (NAICS 448).

7.  Garden and lawn supplies (NAICS 4442).

8. Fueling service stations with or without convenience stores (NAICS 447110).

9. Drugs and medicine (NAICS 446110).

10. Small appliance sales (NAICS 44311) and repair (NAICS 811412).

11. Baked goods (NAICS 445291).

12. Specialty foods (NAICS 4452).

13. Newsstands/bookstores (NAICS 45121).

14. Produce (NAICS 445230) (including roadside produce stands).

15. Florists (NAICS 453110).

16. Gift shops (NAICS 453220).

17. Arts/crafts (NAICS 453920).

18. Antiques.

19. Sporting goods (NAICS 451110).

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 41 of 67



20. Hardware (NAICS 44413).
21. Fabric/upholstery shops.
22. Video sales and rentals (NAICS 532230).
B.  Business and personal services limited to:
Barber and beauty shops (NAICS 8121).
Tailor/shoe repair (NAICS 811430).
Laundry and dry cleaning (drop-off/pick-up stations only).
Banks and similar institutions (NAICS 522).
Laundromats limited to self-service facilities (NAICS 812310).
Copying services (NAICS 56143).
Restaurants (NAICS 722).

Service and repair of farm equipment.

W ® N o Uk~ w N R

Equipment rental (excluding vehicles intended for highway use) (NAICS 532).

H
©

Instructional schools (limited to dancing, music, arts, crafts, or sports) (NAICS 611610, 611620).

[EY
[E

Exercise/fitness centers (NAICS 713940).
12. Child care agencies (NAICS 624410).

C.  Business and professional offices, which provide direct services to customers limited to:
Travel agencies (NAICS 561510).

Outpatient medical (NAICS 621).

Dental (NAICS 6212).

Real estate (NAICS 531).

Finance and accounting (NAICS 523, 5412).

Architect/engineering (NAICS 5413).

Insurance (NAICS 524).

Legal services (NAICS 5411).

W N o U ke W N RE

Local, state and federal government offices and programs.
D.  Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals (NAICS 541940).

E.  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above uses such as: parking facilities subject
to section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," and signs subject to section 3.90, "Signs, billboards,
and other advertising structures."

F. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

G. Residential uses may be located on the second floor and above of a business. Dwellings may also be
located on the same site only if an accessory use to the primary use for a business.

H.  Uses similar to the uses listed as "uses permitted" may be considered for appropriateness by the
planning commission under the use determination public hearing process. If the requested use is
approved, it may be located in this zoning district.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 42 of 67



J.

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Public Safety Facilities.

5.37.03. Uses permitted on review.

GH.

Ht.

Adult day care facilities, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Standards for adult day
care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Any use listed under permitted uses above, which includes drive-through or drive-in facilities.
Outdoor storage of materials, product, equipment, etc.

Self-service storage facilities, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.93, "Standards for self-
service storage facilities."

Self-service car wash facilities (non-automated) (NAICS 811192).
Dog kennels/animal boarding facilities.
Contractor's storage yard.

Indoor self-service storage facilities.

5.37.04. Building size regulations.

A.
B.

No building shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet in height.

No individual building or commercial establishment shall have a floor area exceeding twenty thousand
(20,000) square feet.

5.37.05. Lot area. The building lot must be a minimum of one (1) acre and a maximum of four (4) acres in

size.

5.37.06. Front yard setbacks and landscaping requirements. All buildings shall be set back from the street
right-of-way lines not less than thirty-five (35) feet. Parking may not be located within the front setback area. The
required front yard must contain a minimum of one (1) native shade tree, capable of reaching fifty (50) feet in
height at maturity, per every fifty (50) feet or portion thereof of linear street frontage. The native shade trees must
be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of planting. One (1) ornamental tree is required per every
twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of linear street frontage, to be placed between and among the shade trees,
with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

5.37.07. Side yard setbacks and landscaping requirements.

A.

Where the side yard is adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be not
less than twenty-five (25) feet. The side yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) evergreen
tree per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of side yard property depth outside of required
front and rear yards. The evergreen trees must be spaced a minimum of thirty (30) feet apart at the
time of planting. Shrubs and/or ground cover plantings must cover the remainder of the side yard,
except for the space within ten (10) feet from the base of the evergreen trees.

Where the side yard is not adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be
not less than ten (10) feet. The side yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) native shade
tree per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of side yard property depth outside of required front
and rear yards. The native shade trees must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of
planting. One (1) ornamental tree is required per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of side

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 43 of 67



yard property depth (portion outside of required front and rear yards), to be placed between and
among the shade trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

C.  Parking may not be located in the required side yard.
5.37.08. Rear yard setbacks and landscaping requirements.

A.  Where the rear yard is adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be not
less than thirty-five (35) feet. The required rear yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1)
evergreen tree per every twenty-five (25) linear feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length.
The evergreen trees must be spaced a minimum of thirty (30) feet apart at the time of planting. Shrubs
and/or ground cover plantings must cover the remainder of the rear yard, except for within ten (10)
feet from the base of the evergreen trees.

B.  Where the rear yard is not adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be
not less than ten (10) feet. The rear yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) native shade
tree per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length. The native shade trees
must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of planting. One (1) ornamental tree is
required per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length, to be placed
between and among the shade trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

C.  Parking may not be located in the required rear yard.
5.37.09. Additional landscaping and site development standards.
A.  Parking areas:

1.  All parking lots of twenty (20) or more spaces shall contain within the interior of the parking lot
not less than one (1) native shade tree, capable of reaching fifty (50) feet in height at maturity for
every ten (10) spaces or fraction thereof. In no case shall more than ten (10) parking spaces be
located in a row without a planting island a minimum of nine (9) feet in width containing at least
one (1) native shade tree surrounded by shrubs and groundcovers.

2. Where parking abuts the building, there must be a sidewalk of at least five (5) feet in width
between the parking spaces and the building.

3.  Atthe end of any parking row, there must be a terminal planting island a minimum of five (5) feet
in width containing at least one (1) native shade tree surrounded by shrubs and groundcovers.

4. At least fifty (50) percent of the length of the exterior walls of the building must have a
landscaping strip of at least four (4) feet in width.

B.  Any pre-existing, healthy, applicable landscaping on a proposed site may be counted toward meeting
any of the landscaping requirements of this zoning district.

5.37.10. Off-street parking. As regulated in article 3, "General provisions," section 3.50, "Off-street parking
requirements," of this resolution.

5.37.11. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.37.12. Health department approval. The development shall not be approved until the county department
of code administration has been notified in writing by the county health department that the disposal system for
sewage abides by all applicable standards.

5.37.13. Utilities. All utility transmission lines serving individual uses shall be placed underground.

5.37.14. Site lighting. Lighting of all types shall be directed away from all residential or agricultural zones and
any public rights-of-way.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 44 of 67



5.37.15. Administration. For uses listed as permitted uses within the CR, Rural Commercial zoning district, no
building or structure shall be erected or altered until and unless a plan for such development has been filed with
and approved by the county department of code administration. The plan shall be filed in accordance with the
requirements of article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.70, "Administrative site plan
review," of this zoning ordinance.

(Ord. No. 0-03-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-24-03; Ord. No. 0-09-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-10; Ord. No. 0-11-4-101, §
1(Exh. A), 5-23-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord.
No. O-18-10-102, § 1(Exh. A), 11-19-18; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, & 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.38. CN Neighborhood Commercial Zone.

5.38.01. General description. This commercial zoning district provides the opportunity to locate limited retail
and service uses in a manner convenient to and yet not disruptive to established residential neighborhoods. It is
intended to provide for the recurring shopping and personal service needs of nearby residential areas.
Development should be compatible with the character of the adjacent neighborhood. This zoning should generally
be placed at street intersections that include either a collector or arterial street, as close to the edge of the
neighborhood as possible. The range of permitted uses is limited to those that are generally patronized on a
frequent basis by neighborhood residents. Development performance standards are provided to maximize
compatibility between commercial uses and adjacent residential uses.

5.38.02. Uses permitted. Only the following uses shall be permitted by right in the CN, Neighborhood
Commercial, zoning district. Where North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes are indicated
after permitted uses, the businesses listed under that classification in the United States Office of Management and
Budget North American Industry Classification Manual, 1997 edition, shall be permitted providing all other
requirements of this ordinance are fulfilled. All uses permitted are subject to article 6, "Administration,
enforcement and interpretation," section 6.70, "Administrative site plan review."

A. Retail sales limited to:

1. Grocery stores (NAICS 4451).

2. Household supplies.

3.  Clothing, shoes and jewelry (NAICS 448).

4.  Garden and lawn supplies (NAICS 4442).

5. Drugs and medicine (NAICS 446110).

6.  Small appliance sales (NAICS 44311) and repair (NAICS 811412).

7. Baked goods (NAICS 445291).

8. Delicatessen goods.

9. Newsstands/bookstores (NAICS 45121).

10.  Florists (NAICS 453110).

11.  Gift shops (NAICS 453220).

12. Arts/crafts (NAICS 453920).

13. Antiques.

14. Hardware (NAICS 44413).

15. Fabric/upholstery shops.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 45 of 67



16. Video sales and rentals (NAICS 532230).
B.  Business and personal services limited to:
Barber and beauty shops (NAICS 8121).
Tailor/shoe repair (NAICS 811430).
Laundry and dry cleaning drop-off/pick-up stations only.
Banks and similar institutions (NAICS 522).
Laundromats limited to self-service facilities (NAICS 812310).
Copying services (NAICS 56143).

Equipment rental (excluding vehicles for highway use) (NAICS 532).

® N o U~ w N oR

Child care agencies

C.  Business and professional offices, which provide direct services to customers limited to:
Travel agencies (NAICS 561510).

Outpatient medical (NAICS 621).

Dental (NAICS 6212).

Real estate (NAICS 531).

Finance and accounting (NAICS 523, 5412).

Architect/engineering (NAICS 5413).

Insurance (NAICS 524).

Legal services (NAICS 5411).

W X N o Uk~ W N E

Local, state and federal government offices and programs.
D.  Veterinary clinics and animal hospitals, with no boarding of animals (NAICS 541940).

E.  Accessory uses to the principal use such as: parking facilities subject to section 3.50, "Off-street parking
requirements," indoor storage areas, signs subject to section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other
advertising structures."

F. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

G. Residential uses may be located on the second floor and above of a business. Dwellings may also be
located on the same site only if an accessory use to the primary use for a business.

H.  Uses similar to the uses listed as "uses permitted" may be considered for appropriateness by the
planning commission under the use determination public hearing process. If the requested use is
approved, it may be located in this zoning district.

. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations"”,
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

J. Public Safety Facilities.

5.38.03. Uses permitted on review.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 46 of 67



Adult day care facilities, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Restaurants (NAICS 722).

Fueling service stations with or without convenience stores (NAICS 447110).

Any permitted use listed above, which includes drive-through or drive-in facilities.
Outdoor storage of materials, products, or equipment.

Self-service storage facilities, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.106, standards for the
use-on-review approval of self-service storage facilities in the CN zoning district.

Vehicle Repair/Service, provided the use meets the requirements of section 4.106, standards for the
use-on-review approval of vehicle repair/service in the CN Neighborhood Commercial Zone.

5.38.04. Building size regulations.

A.
B.

No building shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet in height.

No individual building or commercial establishment shall have a floor area exceeding five thousand
(5,000) square feet.

5.38.05. Lot area. The building lot must be a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) square feet in size.

5.38.06. Front yard setbacks and landscaping requirements. All buildings shall be setback from the street
right-of-way lines not less than thirty-five (35) feet. Parking must be setback a minimum of ten (10) feet. The
parking setback area must contain a minimum of one (1) native shade tree, capable of reaching fifty (50) feet in
height at maturity, per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of linear street frontage. The native shade trees
must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of planting. One (1) ornamental tree is required per
every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of linear street frontage, to be placed between and among the shade
trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

5.38.07. Side yard setbacks and landscaping requirements.

A.

Where the side yard is adjacent to a residential zone, the building setback shall be not less than twenty
(20) feet. The required side yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) evergreen tree per
every thirty (30) feet or portion thereof of side yard property depth outside of required front and rear
yards. The evergreen trees must be spaced a minimum of thirty (30) feet apart at the time of planting.
Shrubs and/or ground cover plantings must cover the remainder of the side yard, except for the space
within ten (10) feet from the base of the evergreen trees.

Where the side yard is not adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be
not less than ten (10) feet. The side yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) native shade
tree per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of side yard property depth outside of required front
and rear yards. The native shade trees must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of
planting. One (1) ornamental tree is required per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of side
yard property depth (portion outside of required front and rear yards), to be placed between and
among the shade trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

5.38.08. Rear yard setbacks and landscaping requirements.

A.

Where the rear yard is adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be not
less than twenty-five (25) feet. The required rear yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1)
evergreen tree per every twenty-five (25) linear feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length.
The evergreen trees must be spaced a minimum of thirty (30) feet apart at the time of planting. Shrubs
and/or ground cover plantings must cover the remainder of the rear yard, except for within ten (10)
feet from the base of the evergreen trees.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 47 of 67



B.  Where the rear yard is not adjacent to a residential or agricultural zone, the building setback shall be
not less than ten (10) feet. The rear yard must be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) native shade
tree per every sixty (60) feet or portion thereof of rear yard property length. The native shade trees
must be spaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet apart at the time of planting. One (1) ornamental tree is
required per every twenty-five (25) feet or portion thereof of rear yard property depth to be placed
between and among the shade trees, with a minimum of fifteen (15) feet spacing from the shade trees.

5.38.09. Additional landscaping and site development standards.
A.  Parking areas:

1.  All parking lots of twenty (20) or more spaces shall contain within the interior of the parking lot
not less than one (1) native shade tree, capable of reaching fifty (50) feet in height at maturity for
every ten (10) spaces or fraction thereof. In no case shall more than ten (10) parking spaces be
located in a row without a planting island a minimum of nine (9) feet in width containing at least
one (1) native shade tree surrounded by shrubs and groundcovers.

2. Where parking abuts the building, there must be a sidewalk of at least five (5) feet in width
between the parking spaces and the building.

3.  Atthe end of any parking row, there must be a terminal planting island a minimum of five (5) feet
in width containing at least one (1) native shade tree surrounded by shrubs and groundcovers.

4.  Atleast fifty (50) percent of the length of the exterior walls of the building must have a
landscaping strip of at least four (4) feet in width.

B.  Any pre-existing, healthy, applicable landscaping on a proposed site may be counted toward any of the
landscaping requirements of this zoning district.

5.38.10. Off-street parking. As regulated in article 3, "General provisions," section 3.50, "Off-street parking
requirements," of this resolution.

5.38.11. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.38.12. Health department approval. The development shall not be approved until the county department
of code administration has been notified in writing by the county health department that the disposal system for
sewage abides by all applicable standards.

5.38.13. Utilities. All utility transmission lines serving individual uses shall be placed underground.

5.38.14. Site lighting. Lighting of all types shall be directed away from all residential or agricultural zones and
any public rights-of-way.

5.38.15. Administration. For uses listed as permitted uses within the CN, Neighborhood Commercial zoning
district, no building or structure shall be erected or altered until and unless a plan for such development has been
filed with and approved by the county department of code administration. The plan shall be filed in accordance
with the requirements of article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.70, "Administrative
site plan review," of this zoning ordinance.

5.38.16. Sidewalks. Pedestrian sidewalks must be provided on each site to allow access to the adjacent
neighborhood. If adjacent properties have a sidewalk, the sidewalk must connect with it. If adjacent properties are
vacant, then the developer must post a bond with the county department of engineering and public works to
guarantee installation of a sidewalk at the time of development of adjacent properties. Sidewalks must be paved
with a minimum width of four (4) feet.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 48 of 67



(Ord. No. 0-03-2-102, § 1(Exh. A), 3-24-03; Ord. No. 0-11-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-23-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh.
A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-17-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. O-
19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-20-1-101, § 1(Exh. A), 2-24-20)

5.40. OA Office Park Zone.

5.40.01. General description. This zone is intended to provide for orderly development of office parks so that
structures, access road improvements, utility distribution, landscaping, pedestrian circulation, waste disposal and
related elements are complementary and allow orderly sequential development through initial coordination of
utilities and other services. To create a zone which is compatible with surrounding residential areas and serves as a
transitional area from residential to other less compatible land uses.

5.40.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Professional, business, and governmental offices in which no activity is carried on catering to retail
trade with the general public, and no stock of goods is maintained for sale to customers. These shall
include, but not be limited to, offices for lawyers, architects, engineers, insurance and real estate
agents.

B. Child care agencies

C. __ Clinics, medical, and dental offices.

DE. Radio, TV, and recording studios.

EB. Artgallery and museums.

FE.  Public and private schools, excluding residences.

GF. Telegraph message center.

HG. Barber and beauty shops.

IH.  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted uses and structures.

JI. Recreational uses associated with and maintained primarily for the uses permitted above.

K. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

LK. Yard sales and rummage sales.
MLE.  Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

NM. Public Safety Facilities.

5.40.03. Uses permitted on review.

AB. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

BE. Methadone treatment clinic or facility.
CB. Pain management clinic.
5.40.04. Area regulations. The following requirements shall apply to all uses permitted in this zone.

5.40.05. Front yard. Twenty-five (25) feet.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 49 of 67



5.40.06. Side yard. Twenty (20) feet where adjacent to a RAE, Exclusive Residential, or RA, Low Density
Residential Zone. In all other cases the same as required in the zone it adjoins, or twenty (20) feet, whichever is
less.

5.40.07. Rear yard. Twenty (20) feet (where adjacent to a RAE, Exclusive Residential or RA, Low Density
Residential Zone. In all other cases the same as required in the zone it adjoins, or twenty (20) feet, whichever is
less.

5.40.08. Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory buildings shall cover not more than thirty-five (35)
percent of the lot area.

5.40.09. Height regulations. No building or structure shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet, except as provided in
section 3.20, "General exceptions."

5.40.10. Landscaping regulations.

A.  Anyrequired yard shall be landscaped with live vegetation of a nature normally found in residential
areas.

B.  Parking areas.

1. Parking areas shall contain five hundred (500) square feet of landscaping for every twenty
thousand (20,000) square feet, or fraction thereof, of paved parking area.

2. Parking areas located closer than fifty (50) feet to public right-of-way or adjacent property lines
shall be screened by evergreen planting that will obtain a minimum height of five (5) feet at
maturity.

3. For each five thousand (5,000) square feet of parking area a tree shall be provided that will
obtain a minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

C. Open spaces.

1.  That area designated as open space situated between the site boundary and the nearest building
line shall be landscaped or left to remain in natural vegetation.

2. For each five thousand (5,000) square feet of open space a tree shall be provided that will obtain
a minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

5.40.11. Utilities. All utility transmission lines serving individual uses shall be placed underground.

5.40.12. Signs. Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

5.40.13. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," except that
parking shall not be permitted in the required front yard, or, the required side yards adjacent to any RAE, Exclusive
Residential, or RA, Low Density Residential Zone.

(Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-96-7-101, § 1, 8-26-96; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00;
Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-04-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-24-04; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh.
A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-11-11-102, § 1(Exh. A), 12-19-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-
17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.41. OB Office, Medical, and Related Services Zone.

5.41.01. General description. This zone is intended to provide areas for professional and business offices and
related activities that require separate buildings and building groups surrounded by landscaped yards and open

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 50 of 67



areas. The intent herein is to provide centralized, compact locations for business offices, clinics, medical, and
dental offices near residential neighborhoods.

5.41.02. Uses permitted.

A.

Any use permitted and as regulated in the RB, General Residential Zone, except that height shall be as
regulated in subsection 5.41.09, "Height regulations."

Professional and business offices in which no activity is carried on catering to retail trade with the
general public, and no stock of goods is maintained for sale to customers. These shall include, but not
be limited to, offices for lawyers, architects, engineers, insurance, real estate agents and beauty shops.

Hospital, clinics, and medical and dental offices.

Child care agencies

TS.

Undertaking establishments and funeral homes.

Hotels, motels, (including dining room facilities) excepting those containing retail sales for other than
the convenience of guests in the building.

Private clubs and lodges.

Art gallery and museums.

Business colleges.

Public and private schools and colleges with student residence and dormitories associated therewith.
Commercial parking lot or garage.

Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted uses and structures.

Recreational uses associated with and maintained primarily for the uses permitted above and for the
benefit and use of the occupants and their guests.

Establishments rendering business service associated with the uses listed above including but not
limited to the sale of office supplies and business forms and machines.

Signs as permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this
resolution.

Other uses similar in character to those enumerated above, and which in the opinion of the planning
commission will not be injurious to the zone.

Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

Yard sales and rummage sales.
Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

Public Safety Facilities.

5.41.03. Uses permitted on review.

Assisted living facilities.

Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 51 of 67



CB. Methadone treatment clinic or facility.
DE. Pain management clinic.
E.F-  Recovery housing.

5.41.04. Area regulations. The area requirements for dwellings, and buildings accessory thereto, shall be the
same as the area requirements for the RB, General Residential Zone. The following requirements shall apply to all
other uses permitted in this zone.

5.41.05. Front yard. All buildings shall set back from the street right-of-way line to provide a front yard
having not less than twenty-five (25) feet in depth.

5.41.06. Side yard. Side yard requirements for residential uses shall be the same as in the RB, General
Residential Zone. Where a side yard is adjacent to a residential zone, no nonresidential building shall be located
closer than twenty (20) feet to the side lot line. In all other cases no building shall be located closer than fifteen
(15) feet to the side lot line.

5.41.07. Rear yard. No building shall be located closer than twenty (20) feet to the rear lot line.
5.41.08. Maximum lot coverage.

A.  The maximum lot area which may be covered by residential structures shall be the same as required in
the RB, General Residential Zone.

B.  Other main and accessory buildings shall cover not more than thirty-five (35) percent of the lot area.

5.41.09. Height regulations. No building or structure shall exceed four (4) stories or forty-five (45) feet in
height, except:

A.  Asprovided in section 3.20 "General exceptions."

B.  The planning commission may approve, as a use permitted on review, an increase in height above
forty-five (45) feet and may, as a condition of such approval, require an increase in set back and/or
yard requirements where appropriate.

5.41.10. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," except that
parking shall not be located in the required front yard.

(Ord. No. 0-96-5-102, § 2, 6-21-96; Ord. No. 0-96-7-101, § 1, 8-26-96; Ord. No. 0-97-10-101B, § 1, 11-17-97; Ord.
No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-00; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-04-4-101, § 1(Exh. A),

5-24-04; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. O-11-11-102, § 1(Exh. A), 12-19-11; Ord. No. O-12-9-
102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-8-102, § 1(Exh. A), 9-25-17; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17;
Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19)

5.42. OC Civic and Institutional Zone.

5.42.01. General description. The OC, Civic and Institutional, zoning district and regulations are intended to
provide a zoning classification for specified religious, governmental, recreational, and institutional uses where a
separate zoning district is appropriate. These regulations are intended to minimize any conflicts or adverse impacts
on other properties, public roads or facilities. Locations for civic and institutional uses should be on arterial or
major collector streets.

5.42.02. Uses permitted.

A.  Churches, synagogues, mosques, temples, and other similar places of worship, except as permitted
under subsection 5.42.03, "Uses permitted on review."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 52 of 67



B.  The following uses when they are accessory to the main uses listed above, subject to the conditions
and requirements listed below: religious book stores and gift shops; health and fitness clubs, including
those offering memberships to persons outside the congregation; denominational offices; food
pantries; parish housing; and thrift shops and stores selling second-hand or used merchandise.

1.  Accessory uses shall occupy no more that forty (40) percent of the total developed floor space of
the main use.

2. Accessory structures and buildings shall be designed and constructed according to the
regulations and requirements for area, landscaping, lighting, signage, and off-street parking
described for civic and institutional uses.

C.  Public and private elementary and secondary schools, excluding residences.

D.  Child care agencies

E. _ Private clubs, lodges, and fraternal organizations.
FE. Libraries, museums and art galleries.

GE. Local, state and federal government facilities, excluding correctional facilities.
HG. Public utilities.

IH.  Philanthropic, charitable and service organizations.

Ji.  Public parks, playgrounds and recreation facilities.

K. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

LK. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
ML.  Public Safety Facilities.

5.42.03. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Public and private elementary and secondary schools, with residences.

B. Junior colleges, colleges, universities, and business and trade schools, including residences.

C.  Hospitals, sanitariums and nursing homes.

DE. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

EF. Assisted living facilities.

FG. Developments requiring waivers as allowed under the following site development standards:
1. Landscaping, subsection 5.42.06, "Landscaping requirements."

5.42.04. Area regulations.

A.  Height regulations.

1. No building shall be built to a height exceeding forty-five (45) feet at the minimum required
setback line.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 53 of 67



2. No building shall exceed a height of thirty-five (35) feet, if located within one hundred (100) feet
of a residential zone. However, for each additional foot of setback from the minimum setback
line, the building height may be increased by one (1) foot to a maximum of forty-five (45) feet.

B.  Setback requirements.
1. Frontyard setback: A minimum of thirty-five (35) feet.
2 Side yard setback: A minimum of twenty-five (25) feet.
3. Rear yard setback: A minimum of twenty-five (25) feet.
4

Front, side or rear yard setback, when abutting a residential or agricultural zone: A minimum of
fifty (50) feet.

5.42.05. Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory buildings shall not cover more than fifty (50) percent of
the lot area.

5.42.06. Landscaping requirements.

A.  Alandscaping plan shall be submitted as a part of any application for administrative site plan approval.
The following minimum standards shall apply:

1.  Anyrequired yard shall be landscaped with live vegetation of a nature normally found in
residential areas.

B.  Parking areas.

1. Parking areas shall contain one thousand (1,000) square feet of landscaping for every twenty
thousand (20,000) square feet, or fraction thereof, of paved parking area.

2. For every five thousand (5,000) square feet of parking area, a tree shall be provided that will
obtain a minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

C.  Bufferyards.

1.  Within the required building setback, a buffer yard shall be established along any property line
that abuts a residential or agricultural zoning district. The planning commission may waive or
reduce this requirement when there is no principal residential structure within two hundred
(200) feet of said property line.

2.  The following standards shall apply in buffer yards:
Minimum width: Fifteen (15) feet.

Landscaping and screening: A screen, opaque to a height of six (6) feet and consisting of any
combination of a fence, wall, evergreen plants, or earth berms shall be provided in the buffer
yard.

D. The planning commission may approve a landscaping plan that differs from the minimum standards if
the commission finds that such plan meets the intent of this section.

E. The department of code administration shall verify the installation of landscaping as shown on the
approved landscaping plan prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. Installation of planting
materials may be delayed until the next planting season, in the event that literal compliance with the
above standard would require plants to be installed at a time when they would not survive. In such
cases, a certificate of occupancy can be issued prior to the installation of landscaping with the posting
of a bond with the county department of engineering and public works to guarantee such installation.

5.42.07. Lighting. Lighting of all types shall be directed away from all residential or agricultural zoning
districts, or any public rights-of-way.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 54 of 67



5.42.08. Sign regulations. Signage shall comply with the requirements of section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and
other advertising structures," including subsection 3.90.08, "Office and Transition Zones."

5.42.09. Off-street parking regulations. Off-street parking shall comply with the requirements of section 3.50,
"Off-street parking requirements."

5.42.10. Administration.

A.  For uses listed as permitted uses in the OC, Civic and Institutional zoning district, no building or
structure shall be erected or altered until and unless a plan for such development has been filed with
and approved by the county department of code administration. The plan shall be filed in accordance
with the requirements of article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation", section 6.70,
"Administrative site plan review," of this zoning ordinance.

B.  In administratively reviewing plans for specific sites, the department of code administration shall
approve any site plan that complies with the above referenced design standards and the requirements
of the county zoning and subdivision regulations. Anyone aggrieved by a decision of the department of
code administration may appeal such decision to the board of zoning appeals, pursuant to article 6,
"Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.60, "Board of zoning appeals," of these
regulations.

C.  The planning commission shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny applications for uses on
review, as described in section 4.42.03, "Uses permitted on review," and in compliance with relevant
county zoning and subdivision regulations.

(Ord. No. 0-03-4-103, § 1(Exh. A), 5-27-03; Ord. No. 0-04-1-102, & 1(Exh. A), 2-23-04; Ord. No. O-12-9-102, § 1(Exh.
A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. O-
22-2-101, § 1, 3-28-22)

5.50. BP Business and Technology Park Zone.

5.50.01. General description. This zoning district is intended to provide for a wide range of land uses which
are generally categorized in business, industrial and/or office classifications of use, whether in the public or private
sectors. The permitted land uses are intended to include those businesses which require building spaces
characterized by offices, research and development, manufacturing, and/or combinations of such uses. The
permitted uses include, but are not limited to, those which reflect particular emphasis on scientific and
engineering applications in product and/or process. The on-site and off-site impacts of such uses are typically
similar in kind and degree to such uses located within other zoning districts which allow such uses. Potential
impacts are addressed within this district through site-specific planning and design, consistent with the regulations
contained herein specific to, but not limited to: area requirements, maximum lot coverage and building height
limits, landscaping, utilities, signs, and off-street parking regulations.

The intended and desired effect of the site regulations is to create an attractive park-like setting for the
businesses which locate within the park. The planning and design for the park is intended to accomplish an
aesthetic environment which is complementary to site features and the surrounding environment. Site features
and infrastructure are to be consistent with the park-like design theme.

The BP, Business and Technology Park, zoning district shall be located only within the designated TO,
Technology Overlay Zone, subject to the jurisdiction and development review of the Tennessee Technology
Corridor Development Authority or its successor, and the planning commission.

5.50.02. Minimum size of zone. In order to achieve the above intent an area of sufficient size to permit a
spacious design and coordinated arrangement of buildings and facilities is necessary. Therefore, no BP Business
and Technology Park Zone may be created which has an area of less than five (5) acres.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 55 of 67



5.50.03. Uses permitted. The following uses may be permitted by approval of a development plan that
indicates they are within the intent of this zone as described in subsection 5.50.01, "General description," above,
that they comply with the development plan standards of subsection 5.50.13, and that they will meet the
performance standards of section 4.10, "Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all
zones." These performance standards, like all other provisions of this ordinance are continuing obligations and all
uses must continue to operate in compliance with the standards. Where SIC codes are indicated after permitted
uses, the businesses listed under that classification in the U.S. Department of Commerce Standard Industrial
Classification Manual, 1987 Edition, shall be permitted, providing all other requirements of this ordinance are
fulfilled.

All of the uses permitted under this section shall have their primary operations conducted entirely within
enclosed buildings, and shall not emit any obnoxious dust or smoke, or noxious odor or fumes outside of the
building housing the operation or produce any noise level occurring on the adjacent street. Operations shall cause
no radiation or radioactivity at any exterior wall and no electrical radiation that affects any operation or equipment
other than those of the creator of the radiation. All storage shall be confined to the interior of buildings.

A.  Professional, business, governmental and medical offices in which no activity is carried on catering to
retail trade with the general public, and no stock of goods is maintained for sale to customers.

Hospitals, clinics, medical and dental offices, medical and dental laboratories, and veterinary clinics.

Child care agencies

B
C
D.  Assembly of electrical appliances, electronic instruments and devices, radios and phonographs.
EB. Research, development, experimental, or testing laboratories.
FE

The manufacturing, compounding, processing, packaging, treatment, or fabrication of ceramics,
instruments, optical goods and pharmaceuticals.

GF. The manufacturing, compounding, assembling, or treatment of articles of merchandise from prepared
materials.

HG. Manufacture of electronic components and accessories (SIC 367).

IH.  Manufacture or assembly of measuring, analyzing, controlling, photographic, and optical instruments
(SIC 38).

M Motion picture production and allied services (SIC 781).
K. Manufacture of miscellaneous electrical parts, including automotive (SIC 369).

Lk. Manufacture of motor vehicle parts and accessories including mechanical, electrical and electronic
parts, components and subassemblies, such as braking systems, safety devices, pollution control
mechanisms, and electronically controlled fuel systems.

ML. Manufacture of musical instruments (SIC 393).

NM. Manufacture of computer and office equipment (SIC 357).

ON. Manufacturing electrical switchgear and switchboard apparatus (SIC 3613).

PS. Manufacturing relays and industrial controls (SIC 3625).

QP. Manufacture of household audio and video equipment and audio recordings (SIC 365).
RQ. Manufacture of communications equipment (SIC 366).

SR. Other assembly or limited manufacturing uses, of a similar nature, when located and arranged
according to a plan providing for aesthetic or other conditions in harmony with the neighborhood, and
approved by the planning commission.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 56 of 67



TS. Retail commercial uses may be approved as part of the overall development proposal, subject to the
following conditions:

1. Minimum parcel size for the total development plan shall be twenty (20) acres.

2. Retail uses shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the total floor areas of the approved
development plan.

3.  Only the following retail uses shall be permitted, provided that there shall be no sales, display or
storage of merchandise outside of a fully enclosed building:

a. Banks and credit unions.
b. Barber shops and beauty salons.
C. Book stores.
d.  Camera and photography supply stores, including film processing.
e. Clothing stores.
f. Drug stores.
g. Dry cleaners.
Employment services.
i. Florists.
j. Food stores, including convenience stores without gasoline pumps.
k. Gift stores.
I Toy stores.
m. Jewelers.
n. Restaurants, without drive-through facilities.
o. Sales of office supplies, office equipment, and computers.
p. Sporting goods stores.

g. Accessory uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses, including recreational uses
associated with and maintained primarily for the uses permitted above.

4, Retail commercial locations within the development shall be approved as part of the overall
development proposal.

5. Building permits for retail commercial development may not be issued until certificates of
occupancy have been granted for non retail uses equal to ten (10) percent of the total floor area
of the approved development.

UF. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

VY. Yard sales and rummage sales.
WAL Churches.
XMW, Utility substations, easements, transportation rights-of-way, and alleys.

Y. Order processing centers for goods and services, including television home shopping networks, call
centers and internet and catalog order processing centers, corporate and business offices, order

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 57 of 67



fulfillment operations and related receiving, warehousing and distribution of goods for sale to
customers and incidental on premises sales, subject to the following conditions:

1. Floor areas devoted to on premises, over-the-counter sales to walk-in customers shall not exceed
ten (10) percent of the total floor area of the approved development plan.

2. On premises sales may be permitted at special events no more than five (5) times during any
calendar year.

Z¥. Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.
AAZ. Public Safety Facilities.

5.50.04. Uses permitted on review.

A.  Houses may be permitted by the planning commission as a use-on-review in accordance with the
provisions of section 6.50, "Procedure for authorizing uses permitted on review," of this resolution.

BE. Adult day care centers, provided they meet the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult
day care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review."

5.50.05. Nonconforming uses (exception to section 3.60, "Nonconforming uses," of the county zoning
ordinance). Nonconforming churches, houses, agricultural lots and structures existing immediately preceding a
change of zoning to the BP, Business and Technology Park Zone shall be allowed to continue, expand, construct or
replace structures and other improvements to the property provided that the proposed improvement complies
with the requirements of the A, Agricultural Zone.

5.50.06. Area requirements. The following requirements shall apply to all parcels within a BP, Business and
Technology Park Zone, and to all uses permitted in this zone:

A.  Peripheral boundary. All buildings or structures shall be set back from the peripheral boundary of a BP,
Business and Technology Park Zone, not less than fifty (50) feet. Where the peripheral boundary abuts
a residential zone, all buildings and structures shall be set back from that residential zoning line not less
than seventy-five (75) feet.

B.  Front yard. All buildings shall set back from all street right-of-way lines not less than fifty (50) feet.
C.  Side yard. No building shall be located closer than forty (40) feet to a side yard lot line.
D.  Rear yard. No building shall be located closer than thirty (30) feet to the rear lot line.

The depth of any rear yard which abuts a residential district shall be not less than fifty (50) feet,
provided, however, that no rear yard is required where the lot abuts on an existing or proposed
railroad right-of-way or spur.

E. Minimum parcel size. The minimum parcel size shall be one (1) acre and shall conform to the
Tennessee Technology Corridor Design Guidelines as adopted by the Tennessee Technology Corridor
Development Authority.

5.50.07. Maximum lot coverage and height of building. The maximum area of site permitted to be covered by
structures shall be governed by a ground area coverage (GAC) ratio, and the height of structures shall be governed
by a floor area ratio (FAR). The GAC is defined as the number of square feet of ground area covered by the
building, divided by the square feet of lot area. The FAR is defined as the number of square feet of floor areain a
building, divided by the square feet of lot area. The GAC and FAR for any area zoned BP, Business and Technology
Zone shall be established at the time of zoning or site plan review upon a recommendation of the planning
commission that takes into account the topography, size, accessibility and surroundings of the site and planning

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 58 of 67



policy for the area. In no case shall the GAC exceed twenty-five (25) percent nor shall the FAR exceed thirty (30)

percent.

5.50.08. Landscaping regulations. The following requirements shall apply in this zone:

A.

Required yard. Any required yard shall be landscaped with live vegetation of a nature normally found in
residential areas. All yard areas required under this section and other yards and open spaces existing
around buildings shall be landscaped and maintained in such a manner as to provide a park-like setting
for the district.

Parking areas. Parking areas shall contain five hundred (500) square feet of landscaping for every
twenty thousand (20,000) square feet, or fraction thereof, of paved parking area.

Parking areas located closer than fifty (50) feet to public rights-of-way or adjacent property lines shall
be screened by evergreen planting that will obtain a minimum height of five (5) feet at maturity.

For each five thousand (5,000) square feet of parking area a tree shall be provided that will obtain a
minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

5.50.09. Utilities. All utility transmission lines serving individual uses shall be placed underground.

5.50.10. Signs. As permitted by section 3.90, "Signs, billboards, and other advertising structures," of this

resolution.

5.50.11. Off-street parking. As regulated in section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," except that
parking shall not be permitted in the required front yard, or the required side yards.

5.50.12. Application procedures for business and technology park developments. Within the BP, Business and
Technology Park Zone, no building or structure shall be erected or altered until and unless there shall have been
filed with and approved by the planning commission a written application for approval of a plan for the
contemplated development within said zone. The application shall be accompanied with the following information:

A.

A description of all operations proposed in sufficient detail to show that the proposed uses are within
the intent of the BP, Business and Technology Park Zone, as described in subsection 5.50.01, "General
description," and to indicate the effects of those operations in production of excessive auto and traffic
congestion or problems of noise, glare, odor, sewerage, air pollution, water pollution, fire or safety
hazards, or other factors detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of the area. See section 1,
"Performance standards for commercial and industrial uses," in section 4.10, "Supplementary
regulations applying to a specific, to several, or to all zones."

A development plan indicating the following: location of present and proposed buildings, loading
docks, driveways, parking lots, other accessory uses, existing wooded areas, proposed landscaping, and
trash disposal areas.

Preliminary architectural plans for the proposed building or buildings.

An estimate of the maximum number of employees contemplated for the proposed development and
the number of employees per shift.

A storm drainage plan which includes accurate existing and proposed water courses; the system of
open channels, pipes, culverts, drains, inlets, catch basins, and similar facilities designed to handle
storm water in times of rainstorms, the calculations used in the design of such systems and the
easements required in the construction and maintenance of the drainage system and meeting all
requirements of section 6.11, "Grading permit."

Other engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any problems of the type outlined in
subsection 5.50.12.A above, including a designation of sewers to be used and necessary plans for
controlling smoke or other nuisances.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 59 of 67



G.  Any other information the planning commission may need to adequately consider the effect that the
proposed uses may have upon their environment and on the cost of providing public services to the
area. All sewage disposal systems and land requirements for such systems must be approved before a
building permit is issued.

5.50.13. The planning commission may approve an overall development plan for a business park comprising
an area of twenty (20) acres or more subject to administrative review and approval of plans for development of
individual sites or parcels within the park by the planning commission staff.

A. Inlieu of site specific plans as referenced in subsections 5.50.12.B and 5.50.12.C, the overall
development plan shall provide design standards for landscaping and architectural features in
sufficient detail to allow the planning commission to determine that the development would comply
with the intent of the BP Business and Technology Park Zone.

B. In administratively reviewing plans for specific sites, the staff shall approve any site plan that complies
with the above-referenced design standards, the overall development plan approved by the planning
commission, and the requirements of the county zoning and subdivision regulations. Planning
commission staff decisions may be appealed to the planning commission. Anyone aggrieved by a
decision of the planning commission may appeal such decision to the board of zoning appeals,
pursuant to article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.60, "Board of zoning
appeals," of these regulations.

5.50.14. The planning commission shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny the development plan
based on the following standards:

A.  Roads, driveways, parking lots and curb cuts are designed so as to promote safe and efficient
movement of vehicular traffic.

B. The development will comply with all applicable requirements of section 1, "Performance standards for
commercial and industrial uses," in section 4.10, "Supplementary regulations applying to a specific, to
several, or to all zones."

C.  The development will comply with all dimensional and area requirements and requirements for
landscaping, parking, signs and utilities contained in this section.

5.50.15. Application for review and approval of WCF shall be subject to the provisions of article 4, section
4.92.

(Ord. No. 0-96-1-102, § 1, 1-26-96; Ord. No. 0-96-3-101, § 1, 4-22-96; Ord. No. 0-97-8-104, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No.
0-98-3-102, § 1(Exh. A), 4-27-98; Ord. No. 0-98-12-101, § 1(Exh. A), 1-25-99; Ord. No. 0-00-8-101, § 1(Exh. A), 9-
25-00; Ord. No. 0-01-2-103, § 1(Exh. A), 3-26-01; Ord. No. 0-04-1-102, § 1(Exh. A), 2-23-04; Ord. No. 0-05-3-101, §
1(Exh. A), 4-25-05; Ord. No. 0-06-7-101, § 1(Exh. A), 8-28-06; Ord. No. 0-11-4-101, § 1(Exh. A), 5-23-11; Ord. No.
0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-13-8-103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-
23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19; Ord. No. 0-22-2-
101, §§ 1, 2, 3-28-22)

5.51. EC Employment Center Zone.

5.51.01. General description. This zoning district is intended to encourage development of business parks and
other employment centers that will contribute to the future economic well being of the county; to provide
standards and procedures that will minimize any conflicts or adverse impacts of these developments with other
properties, public roads or facilities; to provide a zoning district for use in areas meeting the locational standards
for industrial parks and technology based development contained in the Knoxville-Knox County General Plan; and

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 60 of 67



to provide a zoning district for business and technology park development that requires site plan review and
complies with the requirements of the Farragut-Knoxville-Knox County Growth Policy Plan.

5.51.02. Uses permitted. Only the following uses may be permitted in this zone. Where North American
Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes are indicated after permitted uses, the businesses listed under that
classification in the United States Office of Management and Budget North American Industry Classification System
Manual, 1997 edition, and any subsequent edition, may be permitted providing all other requirements of this
ordinance are fulfilled. The permitted uses in any proposal for development shall be identified through the process
outlined in subsection 5.51.05, "Administration":

A.  Construction and contracting, including:
1. Building, developing and general contracting (NAICS 233).
2. Heavy construction (NAICS 234).
3. Special trades contractors (NAICS 235).
B.  Manufacturing, including:
Food manufacturing (NAICS 311), excluding slaughter of animals and fat rendering.
Beverage and tobacco product manufacturing (NAICS 312).
Textile mills (NAICS 313).
Textile product mills (NAICS 314).
Apparel manufacturing (NAICS 315).
Leather and allied product manufacturing (NAICS 316).
Wood product manufacturing (NAICS 321).

Printing and related support activities (NAICS 323).

W O N o A~ W N e

Pharmaceutical and medicine manufacturing (NAICS 3254).

,_\
©

Plastics and rubber products manufacturing (NAICS 326).

=
=

Fabricated metal product manufacturing (NAICS 332).

[
N

Machinery manufacturing (NAICS 333).

,_\
w

Computer and electronic product manufacturing (NAICS 334).

,_\
»

Electrical equipment, appliance and component manufacturing (NAICS 335).

H
b

Transportation equipment manufacturing (NAICS 336).

H
o

Furniture and related product manufacturing (NAICS 337).
17. Miscellaneous manufacturing (NAICS 339).
C.  Wholesale trade, including:
1.  Wholesale trade, durable goods (NAICS 421).
2. Wholesale trade, non-durable goods (NAICS 422).
D.  Transportation and warehousing, including:
1.  Air transportation (NAICS 481).
2. Rail transportation (NAICS 482).

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 61 of 67



Water transportation (NAICS 483).

Truck transportation (NAICS 484).

Transit and ground passenger transportation (NAICS 485).
Pipeline transportation (NAICS 486).

Scenic and sightseeing transportation (NAICS 487).

Support activities for transportation (NAICS 488).

© o N o U &~ W

Postal service (NAICS 491).

10. Couriers and messengers (NAICS 492).

11. Warehousing and storage (NAICS 493).
E. Information, including:

1. Publishing industries (NAICS 511).

2. Motion picture and sound recording industries (NAICS 512).

3. Broadcasting and telecommunications (NAICS 513).

4, Information services and data processing services (NAICS 514).
F. Finance and insurance, including:
Monetary authorities and banks (NAICS 521).
Credit intermediation and related activities (NAICS 522).
Securities, commodity contracts and other financial investments (NAICS 523).

Insurance carriers and related activities (NAICS 524).

A N e

Funds, trusts and other financial vehicles (NAICS 525).
G. Real estate and rental and leasing, including:
1. Real estate (NAICS 531).
2. Rental and leasing services (NAICS 532).
3. Lessors of other nonfinancial intangible assets, except copyrighted works (NAICS 533).
H.  Professional, scientific and technical services (NAICS 541).
I. Management of companies and enterprises, including:
1. Management of companies and enterprises (NAICS 551).
2. Administrative and support services (NAICS 561).
J. Educational services, excluding elementary and secondary schools (NAICS 611).
K. Health care and social assistance, including hospitals (NAICS 622).
L. Other services, except public administration, including:
1.  Support activities for agriculture and forestry (NAICS 115).
2. Support activities for mining (NAICS 213).
3. Repair and maintenance (NAICS 811).

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 62 of 67



M.  Public administration, including:
1. Local, state and federal government offices and programs.
2. Space research and technology (NAICS 927).
3. National security and international affairs (NAICS 928).
Wireless communications facilities, subject to the provisions of article 4, section 4.92.

O. Inan EC Employment Center Zone development, twenty (20) percent of the land area may be set aside
for retail commercial development, subject to the following conditions and requirements:

1.  The overall EC Employment Center Zone development must include a minimum of twenty (20)
acres.

2. Only the following retail commercial uses shall be permitted, provided that there shall be no
sales, display or storage of merchandise outside of a fully enclosed building.

a. Drug stores.

b. Convenience stores, without gasoline pumps.

C. Restaurants, without drive-through facilities.

d.  Sales of office supplies, office equipment and computers.

e. Employment services.

f. Hotels and motels.

g. Accessory uses customarily incidental to any of the commercial uses listed in this section.

3.  The locations of commercial uses shall be integrated by means of access within the EC
Employment Center Zone development.

P.  Other uses of the same general character as those listed in this section as permitted uses and deemed
appropriate by the planning commission.

Q. Child day-care

n
B 7

eentersagencies.;

H "
N raviaw

7

R.  Adult day care centers, consistent with the requirements of section 4.98, "Requirements for adult day
care centers, when considered as uses permitted on review," of these regulations.

S. Outdoor storage, subject to the following requirements:

1.  Outdoor storage shall be fully screened on all sides by an opaque, ornamental or vegetative
screen.

2.  Outdoor storage must be an accessory use to a principal use on the same site.

T. Demolition landfills less than one (1) acre in size subject to article 4, "Supplementary regulations,"
subsection 4.80.01.A, "Demolition landfills" (on site generated waste).

U.  Public Safety Facilities.
5.51.03. Area regulations. The following requirements shall apply to all uses permitted in this zone:
A. Minimum size requirements.

1.  Minimum size of an EC Employment Center Zone: Five (5) acres, providing that smaller areas may
be rezoned when they directly abut EC Employment Center zoning, regardless of ownership.

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 63 of 67



2. Minimum lot size: One (1) acre.
B.  Height regulations.

1.  No building shall be built to a height exceeding forty-five (45) feet, at the minimum required
setback line.

2. No building shall exceed a height of thirty-five (35) feet, if located within one hundred (100) feet
of a residential zone. However, for each additional foot of setback from the minimum setback
line, the building height may be increased by one (1) foot to a maximum of forty-five (45) feet.

C.  Setback requirements.
1. Frontyard setback: A minimum of fifty (50) feet.
2. Side yard setback: A minimum of fifty (50) feet.
3. Rear yard setback: A minimum of fifty (50) feet.

D.  Maximum lot coverage. Main and accessory building footprints and loading platforms shall not cover
more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area.

5.51.04. Site development standards. The following standards will guide development in the EC Employment
Center Zone:

A.  Off-street vehicle parking, bicycle parking and sidewalks.

1. Asasupplement to the off-street parking requirements of section 3.50, "Off-street parking
requirements," the following shall apply:

a. No parking shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet from any public right-of-way, twenty-
five (25) feet from any side property line, or twenty-five (25) feet from any rear property
line. Parking for commercial uses as described in subsection 5.51.02.0 may be located no
closer than twenty-five (25) feet from any public right-of-way. The areas between roads
and parking lots shall be landscaped with ground cover and one (1) medium or large
maturing tree for every fifty (50) feet of the length of the road or lot line. Tree species lists
are available through the planning commission.

b.  The dimensions for required off-street parking spaces may be less than that required under
section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," provided that those dimensions are
approved in the development plan and established through the variance process.

c. Where the business is located within a one-quarter (%) mile walk via sidewalks of a
Knoxville Area Transit (KAT) stop, the number of required parking spaces may be reduced
by fifteen (15) percent.

d.  All other provisions of section 3.50, "Off-street parking requirements," shall apply.

2. Bicycle parking spaces on bicycle racks or in bicycle lockers, as defined by the Knoxville Regional
Bicycle Plan, shall be located near the entrances to all buildings within the park or development.

3. Any EC Employment Center Zone development that is accessed by interior streets or easements
shall include at a minimum sidewalks along one (1) side of all streets or easements within the
development.

B. Loading and unloading areas.

1. Allloading docks shall be located at the rear or side of buildings. Truck and trailer parking shall
also be located at the rear or side of buildings. Where the size and/or shape of the building and
property, or some physical characteristic of the property (i.e., topography, wetlands, sinkholes,

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 64 of 67



3.

etc.), make it infeasible to locate a loading dock at the rear of a building, the loading dock may be
located at the side of a building providing that landscaping is used to screen the loading dock
from neighboring properties and public rights-of-way.

All loading docks shall be set back and permanently screened, either by landscaping, berming or
architectural screens, from neighboring properties and public view to minimize the effect of their
appearance from neighboring building sites.

Vehicle maneuvering for loading and unloading shall not be permitted on abutting rights-of-way.

C. Landscaping.

1.

A landscaping plan shall be submitted as a part of any application for use-on-
review/development plan approval. The species lists for recommended trees are available at the
planning commission, or on its website (www.knoxplanning.org). The following minimum
standards shall apply:

a. Any required yard shall be landscaped with various sizes of native trees. One (1) large
maturing tree and one (1) medium or small maturing tree shall be provided per acre of
required yard spaces.

b.  Grass or other natural ground cover shall be used in the required yard spaces. The majority
of the area around buildings shall be landscaped with shrubs, and yards shall be maintained
in such a manner as to provide a park-like setting for the district.

Parking areas.

a. Parking areas shall contain one thousand (1,000) square feet of landscaping for every
twenty thousand (20,000) square feet, or fraction thereof, of paved parking area.

b. For each five thousand (5,000) square feet of parking area, or fraction thereof, a tree shall
be provided that will obtain a minimum height of forty (40) feet at maturity.

Buffer yards and other screening.

a. Within the required building setback, a buffer yard shall be established along any property
line that abuts a residential or agricultural zoning district. The planning commission may
consider buffer yards in relation to other zones as the site plan is considered.

b.  The following standards shall apply in buffer yards:

Minimum width: One hundred (100) feet adjacent to residential zones and fifty (50) feet
adjacent to agricultural and open space zones.

Landscaping and screening: A combination of medium and large evergreen trees and
evergreen shrubs, which will provide an eighty (80) percent screen at maturity from
adjoining properties to a height of forty-five (45) feet, shall be planted in the buffer yard.

c. Other sight obscuring screens shall be provided with the following minimum heights:
Refuse collection: One (1) foot height higher the refuse container.
Loading areas: Eight (8) feet.
Outdoor storage (where permitted): Six (6) feet.

For these operations, adequate screening can be either natural or architectural material
which obscures the line of sight from vehicles, pedestrians, and first story windows.
Storage, loading and refuse container screening shall be of a material and design
compatible with the overall architecture of the associated structure. The trees and shrubs

(Supp. No. 21)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

Page 65 of 67



E.

shall cover a minimum of fifty (50) percent of the fence or architectural material in order to
soften the screen.

d.  Berms, which have a minimum height of three (3) feet at any point, are strongly
encouraged as a technique to screen on-site activities and to provide a buffer between
those activities and adjacent properties. Berms should vary in height to provide interest.
The plan materials previously identified should be used in landscaping berms.

e. Existing trees that shall be conserved to create the buffer and other screening shall be
identified on the landscaping plan.

4.  The planning commission may approve a landscaping plan that differs from the minimum
standards if the commission finds that such plan meets the intent of this section.

5.  The department of code administration shall verify the installation of landscaping as shown on
the approved landscaping plan prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. Installation of
planting materials may be delayed until the next planting season, in the event that literal
compliance with the above standard would require plants to be installed at a time when they
would not survive. In such cases, a certificate of occupancy can be issued prior to the installation
of landscaping with the posting of a bond with the county department of engineering and public
works to guarantee such installation.

Lighting. Lighting of all types shall be directed away from all residential or agricultural zoning districts,
or any public rights-of-way. Locate lights to avoid glare or excessive light spillover on adjacent sites and
direct exterior lighting away from adjacent properties. Cut-off luminaries shall be used for all parking,
road and security lights to reduce the amount of glare and light spillover.

Signage. Signs shall comply with the requirements of subsection 3.90.12, "Employment center zones."

5.51.05. Administration. Within the EC Employment Center Zone, no building or structure shall be erected or
altered until and unless a written application and development plan for the contemplated development within said
district has been filed with and approved by the planning commission. The plan and application shall include the

following:

A.

In consideration of the difference in the scale of potential uses and their impact on the environment
and the surrounding area, a list of the permitted uses shall be approved by the planning commission
and recorded with the county register of deeds prior to the issuance of any permits for the approved
EC Employment Center Zone development.

Architectural, landscaping, lighting and signage plans for the proposed development. These plans may
be in the form of a design guideline document that is approved with the development plan and is used,
via covenants, in developing individual sites or parcels.

A development plan indicating the following: location of present and proposed buildings, loading
docks, driveways, parking lots, other accessory uses, existing wooded areas, proposed landscaping,
building and free-standing signs, and trash disposal areas.

An estimate of the maximum number of employees contemplated for the proposed development and
the number of employees per shift.

A storm drainage plan which includes accurate existing and proposed water courses; the system of
open channels, pipes, culverts, drains, inlets, catch basins, and similar facilities designed to handle
storm water in times of rainstorms; the calculations used in the design of such systems; and the
easements required in the construction and maintenance of the drainage system, consistent with the
requirements of section 6.11, "Grading permit."

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]

(Supp. No. 21)

Page 66 of 67



F. Any other information the planning commission may need to adequately consider the effect that the
proposed uses may have upon the environment and on the cost of providing services to the area.

5.51.06. Following the approval of a development plan by the planning commission, the planning commission
staff may approve plans for individual sites or parcels. In administratively reviewing plans for specific sites or
parcels, the staff shall approve any site plan that complies with the above referenced design guidelines document,
the overall development plan approved by the planning commission, and the requirements of the county zoning
and subdivision regulations. Planning commission staff decisions may be appealed to the planning commission.
Anyone aggrieved by a decision of the planning commission may appeal such decision to the board of zoning
appeals, pursuant to article 6, "Administration, enforcement and interpretation," section 6.60, "Board of zoning
appeals," of these regulations.

5.51.07. The planning commission shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny applications for uses on
review, as described in this section and in compliance with relevant county zoning and subdivision regulations.

5.51.08. Application for review and approval of WCF shall be subject to the provisions of article 4, section
4.92.

(Ord. No. 0-03-2-101, § 1(Exh. A), 3-24-03; Ord. No. 0-04-1-102, § 1(Exh. A), 2-23-04; Ord. No. 0-07-4-101, § 1(Exh.
A), 5-29-07; Ord. No. 0-11-7-103, § 1(Exh. A), 8-22-11; Ord. No. 0-12-9-102, § 1(Exh. A), 10-22-12; Ord. No. O-13-8-
103, § 1(Exh. A), 9-23-13; Ord. No. 0-17-10-101, § 1(Exh. A), 11-20-17; Ord. No. 0-19-5-101, § 1(Exh. A), 6-24-19;
Ord. No. 0-22-2-101, §§ 1, 2, 3-28-22)

Created: 2024-07-22 14:39:51 [EST]
(Supp. No. 21)

Page 67 of 67



¢4 Planning

\\\\\\\\\\ 1 KNOX COUNTY

February 13, 2025
Planning Commission meeting

Public Comments
1T Comment for 2-A-25-OA and

Jon (37934), February 11, 2025 at 2:31 PM

| am writing in opposition of Ordinance Amendment 2-A-25-OA. Please see that attached letter.

| |



https://knoxplanning.org/agenda
https://knoxplanning.org/agenda
https://agenda.knoxplanning.org/attachments/20250211143114.pdf

J& Plannin

KNOXVILLE | KNOX COUNTY

9

Draft Minutes

Planning Commission Meeting

February 13, 2025

1:30 P.M.

| Main Assembly Room
City County Building

The Planning Commission met in regular session on February 13, 2025, at 1:37 p.m. in the Small
Assembly Room of the City County Building.

Item No.

1.

31.

ROLL CALL, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE

Commissioner

Present

Absent

Arrive late/left early

John Huber, Vice-Chair

Louis Browning

Rich Levenson

Tamara Boyer

Left at 5:30 p.m.

Nancy Barger

Katie Overton

Marité Pérez

Matt Anderson

Logan Higgins

Miles Biggs

Kara Daley

Nick Gill

Left at 5:31 p.m.

Amy Midis

Karyn Adams

Tim Hill, Chair

NINININ NN NN N NN EN EN LN EN

KNOX COUNTY MAYOR’S OFFICE/ MANDI

BENEDICT

Consideration of amendments to the Knox County Code, Appendix B,

Zoning Code, Articles 2.20, 4.91, 5.11, 5.12, 5.13, 5.22, 5.31, 5.32, 5.33,

5.34,5.36,5.37,5.38, 5.40, 5.41, 5.42, 5.50, and 5.51, regarding

childcare facilities.

Speaking:

Jonathan Harris, 1009 Olive Rd., Knoxville, TN 37934

Mandi Benedict, 400 Main St., Knoxville, TN 37902
Amy Nolan, 17 Market Square, Knoxville, TN 37902

1. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

2/18/2025 1:07 PM

File No.

2-A-25-0A

Page 1



Draft Minutes Planning Commission Meeting — February 13, 2025
Item No. File No.

Approve the proposed childcare zoning ordinance
amendments because these changes are consistent with
Knox County Comprehensive Plan Implementation Policies
and State Department of Human Services (DHS) licensure
regulations for childcare facilities.

2. MOTION (GILL) AND SECOND (HUBER) WERE MADE TO
APPROVE PER STAFF RECOMMENDATION.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 15-0. APPROVED

2/18/2025 1:07 PM Page 2



THANK YOU for your submission!

Your notice has been submitted for publication. Below is a confirmation of your order. You will also receive an email confirmation.

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:
LOKR0243048
Order Status:
Submitted
Classification:
Public Notices
Package:
General Package
Total payment:
161.78

Payment Type:
Account Billed
User ID:
LO013876
External User ID:
676064

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Knoxville-Knox County Planning

400 W Main ST # 403 DALLAS DEARMOND
Knoxville, TN 37902-2427

865-215-3810
dallas.dearmond@knoxplanning.org
Knoxville-Knox County Planning

Contract ID: GOVT

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date
February 18, 2025 9:15:55 AM EST
Amount:
161.78
ADDITIONAL OPTIONS
1 Affidavit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02430480

February 20, 2025
Knoxville News Sentinel

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LOKR02430480

PUBLIC NOTICE
The following items will be considered by the Knox County
Board of Commissioners on March 24, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room, City County Bldg., 400 Main St.,
Knoxville, TN. For information related to these items visit
knoxplanning.org/agenda or visit the Planning Office in suite
403 of the City County Bldg. Knox County does not discrimi-
nate on the basis of disability in its provision of services,
programs, dctivities or benefits. If you need assistance or
accommodation for a disability, please contact the ADA
office at (865) 215-2952.
PLAN AMENDMENTS/REZONINGS
1-1-24-RZ — MIESANA INVESTMENTS LLC - 6930 Shady
Lane, 2748 Cunningham Road. Proposed rezoning. Planning
Commission Action: Approve PR (Planned Residential) up
to 5 du/ac.
2-C-25-RZ - RANDY GUIGNARD - 0 Rifle Range Dr.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
PR (Planned Residential) up to 10 du/ac.
2-D-25-RZ - AMY SHERRILL - 7420 Ledgerwood Rd.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
RB (General Residential)
2-1-25-RZ - BENJAMIN C MULLINS - 2520 Beaver Creek Dr.
Proposed rezoning. Planning Commission Action: Approve
PR (Planned Residential) up to 12 du/ac.
2-J-25-RZ — ADRIAN PERJU - 0 Sharp Rd. Proposed rezon-
ing. Planning Commission Recommendation: Approve RA
(Low Density Residential)
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT
2-A-25-0A - KNOX COUNTY MAYOR’S OFFICE/MANDI
BENEDICT - Consideration of amendments to the Knox
County Code, Appendix B, Zoning Code, Articles 2.20, 4.91,
5.11, 5.12, 5.13, 5.22, 5.31, 5.32, 5.33, 5.34, 5.36, 5.37, 5.38, 5.40,
5.41, 5.42, 5.50, and 5.51, regarding childcare facilities. Plan-
ning Commission Recommendation: Approve the proposed
childcare zoning ordinance amendments.
February 20 2025
LOKR0243048

<< Click here to print a printer friendly version >>

Privacy Policy | Terms of Service

Contact Us

i-Publish® AdPortal: v2.6
©2024 iPublish Media Solutions, LLC


https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-and-conditions/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/okr/static/contact.html
javascript:window.print()
http://www.ipublishmedia.com/

This case is scheduled to be
heard by County Commission on
March 24, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. in
the Main Assembly Room of the
City County Building, 400 Main
St.,Knoxville, TN. YOU or YOUR
representative must be
present. The item will be
postponed or withdrawn if you
are not represented.



FISCAL NOTE

Ordinance 0-25-3-101

CAPTION:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION
OF KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE,
AMENDING THE KNOX COUNTY CODE,
APPENDIX A — ZONING, ARTICLES 2.20,
4.91; 5.11;5.12; 5.13; 5,22, 5.31; 5.32,5.33, 534,
5.36, 5.37, 5.38, 5.40, 5.41, 5.42, 5.50, AND 5.51
TO ALIGN ZONING REGULATIONS WITH
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES (DHS)
LICENSURE RULES FOR CHILD CARE
AGENCIES AND TO STREAMLINE THE
PROVISION OF CHILD CARE SERVICES.

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS (PURSUANT TO SEC. 1-11 OF THE KNOX
COUNTY CODE):

There is no cost associated with this Ordinance.

A e

Chris Caldwell,’Chief Financial Officer



	Agenda
	__Rezoning for William Zayets 3-J-25-RZ
	       ATT_William Zayets 3-J-25-RZ
	__Rezoning for Ball Homes LLC 3-H-25-RZ
	       ATT_Ball Homes LLC 3-H-25-RZ
	       ATT_Letter to Defer to May
	__Rezoning for Bryan Andrew Byrd 3-B-25-RZ
	       ATT_Bryan Andrew Byrd 3-B-25-RZ
	__Rezoning for Daniel Humphreys 3-D-25-RZ
	       ATT_Daniel Humphreys 3-D-25-RZ
	__Rezoning for Elizabeth D. Raines 3-F-25-RZ
	       ATT_Elizabeth D. Raines 3-F-25-RZ
	__Rezoning for Sierra Kirby 3-A-25-RZ
	       ATT_Sierra Kirby 3-A-25-RZ
	__Ordinance Amendment 2-A-25-OA
	       ATT_Ordinance
							REQUESTED BY:	PLANNING COMMISSIONAND COMMISSIONER JAY
	 		

	       ATT_Exhibit A - redlined changes
	       ATT_Ordinance Amendment 2-A-25-OA
	Blank Page

	       ATT_Fiscal Note

